Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 7 NOVEMBER 2023
Time: 1.45 pm
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 2 - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL
Members: Graham Packham (Chairman) Deputy Alastair Moss
John Edwards (Deputy Chairman) Alderwoman Susan Pearson
Deputy Randall Anderson lan Seaton
Deputy Marianne Fredericks Paul Martinelli (Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Shravan Joshi Oliver Sells KC (Ex-Officio Member)

Deputy Charles Edward Lord

Enquiries:  Zoe Lewis
Zoe.Lewis@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofLondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA

N.B. Items marked * are for information and will be taken without discussion, unless the
Clerk has been informed that a Member has questions or comments prior to the start of
the meeting.

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
3. MINUTES
To agree the public minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2023.
For Decision
(Pages 5 - 22)
4. CITY PUBLIC REALM GUIDANCE - PUBLIC REALM DESIGN TOOLKIT -
ADOPTION
Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.
For Decision
(Pages 23 - 76)
5. CLIMATE ACTION STRATEGY, COOL STREETS AND GREENING PROGRAMME
- PHASE 4, SUDS (SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE) FOR CLIMATE
RESILIENCE
Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.
For Decision
(Pages 77 - 92)
6. DAUNTSEY HOUSE, FREDERICKS PLACE - PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS
(S278)
Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.
For Decision
(Pages 93 - 106)
7. ENHANCING CHEAPSIDE PROGRAMME

Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.
For Decision
(Pages 107 - 122)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

FLEET STREET AREA HEALTHY STREETS PLAN

Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 123 - 384)

BANK JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS: ALL CHANGE AT BANK *

Report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

For Information
(Pages 385 - 414)

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES*
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 415 - 416)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION — That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:-

Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
SUB COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

STREETS AND WALKWAYS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION)
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 26 September 2023

Minutes of the meeting of the Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee held at Committee Room 2 - 2nd Floor West Wing,
Guildhall on Tuesday, 26 September 2023 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Graham Packham (Chairman)
John Edwards (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy Randall Anderson

Deputy Marianne Fredericks
Deputy Alastair Moss
Alderwoman Susan Pearson

Officers:

Zoe Lewis - Town Clerk’s Department
Melanie Charalambous - Environment Department
Gillian Howard - Environment Department
lan Hughes - Environment Department
Sam Lee - Environment Department
Bruce McVean - Environment Department
Bob Roberts - Environment Department
Clarisse Tavin - Environment Department
Jake Tibbetts - Environment Department

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Shravan Joshi, Paul
Martinelli and lan Seaton.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
Deputy Fredericks stated that in relation to Agenda Item 4 — 100 Minories: 278
Highway Works (Phase 1), and Public Realm Enhancements (Crescent Phase
2), she was a resident of Tower Ward, knew the architects of the two hotels and
had attended the event currently taking place in Crescent.

3. MINUTES
RESOLVED, That the public minutes of the meeting of 4 July 2023 be
approved as an accurate record of the proceedings.

Matters Arising

Page 5



Letter from TfL regarding the rerouting of Number 11 bus route

A Member asked if a response had been received to the letter sent to TfL. An
Officer stated that a response had been received and would be circulated to
Members of the Sub-Committee.

Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Streets Plan

A Member asked about the governance of the joint project with Islington
Council. An Officer stated that a working group had been established with
Officers at Islington Council and the arrangements for Member level
governance had been discussed. A Member working group would be set up to
inform and oversee the work to develop the proposals and these proposals
would be submitted to the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee. Islington had
fewer ward Members than the City so it was suggested that two or three
representatives from the City sit on the working group. The Chairman had
suggested these representatives should be Members of the Streets and
Walkways Sub-Committee. The Officer stated that a meeting of Chairman and
Deputy Chairman plus the relevant Executive Member at Islington Council
would be arranged.

In response to a Member's question about when the proposals would be
submitted, an Officer stated that it was anticipated they would be submitted to
the Sub-Committee in the first half of 2024 and this would be followed by the
consultation.

Dockless Cycles

A Member asked about the performance of Lime since the new agreement had
been signed. She raised concerns about the cycles constricting the pedestrian
flow on Cheapside. An Officer stated that the latest statistics from the operators
had not yet been received, there had been increased usage over the summer
and the City would be providing additional parking spaces. The operators had
been asked to help manage the issues on Cheapside including at the junction
with King Street.

In response to a question from a Member, an Officer stated that TfL and
London Councils were looking into having a London-wide single dockless cycle
contract. This was currently at an early stage of development. The contract
should mean there would only be a set number of operators for the whole of
London and there would be a consistency of parking arrangements.

100 MINORIES: 278 HIGHWAY WORKS (PHASE 1), AND PUBLIC REALM
ENHANCEMENTS (CRESCENT) (PHASE 2)

Members received a report of the Interim Executive Director, Environment
which outlined Phase 1 of the project which involved S278 funded highway
works to integrate the hotel development at 100 Minories into the City’s
highway and Phase 2 of the project which involved public realm enhancements
and the landscaping of Crescent.

The Chairman stated that a late public submission had been received and gave
Members time to read it.

Page 6



The Officer stated that there had been a delay in finalising the S278 agreement
over several years and this had increased the costs. The costs had been
reported to the hotel operator and the works could not proceed without
payment. Any delays to the payment could result in further costs due to
inflation.

The Officer stated that the design of the public realm enhancements had
evolved following consultation and liaison with occupiers and TfL. She stated
that TfL required 24-hour, 7 day a week access to their substation for the Circle
and District Lines which was in the Crescent and they had made comments on
the design which Officers had worked to address. Officers had also worked with
the Destination City team to accommodate more event activities. The team had
advised that the ideal space for events and activities was 100 square metres.
Officers had also worked with the relevant Business Improvement Districts
(BIDs) and had held a workshop to explore alternative events. She advised that
Officers had held several meetings with the hotel and the hotel architects and
had taken on board their comments, which had evolved over the consultation.
The Officer stated that two options had been developed.

The first option was similar to that approved in January 2023 by the Sub-
Committee and the second option included more space for events. The Officer
stated that consultation on this option had taken place. Numbers 6-7 and 8-11
Crescent were currently empty but contact had been made with the owner’s
representatives and they had submitted letters of support. TfL had also
submitted a letter of support and a preference for option 2. The Officer stated
that the BIDs considered that Option 2 met the needs of the community and
was their preferred design. She advised that, generally those in support of
Option 2 were in favour of the greening and landscaping at the edges of the
space. The Officer stated that Option 2 also used climate action money and
incorporated sustainable urban drainage so was a better environmental and
more climate resilient scheme. There was also public seating and space for
events and activities. The hotel had stated that they would prefer no permanent
planting. Officers considered Option 2 to be the best option for the space and
had received the most letters of support.

A Member stated that the scheme had evolved since the redevelopment of 100
Minories as it had become clear that the grassed landscaping was unsuitable
as there was a railway line underneath it and there were issues with load-
bearing and watering, as well as the access requirements for the sub-station.
The Member stated that Tower ward was not lacking space with grass, trees
and benches but was lacking activity space. She stated that the Sports Strategy
and Destination City had sparked the imagination of the Aldgate and EC1
Business Improvement Districts and residents. She stated that she was
concerned about a lack of consultation. The Member also stated that there
were a number of open spaces in the ward in need of refurbishment including
Trinity Square Gardens and the fenced off play equipment in Tower Hill
Gardens. The Member stated that the scheme should be paused and revisited
to consult the residents who had not been consulted and stated the importance
of this when the Policy Chairman had a key policy to have a reset with
residents. She also stated that the padel court, although temporary, had

Page 7



brought people into the area and stated that events had to be on a scale to
make them viable. The Member stated that Option 2 included more space for
activities but it was in the area that required constant access to the substation.
She therefore raised concern that any activity equipment had to be able to
move quickly if TfL required access to the substation. The Member stated that
at the workshop held about the scheme, no consensus was reached and
commented that the EC1 BID had concerns about the proposed trees. She
suggested that a pause and deep dive would ascertain how the space could be
used and during this time, funding could be put into Tower Hill Gardens to
make it a welcoming entrance to the City with new play equipment, and funding
could be put into Vine Street’s railway bridge in order to link up with the
Crescent. The Member stated that whilst the hotel might favour a quiet garden,
residents were concerned that other quiet spaces had turned into beer gardens.

The Chairman stated that Tower Hill Gardens was a separate issue and
advised that this was a standalone project and was included under Item 10 as a
proposal to be allocated Section 106 funds.

The Chairman asked Officers to outline the engagement that had taken place
with residents. The Officer stated that there were not any residents close to the
site. She advised that there had been a letter drop in the local area and a
workshop with businesses had been held but there had not been direct
engagement with residents as they were not close to the site. She stated that
this was in line with the consultations undertaken with this type of proposal. The
Officer stated that if there were residents interested in the design, Officers
could meet them. A Member stated there was a residential block on the other
side of the Minories and also one at 100 Pepys Street and she considered that
as stakeholders in the area, they should be consulted.

A Member raised concern that if the Crescent scheme was implemented and
then buildings on Crescent were refurbished, there would be a cost in
reinstating elements of the scheme. An Officer stated that any works could be
accommodated and Numbers 6-7 had completed a refurbishment and provided
a written comment that they supported the design and were keen for it to
progress quickly as they considered that this would help them let their
buildings. Officers had met with the managing agent of Numbers 8-11 who had
advised them of the plans for refurbishment and provided written responses
supporting the proposal. An Officer stated that discussions had taken place
about how refurbishment works could be accommodated and Officers
considered this could be done quite easily as the works were almost entirely
internal so there would be limited impact on the highway.

A Member commented that there were voices against Crescent being an
entertainment space and voices against the permanent greening of the space.
The Member stated that the proposal was a compromise and whilst it would be
possible to undertake further consultation, the key stakeholders had been
consulted and the BIDs would be aware of local needs.

A Member stated that in recent years there had been a renewed emphasis on
keeping fit and the City had a strategy on sports which needed to be

Page 8



implemented. He stated that the proposal would provide a combination of
greening and a place to undertake sport. The Member commented that some
people wanted greening, shrubs and seats and others wanted sports. He also
stated that children’s playgrounds were lacking in Destination City and were
required to get families into the City. The Member stated that he would like the
surface of the central piece to be soft as this gave the ability to have events and
also facilitate activities such as yoga. An Officer stated that having permeable
paving on the north side of the space was an option but as the central area
would be used for events, it would need to be hard wearing. The Officer stated
that York Stone could take the weight of the vehicles that would need to drive
across it to access the substation. The Member stated that hardwearing soft
permeable paving was available.

The Chairman stated that the proposal aimed to strike a balance between
providing space for events and leisure. If the greening was not included, there
would be no climate resilience, biodiversity planting, trees, shade or sustainable
drainage system. An Officer stated that from a policy perspective, Members of
the Sub-Committee had challenged Officers several times to find more space
for greening and more trees as the Climate Action Strategy was a relevant
policy consideration. The Officer stated that this proposal allowed the Cool
Streets and Greening money to be used and if hard landscaping was used, the
money would have to be taken out of the project. There were also likely to be
other areas with greater priority if some of the elements of greening could not
be delivered into the space.

A Member stated that the BIDs had made it clear in the workshop that they
wanted flexible space and that the EC1 BID had suggested an ice rink. The
Member stated that pausing and consulting residents would enable a green
element to be included but also enable flexibility and showcase the landscape
design of George Dance the Younger in Crescent, which was of historical
importance in the ward and in the City.

The Chairman asked Officers for more detail on the consultation. An Officer
stated that there were no residents close to the site so those in the vicinity of
the Crescent had been consulted. All the occupiers around the edge had been
consulted, as had occupiers on Vine Street as far as America Square, as well
as the two BIDS. There was a mail shot and a letter drop. Officers had
undertaken research to find the owners of the empty buildings and Officers
contacted them by email and letter. The Officer stated that the workshop was
held in August.

An Officer stated that residents could be consulted through a letter drop.
However, the design had evolved to meet every need that had been identified
with event space, planting, the Crescent occupiers being satisfied, TfL being
satisfied that there would not be any equipment that could not be dismantled
quickly to give access to their substation and Officers did not envisage any
more needs being established by doing this. Any redesign was likely to be very
similar but there could be an issue of additional costs being incurred.

Page 9



A Member stated that he wanted to be confident that part of the scheme would
not need to be deconstructed to enable office refurbishment. An Officer stated
that refurbishment works would be accommodated as part of the design
development. A relationship had already been established with the managing
agent for Numbers 8-11 and Officers would coordinate with them to avoid
having to deconstruct any part of the scheme. She stated that this could include
not planting the tree on the North side in the next planting season and planting
it in the following planting season if that was in the way of the hoarding and she
stated that this was the only risk that had been identified.

A Member welcomed the inclusion of trees and asked how the space would be
maintained. An Officer stated that 20 years of maintenance costs were included
in the project budget, the materials to be used were City palette materials so
would be quite easy to maintain, the planting would be climate resilient planting
so would have lower maintenance over time and the trees would be established
and generally would not require watering after five years.

A Member stated that office workers had expressed concern about having
active sport in front of their office. The Member stated that primarily the City
was about office work and whilst sport was important, sporting facilities should
be placed carefully so as not to cause issues for office workers.

A Member stated that visitors should be a main consideration as the City
wanted to attract them to the City. He stated that it was difficult to ask visitors
what they would like to see, so the City had to act on their behalf. The Member
also stated that office workers should also be considered and attracting both
groups to the City would result in more money being spent in the City. He
stated that currently there were 520,000 office workers attending the City
midweek and there were 20million visitors to the City each year. He also stated
that there were 8000 residents which included 4000 permanent residents, and
there were none living adjacent to the proposed public realm project. The
Member stated that in this instance residents considerations were the least
important.

A Member commented that the freeholder of the office block was in favour of
activity space in front of the block. She raised concern that the activity zone in
Option 2 was in the area where there had to be access for the substation. She
suggested a pause to enable Officers to ensure all the design ideas had been
captured.

The Chairman asked Officers to clarify the situation regarding access to the
substation. The Officer stated that only activities with moveable equipment
would be licensed. She advised that one of the issues with the current padel
board court was that it was large-scale and the equipment would need
dismantling if emergency access to the substation was required. In the future,
licenses would be granted to smaller scale activities. Options had been
considered with the Business Improvement Districts and all of these activities
had dismantlable equipment.

Page 10



An Officer commented that TfL had concerns about the padel board court. They
were content for the license to be extended for the summer but were clear that
they were not prepared to accept this permanently. The Officer stated that
access to the substation was a constraint of the space and the area would be a
flexible space with the ability to deliver events accommodate the needs of TfL
plus the premises on the west side regarding their potential requirements for
refurbishment. Members were informed that Officers had been working on the
design over the last 12-18 months and the design had evolved over time.

A Member commented that sockets could be pre-built in the ground so sporting
nets could be put up and removed quickly. An Officer stated that TfL
understood the City wanted to change the nature of the space in terms of a
permanent design and temporary usage. Only activities which would not put at
risk other key aspects e.g., the servicing of the substation, would be licensed. If
proposed equipment could not be dismantled in a reasonable time period, this
would be discussed with TfL to ascertain if they were prepared to accept the
use. The design of equipment would be important.

Having fully debated the application, the Sub-Committee proceeded to vote on
the recommendations before them.

Votes were cast as follows: IN FAVOUR - 4 votes
OPPOSED -1 vote
There were no abstentions.

The recommendations were therefore carried.

Deputy Fredericks asked for her vote against the recommendations to be
recorded.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee
1. Note the additional cost of £160,747 for Phase 1 (S278 Highway Works)

to be funded in full by the owner and approve the revised total budget for
Phase 1 of £705,525 (excluding costed risk);

2. That Option 2 is approved for Phase 2 (Public Realm Enhancements to
Crescent);

3. That an additional budget of £47,000 is approved for Phase 2 to reach
Gateway 5;

4. Agree the total estimated cost of Phase 2 at £900,000 - £1,228,000
(excluding risk);

5. Agree the funding sources for Phase 2 set out in Appendix 3 of the
Officer report.

CITY CLUSTER AREA - PROGRAMME UPDATE (INCLUDING
LEADENHALL STREET IMPROVEMENTS)

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment which provided an update on the delivery of the City Cluster
programme.

Page 11



RESOLVED - That Members of the Sub-Committee

=

Note and approve the content of this progress update;

2. Note the funding strategy in Appendix 2 of the Officer report, and the
commitment of £1m from the EC Business Improvement District, subject
to the outcome of the City’s capital bid which has been submitted for
consideration;

3. Approve funding of £35,000 from the S106 contribution of 40 Leadenhall
Street for staff costs and fees for the management of the City Cluster
programme including communications, for the next reporting period, as
set out in Appendix 2 of the Officer report; and

4. Approve the following recommendations regarding the Leadenhall Street

Improvement project, to enable the project to progress to Gateway 3:

I. Approve the progression of the project’s design shown in Appendix 3
of the Officer report towards a more-detailed design with costed
greening and public realm options for future consideration and approval
by Members;

ii. Approve the increased and amended budget shown in Appendix 4 of
the Officer report to enable the above work to take place and reach the
next gateway, including the requested increase of £173,000 to a new
overall budget of £391,000. (proposed to be funded by the 20 Fenchurch
Street S106 monies);

iii. Approve the inclusion of a works budget line to accommodate trial
holes to help validate potential greening locations along the street; and
iv. Approve the amended Risk Register in Appendix 5 that has been
updated following the outcome of TfL’s Bishopsgate Experimental Traffic
Order to release the funding previously held in the register back into the
project.

CREECHURCH LANE AREA IMPROVEMENTS (CITY CLUSTER
PROGRAMME)

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning proposed public realm and highway improvements to
the Creechurch Lane, Mitre Street and Bury Street area.

RESOLVED - That Members of the Sub-Committee

1. Approve the initiation of this project;

2. Approve the budget of £75,000 (staff costs and fees) for the project to
reach the next Gateway 3/4, funded from the Section 106 agreement of
40 Leadenhall Street development;

3. Note the total estimated cost of the project at £500,000-£780,000
(excluding risk); and

4. Authorise officers to prepare and agree a funding letter to receive the
external funding contribution from the EC Business Improvement District.

ST PAUL’S CATHEDRAL EXTERNAL RE-LIGHTING

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the proposal to replace the ageing external lighting

Page 12



system at St Paul's Cathedral with a new innovative and energy efficient
system.

The Officer stated that there would be brighter light to the dome and the upper
parts of the building and this would support distant views across London. There
would be softer, dimmed light to the base of the building which would contribute
to the ambience of its local setting in the City. There would be an appearance of
light radiating out from the main body of the cathedral to create a sense of a
living building.

Members were informed that lighting tests would be carried out in in the near
future and the proposed lighting would be demonstrated to key stakeholders,
decision makers from the City, St Paul’'s Cathedral, external statutory bodies
and sponsors. The Officer stated that a budget of £350,000 was requested to
carry out these trials, progress the design details and prepare the next gateway
report which was due to be submitted in Quarter 3 of 2024. It was anticipated
that the Gateway 5 report would be submitted in Quarter 1 of 2025.

The Officer stated that the report also requested approval to formalise the
handover of management and maintenance of the lighting system to St Paul’s
Cathedral. Members were informed that the Cathedral had agreed to take on
the future maintenance, running costs and management of the lighting system.
It was anticipated that the new system would deliver annual savings of
approximately 60% of both running costs and maintenance. It would also
reduce light pollution and the carbon footprint in line with the City’s Lighting
Strategy, the Lighting Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and the
Climate Action Plan.

The Officer stated that project funding had now been secured through Section
106 contributions which were complementing the initial City contribution that
was previously approved. In addition, discussions had taken place with nearby
Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and external high-profile partners. It was
anticipated that if any further funding was required for the project, this would be
secured through external sources. The Officer stated that if additional external
funding was secured in excess of the project cost, the City Fund contribution
could be reduced accordingly.

In response to a question from a Member, the Officer stated that the equipment
to be used in the lighting tests would be returned afterwards so there would be
no cost. However, the demonstration required some equipment to be
purchased. If it was considered that it could meet the needs of the final project
it would be stored. If it was not suitable, it would be returned and the cost of the
equipment would be reimbursed.

A Member requested that Members of the Sub-Committee be invited to attend
the lighting tests and demonstration.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Note the updated concept design;

Page 13



2. Approve the budget of an additional £350,000 to undertake the lighting
tests and demonstration trials, progress the detailed design, and reach
the next Gateway; funded from the £1.16m capital bid previously
approved in 2021;

3. Authorise the transfer of any underspend from the previous Gateway to

this Gateway budget;

Note the revised budget of £675,000;

Approve the revised project programme;

Approve that Officers enter into the required legal agreement with St

Paul’s Cathedral regarding the future maintenance and management of

the lighting system; and

7. Be invited to attend the lighting tests and demonstration.

o g b

MANSION HOUSE STATION ENVIRONS - LITTLE TRINITY LANE PUBLIC
REALM ENHANCEMENTS

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment, outlining the project aims to deliver an enhanced public space
through increased greening, improved seating, and accessibility improvements
plus additional design objectives to maximise the delivery of climate resilience
measures.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Approve design option 2 to be taken forward to the next gateway;

2. Approve an additional budget of £37,600 from the 39-53 Cannon Street
S106 to reach the next Gateway, thus increasing the available project
budget to £177,607;

3. Note the revised total estimated cost of the project at £650,000-£780,00
excluding risk;

4. Delegate the approval of a Costed Risk Provision to the Interim
Executive Director, Environment should one be sought at Gateway 5;
5. Delegate approval to undertake the statutory consultation that may be

required in relation to the reviewed position of the Doctor’s parking bay
and disabled bays, to the Interim Executive Director, Environment.

WIDEGATE STREET BARRIER AND OPERATION S278

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the installation of a physical barrier on Widegate
Street.

In response to a Member’s questions about how the bollards would be removed
when the street was open, an Officer stated that there would be a legal
agreement between the City and the operator, Marugame Udon, a restaurant
located in Widegate Street, and they would be required to remove the bollards
when the street was open.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Note the proposals as detailed in the Officer report; and

2. Authorise the Comptroller to enter into the S278 agreement under the
Highways Act 1980, with Marugame Udon, to fund the proposals as

Page 14



10.

11.

12.

13.

detailed in this report, operate the removable bollards, pay for
maintenance when required and the removal of the measures should
they no longer be needed.

ALLOCATION OF RING-FENCED S106 DEPOSITS TO PROJECTS AND
PROGRAMMES

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning approval for a further allocation of ring-fenced S106
funds, consistent with previous Member approvals and corporate priorities.

An Officer stated that the money was ring-fenced as all of the Section 106
funds were either geographically restricted or restricted in purpose and had
therefore been allocated, or had an allocation proposed, based on these
factors.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee approve the allocation of £8,953,294 in
S106 deposits to programmes and projects, as outlined in the Officer report.

COMBINED SECTION 278 PROJECT INITIATION REPORT

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment which was a gateway 1 and 2 report for 23 separate Section 278
projects.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Approve project budgets for each project to reach the next gateways as
set out in the tables in Section 2 of the Officer report; and
2. Authorise officers to instruct the Comptroller and City Solicitor's

department to negotiate and enter into Section 278 agreements for the
individual projects.

COMMEMORATIVE BENCHES AND TREES POLICY

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the Commemorative Benches and Trees Policy which
aimed to formalise the existing offer for benches and trees in City Gardens and
Public Realm.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee approve the adoption of the draft
Commemorative Benches and Trees Policy as set out in Appendix 1 of the
Officer report.

22 BISHOPSGATE PUBLIC REALM PROJECT

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the proposal to deliver new and improved public realm
in Bishopsgate, Crosby Square, Great St Helen’s and Undershaft under the
Section 278 and Section 106 agreements associated with the development at
22 Bishopsgate.

Page 15



14.

15.

Following a Member’'s comment about wind levels when exiting from Horizon
22, and asking about possible mitigation, Officers stated they would raise this
with Planning Officers and report back to Members.

In response to a Member’s concern that trees had been planted but one was
not looking healthy, and others having been removed and not replaced, an
Officer stated that under planning conditions, the trees would be replaced. He
would enquire as to the species being proposed and report back to the
Member. The Officer stated that the trees that had previously been planted, had
been planted by the developer with TfL approval but against Officer
recommendations. He further stated that the trees planted by the City in the
public realm had a very high success rate.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Note the delay to the completion of the S278 works associated with 22
Bishopsgate;

2. Note the 6-8 Bishopsgate S278 contribution of £105,000 towards the
increased cost of the 22 Bishopsgate public realm project;

3. Approve an increase to the 22 Bishopsgate public realm project budget
of £105,000 to complete the project implementation in Undershaft and
note the revised total estimated project cost at £1,400,500; and

4, Approve the budget adjustment related to staff and works costs to be
actioned as outlined in Table 2 Appendix 4 of the Officer report.

35 VINE STREET SECTION 278 HIGHWAY WORKS

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the proposal to deliver an enhanced package of
Section 278 highway and public realm improvements around the new
development at 35 Vine Street, including the introduction of pedestrian priority
measures in part of Vine Street, new cycle parking and ten street trees.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Agree to retain £14,987 as a commuted maintenance sum for City
Gardens to maintain the ten street trees;

2. Approve the budget adjustment set out in Appendix 3, Table 2 of the
Officer report;

3. Approve the content of the outcome report and agree for the project to
be closed;

4. Authorise the return of unspent funds to the developer.

CREED COURT S.278

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment concerning the proposal to deliver public realm enhancements to
the area surrounding the new development at Creed Court as outlined in the
Sections 106 and 278 agreements, to accommodate the projected increase in
pedestrian traffic and servicing needs of the hotel.

A Member commented that when the street was partially closed, many

pedestrians were unaware the street was partially open and therefore
businesses that relied on passing trade, had lost business. He advised that

Page 16



16.

17.

18.

once Officers were informed of this, they responded quickly, putting signage on
Ludgate Hill advising that the businesses were still open. He stated that this
was a learning point for the future.

RESOLVED - That the Sub-Committee

1. Approve the contents of this report and agree to close this project;

2. Approve the budget adjustment related to staff costs to be actioned as
outlined in Appendix 3 of the Officer report;

3. Authorise return of unused funds to the developer, including any accrued

interest as per the Section 278 agreement.

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk setting out the list of
Outstanding References.

RESOLVED - That the Beech Street Transport and Public Realm
Improvements item be removed from the list of Outstanding References.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were two items of business to be considered under 18a and 18b.

18.1 Moor Lane Environmental Enhancements

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Interim Executive Director,
Environment which provided an update on recent activity and the next steps for
Area B (the Western side of Moor Lane). The Officer stated that Area A (the
Eastern side of Moor Lane) had already been agreed in July 2022 and work
would start on Area A in October 2023.

An Officer stated that the report followed concerns raised by local resident
representatives regarding design. The design which had been approved in May
2023 had an outstanding element relating to the greening aspects for the Rain
Gardens, planters and the Clean Air Garden. The Officer advised that the
recent representations were outside of the elements delegated in that approval
and that the issues raised were contained within the Officer report. She stated
that Officers had proposed to pause delivery and undertake a review of the
design for the Western pavement and look at whether a change of traffic
management in the Healthy Streets Neighbourhood Plan would offer a greater
opportunity for additional greening and planting. It was also proposed that
independent advice would be sought to review the proposals and feed into an
overall design review. The Officer stated that the aim of the review was to
establish if there were any other options that would allow taller trees or greater
planting that would be deliverable, sustainable and maintainable in the longer
term. This information would then be presented back to interested stakeholders

Page 17



at a stakeholder progress meeting and there would then be a report back to the
Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee in early 2024.

In response to a Member’s question, the Officer stated that the constraints of
the street still remained, particularly regarding London Underground and the
requirement for access to the car park and 21 Moorfields.

The Chairman asked if Officers were fully aware of any limitations under the
ground. An Officer stated that Officers were confident that the exact location of
the Underground structure was known and Officers were aware of the
limitations of very shallow depths. She advised that extra trial holes in the
Clean Air Garden on the Barbican Estate land had identified a ramp. The
Officer stated that if there was an opportunity to extend the footway further,
some additional trial holes could be required at each end but it was unlikely that
any further trial holes would be required in the middle section where the
Underground structure was located.

A Member stated that the amount of planting seemed to have decreased and
there was more pavement in the latest versions of the proposal. She stated that
residents understood the constraints of the site in terms of depth but it was
important to define the streetscape constraints e.g., the required widths of the
pavement and road to improve understanding of why certain ideas were
impossible or possible. The Member commented that trees had been promised
and although there were constraints about the type of trees, there should be a
clear understanding of the height that plants could grow to. She stated that
whilst it was acknowledged that mature plane trees could not be planted, some
bushy trees and an abundance of planting would help address concerns. She
stated that although residents would be disappointed in a delay, this could
mean the design was future-proofed. She also stated that residents had been in
discussions with the Culture Mile Business Improvement District about the
possibility of additional funding to spend in the area as it was a through-route
and was part of Moorgate Crossrail and she suggested that linkages should be
looked at when considering public realm. The Member suggested that if the
current road closure was moved along the road, the road could be divided into
two as there were only five entrances in the whole street that required
servicing.

The Member also stated that not all of the residents wanted to keep the Clean
Air Garden (Pot Garden). Many wanted the complete project to feel like a
scheme rather than a continuation of this garden. She advised that although
there was a Barbican interest in the Pot Garden, it was being looked after by
people who did not live there.

A Member stated that the Clean Air Garden was intended to be temporary, and
the materials chosen reflected that. He considered that there should be a
uniform garden along Moor Lane. Although there were very few places a tree
could be planted, it might be possible to include one in the Clean Air Garden.
The Member stated there were divergent views and many residents felt their
voices were not being heard. He further stated that open consultation with
people in the area would help to address this and their views should be

Page 18



recorded and considered. The Member stated that originally, green walls that
were not attached to the building, were considered and he was unclear why this
was no longer possible.

The Chairman stated that although engagement with local stakeholders would
lead to further delays, it was important to have a decisive majority in favour of
the eventual outcome. He also stated that there were constraints of the site and
expectations had to be managed.

In response to a Member’s query about the ramp, an Officer stated that it was
her understanding that this was an old car park ramp. A Member stated that it
was underground connection between estate and buildings and was still used
for utilities.

In response to a Member’s question about whether there was a time limit to the
funding, the Officer stated that under S106 each agreement was different and
there was usually a time limit. She advised that Cool Streets and Greening
funds had to be spent by 2025.

A Member commented on the presumption that the road had to be 6 metres
wide to have two-way traffic as there were other places in the City with roads
less than 6m where chicanes and priority signs were used. An Officer stated
that potential options for traffic management would be considered as part of the
design review. He advised that they might need to be phased into
improvements as they would be unfunded and any traffic management changes
would be undertaken as part of the Healthy Neighbourhood Plan. The
Chairman commented that if there was agreement on an endpoint which was
not immediately affordable, the project could be split into phases for delivery.

An Officer stated that it was important to look at opportunities to future-proof the
scheme as streets changed over time. He advised that the Healthy
Neighbourhoods agenda might look at the way in which traffic could be
managed across the whole area and this might provide alternatives. He stated
that the proposal put forward 10 years ago was more ambitious than could be
delivered and it was understandable that residents were disappointed this could
not be delivered. He further stated that the way the division was now structured
meant this should not happen with future schemes. The Officer advised that
Officers were committed to continue the engagement on this scheme. He
informed Members that the City had some of the best expertise in planting and
garden maintenance with the City’s microclimate and there was confidence that
the Gardens Team would help to deliver the best deliverable, sustainable and
maintainable scheme given the constraints. He advised that climate resilient
planting would be included.

The Officer stated that following a visit to the Clean Air Garden, there would be
a wider meeting to consider the options. In response to a question as to who
would be consulted, Officers stated that Members of the Streets and Walkways
Sub-Committee, ward Members, stakeholders who had written in, such as
residents of Willoughby House, Heron House, the Barbican Association and
Friends of City Gardens would be consulted. The Officer stated that if Members

Page 19



had any further suggestions of people to invite to the site visit and progress
meeting, these could be added to the list of invitees. The Officer informed
Members that after the meeting, Officers would then make recommendations to
the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee to consider.

In response to a Member’s question about whether the Gardens Team should
offer a consulting service to residents and businesses in relation to plants that
should be planted for the City’s microclimate, an Officer stated that discussions
had been taking place with planning colleagues to ensure that there were
resources available to provide the expertise within the Corporation.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.
18.2 Report of Action Taken

The Sub-Committee received a report of the Town Clerk setting out the action
taken since the last meeting.

In response to a Member’s question as to why the continuation of the traffic and
timing mix review at Bank would cost £650,000, an Officer stated that if there
was a robust reason to change the traffic order, traffic modelling would be
required. Much of the money was to pay for consultants’ time as well as TfL’s
time for the auditing of a large modelled area and £150,000 was for costed risk.
Therefore, £500,000 had been set aside to progress the project to conclusion if
there was a change to the traffic order. An Officer stated that approximately
£100,000 had been committed to studies underway on taxi availability.

A Member commented that the Court of Common Council approved the need
for a review, not necessarily for a change, and that wording should reflect the
words of the motion.

A Member asked for a full breakdown of the costs of revisiting the mix of traffic
at Bank and raised concern that the motion was not debated in Court. She also
raised concern about the amount of Officers’ time and resources spent on this.
She raised further concern that the mix and timings of traffic might not be
approved by TfL and stated that she would like the junction closed to traffic
7am-7pm and also at weekends. She stated that the closure had calmed the
whole area and suggested that the Sub-Committee should undertake a review
so lessons could be learnt going forward. The Member also raised concern that
the decision was taken under urgency which meant the Sub-Committee could
not discuss it.

An Officer stated that an update report would be submitted to the Planning and
Transportation Committee in November 2023 and then an update report would
be submitted to the Court of Common Council in December. He informed
Members that when updates on projects were provided, a breakdown of money
spent and forecast to be spent was provided and that this would be included in
this report. The Officer stated that in this instance, the spend linked to the traffic
and timing mix review would be differentiated as it was part of a wider budget.
The Officer stated that the report on the wider traffic order review had detailed
spending and this could be provided. The Officer stated that there had been an

Page 20



overall allocation of £500,000 for the review and it had not all been spent on the
review. Some of the changes and opportunities identified were to amend traffic
orders to bring them in line or deliver wider benefits and these were being
implemented. The Member asked for details of the projects that had not been
undertaken as a result of the time and resources spent on this review and
commented that there would be increased costs due to inflation. She stated
that there had been a knock-on cost to developers in terms of Section 278
money.

A Member asked Officers that when showing the figures, to try and split the
spend money between costs incurred into money that was spent as a result of

the motion and money that would have been spent anyway as there was
already a plan to have a review a year later.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

The meeting ended at 3.40 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Zoe Lewis
Zoe.Lewis@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s):
Streets and Walkways Sub - Committee

Dated:
07 November 2023

Subject:
City Public Realm Guidance —
Public Realm Design Toolkit - Adoption

Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

1,2,3,4,9,10,11,12

Chamberlain’s Department?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N
capital spending?

If so, how much? NA
What is the source of Funding? S106
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the NA

Report of: Interim Director Environment Department

Report author: Maria Herrera, Environment Department

For Decision

Summary

This report provides an update on the review of the public realm design guidance and
technical information, alongside the proposed adoption of the Public Realm Design
Toolkit (included in Appendix 2) which is an update of and, if adopted, will replace the

Public Realm Technical Manual (2016).

The work completed to date includes:

e Completion of the draft Public Realm Vision document: This work included a
review of the public realm Supplementary Planning Document (2016) in the
context of changing policy and competing demands on the public realm in the
City. It identifies a number of themes and City-wide ‘transformational moves’
that are informing relevant sections of the updated Transport Strategy and the

emerging Local Plan.

e A Public Realm Design Toolkit (Attached in Appendix 2): This work has been
completed and the document is recommended for adoption as the City’s design
guidance to inform changes to the public realm in the City.

Recommendation

Members are asked to:

e Agree to adopt the City Public Realm Design Toolkit as design guidance for the

City’s public realm.

Main Report

Page 23




Background

1. People’s experience the City’s built environment is in a large part
influenced by the relationship between buildings and the spaces between
them. In order to create a high quality City environment, it is essential to
proactively manage our streets and spaces and provide a framework for the
public realm to thrive. There are numerous transformative changes planned
over the coming years stemming from a range of recently adopted and
emerging strategies, documents, and studies, including the Climate Action
Strategy (2020), the Destination City initiative, the emerging City Plan 2040,
and the review of the Transport Strategy.

2. Providing a high quality and inclusive public realm where people enjoy
spending time in is essential to the City’s future as a global destination.
There is clear demand for more vibrant and engaging spaces to attract
people and businesses and offer opportunities to socialise beyond the
working day. The City’s community is also calling for a greener and more
pleasant streets and spaces as well as action to tackle climate change.

3. This Committee agreed a report in December 2020 to initiate the review
and update of public realm guidance and technical information, in order to
take a proactive approach to the future design of our streets and spaces.
The outputs of this initial stage included the following:

» Drafting of the Public Space and Placemaking Vision and Outcomes

* A review of the Public Space and Placemaking Supplementary

Planning Document (2016).

* A review and update of the Technical Manual (2016); now promoted

as “City Public Realm Toolkit”.

4. A further report was approved by this Committee in July 2021 that
provided a progress update including the agreement of a number of themes
to be used to inform the completion of the documents. The work was
structured in two stages to undertake a thorough review of the existing policy
guidance and international best practice to ensure the City remains at the
forefront of design standards. An outline brief was then agreed to develop
stage two of the outputs, which included the development of the City Public
Realm Vision and the Design Toolkit.

5. The development of the guidance document has undergone a rigorous
review involving collaborations with various City teams within the
Environment Department, including Highways, City Gardens and Cleansing,
and Planning divisions. The work completed to date reflects a collaborative
approach adopted at the outset of the process, to ensure corporate priorities
are met and stakeholders have buy-in. A series of workshops were
organised throughout the scoping phase and during the development stage
which helped to shape the final document.

The Purpose of the Design Toolkit

Page 24



6. The purpose of the Toolkit is to provide a coordinated approach to the design
and management of the public realm in the City. The Toolkit promotes high
guality design and sets the standards for public realm features that contribute
to the experience of using the City’s streets, public spaces and private but
publicly accessible spaces. It provides advice for professionals and officers
with a role to play in the design, construction and management of the City’s
streets and spaces. The design toolkit has been developed in close
collaboration with Highways, City Gardens and Cleansing, Transport & Public
Realm and Planning Divisions through a series of design workshops and
individual meetings.

7. By applying the Toolkit, we will:

e Ensure that the City’s public realm adapts to the challenges that face
high density urban environments, including by creating a high quality,
accessible and resilient streetscape for people walking and wheeling,
that enables people to choose to cycle and that contributes to climate
change mitigation strategies.

e Protect, maintain and enhance the quality of the City’s built
environment in order to make it an inclusive and attractive place in
which to live, work and visit.

e Support the City’s position as a leading business and leisure
destination, continually improving the street environment in order to
accommodate future growth and activation.

e Support delivery of the City Corporation’s Transport Strategy, Climate
Action Strategy, Destination City initiative and Sport’s Strategy.

Current Position

8. A consultant was appointed to aid the development of the Public Realm Vision
and Design Toolkit. An internal officers’ working group was also established to
guide the work and ensure cross-departmental support for the approach was
established.

9. Work completed to date includes:
« A literature review, including various corporate strategies, policy
documents and external guidance in relation to public realm and its
contribution to placemaking;
« Mapping of corporate strategies and policies where they impact on the
built environment design and public realm;
o Cross-departmental workshops on key topics;
« Identification of the key challenges and impacts of recent strategy and
policy on public space;

Page 25



« The consideration of design principles in response to climate change
challenges.

e A thorough assessment of the carbon footprint of paving material
selection and specification, see link below:
[https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Services-Environment/city-of-
london-materials-review-design-notes.pdf |

« Areview of street furniture specification

o Establishment of a series of themes and an outline of the City Public
Realm Vision and Objectives (as reported to this committee in 2021) and a
series of City-wide transformational moves to inform change;

e Incorporation of elements of the draft Public Realm Vision into the
revised Transport Strategy.

e A Public Realm Toolkit (Attached in Appendix 2); An update on the
previously adopted Technical Manual (2016) which reflects changes to
materials specification, approach to projects, and recent corporate guidance
such as the Climate Action Strategy, the Sports Strategy, Destination City
and the Transport Strategy.

The Public Realm Design Toolkit

10.This Public Realm Design Toolkit is included in Appendix 2 and sets out the
design and technical approach to both the delivery and management of
change in the public realm. It is an update of the Technical Manual (2016) and
includes recent guidance on the use of materials, street furniture and the
City’s design approach. It is also informed by the lessons learned at recently
completed projects such as Bartholomew Close public realm, Cursitor Street
enhancement, Middlesex Street — Petticoat Lane improvements, Fleet Street
area, Globe View Walkway and Bevis Marks Sustainable Urban Drainage
scheme.

11.The following summary highlights the key additions and changes to the
Toolkit, which expand on the previous document from 2016 and reflect on
recently adopted policy guidance. Please refer to Appendix 1 for a
comparative list of contents which outlines the new items included in the
revised Toolkit.

Surface Materials:

12.The section on surface materials outlines the various material finishes and
how they are combined to ensure a distinctive identity and robust palette is
established that future-proofs the City now and into the future. The update
includes the consideration of:
- Ethical sourcing principles,
- Climate resilience measures,
- Dimension and depth of paving materials
- Consideration of circular economy principles
- Bespoke paving solutions, including permeable paving and rubber crumb for
areas suitable for play, recreating and exercise.

Page 26


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Services-Environment/city-of-london-materials-review-design-notes.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Services-Environment/city-of-london-materials-review-design-notes.pdf

- Maintenance requirements

Street Furniture:

13. A set of guiding principles for street furniture selection and placement has
been expanded to recognise the different qualities of City streets, needs and
diverse user groups. The provision of street furniture within the public realm
provides the opportunity to reinforce the sense of place and also to offer
moments to pause and participate in City life. Selection and placement of
street furniture greatly influences the perception visitors have of the City. The
update includes:

- Consideration of a wider range of street furniture typologies, which promote
places to enjoy, meet and play.

- Arequirement for street furniture to be built in robust materials.

- Consideration of sustainable sources and environmental credentials.

- Movable street furniture and free-standing planters

- Consideration of integrated security measures where feasible to avoid street
clutter.

- Lighting in the public realm and general guidance.

- A new section on “Play and Exercise” in response to the recently adopted
Sports Strategy and Destination City initiative. Officers will work alongside
the Sports Engagement Manager to identify exercise equipment and street
furniture that can facilitate leisure and sport activities which are appropriate
for the City’s context. The Toolkit will be updated in due course to reflect
additional elements of street furniture which are required to be considered
for street enhancement projects.

Trees and Planting:

14.This section reflects the objectives of the Climate Action Strategy and
Biodiversity Action Plan, with a focus on climate change resilience measures,
the importance of green infrastructure, including tree planting, planters and
inground planting beds. The updated Toolkit includes:

- An “urban greening hierarchy” to be taken into consideration for all street
enhancement projects.

- A consideration for projects to increase natural biodiversity and improve
environmental conditions such as air quality.

- A consideration of a resilient planting palette with less maintenance and
watering requirements.

- The introduction of sustainable urban drainage and rain gardens as
greening elements in the streets and public spaces.

- A consideration of materials for raised planters

- Guidance on contemporary and bespoke free-standing planters

15.The Toolkit is included in Appendix 2 for adoption. Please note that some of

the photographs in the document are to be replaced with more recent
examples before publication on the City’s website.

Page 27



Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strategic Implications

16.An update of design principles and technical information in relation to the
public realm will support the effective implementation of the key corporate
priorities, including the updated Transport Strategy, Climate Action Strategy
and Destination City initiative and objectives. This review also supports and
aligns with the forthcoming draft Local Plan 2040.

Financial implications

17.This work was funded from S106 receipts. Spend to date is shown in table 1
below. Any further work is subject to additional funds being secured.

Table 1: Spend to date

Description Approved Budget |[Expenditure (£) | Balance (£)*
(£)
Staff Costs 57,495 51,504 5,991
Fees 45,000 45,000 0
102,495 96,504 5,991

Resource implications
18. Refer to financial implications for resourcing of this project.

Equalities implications

19.1t is expected that the proposals in this report will improve the experience of
the City’s public spaces for all users, by setting out design standards for
ensuring the accessibility and well-being benefits of public spaces.

Climate implications

20. The document aligns with the adopted Climate Action Strategy, the following
actions will be embedded into the document to ensure deliverables contribute
with City’s Net Zero Vision.

. Action Area 2: Resilient Streets and Greening
. Action Area 6: Transport
. Action Area 7: Square Mile Built Environment

Conclusion

Page 28



21.This work supports the coordination and effective implementation of adopted
corporate strategies and priorities where these impact on the public realm.
Best practice across international cities suggests a robust strategy, presented
visually, and delivered using a design-led and place-making approach creates
clarity, encourages private investment, and fosters community ownership.

Appendices
Appendix 1. List of contents
Appendix 2. Public Realm Design Toolkit
Background Papers
e City Public Realm Guidance Review — progress report; 8 July 2021 - Streets

and Walkways Sub committee
City Public Realm Guidance Review.pdf

e City Placemaking and Public Space Review; 15t December 2020 — Streets and
Walkways Sub committee
City Placemaking and Public Space Review.pdf

Report author:

Maria Herrera

Senior Project Manager

Environment Department

T: [07526 201100]

E: [maria.herrera@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1: City Public Realm Toolkit: List of contents
(Note: updated and new content is highlighted in italics in the table below).

Introduction
About this Toolkit

1. Surface Materials

- Considerations for material selection
- Principles for streetscape composition
- York stone paving

- Granite setts

- Bespoke paving alternatives

- Resin bound surfacing

- Asphalt

- Kerbs & kerb upstands

- Dropped kerbs

- Loading bays

- Courtesy crossings

Page 29


file:///C:/Users/mariafh/Downloads/City%20Public%20Realm%20Guidance%20Review.pdf
file:///C:/Users/mariafh/Downloads/City%20Placemaking%20and%20Public%20Space%20Review.pdf

Hazard warning paving
Inspection covers
Drainage furniture
Road markings
Historic lanes

. Street Furniture

Considerations for furniture selection
Principles for furniture placement
Bollards

Cycle stands

Litterbins and recycling bins
Drinking fountains

Wayfinding signs

Steps & handrails

Boundary demarcation studs
Seating

Flexible furniture

Integrated security measures
Lighting

Play and exercise

Historic markers

Heritage features

. Trees and Planting

Consideration for tree and plant selection
Principles for planting

Trees

Tree grilles and surrounds

Tree pits

Planting and planter beds

Inground planting beds

SUDs and rain gardens

Raised fixed planters

Protective measures

Mobile planters

Contemporary freestanding planters
Trellising

Watering & Irrigation

Page 30



City
Public
Realm
ToolKiIt

eeeeeeeeeeee

repared by:
rowthindustry



Z2€ abed

Contact us:

Environment Department
City of London Corporation
Guildhall

PO Box 270

London EC2P 2EJ

Email: policy.projects@cityoflondon.gov.uk

November 2023

Manual prepared by:

growthindustry

City Public Reaim

Toolkit

CONTENTS
Introduction 5
About this Tookit 7
01 SURFACE MATERIALS °
Considerations for material selection 11
Principles for streetscape composition 13
York stone paving 15
Granite setts 19
Bespoke paving alternatives 21
Resin bound surfacing 22
Asphalt 23
Kerbs 24
Kerb upstands 25
Dropped kerbs 26
Loading bays 27
Courtesy crossings 28
Hazard warning paving 30
Inspection covers 31
Drainage furniture 32
Road markings 33
Historic lanes 34
02 STREET FURNITURE 37
Considerations for furniture selection 39
Principles for furniture placement 41
Bollards 42
Cycle stands 45
Litterbins and recycling bins 46
Drinking fountains 47
Wayfinding signs 48
Steps & handrails 49
Boundary demarcation studs 50
Seating 51
Flexible furniture 55
Integrated security measures 57
Lighting 58
Play and excercise 60
Historic markers 61
Heritage features 62
03 TREES AND PLANTING 65
Consideration for tree and plant selection 67
Principles for planting 69
Trees 71
Tree grilles and surrounds 72
Tree pits 75
Planting and planter beds 77
Inground planting beds 79
SUDs and rain gardens 81
Raised fixed planters 82
Protective measures 83
Mobile planters 84
Contemporary freestanding planters 85
Trellising 86

Watering & Irrigation

87



City Public Realm
Toolkit

INTRODUCTION

a™
P
~

History has left an indelible mark on the City’s
public realm, composed as a rich tapestry of
ancient meandering highways, intimate lanes and
alleyways, cherished open spaces and hidden
gardens and churchyards. These streets and
spaces form the constant backdrop to city life and
the ever-changing urban fabric. Since Roman
times, they have provided a genuinely public place
of trade, residence and ceremony. Today, this
varied and dense urban realm provides an array
of interconnected routes and opportunities for
interaction, commerce and cultural expression.

The furnishing of the public realm, from its paved
surfaces to its distinctive furniture livery to the
provision of statuesque trees and green spaces,
presents a harmonious and identifiable treatment
extending throughout the City, reflecting its
unigue and intrinsic character. This Toolkit seeks to
build upon the recent and ongoing public realm
enhancement projects and ensure the City’s public
realm continues to present a safe, inclusive and
welcoming sense of place, respectful of ancient
heritfage and befitting a rapidly evolving world-
class city.



City Public Realm
Toolkit

ABOUT THIS TOOLKIT

The purpose of the document is to provide
a coordinated approach to the design and
management of the public realm in the City.

The Toolkit promotes high quality design and sets the
standards for public realm features that contribute
to the experience of using the City’s streets, public
spaces and private but publicly accessible spaces.
It provides advice for professionals and officers
with a role to play in the design, construction and
management of the City’s streets and spaces.

By applying the Toolkit, we will:

Ensure that the City’s public realm adapts to
the challenges that face high density urban
environments, including creating a high quality,
accessible and resilient streetscape for people
walking and wheeling, that enables people to
choose to cycle and that contributes to climate
change mitigation strategies.

Protect, maintain and enhance the quality of the
City’s built environment in order to make it an
inclusive and attractive place in which to live, work
and visit.

Support the City’s position as a leading business
and leisure destination, continually improving the
street environment in order to accommodate future
growth and activation.

Support delivery of the City Corporation’s Transport
Strategy, Climate Action Strategy, Destination City
initiative and Sport’s Strategy.



City Public Realm
Toolkit

SURFACE MATERIALS

Considerations for
material selection

Principles for streetscape
composition

York stone paving
Granite setts

Bespoke paving
alternatives

Resin bound surfacing
Asphalt

Kerbs

Kerb upstands
Dropped kerbs
Loading bays
Courtesy crossings
Hazard warning paving
Inspection covers
Drainage furniture
Road markings

Historic lanes

A connected, inclusive and intuitive pedestrian experience is
key to the ongoing success of the City’s public realm. There
are three principal surface materials used to furnish the streets
and spaces within the City - York stone, granite and asphailt.

This section on surface materials outlines the various unit sizes,
material finishes and composition of such materials and how
they are combined to ensure a distinctive and lasting ground
plane is established for the City now and into the future.

A set of guiding principles for surface materials are outlined,
supported by illustrative material composition studies. These
represent the standard details and layouts expected within
the City’s public realm.



SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

SURFACE MATERIALS

CONSIDERATIONS FOR MATERIAL SELECTION

The distinctive quality surfacing to the City’s streets and spaces
greatly aids in the reinforcement of the City’s identity. Given the extent
of the public realm and the need for longevity demanded by intense

footfall, it is vital that the correct materials are sourced to ensure their
lasting contribution. The following considerations are outlined below as
' key to successful material use and selection:
ETHICAL The ethical sourcing of natural and manmade materials used to
SOURCING furnish the streets is a pre-requisite of responsible material selection.
Transparency in the material supply chain is required as well as
adherence to Ethical Trading Initiative (ETI) to ensure comfort and
' compliance with procurement processes
| ‘ g ‘ ’ CLIMATE The colour and heat absorption/reflectivity of paved surfaces can
‘ ’ RESILIENCE greatly affect the comfort within outdoor spaces and can impact on
’ = ‘ ' ' ' ' surrounding local microclimate. Materials should aim for a reduction in
' ' heat storage and reflection, permeability of paved surfaces should also
i ' = ' ' ' - be considered.
y ; l l ' ' l ' MATERIAL Robust material properties such as density, durability, light reflectivity,
| ' ' ' l ' PROPERTIES wet slip resisitance and water absorption all affect the longevity and
l l I l l character of surface materials. It is essential that surface material
. | l l l s thickness is measured against function and buildup to ensure lasting
I l = l l ,g—q r value is achieved.
I l l ‘ MAINTENANCE Cleaning regimes can impact material properties and performance
& CLEANING over time. It is important that materials can cope with regular and
occassionally intense cleansing and that joints and bedding remain
intact to protect the integration of the surface cover.
EMBODIED The use of materials when applied at scale across the City has both
CARBON the potential for significant carbon foorprint yet may also provide an
& opportunity to reduce embodied carbon that will deliver real impact at

scale. Material selection and use should consider comparative embodied
CO2 data and impact against budget and requirement of place. Novel
materials may be trialled in pilot schemes to assess suitability.

VALUE FOR MONEY

CIRCULAR
ECONOMY

Opportunities for reuse of existing materials should always be explored as
part of the circular economy principles

11




SURFACE MATERIALS

Primary street paving runs through.

Paving is laid perpendicular to the kerb line not building line.

Raised tables provide courtesy crossings.

Dropped kerbs at regular crossing points along desire lines.

Integrated loading bays to maximise pavement widths.

Surface paving grain and kerb width may be reduced on
narrow streets and alleyways.

General drainage crossfall of 1 in 40 to be observed.

Mastic infill may be needed against building edges to
avoid gap formation with adjacent surface material.




RIVER

SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

York stone paving

Key Criteria

Material
Appearance
Unit Sizes
Jointing
Sealant

300

Carmageway Kerb

600

Standard Footway paving

The standard module of York stone paving to be used on the
City footways is 600mm wide, cut in random lengths and 50
or 63mm thick with a diamond sawn finish. This paving is fo be
laid in a random course running perpendicular from the kerb
line to the building.

Scoutmoor

Diamond sawn all sides

600mm width x varying length x 63/50 mm deep
6 mm

surface sealant to be applied

150

Footway

15



City Public Realm

SU RFAC E Toolkit
MATERIALS

City Public Realm

SU RFAC E Toolkit
MATERIALS

6¢ obed

York stone paving

York stone Setts

Smaller unit York stone paving is to be laid only in narrow
footways (less than 1500mm wide) where heavy vehicles
often mount the footway or in central pedestrian island
crossings where paved space is at a premium. Alternate
sett proportions of 150 x 300mm may be considered in
consultation with the Environment Department.

York stone paving

Manchester bond

The use of the more intricate and tessellating Manchester
bond may only be considered in special or unique heritage
circumstances with agreement from the Environment
Department and may include historic streetscapes,
landscaped areas or in smaller spaces that are irregular in
shape .

Material Scoutmoor Material Scoutmoor

Appearance Diamond sawn all sides Appearance Diamond sawn all sides

Unit Sizes 200 x 300 x 63/50 mm Unit Sizes 300x300 / 300x600 / 600x600 / 600x900 x 63/50 mm deep
Laying pattern Half-lap(staggered) Jointing 6 mm

Jointing 6 mm Sealant surface sealant to be applied

Sealant surface sealant to be applied

16

300

e MY WD VR I W TR G T WL T A Y - T R Nk e h e tE

i

17




ot abed

S U R FAC E City Public TR;;OIILniﬁt
MATERIALS

Granite Setts

2 Colour mix

Granite setts are to be laid as carriageway surfacing in historic
streetscapes where appropriate and for courtesy crossings.
The two colour mix of light and mid grey granite is to be laid
in a random pattern, with a double mid grey channel against
all kerb edges.

Key Criteria
Material Granite
Appearance Flamed top surface
Diamond sawn all sides 300/
(1]
Unit Sizes 300 x 150 x 100/150 mm thick
Jointing 6-8 mm wide, 3mm recessed
Colour 30 % mid-grey / 70% silver grey
llustrative plan (1) Silver Grey Granite Kerb
(2) Double Mid Grey channel (300 x 150mm)
(3) 2 Colour Granite sett mix (300 x 150mm)
150
1 2 3
150

Kerb Carriageway (raised)
300 300 300

19



SURFACE City Public ?c’f;m SURFACE City Public %Sm
MATERIALS MATERIALS

Granite Setts

3 Colour mix

The three colour granite mix introduces a pink toned granite to
accompany the light and mid grey colours and is to be used
in historic settings including conservation areas. To be laid in
arandom pattern, with a double mid grey channel against all
kerb edges.

Bespoke paving alternatives

Certain spaces within the City offer the chance for greater
and more distinctive treatments, building upon and extending
the rich history of change. In such instances, there may be
exceptional opportunities to vary the baseline guidance on
material selection and introduce more tailored and bespoke
design solutions extending the sense of quality place making
within the City. Considerations may include deviations in size
and proportion from the normal York stone palette or selection
of harder wearing granite paving to cater for envisaged
activities. All bespoke paving alternatives must maintain a

Key Criteria . - ) .
consistency, continuity, quality and character associated
Material Granite with City of London. Such exceptional circumstances are
Appearance Flamed top surface to be discussed with the Environment Department. The use
Diamond sawn all sides of flexible, soft rubber crumib or similar materials will also be
considered as a paving alternative at appropriate locations to
;JU Unit Sizes 300 x 150 x 100/150 mm thick enable play and exercise.
C% Jointing 6-8 mm wide, 3mm recessed
IN Colour 15% pink
- 35 % mid-grey
50% silver grey
lllustrative plan (1) Silver Grey Granite Kerb
(2) Double Mid Grey channel (300 x 150mm)
(3) 3 Colour Granite sett mix (300 x 150mm)
150
1 2 3
Kerb Carriageway (raised)
300 300 300

21




SURFACE

MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Resin bound surfacing

Key Criteria
Surface course
Surface thickness
Base

2 obed

N
|

Resin bound gravel surfacing provides an alternative surface
to be used in public spaces and locations with occassional
vehicle overrun. The use of bound aggregates ranging
from 2-6mm creates a simple, expansive surface which,
with appropriate subbase, can create a permeable surface
to passively drain surface water as part of a strategic SUDs
approach. Localised channels or trims of porous resin bound
surfacing may also act as discrete linear drainage channels.

Asphalt Footway

' Resinbound gravel surfacing

18-24 mm thick

) Subbase varies according to pedestrian or vehicular function

to include:
Porous asphalt AC20 (for permable paving) over MOT Type 3

SURFACE

MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Asphalt

Key Criteria
Surface course
Surface thickness
Base

Mastic channel

fTi 3
2 225
Key Criteria

Surface course
Surface thickness
Base

\

Asphalt is used as the principal carriageway surfacing
material throughout the City. It is also used along footways
as an alternative surface to York stone. The City of London
Highways department should be consulted over its use and
full specification with particular consideration given to the
management and disturbance caused by service utilities
disruption and repair.

Asphalt Carriageway

) Hot Rolled Asphalt with 0-10 mm chippings or high stone content

50 mm thick

) 300 mm thick concrete base to Highways standard
) 225 mm wide 50mm thick mastic asphalt channel beside kerb

Asphalt Footway

Mastic Asphalt
25 mm thick (minimum)
100 mm thick concrete base to Highways standard

23



SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Kerbs

Silver grey granite is to be used for all kerb edges. Kerb width
is dependent upon the overall scale of the street but 300mm
wide kerb is the predominant width for newly installed kerbs. A
narrower 150mm wide kerb may be used for narrow lanes and
alleyways as well as for courtesy crossings.

Additionally, narrow York stone edging kerbs (50 x 225mm)
may be placed at the rear of footpaths or planted areas to
provide a flush fransition. These edge kerbs may also be used

to mark a change in York stone paving direction.

Key Criteria
Kerb type Wide kerb
Material Granite
Colour Silver grey
Q-? Appearance Flamed finish front and top
(o) face, sawn all sides
(‘; Dimensions 300 x 200 x 900 mm
w Straight lengths / radial units
300
® & 200
150
150 @

(1) Granite Kerb
(2) Concrete bed & haunch
(3)Adjacent footway

Narrow kerb
Granite
Silver grey

Flamed finish front and top
face, sawn all sides

150 x 300 x 900 mm
Straight lengths / radial units

150
3 125mm
1 ||upstand
300
150
150
2)

24

SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Kerb upstands

Standard raised kerb

60mm raised kerb

Raised Carriageway

Whilst a standard 125mm kerb upstand is most common
within the City’s streetscapes, there are instances in
pedestrian priority or historic settings where a lesser or no kerb
upstand may be considered. Any reduced kerb height will
be subject to inclusive design assessment and appropriate
detailing undertaken as part of the City’s Access and
Inclusivity assessment tool CoLSAT (City of London Streets
Accessibility Tool).

125mm

A reduced kerb of of 60mm may be considered in pedestrian
priority schemes or where highways movement are
considered low.

60mm

Flush kerb arrangements may be considered in fully
pedestrian priority schemes, to aid surface drainage and to
retain historic kerb alignments.

flush

25




vt abed

SU RFACE City Public ?gjm
MATERIALS

Dropped kerbs

Dropped kerbs, whereby the pedestrian footway is lowered
to meet adjacent carriageway, may be used at both
controlled crossings and informal, uncontrolled crossings
along pedestrian desire lines where raised tables are not
feasible. The creation of accessible gradients to the sloped
surface should be constructed as a continuation of the
surrounding pavement materials, establishing a seamless
integration and maintaining pavement continuity. The
dropped kerb is generally to be laid flush with carriageway
surfacing, with a maximum upstand of 15mm permissible.

lllustrative plan & section width varies
max fall of 1:12 / ideal fall of 1:20 1:40
12 3 - 5

(1) Hot Rolled Asphalt
Carriageway
(2) Mastic channel 225mm

(3) Wide 300mm Granite Kerb
(4) Transition Granite kerb
(5) York stone footway

section line

varies

300

SU R FAC E City Public TROe;Lniwt
MATERIALS

Loading bays

Loading bays incorporated into the pedestrian footway
provide a defined area for the delivery of goods, where
streetside loading and unloading is necessary. The location,
capacity and management of such bays are subject to the
Corporation Transportation Team’s approval.

Loading bays are to be constructed of granite setts running
perpendicular to the kerbline and sloped towards the
carriageway held by a 60mm roadside chamfered kerb
upstand. When not occupied by delivery vehicles, inset
loading bays can provide a step free continuous pavement
fo accommodate pedestrian flow at peak fimes. The
inclusion of bollards for vehicle control should be considered.

(2) Wide 300mm Granite Kerb with
60mm chamfered edge

L T T 71—
o

TEF I
ST

(3) standard granite kerb (300x150) ‘ Q'gzsggggé’
(4) Dropper Granite kerbs "0 """"*@ ‘»
s
(5) Granite sett mix (300x150) \0"$$$‘$$"
(6) Double Mid Grey Granite channel Q@"’I
(7) York stone footway N
Carriageway channel level \
7
3/ 300
6 (300
5
Footway
Kerb 3 4 2 2) 300
Carriageway .y

27



Gy abed

SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Courtesy crossings

Granite setted courtesy crossing

28

Pedestrian priority over vehicles should be extended
through the introduction of raised courtesy crossings where
appropriate. Easily negotiable street crossing points consisting
of araised area of carriageway between footways effectively
makes the footway contfinuous and can significantly enhance
the walking experience. People should be able to cross streets
frequently and in a direct, inclusive and uncomplicated
manner.

Granite setts and asphalt surfacing are the principal materials
to be used for courtesy crossings within the City. On occasion
small unit York stone setts have also been used.

SURFACE
MATERIALS

Courtesy crossings

City Public Realm
Toolkit

(1) Narrow flush granite
150mm Granite kerb

(2) Granite sett mix (300x150)

(3) Double Mid Grey Granite
channel

(4) York stone bilister tactile slabs
(5) York stone footway

lllustrative section

1 1)

Raised crossings must provide appropriate tactile hazard
warning paving in the form of blister paving slabs on
approach. Granite setted courtesy crossings maintain
the double mid grey channel beside kerbs, with standard
narrow granite kerbs at the top and bottom of the sloped

gradient.

12

T 1in 12 typical \l/
-

lllustrative plan

5)

Footway
Kerb

Carriageway

length varies T

min
800mm

] 1in 20 typical

300 300

‘A
\,4’/

(3) Carriageway (raised)

e

AR

1: 12 typical

=

section line



of abed

SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Hazard warning paving

Key Criteria
Paving type

Description

Unit Size
Material

Laying pattern

Appearance

Tactile or hazard warning paving is to be used where
pedestrian users will potentially encounter a change in
surface continuity or free movement, such as interacting with
vehicle cross movements or defined level changes in the
form of steps. In general, tactile paving should be formed
out of York stone to maintain a continuity with footway
materials. The tactile nature of blister or corduroy paving
units are described below. The Corporation’s Access Team
should be consulted on all street enhancement schemes.

Blister paving

Blister tactile paving is

to be used at controlled
crossings and where there
is an uncontrolled crossing
point across a vehicular
route, such as a raised
table, to warn users of the
danger and minimise risk
of inadvertently walking
into a vehicle route.

400 x 400 x 63mm thick
Scoutmoor York stone

Stack bond to national
guidelines

Raised circular blisters to meet
technical access standards

Corduroy paving

Corduroy tactile paving is
used in association with steps
or where visually impaired
people need to be warned
of a hazard and advised

to proceed with caution.
Corduroy paving should be
supplied in the same material
as the surrounding paving to
provide visual integration.

400 x 400 x 63mm thick
to match surrounding material

Stack bond to national
guidelines

Grooved stone to meet
technical access standards

SURFACE
MATERIALS

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Inspection covers

The integration of access and inspection covers within the
streetscene will follow the principle torecess the covers and infill
to match adjacent paving materials, where possible aligned
to the general grain of paving slabs, for both existing and
newly placed covers as part of streetscape improvements.

The insertion of recessed manhole covers within the footway
will ensure continuity of paving surface material with the
expectation that paving joints will run through the recessed
cover. Not all covers allow for recessed material, such as fire
hydrants and sewer covers, but where applicable 100mm
deep inset covers to loading class B125/C250/D400 (location
dependent) willbe encouraged. The Environment Department
is fo be consulted for appropriate specification.

31



SURFACE City Public Ream SURFACE Ciy Public Realm
MATERIALS MATERIALS

/v obed

Drainage furniture

Drainage Channels

Linear drainage channels are to be used to collect surface
water where gullies are not suitable. The width of channel
depends upon the drainage capacity needed and two
standard cross grooved channel cover widths of either 149mm
for pedestrian or 199mm for carriageway may be be used.
The narrower channel may be used on footways for private
boundary definition and localised drainage points. Bespoke
drainage channels may only be considered by exception.

Road markings

Road markings should be designed and laid so as to minimise
their visual impact, while still conforming fully to the relevant
legal requirements set down in The Traffic Signs Regulations
and General Directions 2016 and clearly demonstrating the
requirements of the relevant Traffic Management Orders to
road users. This can be achieved through using the narrowest
line widths, the shortest kerb mark lengths and the smallest
wording permissible under the Regulations; and by omitting
all unnecessary optional markings. Where road markings

Key Criteria are required to be in yellow, the Deep Cream colour should
Product Hauraton SW100/6 ‘Heelguard’ grating be used. These principles should be applied throughout the
5 i i " City to ensure a consistent approach. Additional markings
uppher auraton required on the carriageway, such as the definition of bays

Class C250 for footways / D400 for carriageway/vehicle crossovers for scooters or cycle hire schemes, should be carried out in
Channel type Faserfix Super KS100 channel Key Criteria consultation with City of London Highways department.
Material Galvanised steel Colour Deep Cream
Dimensions 149 / 199 mm in width with 10mm spacing crosshatch grip Material Thermoplastic paint

Gully Covers Line width 50mm

llustrative plans Single line marking Double line marking

Gully covers are to be integrated into both footway and

carriageway pavement design with detailed consideration given

to surface falls and gradients as part of the drainage design.
Key Criteria
Cover location Footway Carriageway
Product Hauraton City City (Cycle friendly DU5801M)

(Class C250) (Class D400)
Supplier Hauraton Durey Castings
Material Stainless Steel grating & frame, Ductile Iron
Straight bar, 10mm spacing Black painted

Dimensions 300 x 300 x100 mm 450 x 400 x100 mm

50 50 50
Kerb Carriageway Kerb Carriageway
150 150 150 150



g1 abed

SU RFACE City Public ?gc?lllgi]t SU RFACE City Public TR(t,;:(;dllkni1t
MATERIALS MATERIALS

Historic lanes Historic lanes

The fine grain of historic lanes and alleyways offer a
significant and particularly characteristic contribution to the
public realm network of the City.

The alignment, connectivity and often narrow proportions
of these routes, allied with historic place names, provide
an intricate and important canvas for public realm
enhancement. Considerations influencing any design
enhancement works and material arrangements should
include;

* The individual character and history of each location

¢ The historic alignment of the street or space

* The level of intensity of pedestrian or vehicle movements

* The available width and proportion of street or space e.g.
sufficient safe inclusive width of footway

The above factors should determine the most appropriate
design response, in particular the decision whether to lower
or raise the carriageway and also the appropriate detailing
of carriageway and footway surfaces, such as historic kerb
retention and the use of granite setts.

Retained raised kerb to carriageway

Raised carriageway with flush kerbline



City Public Realm
Toolkit

STREET FURNITURE

Considerations for furniture
selection

Principles for furniture
placement

Bollards

Cycle stands

Litterbins & recycling bins
Drinking fountains
Wayfinding signs

Steps & handrails

Boundary demarcation studs
Seating

Flexible furniture

Integrated security measures
Lighting

Play and recreation

Historic markers

Heritage features

Street furniture provides a range of opportunities to guide,
inform, pause and participate with the public realm of the
City. This section identifies the elements of furniture that
contribute to the street scene and considers their placement
and distribution. It is the intention that such items provide a
high quality, convenient and comfortable experience to all
users who engage with them and do not clutter the public
realm or impede movement and activities.

A set of guiding principles for furniture placement is outlined,
supported by descriptions of furniture elements and key
criteria for specification.

37



STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

STREET FURNITURE

ETHICAL
SOURCING

EMBODIED
CARBON

LONGEVITY
&
CONSISTENCY

FLEXIBILITY
&
MODULARITY

INCLUSIVITY
&
COMFORT

CONSIDERATIONS FOR FURNITURE SELECTION

The provision of street furniture witin the public realm provides
the opportunity to reinforce the sense of place and also to offer
moments to pause and participate in City life. Selection and
placement of street furniture greatly influence the perception
offered by the City. The following are a number of key
considerations to inform furniture selection.

Many of the materials that make furniture items distinctive, robust
and comfortable, such as metal and timber, should be subject to
rigorous assessment in terms of responsible and ethical sourcing,
extraction, fabrication and transportation.

An understanding of the environmental impact of furniture items,
captured as an EPD (Environmental Product Declaration), should
be gained to ensure all efforts to source products that offer a
reduced embodied carbon are promoted.

Longevity, consistency of finish and materials that are of high quality
are hallmarks of the City and furniture selection should adhere to
these goals at all times.

Adaptive, responsive, and multi-functional street furniture
items can provide a practical response with aesthetic appeal
to the public realm. Such items can deliver creative solutions
to security and control, whilst offering increased capacity to
support the life and activities of the City.

The provision of a range of seating opportunities of different
typologies should be maintained, offering choice and variety
in height, width and multi-purpose uses. Comfort criteria for
placement should also consider areas of sun and shade.

39




City Public Realm
Toolkit

STREET FURNITURE

A clear pedestrian width to be maintained along the street
and public spaces, free of obstacles and clutter.

Street furniture should be located in a zone adjacent to
the kerbline to maintain unobstructed access to building
frontages.

Where space allows, groupings of street furniture such as
seating clusters, may be positioned to reinforce sense of
place and destination.

ltems such as wayfinding signage should offer a clear
space for gathering around and avoid obscuring the vision
and visibility of users when crossing the carriageway.

The City has unique powers to affix lighting onto buildings.
Lighting columns are only considered in exceptional
circumstances and historic settings.

Cycle stands should be located beside kerb lines.

Traffic Signs should be mounted onto buildings where
appropriate to reduce street clutter.

Bollard placement should be informed by definite need
and carefully considered in response to context, security
requirements and movement patterns.

Inlaid boundary demarcation studs to denote ownership.

Consider kerbside areas for exploring opportunites for
temporary uses, including parklets, streetside dining and
to provide designated demarcated cycle lanes as part of
public realm enhancement trials.



STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Bollards

2G abed

Historic bollard example

42

Bollards provide protection to both paving and buildings and
offer safety for pedestrians. There are two principal bollard
types to be used; the C3 and D3 Type bollards. They should
be used where there is a definite need and their placement
should be carefully considered to avoid overcluttering the
streetscene.

Options exist for either demountable bollards, where
required, or upgrading to become crash rated bollards
where vehicles may overrun footway eg. C3 bollards. The
management of removable bollards should be agreed with
Environment Department.

Narrower stick bollards may be used in narrow streets to
maximise pedestrian space or where below ground utilities
present unavoidable obstruction.

In addition, there are a wide range of historic bollards
throughout the city which should be retained and restored
wherever possible as they reinforce local character. Historic
bollards can also be re-cast for use in street enhancement
schemes.

Bollard line with C3 demountable bollards

STREET

City Public Realm

Toolkit
FURNITURE
Bollards
J5, 160
1225 1304 1200
100 204 270
500
150
Stick Bollard C3 Bollard D3 Bollard
e
Stick Bollard C3 Bollad D3 Bollard



STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Bollards

Placement Criteria

G abed

Bollard to Building
Bollard to Bollard
Bollard to Kerb

building line

1500 mm min.
from building

Where required, the placement of bollards should follow the
minimum spacings between bollards outlined below when
placed adjacent to buildings and kerbs.

1500 mm preferred minimum
1200 mm clear between bollards

450 mm minimum from the front face of kerb

1200 mm min. 1200 mm 450mm from
between kerb face

Footway cross-section

44

STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Cycle stands

Key Criteria
Product
Supplier

Appearance

Inlaid natural stone cycle
lane marker slab

Cycle stands are to be located in safe, well surveilled and
convenient locations in response to an existing or anticipated
need for cycle parking. ‘A’ frame stand groupings generally
range from 3 to 12 in number, spaced to accommodate two
cycles per stand with additional secure fixing provided by the
crossbar. Cycle paths within pedestrian priority spaces may
be marked with an inlaid natural stone marker slab.

Arc Cycle stand
Kent Stainless
48 mm @ brushed tubular stainless steel

1200/850

800
. 525
min 650 mm
from kerbline
1200 /850 mm
< Paving runs through 1000
mm
Kerb Footway
45



STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Litterbins and recycling bins

Key Criteria
Product
Supplier
Material

Appearance

G abed

building line

Litterbins should be placed where they do not obstruct
pedestrian desire lines and the visibility of users, are carefully
positioned to reduce clutter and visual impact and are in
keeping with the surrounding built environment.

Big Belly Solar Compactor bin
570 litres
Galvanised sheet metal steel interior and exterior construction
Black painted with City of London logo
681 635

500 450
Cigarette butt bin

Cigarette butt bins may be post mounted, bollard mounted
or floor-mounted on freestanding bases. The intention is to
provide a convenient and accessible way to manage the
challenge of cigarette butt and chewing gum collection to
avoid littering the streets of the City.

1264

STREET

FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Drinking fountains

Key Criteria

Supplier
Material

Dimensions

The provision and distribution of public drinking fountains
is determined by need brought about by high pedestrian
footfall and visitor demand. Such fountains are generally
only located in larger public gathering spaces associated
with visitor attractions and locations are subject to further
consultation with the Environment Department.

Santa & Cole
Black painted, Bronze tap

1200 x 300 x 150 mm

300 150

1100

a7



STREET City Public ?c?c?llknil STREET City Public TRce)z(;<;\llkrri1t
FURNITURE FURNITURE

GG obed

Wayfinding signs

Signage suite

The group of wayfinding signs within the City includes map
totems, fingerposts and wall-mounted directional signs

as part of the Legible London wayfinding system. Each
individual sign provides unique mapping of the surrounding
area, travel information and a description of the local
geography and distances.

Steps and handrails

Minilth Totem

Monolith Totem Finger post

Steps and handrails are required where immediate level
changes occur along footways, within urban spaces or on
approach to buildings that cannot be resolved in an inclusive
manner by using surface gradients and slopes. The preferred
approach to step design is to use natural stone, either

York stone or granite, with the appropriate colour contrast
applied to step nosing. Tactile corduroy paving to match the
surrounding surface materials is required.

Handrail desigh must accord with relevant access guidance
in terms of material choice, profile, placement and
integrated protective detail to resist damage and misuse.
The Corporation’s Access team is to be consulted on step
requirements and design.

49



STREET

FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Boundary demarcation studs

Key Criteria
Material
Supplier
Dimensions

Spacing

9g abed

Fixing

Inlaid metal boundary studs are to be provided within
footway surfacing to demark ownership boundaries within
the City. The delineation of ownership does not mean
surface materials should be changed and continuity of
material to unify the street scene will be encouraged.

The circular studs are installed with a 5 mm upstand and may
be either domed or bevel edged.

Brass or Stainless steel (subject to location)
Kent Stainless
25 mm @ with 5 mm upstand and 38 mm deep thread

1500 mm centres along straights and 300 mm centres when
changing direction

Core drill 10 mm @ hole to depth 45 mm filled with epoxy resin

25 25
E E
38 38
"8 "8

STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Seating

Traditional timber backed
benches

Contemporary timber seats

Seating is a vital component of the City’s environment.

A range of seating options exist to create opportunities
for pause, in either individual groups or on larger capacity
benches. Traditional backed benches should preferably
be constructed in timber with metal legs, and fixed to the
ground.

Contemporary modular benches or individual seats,
informally arranged in groups can provide more flexible and
sociable arrangements and often fit easier into public realm
schemes to provide further enjoyment of the street scene.
Utilising timber slats set within a robust metal frame, these
seating clusters can provide visible contemporary additions
to the street scene with powder coated metalwork providing
feature accent.

Stone seating fits well in more contemporary streetscapes,
often in conjunction with planting beds, and forms attractive
and robust multi-functional seating elements that should
include integrated edge protection measures.

Maintenance and cleansing between timber slats is a key
consideration with any furniture selection.

Stone seating Integrated seating & planting

51




STREET City Public ?ggllzl
FURNITURE

Seating




STREET City Public TRg(;slani:
FURNITURE

Flexible Furniture

The introduction of modular, temporary furniture presents a
unique way to enliven public spaces and test out capacity
for changes within the streets. Positioning of such furniture
may utilise kerbside space or occupy road closures and
invite the public to establish a new relationship with the
street and public spaces. Multi-functional furniture such as
contemporary parklet designs provide vibrant and animated
outdoor areas and a range of seating options that respond
to the increasing demand for flexible, multi-use public space
within the City. Urban greening is also promoted with the
provision of either integrated planting or planters to provide
attractive and distintive spaces.

Moveable furniture, such as folding chairs and tables, have
been also introduced within urban spaces. They provide
occasional seating opportunities and introduce further
flexibility to outdoor seating provision. Opportunities for such
temporary furniture should be discussed with the Environment
Department.




STREET City Public TRggLnil
FURNITURE

Integrated security measures

There is a requirement to provide safe public spaces for all
users. Whilst buildings themselves should have their own inbuilt
security measures, there is nonetheless a need to provide
attractive and integrated security feaures to protect crowded
places within the public realm. Opportunities exist to integrate
such measures within the street scene via multi-functional,
integrated street furniture comprising seating, planters and
bollards. Opportunities for innovative, modular furniture can
provide informal obstacle and activation of spaces.

< i
. %13

mFmb.E

57



STREET City Public Ream STREET Ciy Public Realm
FURNITURE FURNITURE

Lighting Lighting

Lighting within the public realm plays an important role in
creating safe, welcoming and inviting spaces into the evening
and nighttime. Whilst the City has unique powers to affix
lighting onto buildings for general street lighting which greatly
reduces clutter in the streetscape, there are instances where
illumination of public realm and streetscape elements can
provide a distinctive and artistic response to scale and place,
aiding in wayfinding and reinforcing character.

Integrated lighting opportunities may consider illuminated
handrails, steps, planters or seating edges as well as localised
pole or bollard lighting within specific public spaces.

Lighting as artwork within public spaces can greatly assist in
animation and exploration of place. Uplighting of trees or
lighting within trees is to be avoided and reduction in lighting
levels nearer to wildlife areas is a requirement.

Further guidance on lighting is provided in the City of London
Lighting Strategy (2021).

09 abed

Integrated power and technology

The integration of power and technologies within the public
realm must respond to the requirements of the space and
future needs. The provision of technology and utilities such
as water supply, electrical power and data connection is an
increasing requirement. It is the expectation that key public
spaces are therefore primed with such facilities to support
public events, arts performance and streetside activities.
Subtle intergration of power units within the groundplane,
should be carefully integrated with street furniture items such
as benches and bollards.

58 59



STREET City Public Ream STREET Ciy Public Realm
FURNITURE FURNITURE

T9 abed

Play and excercise

Opportunities exist within the public realm including its
riverside walkway, to provide spaces and routes for play
and exercise. These can include formal play areas,
features that facilitate incidental play, outdoor exercise
equipment and multi-purpose street furniture or exercise
areas. For dedicated play and exercise areas, rubber
crumb surfacing should be considered. All play and
exercise opportunities are to be discussed with the
Environment Department.

We are currently identifying outdoor exercise equipment
and street furniture that will be appropriate for the City's
context. This Toolkit will be updated in due course to
include details of how exercise equipment and multi-use
furniture that can be incorporated in the City's public
realm.

AR IITRLRAT

Historic markers

The streets and spaces that make up the City’s public realm
have provided both a constancy and setting in observing

the rich history of change experienced over many centuries.
Opportunities exist to celebrate such spaces, mark key events
and interpret our social, collective histories.

Interpretation signs may be installed within the public realm
to reinforce sense of place and may contain information
about the history of an area or refer to historic facts and
events.

Examples include the engraving of historic features,
interpretative maps or commemorative text within natural
stone or bronze inlaid plaques in the form of in ground
markers or panels often set within the ground plane.

61



29 abed

STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Heritage features

Key Criteria

Condition

Contribution

Historic value

Listed Telephone Kiosk

62

Areas of historic paving and street furniture make a
significant contribution to the public realm and their ongoing
contribution to the street scene as part of any enhancement
proposals should be considered carefully. When evaluating
existing heritage features, the following criteria should be
considered,;

The material asset is still structurally sound and provides a
lasting contribution to the street or space

The material asset is safe and does not provide access
challenges in terms of safety, slip resistance, visual contrast
as well as not being an obstacle to required movement

Where assets reinforce a historic composition, alignment

or make an aesthetically valuable contribution to the
streetscene such that the retention and/or replication of the
asset will extend the uniqueness of place

This requires an assessment to determine heritage value
based on the age, condition, contribution and any relevant
heritage listings. This will allow for discussion of retention,
potential reuse, replication or removal.

In the case of removal of an asset, enhancement schemes
should seek opportunities to re-interpret the history of a
place with a modern intervention, extending the historic
character in terms of proportions, detailing and composition
of new material elements. Enhancements schemes within
Conservation Areas or adjacent to listed buildings should be
designed fo take account of the specific characteristics of
the area and features of these buildings.

STREET
FURNITURE

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

Heritage features

Historic Purbeck stone

Drinking fountain

Ward boundary markers

A range of heritage assets may be found within the surface
ground plane, as unique objects of street furniture or fixed
to buildings as follows:

Historic paving materials

Surface materials such as Purbeck stone, Caithness and
granite setts found throughout the City add local charm
and distinctiveness to an area. Retention where possible
is to be encouraged to maintain theirimbued history,
characterful patina, individual scale and contribution to
the distinctiveness of place.

Granite cobbles Historic Purbeck and granite

Historic street furniture elements

Significant heritage furniture assets may include:

e Coal hole/manhole covers

e Bollards

* Edge bollards (protection from stagecoaches)

e Foot/boot scrapers

e Historic benches, kiosks and post boxes

e Traditional lamp stands

e Parish markers, plagues, milestones, boundary markers
(affixed to buildings)

e Drinking fountains

e Listed Telephone kiosks

Coal hole covers



Consideration for free and
plant selection

Principles for planting
EES

Tree grilles and surrounds
Tree pits

Planting and planter beds
Inground planting beds
SUDs and rain gardens
Raised fixed planters
Protective measures
Mobile planters

Contemporary
freestanding planters

Trellising

Watering & Irrigation

City Public Realm
Toolkit

TREES & PLANTING

The public realm provides a number of opportunities to
infroduce trees, planting and other natural elements. The
City of London supports schemes that seek to increase
natural biodiversity, improve environmental conditions such
as air quality and safeguard the contribution of the natural
environment over the coming decades as climatic factors
continue to change.

Whilst much emphaisis is rightly placed on the significant
contribution of green infrastructure to the character of the
public realm within the City, successful planting that will
contribute in the long term is not without its challenges.
Below ground conditions, often rich in archaeology and an
array of service utilities, present a considerable challenge to
attaining appropriate root volumes for planting, particularly
for trees. Careful tree species selection focussing on growth
habit, vigour and irrigation demand is critical in achieving
long term success.

This section identifies the technical requirements and
considerations for successful plant selection and
implementation.



TREES & City Public TR;‘;"I'I:E TREES & City Public $§;|krﬂ
PLANTING PLANTING

Urban Greening Hierarchy

TREES & PLANTING

9 abed

Terrestrial
planting

Rain
Standard Gardens

=
2
Q.
Ly
°
%
q
ke
0
%
Tree planting o)

“

aﬁ
S
o
s <
Intensive 2
Green )
Roof e

Green . B
Climbing Extensive aise

WEIS Green Roof Planters

Extensive Green
Grassland Roof / sedum

matting

Intensive
Green Wall

The establishment of a species-diverse and mixed native/non-native
plant palette will ensure that bioversity is supported within the City. Such
a varied palette will ensure planting has the capacity to absorb any
diseases and provide a natural resilience.

Plant species will be increasingly required to become more drought
tolerant and require less irrigation in the face of hotter and drier summer
conditions in the City.

The vast amount of hardstanding and developed land within the City
amplifies the impact of sudden stormflow events, predicted to become
increasingly more frequent and intense over the coming yeras. As part
of a combined SUD’s approach within the City, certain species of trees
and plants that can cope with temporary inundation wil help to reduce
demands on the sewer system.

Tree and shrub species can offer adaptions in their plant structure and
growth habit which can aid in the capture and filtration of airborne
pollutants and air flow in general to offer microclimatic improvements
to air quality, pollution mitigation, acoustic and wind mitigation and
localised temperature moderation.

Species selection to consider vigour and growth habits to plants
that require less maintenance. Small lawns in particular are to be
discouraged.

3




City Public Realm
Toolkit

TREES & PLANTING

PRINCIPLES FOR PLANTING

Planting opportunities within the City are to be informed by
the following key principles as illustrated:

Appropriate space for root and canopy growth to be
ensured around existing heritage trees retained or newly
planted feature trees.

Street tree planting at 8 m centres between avenue
trees to also consider below ground archeological and
utility constraints, proximity to buildings and carriageway
movement.

Clear stem to street trees to be minimum 2.5-2.75m.

Planting beds within natural ground are preferred to allow
for successful planting and less intensive maintenance.

Infroduction of above ground planters (fixed or moveable)
where protection is desired or below ground constraints
determine.

Explore opportunities for Sustainable Urban Drainage
measures, in the form of rain gardens, buildouts,
permeable paving and SUDs tree pits.

Green climbing walls should stem from inground planting
beds with appropriate wire trained trellising system

Rooftops should exploit the potential for extensive
biodiverse green roofs and intensive, accessible roof
terraces and gardens to extend urban greening and
connectivity.

69



99 abed

TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Trees

Treegators, as manual
tree pit watering provision
during establihsment

Trees provide many benefits in the urban environment. Their
mass can not only create a balance with the density of
buildings and establish an enhanced sense of place but also
offer a proven contribution to the climate challenge. Over
the coming decades establishing and ensuring a mature
canopy cover of climate resilience tree species tolerant

of a demanding and hot urban City environment will be
crucial if the envionmental benefits of shade provision, air
cooling, improved air quality, biodiversity and general well
being are to be achieved. Many of the City streets are
greatly enhanced by tree planting and all major public
realm enhancement schemes should address the question of
whether it is possible to include trees.

Key challenges include the presence of basements, tunnels,
building overhangs and the proliferation of underground
utility ducts and pipes in the footway often making it difficult
to locate suitable sites for the sustainable long term growth
of trees. Suitable locations for trees must also take account
protected views, vehicle and building sight lines, space for
the crown of the tree to develop without conflicting with
buildings or high vehicles and to allow sufficient distance
between the trees themselves. Species selection should
also consider all maintenance implications associated with
location, vigour and form.

As well as the limitations to the use of trees, consideration
should be given to the positive use of the size, shape, form,
texture, colour and seasonal interest that trees can provide,
such as flowering trees and those offering striking autumnal
colour.

Water demand is crucial beyond establishment. Whilst
automated irrigation to tree pits remains an option,
opportunities for SUDs tree pits, whereby surface water is
directed into structural tree pits that offer appropriate soil
volume to achieve mature canopy growth and to allow for
infriltration and self-irrigation, should be encouraged whilst
at the same fime delaying stormflow to the sewer. The use of
‘treegators’ during the initial establishment of trees should be
considered.

71



/9 abed

TREES &

PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Standard tree grille

The standard tree grille for new street tree planting is a 1206
x 1206 mm recessed steel frame. This grille is to be infilled
with the two footway surfacing options of either York stone or
asphalt. With the use of York stone infill, paving joints should
align and continue the paving joint pattern.

The circular opening at the centre of the grille is to infilled
with a porous flexi-pave material, composed of 50% recycled
rubber and 50% silver grey stone aggregate. Laid flush, this
infill will enable pedestrian overrun whilst allowing a flexible
finish for free tfrunk expansion and growth. The standard free
grille offers two removable trays for tree pit access and an
integrated hinged watering point. Bespoke trees grilles may
be used in exceptional circumstances to fit with the particular
paving pattern of a specific location or to accommodate
large existing trees.

lllustrative plan with asphalt surrounds

Carriage
way

Kerb

Footway

TREES &
PLANTING

Standard tree grille

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Product
Supplier
Dimensions
Finish

Circular opening infill

llustrative plan and section

(1) Recessed steel frame
(2) York stone infill paving
(3) Flexi-pave porous infill

(4) Watering point with
hinged self closing cover

(5) Tree trunk

Recessed cover with York stone infill

Urban Forest Tree Surround (twin tray)

SFH Maintenance Ltd

1206 x 1206 mm with 800 mm & circular opening
Hot dipped galvanised

KBI Flexi-pave colour ‘London Grey’

1206

1206



TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Tree surround for existing trees

Key Criteria
Product
Supplier
Colour

Thickness

g9 abed

2

(1) Flexi-pave
(2) York stone paving
(3) Granite kerb

74

A flexible surfacing of recycled rubber granules and stone
aggregate is fo be used as porous infill fo recessed tree
grilles and around the base of existing street trees. Poured
flush with adjacent surfaces, this infill not only provides a
continuity of footway surfacing but also assists in sustainable
urban drainage infiltration. The Flexi-pave material has
been developed to compliment the granite and York stone
materials palette.

KBI Flexi-pave 3-6 mm granule
KBI UK Ltd
London Grey

50 mm thick laid on 50mm porous stone base to make up levels

TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

Standard tree pit construction

Key Components
Tree planting
Tree surround

Infill material
Root barrier

Structural soil cells

Stabilisation

Irrigation and aeration

Structural soil substrate
Soil substrate

Drainage layer

g A W N BB

10

-—

The standard detail for newly planted trees should utilise the
following components, composition of which may be varied
in proportion to suit the specific requirements of tree planting
location. Tree pit depth should be a minimum of 800mm,
ideally to provide 1 cubic metre of substrate.

Newly planted tree to be planted level with nursery line
Tree surround with inlaid paving material

Flexi-pave porous infill on porous stone base to make up levels
Root barrier where necessary in consultation with Open Spaces

Stratacell, or similar approved in consultation with the Open
Spaces Department, to maximise width and depth of
supported root zone infilled with topsoil (BS 3882 sandy loam)

Subsurface guying to deadmen or ground anchors

60 mm @ irrigation and aeration pipe immediately around
the rootball linked to grille inset hinged watering point cover

Rootball supported on structural tree soil
Imported topsoil to BS 3882 (sandy loam)

100 mm drainage layer of clean gravel beneath geonett
membrane

—w

10

75



TREES & City Public TF_zsoallkni”tl
PLANTING

Planting and planter beds

Careful choice of plants and planting elements can greatly
enliven and soften the built environment. They can bring
seasonal colour and biodiverse natural interest as well as
providing green structure within the public realm.

One of the distinguishing characteristics of the City’s external
spaces is the green appeal particularly evident in the array of
gardens and churchyards dotted thoughout its historic fabric.
Seasonal bedding displays and high maintenance lawned
areas are to be discouraged, as more sustainable urban
greening measures are increasingly required to improve the
natural appeal and resilience of the City’s public realm as
part of the response to the climate challenge.

Sustainable urban drainage measures installed on rooftop,
and streetscape environs are to be encouraged and all have
the ability to contribute to a greener City. Such measures
act as natural sponges to moderate local environmental
effects associated with urban heat island effect through
cleansing, cooling, and critically absorbing surface runoff to
help mitigate stormflow into the River Thames.

Plant species are to be carefully selected to respond to each
unigue locality, climatic and seasonal fluctuations balanced
with strong visual aesthetics, biodiverse considerations and
reduced maintenance demands. There is an increasing
expectation for plants to provide multiple benefits to all

users, natural and human andchoice of plants should be
developed in consultation with the City Gardens. Water
demand in particular, for planting maintenance, is an
increasing pressure and a key consideration over the coming
years. The availability of an adjacent water source is vital

for all planted areas in the initial years to aid successful
establishment but thereafter there is an expectation for
planting schemes to be of a drought tolerant, self-irrigating
nature. Consideration should be given at an early stage as
to how this is to be achieved.

v




TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

In ground planting beds

Narrow granite edging

Wide granite edging

Key Criteria
Lawn

General planting
Large shrubs

Small trees

Low metal edging

The preferred approach to implementing long lasting
planting schemes is to establish at grade planting in the form
of low retained planting beds. Such beds support the ability
for plant roots to extend into natural ground conditions, to
establish good drainage conditions and allow ease of access
for maintenance to the benefit and vitality of the planting.

Planting beds are to be retained by a low raised natural
stone kerb of either granite or York stone to reduce litter
collection demands and protect planting from pedestrian
overrun. Lower metal edging provides a contemporary and
more flexible edging solution where space is fight or more
sinuous planting beds are required.

Minimum topsoil depths and soil composition for planting
within ground level beds are subject to the specification or
approval of the City Gardens Section.

Minimum topsoil depths required
300 mm

450 mm

up to 600 mm

up to 800 mm

York stone edging as upstand to planter bed

79



TREES & e kit
PLANTING

SUDs and rain gardens

The incorporation of planting beds as an integral part of the
sustainable urban drainage system is to be encouraged where
ground conditions permit. Rain gardens will increasingly form
an important feature in the City as a key component of the
urban greening measures, designed as formalised planted
beds that can receive roof and surface water runoff close

to source. These features act as vegetated filters within the
drainage chain, offering functional drainage improvements
water flow and quality whilst also providing both visual amenity
and biodiversity enhancements.

Successful rain garden implementation must consider the
following factors:

Surface water catchment affecting volume storage capacity

Below ground constraints such as utilities

Establish natural ground infilfration capacity

Install raised kerb edges (with hit & miss gaps where appropriate)

Provide appropriate drainage inlets and velocity trap

Create a freeboard of minimum 100mm for surface flood waters

Install overflow pipe (for inundation events)

Introduce a mulch layer

Introduce a suitable bioretention substrate with good permeability

Install a water retention and storage layer such as a

permavoid with options for geotextile wicking membrane to

allow for ongoing vertical uptake and absorption of water in

to the growing medium to self-irrigate the planting

11 Geotextile membrane for impermeable or permeable
infilfration ground conditions

2 Provide onward drainage connection to piped system via

orifice outlet or through natural ground infiltration

) (P

el
ZA\

O N AN D
©/© ()N (A (¢

1 5 7

=/ \~/

-------.I----l----...... e J/ I_I:iu -

7/ T S=a 6
i : Z . 7, (8
. JorN &

Y, RO R R R R KRR
R T T R NN A A TN NN NN NN NS
DR P P P L \//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\//\/\//\ SN \//\/\ >
R T e R i \/\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\V&\/\\/\\/\\/
S Saele Tl NN NN NI NI

K LLKL NN
2 RRR,

N
R

K\\/{\\\\\&K\\{(\\ AONANA /\\{\\ NN
S N N\ NN
A 15
A NN NN [[[||IANN N A NN \WAY
M) WA Sz SS A IN SN N/l
ININ ININ ]| INIA NN ] IANIA NN

N Z1S)
7 N7
>
=
=
=
N ZIN)

X %
K K K
NN N %
NN N N N NN N N NN N xS SN Y
KK //\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\{/\\/\\//\\//\\//\\//\ NS
WY %VAM MY N2 géﬂhvﬂ
AN

&eooooe
()
&ooooo




TREES &. City Public ?ggm TR EES & City Public ?gsm
PLANTING PLANTING

Z/) abed

Raised fixed planters

82

Raised beds provide a means of getting trees and
vegetation into areas where there is not a significant soil
depth available. These fixed structures can provide high
quality architectural and sculptural elements and often

can incorporate seating elements. Raised planters may be
constructed as either clad or solid stone structures or from
modular metal, as either straight or sinuous sections.

A number of finishes may be applied reponding to material
and appropriate to their setting and maintenance demand.

Raised planters should have adequate drainage with
consideration given to the sub-base and its drainage
capability. Raised beds are to be filled to the specification
or approval of the City Gardens. Automatic irrigation should
be included in permanent planters to reduce maintenance
COSsts.

The volume of soil provided within fixed planters will
determine the most suitable plant species to be grown
for long term impact, vigour and reduced maintenance
demands.

Protective measures

Stone upstands and armrests

Groove cut into stone

Street furniture elements are exposed to general wear and
tear and activities such as skateboarding often resulting

in damage. Furniture elements that may be affected are
planters, walls, steps and benches, and in particular long
exposed lengths of seating and walling.

It is important to consider potential measures to restrict
damage at an early stage in the design process.
Considerations over the positioning of street furniture
elements, their height and material choice may all influence
the exposure and risk of damage. Protective measures
should be ‘designed-in’ to all street enhancement schemes
where vulnerable features or exposed edges are included.

In the case of stone furniture and edges, the insertion

of grooves cut into stone elements add a ‘break’ to a
continuous edge. Similarly the surface treatment of the
stone finish, such as cropping or rustic finish, may also provide
deterrent.



¢) abed

TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Mobile planters

Key Criteria
Style
Supplier
Dimensions

Diameter

Construction/Finish

Mobile planters are used to demarcate entrances and
thresholds to key buildings and spaces, extending the history
of using lead cisterns in similar locations around the City. They
may also be used to introduce temporary greenery where
the proximity of underground services or access requirements
restrict the creation of permanent planting beds.

As a minimum within each planter, a drainage layer of
Lightweight Expanded Aggregate (LECA 4-10mm round)

over the drainage holes and a filter membrane material such
as Terram 1000 or equivalent should be installed to prevent
fine soil particles from washing out on to the paving. The
appropriate soil mix, planting species and irrigation demand is
to developed in consultation with City Gardens.

A simple, cone shaped, bronze design is the preferred planter
within the City, offering two different planter capacities.

Small solid bronze planter Large bronze clad planter
Cone shaped planter Cone shaped planter

refer to City Public Realm IOTA

900mm high 1196mm high

Top 900mm Top 1190mm / Bottom 990mm
Solid bronze 3mm thick Zintec Steel,

clad with 1.2mm Bronze

1190

900

900

1196

TREES & City Public TRgg;lllkniqt
PLANTING

Contemporary freestanding planters

Opportunities exist to install multi-functional contemporary
arrangements of freestanding planters which can be useful
in providing impact, animation, seating and temporary
greening either as part of trial streetscape works and also
where below ground constraints will not allow inground
planters.




/) abed

TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Realm
Toolkit

Trellising

Key Criteria
Supplier
Material

Wire dimensions

A trellis can provide an attractive vertical display of plants
where trees would not be appropriate. A stainless steel wire
system, installed vertically, provides a low maintenance
strong support for a range of twining climbers. This should
be appropriately specified according to the height of frellis,
location, plant loading and risk of vandalism or abuse.

For ease of maintenance and access, trellises should
generally not exceed 2.5m in height otherwise mechanical
lifting equipment will be needed to maintain. Consideration
must be given to width of planting bed at the foot of the
trellising also affecting means of access for maintenance
and inspection.

Jakob® INOX LINE or equivalent.
Stainless steel wire

4 mm

TREES &
PLANTING

City Public Reaim
Toolkit

Watering and irrigation

Key Criteria
Product
Supplier
Material
Dimensions

Fixing

Treegators, as manual
tree pit watering provision
during establihsment

Standpipes

On certain projects, standpipes for hose connection may
be installed, particularly to aid in early plant establishment.
The requirement for standpipes are determined by site
location, spatial demands, access and other constraints

in consultation with City Gardens. These standpipes are

to be located sensitively within the planting scheme,

with consideration given to ease of access and extent of
hosepipe connection to avoid crossing of pedestrian routes.
In exceptional circumstances, irrigation tanks may be
considered.

Tower standpipe with 3/4 bib tap

Edwards Standpipes

Stainless Steel Grade 304 — 1.5mm thick

106 x 106 x1470mm ( 720mm above ground, 750mm below ground)
Stabilising base plate 255 x 255mm

Ground level
.|

87



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Agenda Iltem 5

This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

Committees: Dates:

Projects and Procurement Sub (for information) 06 November 2023

Streets and Walkways Sub (for decision) 07 November 2023

Natural Environment Board (for information) 04 December 2023

Subject: Gateway 4:
Detailed Design

Climate Action Strategy, Cool Streets and Greening

Programme — Phase 4 (Regular)

SuDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage) for Climate
Resilience

Unique Project Identifier:

PV Project ID 12267

Report of: For Decision

Interim Executive Director, Environment

Report Author:
Melanie Charalambous

PUBLIC

1. Status Project Description: Cool Streets and Greening is a £6.8m Climate
update Action Strategy programme to pilot climate resilient streets and open
spaces in the Square Mile. Phases 1, 2 and 3 of this programme are
underway. This report seeks approval to progress Phase 4 SuDS
(Sustainable Urban Drainage) for Climate Resilience workstream.

RAG Status: Amber (Green at last report to Committee)
Risk Status: Amber (Low at last report to committee)
Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): £1.4m - £1.7m

Change in Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk):
Decrease of £700,000 since last report to Committee.

Spend to Date: £93,495.
Costed Risk Provision Utilised: None

Slippage: It was originally intended to identify up to ten suitable sites
for SuDS interventions. However, it has only been possible to identify
six so far, due to the extensive presence of underground utilities

v.April 2019 Page 77



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

across the City. Site surveys and investigations have also taken
longer than expected which has delayed the project programme. The
revised end date for this Phase is March 2025.

2. Next steps
and
requested
decisions

Next Gateway: Gateway 5: Authority to Start Work for four of the sites
detailed in this report and Gateway 4: design reports for Lloyds
Avenue and Ludgate Broadway

Next Steps:

Ongoing engagement with local occupiers

Further detailed design development

Carry out trial holes and develop construction drawings
Traffic order process to relocate parking bays as required
Other approvals to be sought as required

Requested Decisions:
It is recommended that the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the additional budget of £95,000 to reach the next
Gateway, funded from the Cool Streets and Greening Programme
(OSPR);

2. Approve the revised total estimated cost range for this Phase
(excluding risk) of £1.4m - £1.7m;

3. Delegate approval of the Costed Risk Provision to the Chief
Officer if one is sought at Gateway 5;

4. Approve the statutory consultation on the proposed relocation of
parking bays as set out in this report;

5. Authorise officers to enter into an agreement with the Church to
enable the St Andrew Undershaft churchyard works to proceed.

6. Note that two of the sites (Ludgate Broadway and St Andrew
Undershaft) include additional repaving and public realm
enhancements that are to be funded by ring-fenced S106 funds that
have been allocated to the projects and this will be detailed in future
Gateway reports.

7. Note that the sites at Ludgate Broadway and Lloyds Avenue will
require further design work and will be the subject of a future
Gateway 4 report in early 2024.

8. Note that the underspend from this Phase will be redirected to
Phase 3 of the programme to further progress tree planting,
relandscaping for climate resilience and climate resilient planting.
This will be formalised in a forthcoming programme update report in
early 2024.

v.April 2019

Page 78




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

3. Resource

requirement || ltem Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
to reach Source of
next Funding
Gateway
Fees | Surveys, OSPR 30,000
design fees,

traffic order
fees and trial
holes

Staff Costs | Project OSPR 30,000
(P+T) | management

and public

engagement

Staff Costs | Design and OSPR 35,000
(Highways) | utility
investigations

Total OSPR 95,000

Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: None

4. Design 4.1 The Climate Action Strategy Cool Streets & Greening programme
summary is introducing climate resilience measures into the City’s public realm

to avoid future disruption from climate risks. Phases 1, 2 and 3 of this

programme are underway and this report relates to Phase 4.

4.2 This phase seeks to introduce SuDS for Climate Resilience,
strategically across the Square Mile at several sites. This strategic
approach will result in wider climate resilience benefits such as
protection from surface water and sewer surcharge flood risk
resulting from extreme rainfall events, across the City.

4.3 Since the approval of the Gateway 2/3 report in November 2022,
officers have carried out extensive site investigations and surveys in
order to confirm locations where SuDS can be installed in the public
realm. As expected, the main constraint has been the presence of
underground utilities. This has meant that fewer sites have been
identified than originally planned.

4.4 The table below sets out the sites that have been confirmed as
locations for SuDS installations where designs have been developed.
Please see plans and sketch views in Appendix 3. Officers will
continue to carry out site investigations and surveys at other potential

v.April 2019 Page 79



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

sites and these will be subject to a future Gateway 4 report in early
2024 if feasibility is confirmed.

Site Proposal Notes/Dependencies

St Andrew Rainwater Re-paving, new benches
Undershaft harvesting from and reconfigured steps to
Churchyard Church roof run-off | be separately funded by

to serve new
planters and
planting beds

S106 receipts that have
been allocated to the
delivery of the City Cluster
Programme

St Andrews Hill

Rain garden and
tree planting

Cycle racks to be relocated
nearby.

There is potential to extend
this rain garden further
north and relocate a
parking bay to provide
additional improvements. If
this is feasible, Members
will be updated in the new
year.

Bread Street

Rain garden and

Cycle racks to be relocated

(south) tree planting nearby

Knightrider Extend pavement in | Disabled parking bays are

Court front of café and to be relocated nearby.

add rain garden Surveys indicate these 2

existing bays are not well
used and more accessible
locations have been
identified nearby for their
relocation. This is subject
to further survey work
ahead of Gateway 5.

Ludgate Rain garden and Further feasibility, design

Broadway tree planting with work and consultation is

associated
pavement and
carriageway works.
Replacing
temporary ‘parklet’
with permanent
design.

required ahead of a further
Gateway 4 report in the
new year.

Raised sections of
carriageway, widened
pavements and some
carriageway re-surfacing in
granite setts are to be
separately funded by S106
receipts that have been
allocated to the delivery of
the Fleet Street Healthy
Streets Plan

v.April 2019

Page 80




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

Lloyds Avenue | Rain gardens and Further feasibility, design
tree planting work and consultation is
required ahead of a further
Gateway 4 report in the
new yeatr.

Parking bays and
cycle/scooter bays will
need to be relocated.

4.4 The majority of the SuDS interventions are rain gardens which are
shallow planting beds, designed to collect rainwater run-off from
adjacent paved areas and thereby slow the movement of rainwater
into the sewer system. The added benefits of these gardens are that
they also soften the urban environment, enhance the public realm and
support biodiversity. At some of the sites, areas of permeable paving
will also be possible, as well as tree planting and associated public
realm improvements.

4.5 The St Andrews Undershaft Churchyard scheme aims to
improve the space and introduce a series of climate resilience
measures. A key component underpinning the redesign has been the
incorporation of sustainable drainage measures. The system is
designed not only to capture water to help irrigate the new planting
beds but also to attenuate and cleanse any roof and surface water
runoff before entering the already pressurised combined sewer
system. A sustainable drainage strategy introduces downpipe
diversions, rainwater planters, permeable paving and below-ground
attenuation to improve the quality and quantity of the water
attenuated whilst also providing benefits to both the amenity and
biodiversity on offer. The scheme also includes additional seating, a
more accessible space and increased greenery.

4.6 A number of the interventions listed above have dependencies
that will either enable them to be delivered or will lead to a more
successful scheme. Several are kerbside locations that require the
reclamation of carriageway space and the relocation of parking bays
or street furniture. The proposal for Ludgate Broadway incorporates
widened pavements, raised sections of carriageway and re-surfacing
to improve accessibility and create an enhanced public realm, in
keeping with the conservation area location. This project received a
high degree of support from the recent consultation on the Fleet Street
area healthy streets plan.

4.7 These SuDS schemes will help to establish a new way of
designing the City’s public realm whereby environmental resilience
measures including SuDS and planting are a high priority and
therefore become more prevalent, enabling the City to better adapt to
climate change.

v.April 2019

Page 81




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is
printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

4.8 Initial engagement with local occupiers has been undertaken with
positive responses received. The next steps include trial holes and
further engagement on the detailed designs ahead of Gateway 5
reports to be submitted to the Chief Officer for approval. St Andrew
Undershaft will have an individual Gateway 5 report due to its complex
nature and different funding sources. The other smaller scale
interventions will be covered by one Gateway 5 report. LIoyds Avenue
and Ludgate Broadway require further design work and a Gateway 4
report for these sites will be submitted in the new year.

4.9 The impacts of the SuDS schemes will be assessed as part of the
Cool Streets and Greening programme’s lessons learnt. The
possibility of including a gully sensor in one of the schemes as part of
the Climate Sensor’s Network is currently being reviewed. This would
provide data to quantify the impact of the schemes.

4.10 The previous Gateway 2/3 report listed a number of sites which
have been investigated but are not able to be progressed; typically
due to utility congestion. These include sites at Lambeth Hill, St Martin-
le-Grande, Godliman Street, Tooks Court, Houndsditch and Swan
Lane. Some of the sites showed potential for tree planting which will
be progressed as part of Phase 3 of the programme.

5. Confirmatio
n that
design
solution will
meet our
SMART
objectives

Climate Action Strategy Objectives:

e The City of London Corporation and its assets are resilient to
climate change

e The Square Mile’s buildings, public spaces and infrastructure
are resilient to climate change

e People in the Square Mile and beyond benefit from a clean,
green and safe environment and job creation

This project will reduce the risks of flooding from the increased and
more intense rainfall which we are already experiencing as a result of
climate change.

The strategically located SuDS schemes will not only reduce surface
water flood risk at individual sites but will reduce rainwater run-off into
the drainage network and subsequent risk of sewer surcharge flooding
elsewhere in the City.

The design of raingardens and the planting palette used will efficiently
use water, introducing greening whilst avoiding the need for irrigation.
This will help to counter the Urban Heat Island and provide
opportunities for biodiversity.

6. Risks

The main risks are as follows:

e Utilities and underground structures restrict the ability to implement
the schemes.

v.April 2019

Page 82




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is

printed into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your
copy matches that of the one on-line.

Response: Ground investigations including radar surveys have been
carried out for all sites. Further trial holes are needed to confirm
underground conditions.

e Objections from local occupiers

Response: Initial consultation has been undertaken with local
occupiers with positive responses and further engagement is planned
as the designs are developed.

e Cost escalation as a result of inflation or other factors

Response: initial cost estimates have been produced and the
proposed cost range is sufficient to cover the project costs including
maintenance of planting.

Further information available in the Risk Register (Appendix 2).

Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Coversheet
Appendix 2 Risk Register
Appendix 3 Plans and Sketch designs
Contact
Report Author Melanie Charalambous
Email Address Melanie.charalambous@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Via MS Teams
Number
v.April 2019 Page 83



mailto:Melanie.charalambous@cityof

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status
UPI: 12267

Core Project Name: Climate Action Strategy, Cool Streets and Greening
Programme — Phase 4

Programme Affiliation (if applicable): Climate Action Strategy, Cool Streets and
Greening Programme
Project Manager: Melanie Charalambous
Definition of need: The Climate Action Strategy Cool Streets & Greening
programme is introducing climate resilience measures into the City’s public realm to
avoid future disruption from climate risks.
Key measures of success: Installation of SuDS and climate resilience measures
at up to 10 strategically located sites across the City.
Expected timeframe for the project delivery: 2022-2025
Key Milestones:

e GW2/3 — November 2022

e GW 4 - Summer 2023 (delayed to Nov 2023 as a result of survey delays and

site constraints)

e GWS5 — early - mid 2024

e Implementation 2024/25
Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? N
Project has been delayed as a result of survey delays and site constraints
Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?
No

[2] Finance and Costed Risk
Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

‘Project Briefing’ G1 report (as approved by Chief Officer 30/09/20):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Cool Streets and Greening
Programme approved at total cost of £6.8m (all Phases)
e Costed Risk Against the Project: none
e Estimated Programme Dates: 2021-2025

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

‘Project Proposal’ G2/3 report (as approved by PSC 23/11/23):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £2.4m for Phase 4

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £185K

Spend to date: N/A

Costed Risk Against the Project: None

CRP Requested: None

CRP Drawn Down: None

Estimated Programme Dates: 2023-2024

V14 July 2019
Page 85




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Scope/Design Change and Impact: N/A
Detailed Design’ G4 report (this report):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £1.4m - £1.7m
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £95K
e Spend to date: £93,495.
e Costed Risk Against the Project: None
e CRP Requested: None
e CRP Drawn Down: None
e Estimated Programme Dates: 2024-2025

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Reduced number of sites and extended
programme due to utilities constraints and survey delays

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Included in the project
cost range
Programme Affiliation [£]: Cool Streets and Greening £6.8m programme

V14 July 2019

Page 86



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

i N PM! 1] I ted A Risk:
Unique project identifier:(PV 12267 ':;:I'?:::?z:z;’. £ 1,700,000 feiclicRy uszda:: £ - ":;;:;gz 16 ClozedIRizks 0

General risk classification Mitigation actions Ownership & Action
Risk Gateway Category Description of the Risk  Risk Impact Description Likelihood Impact Risk  Costed impact pre- Costed Risk Confidence in i Mitigating actions Mitigation Likelihood Impact  Costed Post- CRP used Use of CRP Date Named Risk owner Date Comment(s)
D Classificatio Classificatio score mitigation (£) Provision requested estimation cost (£) Classificat Classificat impact post- Mitiga to date raised Departmental (Named Closed

ion post- ion post-  mitigation (£) tion Risk Officer or OR/
ation igation risk Manager/ External Realised &
score Coordinator  Party) moved to

Issues

Cimate Action Strateqy

R1 |2 (2) Financial Funding not available Project will not progress Rare Minor 1 £0.00 N |A - Very Confident oing dentfiod £0.00[Rare Minor £000[ 1 £0.00) of10/01/2023 |pse Gordon Roy
R2 |2 (1] Compliance/Re [Delays due fo governance o o+ it e delayed Possible Minor 3 £0.00] N A - Very Confident [Steering Group £0.00[Rare Minor £0.00] 1 £0.00| 010/01/2023 |DBE Gordon Roy.
aulatory & sian off overnance structure
Procurement and
Rs |2 (4] Confractual/Par | Contract or partnership Project will be delayed Rare Minor 1 £0.00] N A - Very Confident (compirollers wil oversee. £0.00[Rare Minor £0.00] 1 £0.00| 010/01/2023 |DBE Gordon Roy.
inership problems contracts and partnership
[Skils Gvalable Tor TS
Re |2 (4] Contractual/Par |y chortage Project delayed Possible serious 6 £0.00] N A - Very Confident phase, but key officers left/ £0.00[Rare Minor £0.00] 1 £0.00| 003/07/2023  |DBE Gordon Roy.
inership being recruited. Use
onsultants ff needed
Minimal opportunities for ey oiemative sifes and S:;va?uu:io’:‘zigﬁe: ’
Rs |2 (9) Environmental  |resilience measures due fo | Likely serious 8 £0.00 N A~ Very Confident 9 £0.00[Rare Minor £000[ 1 £0.00) 0[03/07/2023  |psE Gordon Roy
it licise with engineers costly design for individual
ol opportuniies for [T 70V 701 be posTbie 1o LessTamen TR Broiect
R6 |3 (9) Environmental [reslience measures due fo | mPlement resiience Unlikely serious 3 £0.00] N A - Very Confident [managers will enable early £0.00[Rare Minor £0.00] 1 £0.00| 003/07/2023  |DBE Gordon Roy.
avronmantol consamts [ measures due fo unforseen redesign before costs are
i i ruch re: incur
R7 |4 (3) Reputation D:C‘eu‘;’.“:r"s fromlocal Se;‘g";dama”""s maybe oo sible Minor 3 £0.00/ N B - Fairly Confident (Consult wiih local £0.00[Rare Minor £000] 1 £0.00| 0|04/09/2023  |pBE Gordon Roy
. [Re et deiays.
Review of scope may be [ oguios mosfings with
Re |4 (2) Financial Unexpected costincreases  [required and identification  [Possible Major 12 £0.00 N 8 - Fairly Confident £000[Possible  [serious £000[ 6 £0.00) 04/09/2023  |pBE Gordon Roy
. i coniractors, regular cost
of additional funding )
k9 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R10 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
RiT £0.<ﬂ £0.<ﬂ £0. oﬁ £0. oﬁ
R12 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R13 £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
R14 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R15 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R16 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R17 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Ri8 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R19 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
m [R20 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
(Q R21 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R22 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
('D R23 £0.00] £0.00] £0.00| £0.00|
|R’_24 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R25 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
m»?_za ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R27 £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
R28 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R29 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
[R30 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
Ra1 £0.00 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
lR_az £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R33 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|R_34 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R35 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|R_36 ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
R37 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R38 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R39 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R40 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R4 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
[R42 £0. o_ol £0. LEI so.o% so.o%
R43 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Ras £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R4s £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Ra6 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R47 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
R48 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R4 £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
[R50 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R51 £0.00 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
lR_sz £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R53 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
RS54 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R55 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|ﬁé ﬂ)o_ol ﬂ)o_ol so.o% so.o%
Rs7 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Rs8 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R59 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
[Ré0 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
Ré1 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R62 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R63 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Re4 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
Res £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Ré6 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
Ré7 £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
Res £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
Ré9 £0.00 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
[R70 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R71 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
R72 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% so.o%
R73 £0.00 £000 £0.00) £0.00)




£0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
£0.00 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
£0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
£000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
£0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
£000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
£0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
£000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
£0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
Re3 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|ﬁi4 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
Res £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
|ﬂié £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
Re7 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Res £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
Re9 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|&90 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
R91 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|&92 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
R93 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
|&94 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
R95 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
Fvé £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
R97 £000 £0.00 £0.00) £0.00)
R98 £0. o_ol £0. o_ol so.o% £0 o%
R99 £000 £000 £0.00) £0.00)
[r100 £0.00] £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]

9g abed




Appendix 3 — Plans and sketches

1. St Andrews Hill

Page 89

St Andrew’s Hill - Plan view



2. Bread Street

Page 90

Bread Street - Plan view



3. Knightrider Court - subject to relocation of the disabled bays

Page 91

Knightrider Court - Plan view



4. St Andrew Undershaft Churchyard

St Andrew Undershaft Churchyard view from St Mary Axe

Page 92

St Andrew Undershaft Churchyard view



Agenda Iltem 6

Committees:
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee - for decision Dates:

07 November 2023
Subiject: Gateway 2:
Dauntsey House, Frederick’s Place - Public Realm Project Proposal
Improvements (S278) Light
Unique Project Identifier:
TBC at the next reporting stage
Report of: Interim Executive Director Environment For Decision
Report Author:
Emmanuel Ojugo

Recommendations

1. Next steps and | Project Description: Public realm improvements related to the
requested redevelopment of Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place, to
decisions improve pedestrian movement, including, but not restricted to:

- Raising sections of public highway,

- Improving lighting coverage,

- Introducing greenery and seating,

- Introducing measures to maintain the performance of local
highway network.

Next Gateway: Gateway 3/4 - Options Appraisal (Regular)
Next Steps:

Evaluation and Design to reach the next gateway:

o Carry out site location surveys to establish conditions,
subject to access.

o Appoint consultants if necessary

o Develop design with the City Highways Team to reach the
next reporting stage

o Develop an outline design for consultation.

o Draft the Section 278 Agreement in accordance with the
legal obligation stated in the Section 106 Deed of
Agreement.

Requested Decisions:

I.  That budget of £25,000 is approved for Evaluation and
Design to reach the next Gateway;

Page 93

v.April 2019



li.  Note the total estimated cost of the project £350K - £600K
(excluding risk), funded from the Section 106 and Section
278;

iii.  Permission to enter into a Section 278 Agreement in
accordance with the completed Section 106 Deed of
Agreement related to the redevelopment of Dauntsey
House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place.

2. Resource
requirements to || Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
reach next Source of
Gateway Funding
Staff Costs Project Section 12,000
(P&T) Management, 106
Design
Development,
Section 278
scope
Staff Costs Civils, Design Section 8,000
(DES - Development 106
Engineer)
Fees Survey Section 5,000
information 106
Total 25,000

Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: X (Cost
Risk Provision is not deemed necessary at this stage).

3. Governance « Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee of Planning and
arrangements Transportation Committee.

e Senior Responsible Officer: Brue McVean.

o At this stage it is not deemed necessary to form a project
board to manage governance.

Project Summary

4. Context 4.1. There is a legal obligation to mitigate the effects of the
Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place development
as stated in the completed Section 106 Agreement.

5. Brief description | 5.1. According to Schedule 9 of the completed Section 106

of project Agreement that provides the mechanism for entering into a
Section 278 Agreement; the works may include but will not
be limited to:

Page 94

v.April 2019




Works to Ironmonger Lane, including new paving and
raised section of carriageway or raised table to cater for
new and existing pedestrian movement between
Frederick’s Place, St Olave’s Court and Prudent Passage,
Other improvements may include new lighting works to
accommodate pedestrian movement immediately south of
the development around private loading areas; an increase
in greenery subject to site conditions, seating and historical
interpretation.

6. Consequences if
project not
approved

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

If this project is not approved the City would not fulfil its legal
obligation to enter into a Section 278 Agreement to mitigate
the effects of the development. There will be no mechanism
through which the highway changes required to
accommodate the new building can be delivered without
investment.

The developer will be in breach of their Section 106
covenant if they are unable to enter into a Section 278
agreement to enable highway improvement work unless the
City waives or varies the covenant.

The City would need to fund any increases in maintenance
liability costs made necessary by the development.

7. SMART project
objectives

7.1.

7.2

7.3.

7.4.

Improve pedestrian accessibility particularly between
Ironmonger Lane, Frederick’s Place and Old Jewry.

Increase greenery in the area subject to site conditions.

Improved lighting around the development and provision of
seating in the area.

Include local historic interpretation in the design/potential for
public art.

8. Key benefits

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

An increased public perception of safety is expected due to
improved lighting and the quality of materials used.

An increase in greening and seating coverage in the area.
The developer’s aspirations and requirements met, by

ensuring the surrounding highways work is completed in
alignment with the developer's programme.

9. Project category

4a. Fully reimbursable

10. Project priority

C. Desirable

11. Notable
exclusions

11.1. No notable exclusions at this stage

v.April 2019

Page 95




Options Appraisal

12. Overview of
options

12.1.1tis proposed to develop options and present them at the
next reporting stage in accordance with the Tranpsort
Strategy objectives and in collaboration with key
stakeholders including the Cheapside Business Alliance.

12.2. Options will focus mainly on how works are to be phased
accord with existing development and highways activity in
the area.

Project Planning

13. Delivery period
and key dates

Overall project: Public realm works are expected to be
completed within approx. 6-8 months of approval to start works
(Gateway 5) — subject to the developer's programme.

Key dates:

- Streets and Walkways Committee approval to initiate the
project - Nov 2023

- Produce design brief - Q1 2024
Carry out site surveys - Q2 2024

- Outline design for local consultation - Q3 2024

- Gateway 3/4 — Q4 2024

Other works dates to coordinate: Project manager to
maintained regular communication with developer and local
stakeholders.

14. Risk implications

Overall project risk: Low

Post Gateway 3/4, it is proposed to request that a Gateway 5
report is delegated provided costs identified at Gateway 3/4 are
not exceeded.

e Full cost of works unknown

Risk response: accept
As the design develops, the likely cost of the scheme will be
established..

e Costs of the work prove excessive

Risk response: reduce
The scheme will be designed efficiently with options and
associated costs will be agreed as part of the Section 278
Agreement which will contain a standard mechanism for
seeking reasonable excess funds, should they be required.

e Project not delivered to programme
Risk response: accept

Access to carry out the public realm improvement works are
subject to the developer's programme. Any excessive

v.April 2019

Page 96




changes to the project programme will be subject to the
Gateway reporting process.

15. Stakeholders and
consultees

15.1. Developer of 9 Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s
Place

15.2. Owners/occupiers of adjacent buildings to Dauntsey
House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place

15.3. Local Ward Members

15.4. Cheapside Business Alliance

15.5. Internal City teams including Highway, City Garden, and
the Access Team.

Resource Implications

16. Total estimated
cost

Likely cost range (excluding risk): Anticipated lifetime cost
to deliver this project (excluding risk).

Note: £350K-£600K. Costed risk will be determined at the next
reporting gateway.

17. Funding strategy

Choose 1: Choose 1:

Partial funding confirmed External - Funded wholly by
contributions from external
third parties

Funds/Sources of Funding Cost (£)
S106 related to the redevelopment of 25K
Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s
Place
S278 related to the redevelopment of 325K — 575K
Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s
Place

Total 350K — 600K

Note: The £25,000 funding is identified here is a requirement of
the approved Section 106 Design and Evaluation obligation.

It is further noted that funding required to carry out
implementation is to be established entering into a legal Section
278 Agreement to be agreed prior to Gateway 5.

18. Investment
appraisal

Not applicable.
On-going revenue implications

18.1. Revenue implications for highways maintenance are
anticipated to be of minimum impact and will be
confirmed at Gateway 5 when the detailed design will be

finalised.

v.April 2019

Page 97




18.2. These costs will be assessed and covered by the
developer under a Section 278 agreement, thereby
mitigating the impact on local risk budgets.

19.

Procurement
strategy/route to
market

19.1. It is anticipated that all works will be undertaken by the
City’s Highways term contractor, FM Conway. This will be
confirmed at Gateway 5.

19.2. A design brief seeking expressions of interest will be
drafted to develop the full scope of the Section 278 works
area, following procurement rules.

19.3. The Construction Design will be overseen by the City of
London Highways Team.

19.4. The materials and specification of the design will be the
City’s standard specification, in accordance with the City
Public Realm Supplementary Planning Document.

20. Legal 20.1. A Section 106 Agreement has been approved and
implications provides the mechanism to enter into a subsequent
Section 278 Agreement is being negotiated with the
developer. This is to be finalised prior to the submission
of a Gateway 5 report.
21. Corporate None.
property
implications
22. Traffic 22.1. The proposed adjacent works are unlikely to have any
implications long-term impact on vehicular traffic and will improve
pedestrian flows.
23. Sustainability 23.1. 1t is anticipated that all materials will be sustainably

and energy
implications

sourced where possible and be suitably durable for
construction purposes.

23.2. The project will seek to introduce greenery in the local
area.

24.

IS implications

None

25.

Equality Impact
Assessment

An equality impact assessment (scoping exercise) will be
undertaken as part of the pre evaluation process. Should a
more fulsome assessment be required this will be carried out
as part of the design development process.

The City of London’s Street Accessibility Tool (COLSAT) will
also be used to establish the existing issues and for the
progressing design to improve on this situation.

26.

Data Protection
Impact
Assessment

None

v.April 2019

Page 98




Appendices

Appendix 1 Project Briefing
Appendix 2 Site Location Plan
Contact

Report Author

Emmanuel Ojugo

Email Address

emmanuel.ojugo@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone Number

020 73321158

v.April 2019

Page 99



mailto:emmanuel.ojugo@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project
Identifier

TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Reference Number

[2] Core Project
Name

Dauntsey House, Frederick’s Place - Public Realm
Improvements (S278)

[3] Programme
Affiliation
(if applicable)

N/A

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has
signed off on this
document

TBC

[5] Senior Responsible
Officer

Bruce McVean, Assistant Director Policy & Projects

[6] Project Manager

Emmanuel Ojugo

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The project seeks to deliver changes to areas of public highway in the vicinity of the
development at Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place. The project is to be fully
funded by the developer through a Section 278 agreement.

The scope of the project is referred to in the associated Section 106 agreement and
includes but is not limited to the following inclusive of relandscaping, greening, tree
planting, resurfacing and wayfinding:

e Works to Ironmonger Lane, including new paving and raised section of
carriageway or raised table to cater for new and existing pedestrian movement
between Frederick’s Place, St Olave’s Court and Prudent Passage,

e Other improvements may include new lighting works to accommodate waiting
and loading restrictions, any works necessary to accommodate pedestrian
movement immediately south of the Development around the private loading
area; an increase in greenery subject to site conditions, seating and historical

interpretation.

A sum of £25,000 has been identified to cover the City’s reasonable costs to undertake
evaluANation and design of the S278 works.

Other Considerations

Page 101




It should be noted that proposals must consider planned improvements to Old Jewry as
part of the ongoing Healthy Streets programme and other areas of highway activity in
the wider Guildhall/Bank area.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity
we are trying to realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The redevelopment of Dauntsey House is one of a number of redevelopments and
activities in the Bank area that will facilitate public realm and highway improvements.
Whilst Bank junction is the most prominent project, Members will be aware that prior to
the Dauntsey House development currently under construction, Frederick’s Place saw
the refurbishment of Listed Buildings within this18th Century Georgian enclave. The
Dauntsey House development will create a new pedestrian link between Ironmonger
Lane to the north of the site and Frederick’s Place to the south.

Old Jewry is partially restricted to motor vehicles particularly at its junction with
Cheapside and this has supported an increase in retail activity and footfall. There is
therefore a need to ensure the integrity of the street network to accommodate an
increase in pedestrian footfall and other sustainable forms of transport, whilst
accommodating the servicing/maintenance needs of local occupiers and businesses.
The Section 106 agreement requires the developer to enter into a Section 278
agreement to fund works to the public highway which are considered necessary to
make development acceptable; it is therefore necessary for the City to work closely
with local stakeholders to ensure the needs of the area are met due to expected
increases in visitors to the local catchment and wider Guildhall/Bank area.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

[1] People are safe and feel safe.

[2] People enjoy good health and wellbeing.

[9] Our spaces are secure, resilient and well-maintained.

[10] Our physical spaces have clean air, land and water and support a thriving and
sustainable natural environment.

[11] Our spaces are digitally and physically well-connected and responsive.

[12] Our spaces inspire excellence, enterprise, creativity, and collaboration.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

Providing an enhanced environment for all users.

[11] Note all which apply:

Officer: N Member: N Corporate: N
Project developed Project developed Project developed

from Officer from Member as a large scale
initiation initiation Corporate initiative
Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: Y
Compliance with Essential for New opportunity/
legislation, policy business continuity idea that leads to

and audit improvement

Page 102




Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project
has achieved its aims?

1) Improvements to walking and cycling conditions to streets and spaces in the
vicinity of the development.

2) Integration of new pedestrian routes with the surrounding public highway

3) Improved greening, and opportunities to increase local biodiversity in keeping
with City’s policies to respond to Climate Change.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will
need to track after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how
will you track them? (E.g. cost savings, quality etc.)

No

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £350,000
Upper Range estimate: £600,000

The broad cost range reflects the options for the redesign of the area described in
paragraph 7: Project Description.

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle
costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway and greenery will be
presented at future Gateways, and will be covered for a period of 20 years as per
Section 278 projects’ standard.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded by the developer through Section 106/278 agreement.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Lower Range estimate: to be confirmed with developer’s programme
Upper Range estimate: to be confirmed with developer’s programme

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the
City of London will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with
public and media momentum?

No

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?
<(Add additional internal or external stakeholders where required) >

Chamberlains: Officer Name: TBC
Finance

Page 103




Chamberlains:

N/A

Procurement
Communications Officer Name: TBC
External N/A

[20] Is this project being delivered internally on behalf of another department?
If not ignore this question. If so:

Please note the Client supplier departments.

Who will be the Officer responsible for the designing of the project?

If the supplier department will take over the day-to-day responsibility for
the project, when will this occur in its design and delivery?

Client Department: N/A
Supplier Department: N/A
Supplier Department: N/A

Project Design Manager

Department: N/A

Design/Delivery handover
to Supplier

Gateway stage: N/A

<Before Project Proposal>, <Post Project Proposal>,
<Post Options Appraisal>, <Post Detailed design>, <Post
Authority to start work>

Page 104




-

TRFMP STREET r

,‘,,fﬁﬂ,,,,,,,,,_\#,

APPENDIX 2:
SITE LOCATION PLAN

KING STRegT

Dauntsey House,
Frederick’s Place -
Public Realm
Improvements (S278)

/

~ |Legend

- REDEVELOPMENT SITE
/ m INDICATIVE PROJECT AREA

Created by:
) E Ojugo

Date Created:
28 Sep 2023

0 35 7 14 21

© Crown copyright and
database rights 2023
0OS 100023243




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda Item 7

This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Committees: Dates:

Streets and Walkways - for decision 07 November
2023

Projects & Procurement Sub — for information 06 November
2023

Subiject: Gateway 2:

Enhancing Cheapside Programme Project Proposal
Regular

Unique Project Identifier:

12405

Report of: For Decision

Interim Executive Director Environment

Report Author:
Marta Woloszczuk

PUBLIC

Recommendations

1. Next steps and Project Description: Public realm and highways improvements
requested to enhance Cheapside, the City’s ‘high street’. The programme
decisions will focus on the area along the length of Cheapside (between

New Change and Bank), Bow Churchyard and at the Cheapside
Bus Gate (east of Bread Street). The programme aims to deliver
enhancements to complement existing projects developed in the
area by decluttering and rationalising the street furniture along
Cheapside; more greening and low maintenance planting,
improved pedestrian movement through a change of road
layout, enhanced lighting and wayfinding, new seating as well
as supporting activation and events.

Next Gateway: Gateway 3/4
Next Steps:

- Evaluation and Design to reach the next gateway:
o Undertake site surveys
o Appoint design consultants
o Develop design with the project Design Team
including the City Highways Team, City Gardens
and external consultants
o Undertaken engagement with local stakeholders

Page 107

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

o Submit design for consultation
o Prepare the next Gateway report

Funding Source: CIL funding
Requested Decisions:

1. That budget of £125,000 is approved for Evaluation and
Design to reach the next Gateway;

2. Note the total estimated cost of the project up to
£1m(excluding risk);

2. Resource

requirements to Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
reach next Source of
Gateway Funding
Staff Cost Project CIL&OSP | 40,000
P&T management R
evaluation
Staff Cost Design CIL&OSP | 25,000
(Env) R
Fees Design, CIL&OSP | 60,000
survey, utilities | R
Total 125,000*

*£125,000 is sought to carry out evaluation and design as
summarised in the table above. Please note the breakdown for
the full funding allocation (£1,000,000) to implement the
programme will be provided at the next Gateway.

Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: Not
required at this stage as summarised in paragraph 14 risk
implications.

3. Governance e Streets and Walkways Sub Committee

arrangements .
g e Project to be overseen by a Group Manager and

managed by a Project Manager from the Transport and
Public Realm team on a day-to-day basis

e Senior Responsible Officer: Bruce McVean

¢ Regular meetings with key stakeholders including local
Ward Members, local businesses and landowners,
St Mary Le Bow representatives, and the Cheapside
Business Alliance.

Page 108

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

e The programme will be delivered through a phased
approach to align with the different timelines required.

Project Summary

4.1 A £1m bid to seek funding to deliver improvements in
the Cheapside area was approved by Resource
Allocation Sub Committee on 5 September 2023 and
Policy and Resources Committee on 21 September
2023.

4. Context

4.2 The bid covers enhancements to the wider Cheapside
area, Bow Churchyard and permanent improvements to
the Bus Gate (east of Bread Street), where temporary
changes were delivered as part of the Pedestrian
Priority Project (see location plan in Appendix 2).

4.3 The Pedestrian Priority Programme has three projects in

the Cheapside Area:

¢ King Street — street enhancements including footway
widening, one-way street with contra-flow cycling

e Cheapside Bus Gate and public realm
enhancements

e Old Jewry — road closure and public realm
enhancements

4.4 Following consultation and Committee approval, a
permanent traffic order on Cheapside came into effect in
July 2023. The Bus Gate on Cheapside limits access to
buses and cycles. In November 2023, a further
experimental traffic order is scheduled to commence at
this location allowing taxis access through the
restriction.

4.5Following the need to enhance Bow Churchyard, a
preliminary concept design and associated stakeholder
engagement were initiated in 2023, funded by the
Cheapside Business Alliance.

4.6 The Enhancing Cheapside Programme includes projects
to be delivered in a phased approach. Key areas for
improvement have been identified as follows:

= Provide more greening and low
maintenance planting to support

Page 109

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

biodiversity in Bow Churchyard and at the
Bus Gate

= Deliver enhanced lighting

= Support activation and provide additional
seating

» Improve pedestrian movement and better
wayfinding

* Provide pavement widening and traffic
calming measures in line with the
experimental traffic order

» Declutter and rationalise street furniture
along Cheapside and review accessibility
to align with the Healthy Street approach

5.1The programme seeks to enhance the Cheapside area
to make it a greener and a more welcoming environment
and support the recovery of the City's principal shopping
street and Destination City initiative.

5. Brief description
of project

5.2The most significant improvements will be delivered in
Bow Churchyard and on Cheapside in the vicinity of the
Bus Gate (east of Bread Street). These enhancements
will include increased greenery using low maintenance
and sustainable planting, new accessible and flexible
seating, enhanced lighting and provision of power
points. Other improvements along Cheapside will
include a decluttering exercise and provision for seating
to align with the Healthy Street approach.

5.3The project will complement improvements in the area
such as the Greening Cheapside project which delivered
enhancements to the area outside St Paul tube station
and in the sunken garden (works scheduled to be
implemented in Q1 2024); the Pedestrian Priority
Programme and associated traffic orders which provided
opportunity for a permanent design for the Bus Gate in
Cheapside.

5.4The project will be developed with key stakeholders
including local businesses and landowners, the
Cheapside Business Alliance and Destination City.

6. Consequences if 6.1 The City would miss the opportunity to complement
project not efforts to activate the Cheapside area and Shopping
approved Centre as identified in the Local Plan, and encourage an

increase in visitors to the area.

6.2 The City would miss the opportunity to increase greenery
and provide more places to seat and rest.

Page 110

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

6.3 The programme supports the delivery of numerous
Transport Strategy objectives and the Biodiversity Action
Plan. Without this programme it would be difficult for
these targets to be realised without significant
investment.

6.4 There would likely be reputational damage, as there has
already been financial contributions from the Cheapside
Business Alliance towards the initial design in Bow
Churchyard and the temporary planters and seating at
the Bus Gate in Cheapside.

7. SMART project 7.1Encourage and enable people to spend more time on
objectives Cheapside and in the surrounding area

7.2 Improve perceptions of the look and feel of Cheapside
area and Bow Churchyard

7.3 Improve accessibility through the provision of new and
improved seating

7.4 Increase greenery, biodiversity and climate resilience

7.5 Enhance wayfinding to Bow Lane and visibility of the
desired line from Cheapside across Bow Churchyard

8. Key benefits 8.1 More welcoming and vibrant space including space for
events

8.2 Support Destination City initiative and dynamism of the
City's primary retail destination

8.3Increased greenery and sustainable planting
8.4 Introduction of accessible and flexible seating

8.5Enhanced lighting and provision of power points

8.6Increase the number of kilometres of new pedestrian-
priority streets

8.7Improved pedestrian crossing

Page 111

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

8.8Increase the length of City streets with pedestrian
comfort level of A+ in line with criteria within the Climate
Action Strategy and Transport Strategy targets.

8.9Increase the percentage of people rating the experience
of walking in the City as pleasant (Transport Strategy
target and measured through the City Streets survey)

9. Project category

4a. Fully reimbursable

10. Project priority B. Advisable
11. Notable N/A
exclusions

Options Appraisal

12. Overview of
options

Further information to be presented at the next Gateway.

Project Planning

13. Delivery period
and key dates

Overall project: The estimated project completion Q4 2025 /
Q1 2026

Key dates:

- Streets and Walkways Committee approval for initiation
of the programme: 7 November 2023

- Procurement and appointment of external consultants:
Q1 2024

- Review of concept
development: Q2 2024

- Design consultation: Q2/Q3 2024

-  Gateway 3 /4: Q4 2024

-  Gateway 5 estimated Q1/2 2025

design and detailed design

Other works dates to coordinate: Project manager to maintain
regular communication with local stakeholders.

14. Risk implications

Overall project risk: Low
Overall project risk: Low

e Full cost of works unknown
Risk response: accept

v.April 2019

Page 112




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

As the design develops, the likely cost of the scheme will be
established. The scope of the project will be tailored to
ensure the current approved budget is able to cover the
costs.

e Costs of the work prove excessive
Risk response: reduce
The scheme will be redesigned to fit the budget

e Project not delivered to the programme
Risk response: accept

Access to carry out the public realm improvement works is
subject to the developer’s programme

e Stakeholders not supportive of the design
Risk Response: reduce
Carry out the consultation process to develop options
and maintain regular communication with stakeholders.

¢ Reputational risk if the programme doesn’t go
ahead given the initial external investment
Risk response: reduce
Maintain regular communication with stakeholders
regarding the programme. Establish a programme
board to oversee programme governance and manage
engagement with stakeholders.

The programme is at an early stage and the
aforementioned have been identified as headline risks.
A more comprehensive risk register will be reported at
the next gateway when the evaluation stage has
progressed.

15. Stakeholders and
consultees

Local businesses, occupiers and landowners

St Mary-le-Bow Church

Local Ward Members

Cheapside Business Alliance

City internal teams including Highway, City Garden,
Destination City and Access Group

Resource Implications

Likely cost range (excluding risk): The total estimated cost

16. Total estimated of the project at £850K - £1m

cost

Page 113

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

17. Funding strategy | Choose 1: Choose 1:
All funding fully guaranteed Internal - Funded wholly by
City's own resource
Funds/Sources of Funding Cost (£)
CIL&OSPR £lm
18. Investment None
appraisal
19. Procurement
straLegzy/route to 19.1 The design work is proposed to be carried out
marke externally by appointing relevant consultants to
develop RIBA stage 2 -4.

19.2 Itis anticipated that the construction package will be
undertaken in-house by the Highways team subject
by recourses being available.

19.3 ltis anticipated that all works will be undertaken by
the City’s Highways term contractor, FM Conway.
This will be confirmed at Gateway 5.

19.4 The materials and specification of the design will be
the City’s standard specification, in accordance with
the City Public Realm Supplementary Planning
Document.

20. Legal 20.1 None
implications
21. Corporate 21.1 None
property
implications
22. Traffic 22.1 The proposed works to Bow Churchyard will have no
implications impact on vehicular traffic but will improve pedestrian
movements.

22.2 As part of the Pedestrian Priority Programme, a
permanent traffic order on Cheapside came into effect
in July 2023 which limits access to buses and cycles.
A further experimental traffic order is scheduled to
commence in November allowing taxis access through
the restriction to be progressed.

Page 114

v.April 2019



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

23. Sustainability 23.1 The project will achieve sustainability standards that
and energy are above legal or regulatory requirements
implications

23.2 It is anticipated that all materials will be sustainably
sourced where possible and be suitably durable for
construction purposes.

23.3 The project will introduce low-maintenance greenery in
the local area.

24. 1S implications 24.1 None
25. Equality Impact 25.1 An equality impact assessment will be undertaken
Assessment prior to Gateway 5.
26. Data Protection 26.1 None.
Impact
Assessment
Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Briefing
Appendix 2 Location plan
Contact
Report Author Marta Woloszczuk
Email Address Marta.woloszczuk@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number 020 7332 3986

Page 115

v.April 2019



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

Appendix 1 — project briefing

ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project 12405 [1b] Departmental TBC
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name Enhancing Cheapside Programme

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership
[4] Chief Officer has signed lan Hughes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Clarisse Tavin
Officer
[6] Project Manager Marta Woloszczuk

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The programme seeks to undertake public realm and highways improvements to enhance Cheapside,
the City’s ‘high street’. The programme will focus on the area along the length of Cheapside (between
New Change and Bank), Bow Churchyard and at the Cheapside bus gate (east of Bread Street). The
programme aims to deliver enhancements to complement existing projects developed in the area by
decluttering and rationalising the street furniture along Cheapside; more greening and low
maintenance planting, improved pedestrian movement through a change of road layout, enhanced
lighting and wayfinding, new seating as well as support activation and events.

deliver

The most significant improvements will be delivered on Cheapside east of Bread Street (enabled by
the traffic restriction at this location, which is developed through the Pedestrian Priority Programme)
and at Bow Churchyard. These will include new accessible and flexible seating, increased greenery
using low maintenance and sustainable planting, and enhanced lighting and provision of power points.

Other improvements along Cheapside will include a decluttering exercise and provision for seating to
align with the Healthy Street approach. The project is to be developed with key stakeholders including
the Cheapside Business Alliance. The project will complement improvements delivered through
Greening Cheapside Phase la (outside St Paul tube station) and Phase 1b (improvements to the
sunken garden which is scheduled to be delivered in Winter 2023/24), as well as the pedestrian priority
proposal and associated Traffic order to create the Bus Gate in Cheapside.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The last few years have seen an economic downturn, largely due to the effects of the pandemic and
related restrictions from about March 2020 to March 2022. Cheapside is a designated City Shopping
Centre as stated in the Local Plan. The Cheapside area has suffered as a result of a significant reduction
in pedestrian footfall and there is a need to attract visitors to the area. There has already been some
investment in the area from the Cheapside Business Alliance BID to activate retail and encourage more
visitors to return to the area. The City needs to match these efforts by making the necessary public realm
and highway improvements to keep pace with the changing environment.

v.10 April 2019 Page 117



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

The programme also aims to support the Destination City initiative and to attract more people in the City
by activating outdoor spaces and improving the area.

It is important that efforts already made to invest in the area continue this momentum or risk reputational

damage, given the City of London’s reputation as a world City.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

[1] People are safe and feel safe.

[2] People enjoy good health and wellbeing.

[3] People have equal opportunities to enrich their lives and those of others and reach their full
potential.

[5] Businesses are trusted and socially and environmentally responsible.

[9] Our spaces are secure, resilient and well-maintained.

[10] Our physical spaces have clean air, land and water and support a thriving and sustainable natural
environment.

[11] Our spaces are digitally and physically well-connected and responsive.

[13 COLP] To make the City of London the safest city area in the world.

[16 COLP] To build new ethical economic partnerships.

10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

1] Advancing a flexible infrastructure that adapts to increasing capacity and changing demands.
5] Creating an accessible city which is stimulating, safe and easy to move around in

7] Improving quality of life for workers, residents and visitors.

[
[
[
[

[11] Note all which apply:

Officer: Y Member: N Corporate: N

Project developed from Project developed from Project developed as a

Officer initiation Member initiation large scale Corporate
initiative

Mandatory: N Sustainability: Y Improvement: Y

Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea

legislation, policy and continuity that leads to

audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

<These should be impacts of the activity to complete the aim/objective, rather than ‘finishes on time
and on budget’>>

2) Improved amenity space, lighting, greening and high-quality materials.

2) Improved pedestrian comfort level, access and movement

3) Increased seating and declutter of the street to align with the Healthy Street approach
[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)
e Increase number of people using the space on daily basis and for events
¢ Increase quantity of greening
e Increase the number of kilometres of new pedestrian priority streets and total length of
pedestrian priority streets
¢ Increase the length of City streets with pedestrian comfort level of A+, and lengths of street
with pedestrian comfort level of at least B+

v.10 April 2019 Page 118



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

e Increase the percentage of people rating the experience of walking in the City as pleasant

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £800,000

Upper Range estimate: £1000,000

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:
Revenue implications for highways maintenance are anticipated to be determined at Gateway 5 when
the detailed design is finalised.

These costs will be assessed and covered by the funding strategy at the next stage.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The sources of funding come from CIL.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?

Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

The programme will be developed and the delivery of the project phased accordingly. It is anticipated
that works will commence between Q3 2025 — Q1 2026

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

The programme and subsequent projects in the area will likely generate public interest due to possible
changes in the wider area. The programme board will manage communication both internally and
externally.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?

<(Add additional internal or external stakeholders where required) >

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Simon Owen

Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A

Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A

HR Officer Name: N/A

Communications Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property Officer Name: N/A

External Cheapside Business Alliance and Ward Members

[20] Is this project being delivered internally on behalf of another department? If not ignore this
question. If so:
Please note the Client supplier departments.
Who will be the Officer responsible for the designing of the project?
If the supplier department will take over the day-to-day responsibility for the project,
when will this occur in its design and delivery?

Client Department: N/A
Supplier Department: N/A
Supplier Department: N/A

Project Design Manager Department: N/A

Design/Delivery handover | Gateway stage:

to Supplier <Before Project Proposal>, <Post Project Proposal>, <Post Options
Appraisal>, <Post Detailed design>, <Post Authority to start work>

v.10 April 2019 Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



Appendix 2 - Location Plan

.’ - ‘, Wider Cheapside area improvements

N7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Agenda Iltem 8

Committees: Dates:
. 07 November
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee [for 2023
decision]
Projects and Procurement Sub Committee Delegated
Planning and Transportation Committee [for 21st
decision] November
2023
Subject: Gateway 5:
Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan Light/
Authority to
start work.
Unique Project Identifier:
PV ID 12240
Report of: For
Interim Executive Director Environment Decision
Report Author:

Stephen Oliver

PUBLIC

1. Status Update Project Description:

The Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan (HSP) will
provide a framework for improvements to streets and public
realm in the area. The proposals will reflect the aspirations
of stakeholders, including the Fleet Street Quarter Business
Improvement District (BID), and the opportunities arising
from development.

RAG Status: Green as at last report to Committee.
Risk Status: Low as at last report to Committee.

Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk):
£276,254

Change in Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding
risk): No change.

Spend to Date: £219,026.
Costed Risk Provision Utilised: None

Slippage: The Healthy Streets Plan was originally
programmed to be presented to Streets and Walkways
Sub-Committee in September 2023. In has been held back
to ensure the proposals align with those of the BID in their

v.April 2019 Page 123



Fleet Street Quarter- Placemaking and Public Realm
Strategy which is programmed for approval in November
2023.

2. Requested
decisions

w N

Next Steps:

A Working Group will be established to guide the
implementation of the plan. Priority projects will be agreed
and taken forward in accordance with the project
procedure.

Requested Decisions:

That Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee approve the
Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan in Appendix 4.
That the budget adjustment in Appendix 2 is approved.
That the establishment of a Fleet Street Area
Programme Working Group to guide and manage the
delivery of projects in the Plan area is agreed, including
staff costs of £ 57,434 to manage this process for the
next 12 months, funded from the Plan development
underspend.

Note the allocation of £1,126,145 of S106 funds towards
the delivery of projects in the Plan (as approved by this
Committee on 26 September 2023).

That Planning and Transportation Committee approve
the Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan in Appendix
4.

3. Budget

See Appendix 2 Finance Table

v.April 2019

Page 124




1.1 Desigh summary

2 Project Update

2.1 The Healthy Streets Plan sets out an integrated approach

2.2

to improving the public realm and managing traffic to
support delivery of the following Transport Strategy
outcomes:

The Square Mile’s streets are great places to walk and
spend time.

Street space is used more efficiently and effectively.

The Square Mile is accessible to all.

People using our streets and public spaces are safe and
feel safe.

More people choose to cycle.

The Square Mile’s air and streets are cleaner and quieter.
Delivery and servicing are more efficient, and impacts are
minimised.

Our street network is resilient to changing circumstances.

The proposals will support delivery of the City Corporation’s
Climate Action Strategy and the Destination City initiative.
The proposals also support the BID’s Area Based Strategy
and the objectives of the Fleet Street Key Area of Change.

Since the Gateway 4 Report was presented to Committee
in January 2023 a consultation exercise on the draft
Healthy Streets Plan has been completed. Further traffic
data and feasibility studies have been carried out for Fleet
Street and the Whitefriars Neighbourhood. The project
team have continued to work closely with the Fleet Street
Quarter BID (BID) to ensure that the proposals in the plan
align with their proposals and aspirations.

3 Consultation

3.1

3.2

A public consultation was carried out over a six-week
period in May and June 2023. The consultation was via
an on-line portal supplied by a consultancy,
Commonplace. On street publicity posters and a leaflet
drop extending beyond the wider project area promoting
the consultation were undertaken. Five in-person drop-in
sessions were also held at different times and locations in
the area. The consultation was publicised on social media
by Commonplace and the City’s Communication Team.
The BID also publicised the consultation to its members.

The consultation was open to anyone (group or
individual) and whether a resident, business owner,

v.April 2019

Page 125




3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

worker or visitor, with an interest in the area. It was
designed to gain an understanding of public opinion on
the proposals, capturing valuable feedback on the
possible measures being considered in the draft Healthy
Streets Plan.

The consultation portal received 597 responses.
Additional emails to the project team brought responses
to over 600. The adjoining Boroughs of Westminster and
Camden also responded.

The consultation portal requested comments on the five
neighbourhoods. Respondents had the choice to
comment on an individual or on multiple neighbourhoods.
For each neighbourhood there were questions on:
Pedestrian Priority Improvements: giving more priority to
people walking and wheeling and improving their safety.
Public realm improvements: to make streets and spaces
more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend
time in.
Cycling improvements: to improve the comfort and
safety for people cycling.

There were also questions about proposals that were
particular to a street or the neighbourhood. Consultees
could add written comments about the proposals or add
comments on a map of the area. The summary of overall
support for proposals are attached as Appendix 3.

The majority of respondents were male (71%) and the
most common age group was 25-34. Walking was the
most common mode of moving around the area with 40%
of respondents choosing this as their usual mode whilst
people cycling represented 29%.

The City of Westminster expressed support for the draft
Healthy Streets Plan. Camden Council advised that they
intend to carry out an engagement on the Holborn
Liveable Neighbourhood early next year. These proposals
have been discussed with the City, and both boroughs
will continue the liaison as the proposals continue to
progress.

The London Cycling Campaign expressed support for the
Plan, but caveated this with concerns that segregated
cycle facilities may not be installed on all the City’s
Access streets in the plan area.

v.April 2019

Page 126




3.8

The full consultation report is attached in Appendix 5.

4 Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The Healthy Streets plan has been refined since the draft
plan presented to Committee in January 2023. The plan
has responded to the consultation findings and
undertaken further design and feasibility studies for Fleet
Street and the Whitefriars Neighbourhood. It has also
included proposals identified in the Fleet Street Quarter
BID Placemaking and Public Realm Strategy. (The BID is
programmed to approve their Strategy in November
2023). Similar to the draft plan, it is structured around five
neighbourhoods that are separated by City and London
Access Streets (as defined by the City of London Street
Hierarchy).

The proposals in the plan aim to improve the safety and
comfort for people walking, wheeling and cycling within
and between these neighbourhoods. The plan provides a
framework for improvements and individual projects will
be subject to funding and the usual project processes and
approvals.

A timeframe has been assigned to each project. These
timeframes reflect the level of complexity of projects and
interdependencies with other projects and developments
in the area. The draft final Fleet Street Healthy Streets
Plan is attached in Appendix 4 and this report seeks
members approval to adopt the plan. (Track changes
have been included in order to make the post-
consultation changes more legible).

On going area wide projects

Some of the proposals in the plan are encompassed in
existing programmes and initiatives. These include:

Tree planting as part of Streets and Greening
Programme

Seating which the BID has funded, and the City is
managing the installation of.

Raised junction and continuous footway proposals
funded from the Healthy Streets Minor Schemes.
Cycle, Dockless cycle and E-scooter hire parking from
Cycle parking programme externally funded by TfL and
revenue created by e-scooter/e-cycle hire.

v.April 2019

Page 127




4.5

5

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Plan also identifies a number of Section 278 funded
public realm improvements in the area, and these have
been integrated with other proposals.

In the sections below the main proposals for each
neighbourhood and the level of support they received at
consultation are summarised. From the consultation
responses possible priority projects are identified but
these will be agreed by the Fleet Street Area Programme
Working Group before being reported back to this
Committee.

Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Proposals and
Consultation Responses.

Pedestrian priority improvements to be explored include
raised carriageways, crossing points and vehicle cross
overs, improved crossing facilities on New Fetter Lane
and timed vehicle closures at the junction of Breams
Buildings and Fetter Lane (north).

For these proposals the consultation had 82 supportive
responses (78% of responses) and 18 non supportive
responses, 2 of which were from business owners
concerned about local access being restricted.

Public realm improvements to be explored include new
public spaces on Tooks Court, the western end of
Breems Buildings and the northern end of Fetter Lane
and new planting and seating where possible and
additional Legible London signage.

For these proposals the consultation had 82 supportive
responses (83% of responses) and 13 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
merits of spending public money on such improvements).

Cycling improvements to be explored include improving
the Chancery Lane cycle contraflow and improving the
comfort and safety for people cycling on Holborn and the
Fetter Lane New Fetter Lane corridor.

For these proposals the consultation had 88 supportive
responses (83% of responses) and 20 non supportive
responses (these predominantly questioned the need for
additional cycle infrastructure).

v.April 2019

Page 128




5.4 Changes to Kerbside Parking and Loading to be explored
include relocating kerbside parking on Tooks Court and
the northern of Fetter Lane to create new public spaces.

For these proposals the consultation had 67 supportive
responses (66% of responses) and 15 non supportive
responses, 3 of which were from local businesses.
Comments were received requesting more motorcycle
parking.

5.5 Chancery Lane local traffic restriction and permanent
public realm improvements. If consultation on the existing
experimental traffic scheme on Chancery Lane has
support to be made permanent, public realm
improvements including pavement widening, seating and
greening will be explored, and kerbside parking will be
formalised.

For these proposals the consultation had 76 supportive
responses (82% of responses) and 10 non supportive
responses (of these 4 were from taxi drivers, but 6 taxi
drivers did support the proposal). Other concerns were
about traffic displacement.

5.6 Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Priority Projects

It is considered that consultation responses identified the
following as priorities to be developed:

e Breems Buildings new public space. Tooks Court new
public space. Fetter Lane (north) new public space.

5.7 From the Healthy Streets Minor Schemes Programme the
following projects have already commenced:

e Junction of Furnival Street and Holborn, the carriageway
will be raised to pavement level.

e Junction improvements at Fetter Lane and New Fetter
Lane to create a raised table.

6 Fleet Street and the Lanes Neighbourhood

6.1 Pedestrian priority improvements to be explored comprise
a timed traffic restriction on Shoe Lane south of Little New
Street at lunchtimes and weekends to enable on street
activities.

v.April 2019

Page 129




6.2

6.3

6.4

For this proposal the consultation had 101 supportive
responses (76% of responses) and 24 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
merits of spending public money).

Public realm improvements to be explored include more
planting, trees, seating and Legible London signage in the
neighbourhood. In response to the BID’s Placemaking
and Public Realm Strategy, feature lighting under Holborn
Viaduct has been added to the proposals and increasing
lighting levels in the Lanes will be investigated.

For these proposals the consultation had 99 supportive
responses (81% of responses) and 16 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
merits of spending public money).

Cycling improvements to be explored include dedicated
space on Holborn Viaduct and Newgate Street,
maximising the traffic signal priorities for cyclists at the
junctions with Holborn Circus and Old Bailey and Giltspur
Street and Warwick Lane. For Fleet Street the Plan
recognises the ability to provide dedicated space for
people cycling may be limited by the need to widen
pavements and accommodate bus stops and loading.
Reducing traffic levels will be explored as an alternative
approach to improve the environment for cyclists.

For these proposals the consultation had 100 supportive
responses (73% of responses) and 31 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
cyclists already having sufficient facilities and impacts on
taxis).

Improvements to Fleet Street to be explored include
widening paving to improve pedestrian comfort levels and
enable new planting, seating and improved bus stop
waiting areas. The introduction on inset loading bays and
a new crossing facility between Salisbury Court and Shoe

Lane.

For these proposals the consultation had 100 supportive
responses (83% of responses) and 17 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
increasing congestion and resulting air quality issues).

v.April 2019

Page 130




6.5

6.6

The project team have consulted TFL about the proposals
for Fleet Street and discussed the results of modelling
carried out to date. TFL have indicated that they will resist
any changes that negatively impact on bus performance
on Fleet Street. The consultants, NRP, have therefore
developed some initial options to meet the objectives of
improving Fleet Street whilst meeting TFL criteria. These
are not included in the plan as they are still at the early
stages of development. Improvements to Fleet Street
have been identified as a priority project for the BID.

Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood Priority Project

It is considered that the consultation responses and the
objectives of the BID identify further design,
optioneering and feasibility investigation to improve the
comfort and safety for people walking and cycling on
Fleet Street as a priority for the neighbourhood.

7 Old Bailey Neighbourhood

7.1

7.2

Pedestrian priority improvements to be explored include
restricting motor vehicles on Old Bailey, south of the
junction with Limeburner Lane. Raising the carriageway
to pavement level on Limeburner Lane at the junction with
Fleet Place. Improving where people cross on Ludgate
Hill between Pageantmaster Court and Old Bailey.

For these proposals the consultation had 68 supportive
responses (78% of responses) and 14 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
restricting motor vehicle movements).

Public realm improvements to be explored include
widened pavements on Old Bailey south of the junction
with Limeburner Lane and on Ludgate Hill and new trees,
greening and seating and additional Legible London
signage.

For these proposals the consultation had 65 supportive
responses (86% of responses) and 10 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
reducing carriageway space).

v.April 2019

Page 131




7.3 Cycling improvements to be explored include dedicated
space on Ludgate Hill and improving facilities on Old
Bailey and Limeburner Lane.

For these proposals the consultation had 59 supportive
responses (70% of responses) and 20 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
need for additional cycle facilities).

Feasibility and optioneering for changes to traffic priorities
on Limeburner Lane have already commenced. These will
partly determine options for Old Bailey and changes to
Ludgate Hill.

7.4 Old Bailey Neighbourhood Priority Project

e |tis considered that consultation responses to the
proposals indicate that further design, optioneering and
feasibility for traffic priorities changes on Limeburner
Lane should be prioritised.

8 Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood

8.1 Pedestrian priority improvements to be explored include
changes to permitted traffic movements on Addle Hill, St
Andrew’s Hill and Deans Court, extending the existing
Carter Lane timed motor vehicle traffic restriction to
include Ludgate Broadway and raise the carriageway to
pavement levels on Pilgrim Street and at the side street
junctions with Carter Lane and at loading bay entrances.

For these proposals the consultation had 68 supportive
responses (78% of responses) and 4 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
restricting vehicular movements).

8.2 Public realm improvements to be explored include
introducing small public spaces on Ludgate Broadway, St
Andrew’s Hill and Playhouse Yard with additional Legible
London signage and more trees, planting, seating.
Where feasible additional trees, planting and seating will
be introduced on Queen Victoria Street. In response to
the BID’s Placemaking and Public Realm Strategy,
feature lighting under the railway viaduct over Queen
Victora Street has been added to the proposals.

For these proposals the consultation had 62 supportive

responses (92% of responses) and 3 non supportive

v.April 2019

Page 132




8.3

responses (these were predominantly concerns about
restricting vehicular movements).

Cycling improvements to be explored include dedicated
space on Queen Victoria Street and maximising the traffic
signal priorities for cyclists at the junctions with New
Bridge Street and Puddledock.

For these proposals the consultation had 67 supportive
responses (81% of responses) and 8 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
need for additional cycle facilities).

8.4 Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Priority Projects

9

It is considered that consultation responses identified the
following as the priorities to be developed:

e Ludgate Broadway- design has commenced for this
project.

¢ Addle Hill, St Andrew’s Hill and Deans Court, changes
to permitted traffic movements. Detailed design and
implementation.

From the Healthy Streets Minor Schemes Programme the
following projects have already commenced:

¢ Junction of Furnival Street and Holborn, raising the
carriageway to pavement levels.

Whitefriars Neighbourhood

9.1 Pedestrian priority improvements to be explored include

raising pavement levels at junctions with side streets and
at loading bay entrances in the neighbourhood. Improving
where people cross on Tudor Street and restricting motor
vehicles travelling north on Dorset Rise and Salisbury
Rise between the junctions with Hutton Street and Fleet
Street.

For these proposals the consultation had 75 supportive
responses (81% of responses) and 16 non supportive
responses (4 of these were concerns about restricting
vehicular movements and access to the Temples).

v.April 2019

Page 133




9.2 Public realm improvements to be explored include
widening the pavements on Tudor Street, the introduction
of trees, planting, seating and Legible London signage
where possible; and improving paving. These
improvements would not restrict access on Tudor Street.
On Bridewell Place the introduction of a small public
space.

For these proposals the consultation had 75 supportive
responses (84% of responses) and 9 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
reducing carriageway space, cellars under Tudor Street
and if the proposals were ambitious enough).

9.3 Changes to kerbside parking and loading will be explored
to allow greater pedestrian priority and space for public
realm improvements.

For this proposal the consultation had 79 supportive
responses (73% of responses) and 26 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly concerns about
parking for delivery vehicles and access to the Temples.
Of the 9 business owners who responded to the
consultation 3 supported the proposal and 4 did not
support the proposal).

9.4 Cycling improvements to be explored include a new cycle
contraflow on Dorset Rise and Salisbury Court and
improvements to the existing cycle contraflows on
Bouverie and Whitecross Street.

For these proposals the consultation had 71 supportive
responses (71% of responses) and 23 non supportive
responses (these were predominantly questioning the
need for additional cycle facilities).

9.5 The draft Healthy Street Plan included exploring existing
access into the neighbourhood and a potential public
space at the junction of Temple Avenue and The Victoria
Embankment. Three binary questions were included in
the consultation on these issues.

9.6 Existing access into the Whitefriars Neighbourhood. The
consultation asked if existing access into the Whitefriars
Neighbourhood for motor vehicles was sufficient for
residents and businesses.

This question had 64 responses stating that existing
access is sufficient (74% of responses) and 11 responses

v.April 2019

Page 134




9.7

9.8

9.9

stating it was not sufficient. Most residents stated that
existing access was sufficient and some residents who
responded commented upon the 60 flats on Temple
Avenue and felt increased traffic on this street would be
contrary to the overall objectives of Healthy Streets. Of
the 9 business owners who responded 5 felt it was
sufficient and 4 did not.

Through traffic into the Whitefriars Neighbourhood. The
consultation asked if through traffic in the Whitefriars
Neighbourhood was considered a problem and needed
restricting.

This question had 55 responses stating that through traffic
was a problem (60% of responses) and 23 stated it was
not a problem. Most residents stated that through traffic
was a problem whilst of the 9 business owners who
responded 2 supported traffic restrictions and 7 did not.

Potential Small Public Space on Temple Avenue. The
consultation asked if a small public space should be
prioritised over direct vehicle access into the
neighbourhood from the Victoria Embankment.

This question had 71 responses supporting the public
space (78% of responses) and 20 responses prioritised
the direct access. Of the 8 business owners who
responded 5 supported the direct access and 3 the public
space.

Whitefriars Traffic Study June 2023

Funding secured under Section 106 for the Salisbury
Courts development have enabled a detailed traffic study
for the Whitefriars Neighbourhood. The traffic consultancy
NRP were appointed to carry out traffic counts in March
2023 to inform the project team on traffic movements in
the neighbourhood. (See Appendix 6). The data was also
compared to vehicle counts in January 2018.

The study identified the following traffic flows in the
neighbourhood:

The journey time results for all survey days
(Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday), show that over
80% vehicles pass through the area within 2 minutes.
This suggests most vehicles move through the
Whitefriars area without having a purpose within the
area. The movement with the highest motor vehicle flow
is from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street. The main

v.April 2019

Page 135




reason for this is likely to be because the right-turn from
Fleet Street eastbound to New Bridge Street
southbound at Ludgate Circus is prohibited.

e Motor vehicle flows entering the Whitefriars area in
March 2023 have reduced by 25% in the AM peak hour
and by 16% in the PM peak hour compared to the
January 2018 survey data.

e The highest 2-way flow on Tudor Street is 176 motor
vehicles in the AM peak hour and 201 in the PM peak
hour.

e Bouverie Street has a southbound flow of 141 motor
vehicles in the AM peak hour and 138 in the PM peak
hour.

e No other street has a motor vehicle flow of more than 70
vehicles an hour. The streets to the south of Tudor
Street have very low motor vehicles flows, with less than
30 vehicles in the AM and PM peak hours.

The study identified origin and destination movements
from The Victoria Embankment into the neighbourhood:

e The survey data suggests there is not significant
demand to access Whitefriars from the south of the
area, with 46, 25 and 4 vehicles going from Victoria
Embankment to the Whitefriars area across the 8-hours
surveyed for each of the Wednesday, Thursday and
Saturday survey days, respectively.

The study recorded kerbside parking usage and potential
new parking locations:

e The survey data suggested the existing marked
kerbside bays are all well used with little spare capacity.

e The survey identified new kerbside parking locations on
Tallis Street and Carmelite Street and Bouverie Street
and on Bridewell Place and opportunities to rationalise
disabled bays on Tudor Street.

The NRP report recommends:
¢ Maintaining existing access arrangements between
Temple Avenue, Carmelite Street and John Carpenter
Street and Victoria Embankment.
e Monitoring traffic flows on Tudor Street. If they increase
to greater than 2,000 motor vehicles per day, review
options to restrict traffic movement on Tudor Street.

The proposals in the Healthy Streets Plan reflect these
recommendations. New vehicle ingress and egress
between the Victoria Embankment and the neighbourhood

v.April 2019 Page 136




Is not included as a proposal. At present the requirements
for vehicular access from the south for the Salisbury
Courts development have not been finalised. If access is
required for particular vehicles, changes may be required
at the junction of Carmelite Street and the Victoria
Embankment. Through traffic will be monitored for
significant changes in volumes.

9.10 Whitefriars Neighbourhood Priority Projects

It is considered that consultation responses identified the
following as the priorities to be developed:
e Tudor Street — Design, optioneering and feasibility to
widen pavements and make public realm improvements.
e St Brides Place new public space — Design,
optioneering and feasibility.
e Temple Avenue new public space — Design,
optioneering and feasibility.

From the Healthy Streets Minor Schemes Programme the
following project have already been commenced.

e Junction of Tallis Street with Temple Avenue raising the
carriageway to pavement levels.

10 Cost Estimate Range and Funding Sources.

The programme of estimated projects is between £20m -
£30m. Going forward funding for projects will be from:
Section 106 developer contributions
CIL
Section 278 developer contributions
O.S.P.R.
The BID
Other external funding sources
e Cool Streets and Greening.

. Delivery team

The project will have a delivery team comprising the Transport
and Public Realm Projects Team supported by Highways and
City Gardens.

. Programme and

The Fleet Street Area Programme Working Group will be

key dates formed by January 2024. The Programme Working Group will
identify the projects that will be taken forward as priorities.
Individual projects will then be initiated as required that form
the overall programme.
 Risks As this report is for the adoption of the Healthy Streets Plan,

the identification of Risks and a Risk Register are not required.

. Success criteria

Key measures of success:

v.April 2019

Page 137




¢ A tested and recommended phasing schedule for the
projects that will comprise the Fleet Street Area Healthy
Street Plan.

e The identification of the number of pedestrian priority
streets that can be delivered (measured by length) in the
area.

e Anindication of the reduction in traffic volumes that can
be achieved in the area.

The Working Group will recommend how progress is reported

8. Progress
reporting on the programme and the frequency.
Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Coversheet
Appendix 2 Finance Tables
Appendix 3 Summary of overall consultation responses.
Appendix 4 Draft Final Healthy Streets Plan with track
changes.
Appendix 5 Fleet Street Healthy Streets Plan Consultation
Report
Appendix 6 Whitefriars Traffic Study June 2023
Contact
Report Author Stephen Oliver
Email Address Stephen.Oliver@cityoflondon.gov.uk

v.April 2019 Page 138



mailto:Stephen.Oliver@cityof

This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

UPI: PV ID 12240

Core Project Name: Fleet Street and Temples Healthy Streets Plan
Programme Affiliation (if applicable):

Project Manager: Stephen Oliver

Definition of need:

The Fleet Street and Temple Healthy Streets Plan is a key deliverable of the City’s
Transport Strategy and further supports the Climate Action Strategy in developing
spaces that are climate resilient. The Healthy Streets Plan also aligns with the
ambitions for the area, as set out in the Draft City Plan 2040 . The Fleet Street and
Temples area has seen significant change and will continue to experience
significant increases in the number of people walking and cycling in the area and
was therefore identified to need a Healthy Streets Plan.

In December 2020, a Gateway 2 report approved the Fleet Street and Temples
Healthy Streets project area and funding for Project Management and Consultancy
Fees. However, unlike the City Cluster Healthy Streets Plan, there was not an
approved Project Vision to establish principles and objectives to form a framework.
The draft Project Vision attached in Appendix 4 will establish the framework for the
Healthy Streets Plan.

The Heathy Streets Plan will identify and develop proposals for schemes, outlining
the required network changes and creating a high-quality public realm for all those
who live, work, and visit the area.

The Healthy Streets Plan forms the first phase of delivery and will identify
temporary and interim changes to the function of the highway network. The
proceeding phases will deliver the required infrastructure changes to achieve the
medium and long-term objectives of the proposals. These proceeding phases will
be set-up as individual Healthy Streets Plan projects, following the completion of
the first phase.

Due to the forthcoming changes within the Fleet Street and Temple area, the
Healthy Streets Plan provides the opportunity to support the Fleet Street Estate
programme and engage with local stakeholders.

Key measures of success:
e A tested and recommended phasing schedule for the projects that will
comprise the Fleet Street and Temples Healthy Street Plan.
e The identification of the number of pedestrian priority streets that can be
delivered (measured by length) in the area
e An indication of the reduction in traffic volumes that can be achieved in the
area

V14 July 2019

Page 139



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Expected timeframe for the project delivery: 2 years (Jan 2021 to Feb 2023).
Extended to May 2023 following delay.

e Key Milestones: Revised-

Gateway 3/4 — Mareh-2022 November 2022
Traffic and pedestrian data collection — Feb-Mareh-2021 September 2022
Stakeholder Consultation — April-August 2021 February 2023 (6 weeks)

Plan preparation April — Sept—Nevember 2022 June 2023 September 2023
Gateway 5 report to committee — Feb-2023 July-20623-—November 2023

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? No

COVID19 lock down resulted in the collection of traffic and pedestrian data to be
delayed until movements could be recorded at realistic levels. Stakeholder
engagement was also difficult to satisfactorily achieve.

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?

No

[2] Finance and Costed Risk

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

‘Project Briefing’ G1 report (as approved by Chief Officer 05/11/2020):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £255,000
e Costed Risk Against the Project: None
e Estimated Programme Dates: January 2021 — February 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

‘Project Proposal’ G2 report (as approved by PSC 17/12/2020):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £255,006.20

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £87,200

Spend to date: N/A

Costed Risk Against the Project: None requested

CRP Requested: None

CRP Drawn Down: None

Estimated Programme Dates: January 2021 — February 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

‘Outline Options Appraisal’ G3 (as approved by PSC 08/11/2022):
Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £241,254

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £154,054
Spend to date: £94,392

Costed Risk Against the Project: None requested

V14 July 2019

Page 140



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

e CRP Requested: None
CRP Drawn Down: None
e Estimated Programme Dates: January 2021 - May 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact:
Outllne Options Appraisal’ G4 (as approved by S&W 17/01/2023):
Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £276,254

. Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £154,054

. Spend to date: £112,771

. Costed Risk Against the Project: None requested

. CRP Requested: None

. CRP Drawn Down: None

. Estimated Programme Dates: January 2021 - November 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact:
‘Authority to start Work’ G5 report (as approved):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk):
Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk
Spend to date:
Costed Risk Against the Project: None requested
CRP Requested: None
CRP Drawn Down: None
Estimated Programme Dates:.

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Individual projects
would be initiated following the adoption of the HSP and delivery plan. <Current
Range> Programme Affiliation [£]:N/A

V14 July 2019

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



Appendix 2

Table 1: Spend to date - Fleet Street and Temple Healthy Streets Plan - 16800440

L. Approved Budget (£)* Expenditure (£) Balance (£)
Description
P&T Staff Costs 120,218 130,424 (10,206)
P&T Fees 156,036 88,602 67,434
TOTAL 276,254 219,026 57,228

Table 2: Adjustment Required to reach the next Gateway

L. Approved Budget (£) AT DLLE TG Revised Budget (£)
Description (£)
P&T Staff Costs 120,218 57,434 177,652
P&T Fees 156,036 (57,434) 98,602

TOTAL 276,254 - 276,254
Table 3: Revised Funding Allocation

Current Funding Funding Revised Funding
Funding Source Allocation (£) Adjustments (£) Allocation (£)
S106 - Fleetway House -
06/00613/FULL - LCEIW 30,413 30,413
S106 - Fleetway House -
06/00613/FULL - Air Quality 1,613 1,613
S106 - Fleetway House -
06/00613/FULL - Transportation 11,601 11,601
$106 - Rolls and Arnold Buildings
- 06/01060/FULL -
Transportation* - -
S$106 - New Fetter Lane 12-14 -
08/00778/FULMA -
Transportation 145,606 145,606
Contribution from Salisbury
Square development 52,021 52,021
Fleet Street Quarter BID
Contribution 35,000 35,000
Total Funding Drawdown 276,254 276,254

*Funding not currently available as agreement has expired

Page 143




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



APPENDIX 3

Overall Sentiment Across All 5 Neighbourhoods

Overall Sentiment Across All 5 Neighbourhoods

No. of responses: (411) (133) (84) (49) (111)

GiT obed

M Positive mMostly positive mNeutral mMostly negative B Negative
Overall Sentiment Across All 5 Neighbourhoods

52% Positive (411 responses) / 17% Mostly positive (133 responses) / 11% Neutral (84% responses) / 6% Mostly negative
(49 responses) / 14% Negative (111)



Overall Sentiment Across Each of the 5 Neighbourhoods
(actual number of responses shown in brackets)

Carter Lane & Ludgate 10% (1) 4% (4)N6%I8)
Old Bailey 8% 0 4x« G

Fleet Street & Lanes 8% (17)  5%1o] e R N
Chancery Lane 14% (25) —
Whitefriars 10% (14) _
Interactive Map Survey ) 247% (8) _

T T

0% 26% 40% 66% 80% 106%
P Commonplace B Positive  m Mostly positive Neutral = Mostly negative mNegative 7

Overall Sentiment Across Each of the Neighbourhoods (actual number of responses shown in brackets)

o T abed

Carter Lane and Ludgate

65% Positive (70 responses) / 16% Positive (17 responses) / 10% Neutral (11 responses) / 4% Mostly negative (4 responses)
/ 6% Negative (6 responses)

Old Bailey

57% Positive (64 responses) / 15% Positive (17 responses) / 8% Neutral (9 responses) / 4% Mostly negative (4 responses)/
17% Negative (19 responses)



/T abed

Fleet Street & the Lanes

50% Positive (104 responses) / 21% Positive (44 responses) / 8% Neutral (17responses) / 5% Mostly negative (10
responses)/ 16% Negative (34 responses)

Chancery Lane

52% Positive (93 responses) / 17% Positive (31 responses) / 14% Neutral (25 responses) / 6% Mostly negative (10
responses)/ 12% Negative (21 responses)

Whitefriars

52% Positive (75 responses) / 16% Positive (23 responses) / 10% Neutral (14 responses) / 6% Mostly negative (9
responses)/ 16% Negative (23 responses)

Interactive Map Survey

15% Positive (5 responses) / 3% Positive (1 response) / 24% Neutral (8 responses) / 35% Mostly negative (12 responses)/
24% Negative (8 responses)

Overall: Area Relationship

Workers (35%), visitors (28%) and those travelling through the area (24%) were the three main relationship types to the
area.

What is your relationship to the Fleet Street area?

35% 28% 24%

I

Worker Visitor Travelling through  Resident Business owner Student Other




81T abed

Overall: Area Relationship

Workers (35%), visitors (28%) and those travelling through the area (24%) were the three main relationship types to the
area.

35% Worker / 28% Visitor / 24% Travelling through / 6% Resident / 4% Business owner / 2% Student / 2% Other

What is your relationship to the Fleet Street Area?

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5% I
B = =
Worker Visitor Travelling Resident Business Student Other

Through Owner

H Fleet Street Relationship



Contents

Lo INEFOTUCTION weeiiiiici et et 2
2. The Healthy Streets APProach ......ccicciccieiiieciece ettt ebe et e et e st e e saeesaeenbeestesaenseens 4
3. Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan Ar€a ........couevieiiiiienieniieeie ettt 5
L o o To Y- | O O OO PSPPSR PR PP 8
4.1.  Chancery Lane Neighbourhood ...........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiii e 8
4.1.1. Proposals t0 be @XPlOred. ......cccueeieeieiiecieceesee et 8

4.2.  Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood ..........ccveiieiiieiiieiiccecccecee e 11
4.2.1. Proposals to be @XPlored. ......cocueeiieierierieeesee e 11

4.3, Old Bailey NeighboUrhoOd.......c..coiiiriiiriiiiiiiieteeeeeeeee ettt 1413
4.3.1. Proposals to be eXPlored. ......cccuiciieiieiiirieee et n 1413

4.4,  Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood .........ccoceveevieieeniiinnienieneeceee e 163515
4.4.1. Proposals to be eXPlOred .......cccveiieieiieiiieeceeseere e e n 1615

4.5,  Whitefriars Neighbourhood.........ccccoouiiiiiiiiiiiceceee et 1918
45.1. Proposals to be eXplored ........cc.ecuieieiieiiececeeseee e s 1918

5. Streets between neighbourhoods ........cocuiviiiiiiiinie e 2221
5.1.  Fleet Street and LUAZAte Hill........coevieiiiriiiieiiineseereecece et s 2221
5.1.1. Proposals to be eXPlored. ......cccueeiieieiiirieciesee e 2221

5.2. New Fetter Lane and FETLEI LANE .....cceeeeeriieiieieesieese et ete et ae st sneeneenne s 2322
5.2.1. Proposals to be eXPlored ........ccueeiieiieiiciecceeceee et n 2322

5.3.  Holborn and HOlborn VIadUCT ........ceecuieiiiiiiiie ettt sivae e e s ra e reeenanes 2423
5.3.1. Proposals to be eXPlored .......coceeiieieiienieiceeeee e e 2423

5.4,  QUEEN VICLONia SIrEET ..eeiiiiii ittt sttt e e s ae e e sabeeesbaeabeeas 2524
5.4.1. Proposals to be eXPlOred ........ccieuieieeieciececeeeee e e n 2524

6. LONAON ACCESS STIEELS ...ecuvieeieeiieiiiesiteetiest et et ete e teeteeaeebeesbestesteesseesseesseeseasseessesnsesaessnesseanes 2524
1

Page 149



1. Introduction

This Healthy Streets Plan for the Fleet Street area sets out an integrated approach to
improving the public realm and managing traffic to support delivery of the following
City of London Transport Strategy outcomes:

e The Square Mile’s streets are great places to walk and spend time.

e Street space is used more efficiently and effectively.

e The Square Mile is accessible to all.

e People using our streets and public spaces are safe and feel safe.

e More people choose to cycle.

e The Square Mile’s air and streets are cleaner and quieter.

e Delivery and servicing are more efficient, and impacts are minimised.
e Our street network is resilient to changing circumstances.

The Plan supports delivery of the City Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy and
Destination City initiative. The proposals will transform the quality of streets and
public spaces and, alongside new developments, they will help create a vibrant area
of the Square Mile that is a great place to work and a thriving leisure destination,
including at night-time and weekends.

The area covered by the plan incorporates the Fleet Street and Ludgate Key Area of
Change identified in the emerging-draft City Leeal-Plan 2040 and responds to the
significant development underway and planned in the area.

Figure 1 The Fleet Street and Ludgate Key Area

7 ———a 1
Key Open Spaces Corridor for public reaim and i S |
transport improvements > G St Bort's Hospital
Hotels

The Temples

Principal Shopping Centre
“+— Key pedestrian routes

== National Rail
Renewal Opportunity Sites.
4  Places of Worship

=% Retail Links
City Flood Risk Area

Residential Areas
Historic Alleys

@ &
Kings College

M Or Johnson's Hose
Library

nnnnn

Royal Courts
of Justice

St aride’s
 Forch

City of
Westminster,

Page 150



The plan sets out a framework of investment and improvement including public realm-
improvements. This includes supporting and facilitating the Fleet Street Quarter

BID’s aspirations for the enhancement of the area contained in their Area
BasedPlacemaking and Public Realm Strategy. The BID will be a key partner as we
develop and deliver the proposals in the plan. This Healthy Streets Plan does not

include proposals for privately owned spaces but we will —explore opportunities to
support private land owners and the BID in theireffortstotheir efforts to improve
publicly accessible spaces.

Fleet Street Quarter- Placemaking and Public Realm Strategy An-areabased
stretey—retheleetStreetQuarter

The Fleet Street Quarter BID’s vision-strateqy for the area is based on

T ET
e Enhancing connections for people walking and cycling. Ut on
e Nurturing the public realm to make it safer, more vibrant

and inclusive.,

oL EIRL 1L IS1h ASTN

o Improving-the-publierealmEnhancing Bbiodiversity.
o Encouraging-activation—Driving activity to create a lively environment to

attract visitors.

It aims to re-invigorate the area into becoming a memorable, sustainable and
vibrant part of London that is welcoming, inclusive, supportive of a variety of uses,
while providing a high-quality public realm for the area’s remarkable history and
future.

Page 151

. Connceing-te-strrerhding-neighbourhesds: -

{ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

[ Formatted:

Normal, No bullets or numbering

(D

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

[
[
[
[ Formatted:
[
{

Commented [0S1]: Plan image to change

(D D D | W W

[ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

[ Formatted:

List Paragraph

numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, No bullets or




2. The Healthy Streets Approach

The Healthy Streets Approach is a human-centred framework for embedding public
health in transport, public realm, and planning. The Approach is based on 10
evidence-based Healthy Streets Indicators that capture the elements that are
essential for making streets attractive and accessible places to walk, cycle and
spend time, and for supporting social and economic activity.

Everyone
feels
welcome

The Healthy Streets Approach will be applied across the street network with the aim
of making all streets accessible, engaging and safe places for people to walk, cycle
and spend time. The approach to achieving this may vary depending on the type of
street and local context.

Page 152



3. Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan area
The plan area has been divided into five neighbourhoods:

1/ Chancery Lane neighbourhood

2/ Fleet Street and the Lanes neighbourhood
3/ Old Bailey neighbourhood

4/ Carter Lane and Ludgate neighbourhood
5/ Whitefriars neighbourhood

Each of these is bounded by streets that are defined by the street hierarchy set out
in the Transport Strategy as London access and City access streets. The London
access streets are New Bridge Street, Farringdon Street and Victoria Embankment.
These are streets that need to accommodate motor vehicles that do not have a
destination in or immediately adjacent to the Square Mile. These streets are
managed by Transport for London (TfL). The City access streets are Fleet Street,
Fetter Lane/New Fetter Lane, Queen Victoria Street and High Holborn. These are
streets that are intended to be used by motor vehicles travelling around but not
through the Square Mile or to destinations that are immediately adjacent.

All streets within the five neighbourhoods are classified as Local access streets.
These are streets primarily used for the first or final part of a journey, providing
access for motor vehicles to properties.

In each of the five neighbourhoods there are opportunities to make walking easier,
more comfortable and safer, and to create pedestrian priority by redesigning streets
and managing motor vehicle access. The plan also considers the opportunities
created by new spaces and walking routes proposed as part of developments.

Improvements to existing streets and spaces and the changes to be created as part
of new developments will encourage people to explore the neighbourhoods and their
unique characters. This will help people discover existing public spaces and
businesses and encourage further activation and investment in these
neighbourhoods.

Page 153



Figure 2 - The Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets five neighbourhoods

and London and City Access:

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2022 0S 100023243

Key London Access Streets
(as identified by the City Corporation Transport Strategy)

. New Bridge Street and Farringdon Street corridor

. The Embankment

City Access Streets
(as identified by the City G i Strategy)

. Fleet Street

. New Fetter Lane and Fetter Lane
(south)

. Holborn and Holborn Viaduct corridor

. Queen Victoria Street
Primary Resilience Network

. Ludgate Hill

Page 154



Figure 3 — The Fleet Street Area Proposed Improvements Within the
Five Neighbourhoods.

N
«\?‘99
Chancery Lane Central o
Markets =~ <

The Temples

UPPER
VICTORIA EMBANKMENT
Temple
Biackfriars
Station
BL';;:(DF SEAR i MILLENNIUM
BRIDGE
o g
® Crown copyright and database rights 2022 OS 100023243
Key m===== Proposed pedestrian priority streets === Cycle route improvement

with restricted access to vehicles
== Streets with approved planning

=== Streets with existing filters to vehicles applications with public realm
or time restricted access. improvements.

=== Streets proposed for public realm Healthy Streets Plan area
improvements

(Including pavement widening, raised A New or 'mpmVEd pUb"c spaces

carriageway, junction or crossing . ..
treatments, new seating, SUDs, planting & @ mproved crossing facility

trees, and cycle parking).
A New public space created from
approved planning application

Page 155



4. Proposals

This section sets out the potential improvements that we will seek to deliver, and,
where necessary, the changes to traffic movement, parking and loading that might
be required to deliver these improvements. We will work with TfL, the Fleet Street
Quarter BID, and other stakeholders and partners to develop and deliver these
changes. Individual projects will be subject to feasibility, detailed design and
consultation and the City Corporation’s approval processes.

4.1.Chancery Lane Neighbourhood

Walking and public spaces: The area has a variety of routes available for people
walking between Holborn and Fleet Street and between Chancery Lane and New
Fetter Lane. Within the neighbourhood some pavements are narrow, and many
streets do not perform well against the Healthy Streets indicators due to pavement
quality and a lack of trees and seating. On the northern part of Fetter Lane in
particular, there are high numbers of people walking at peak times.

The neighbourhood has high quality public spaces at Plough Place and at the Rolls
Buildings fronting New Fetter Lane and the ehureh-yard-ef-St Dunstan_in the West
Burial Grounds also provides a valuable open space. A new pocket park with
planting and seating has been installed at the western end of Cursitor Street.

Traffic management: The central area of the Chancery Lane neighbourhood is
already largely closed to through traffic. Motor vehicles can only enter the area from
Fetter Lane and exit via Fetter Lane and Furnival Street.

Cycling: On the Local access streets low traffic levels make the neighbourhood a
safe and comfortable environment for people cycling.

Cycle and scooter hire and parking: Existing short stay cycle parking appears well
used. There are two TfL cycle hire docks in the neighbourhood but there are limited
facilities for dockless cycle parking or e-scooters hire.

4.1.1. Proposals to be explored.
Within the Chancery Lane neighbourhood, we will explore the potential to:

e Improve any areas of poor-quality paving, reduce clutter be removing any
unnecessary street furniture and signage, and install additional Legible
London maps and signs to make it easier for people to find their way around.

¢ Provide additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

e Provide more priority and space for people walking and improve accessibility
on the northern part of Fetter Lane, Breams Buildings, Norwich Street,
Furnival Street and Cursitor Street by raising junctions, side streets and

Page 156



loading bay entrances and raising carriageway on streets with very narrow
pavements.
On Cursitor-Street,-Fetter Lane, Tooks Court and Breams Buildings explore
the opportunities to create small public spaces that include seating, planting
and trees.
Refresh the planting and seating in the St Dunstan in the West Burial Ground.
On the northern part of Fetter Lane, Breams Buildings, Norwich Street,
Furnival Street and Cursitor Street intreduce-we will explore a timed restriction
for motor vehicles during the busiest times of day when people are walking.
Review existing on street parking.
Liaise with the City of Westminster and LB Camden on the potential to
improve the experience of walking, cycling and spending time on Chancery
Lane by:

o Introducing a timed restriction for motor vehicles.

o Improving the existing cycle contraflow on Chancery Lane and.

exploring extending this to Fleet Street.
o Widening pavements and installing more seating, planting and trees.
o Formalising kerbside loading arrangements.

Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 1 —Chancery Lane Neighbourhood
proposals to be explored.

Page 157



Figure 4 - Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Proposed Changes

CHANCERY LANE NEIGHBOURHOOD

Ko
°

~ P\“O

Key Neighbourhood Area

=== Proposed pedestrian priority streets with
restricted access to vehicles

Public realm improvement as part of planning
permission

New pedestrian route

—
Streets with existing filters to vehicles or time
: restricted access.

o
El
23
w
X
o
o
['4
)

FLEET STRE

UVERIE STREET

Z
3
k=
ki)
A

Streets proposed for public realm improvements
(Including pavement widening, raised junctions, crossings
and side street entrances, new seating, SUDs, planting
and trees and cycle parking)

Cycle route improvement

New or improved public spaces
Existing zebra or controlled crossing

New or improved crossing facility

o0 » I

Potential additional Legible London

10

Page 158



4.2.Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood

Walking and public spaces: Pavements and carriageway have recently been
substantially upgraded with high quality materials and raised carriageway
treatments. However, there are few trees and limited seating.

High-quality public spaces have been created at the western end of St Brides Street,
and in the New Street Square development. The laneways off Fleet Street provide
several intimate public spaces.

Consented major developments at Thavies Inn Court and Stonecutter Lane will
create new high-quality spaces and improve the walking experience on St Andrews
Street, the southern section of Shoe Lane and St Brides Street. These improvements
will also create opportunities for activation such as lunchtime and weekend events.

During the consultation some respondents noted concerns about low lighting levels
contributing to negative perceptions of personnel security in some of the laneways
north of Fleet Street. in-seome-of-the-laneways-north-of Fleet Street

Cycling: Within the neighbourhood low traffic levels provide a safe and comfortable
environment for people cycling.

Cycle and scooter hire and parking: Existing short stay cycle parking is mainly
located on the periphery of the neighbourhood and appears well used. There are two
TfL cycle hire docks in the neighbourhood but there are few facilities for parking
dockless cycles or e-scooters.

Traffic management: Traffic access is limited to streets off New Fetter Lane with
associated low traffic levels for access and servicing.

4.2.1. Proposals to be explored.
Within the Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood we will explore the potential to:

e Improve the public realm and experience of spending time on Shoe Lane,
Little New Street, St Andrews Street, Wine Court and Gunpowder Square by
installing new seating, sustainable drainage (SuD’s), greenring-or in ground
planting and trees.

e Refresh the planting and seating in the garden of St Andrew Church Holborn.

o Make the area easier to navigate by installing additional Legible London maps
and signs on Shoe Lane, Little New Street, St Andrews Street and Wine
Court.

« Give more priority to people walking and support activations by introducing
timed restrictions for motor traffic at lunchtimes and weekends on Shoe Lane,

e Improve lighting levels in the laneways.

* Provide additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

e Restricting motor traffic between Little New Street and Shoe Lane if traffic
changes on Fleet Street are expected to increase potential for through traffic.

e Introduce a pay and display parking space in Gough Square.

11

Page 159

[Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt




Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 2—Fleet Street and the Lanes
Neighbourhood proposals to be explored.

Page 160

12



Figure 5 - Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood Proposed Changes

FLEET STREET AND LANES NEIGHEOURHOOD

BROOKE STREET

3
FURNIVAL §TREET 5
(@]
=)
=

NORWICH ST

SURSITOR ST

BREAM'S BUILDINGS

Key

01

AT

<

?; 'S
% w
E é@x\ d‘\’%?. 2"?

FETTER LANE

an

w
s
o
@
=
TR
N S
I

Neighbourhood Area

Proposed pedestrian priority streets with
restricted access to vehicles

Public realm improvement as part of planning
permission

Streets with existing filters to vehicles or time
restricted access.

—
A
New pedestrian route H
o
®
A

5’\‘*’6
0\,%%
Pl
Vi
9'0
s\“‘“\'\“
xa@@,
5
HOsl
g e
=
Sy, "EJ
A
e} “
n
40007_
&
S

&

Streets proposed for public realm improvements
{Including pavement widening, raised junctions, crossings
and side street entrances, new seating. SUDSs, planting
and trees and cycle parking).

joang NOj

Cycle route improvement

New or improved public spaces
Existing zebra or controlled crossing
New or improved crossing facility
Potential additional Legible London

Mew public space created from approved planning
application

13

Page 161



4.3.0ld Bailey Neighbourhood

Walking and public spaces: Old Bailey is the route for people walking north-south,
but in places on its eastern side has a narrow pavement. The western side includes
new and improved public spaces, but relatively few trees. People can walk east-west
via the private Fleet Place development which has a publicly accessible lift to
Farringdon Street near to Old Fleet Lane. The Fleet Place development also
provides laneways north and south and a valuable public space, although poor
wayfinding means that its full potential is not obvious to people unfamiliar with the
area. A consented major development on Farringdon Street and Holborn Viaduct will
provide a publicly accessible lift which will create an accessible connection between
these two streets.

Cycling: Cycle facilities on Old Bailey and a contraflow on Limeburner Lane ensure
the area is accessible to people cycling.

Cycle and scooter hire and parking: Cycle parking is limited to locations to the
periphery of the area. There is no TfL cycle hire docking stations and limited parking
for dockless cycles and e-scooters.

Traffic management: Old Bailey at the junction with Limeburner Lane has a point
closure restricting south bound traffic movements and Limeburner Lane is one-way
south bound. Despite this, both streets, which are classified as local access streets,
are currently used by through traffic.

4.3.1. Proposals to be explored.
Within the Old Bailey Neighbourhood, we will explore the potential to:

e Improve accessibility and give more priority to people walking on Old Bailey
south of the junction with Limeburner Lane by:

o Reducing through traffic or restricting vehicles to local access only.

o Widening pavements or by raising the carriageway,- SuD’s or in ground
planting and-new-greening-and tree planting including-SubS-and
additional seating.

e Improve accessibility on Limeburner Lane at the junction with Fleet Place by
raising the crossing point.

e Make the area easier to navigate by installing additional Legible London maps
and signs.

¢ Retain and improve the cycle facilities on the southern part of Old Bailey and
Limeburner Lane.

« _Provide additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays in
the area,,

e Install a feature lighting installation under Holborn Viaduct.

Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 3 —Old Bailey Neighbourhood
proposals to be explored.

14

Page 162

[Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

J




OLD BAILEY NEIGHBOURHOOD

HOSIER
LANE

SHOE |

g
Iy
£

3

Fﬂ( ¢

K,

S

ELAR

TNV WOV

=
=
=
2
g G >
=
‘a;? =
o
c
2 =
o =) -
= 4
rGT)" 3? .
w
= &4
%' e -\‘g&) ’PIE‘R lanc
Key Neighbourhood Area

B Streets proposed for public realm improvements
{Including pavement widening, raised junctions. crossings
Proposed pedestrian priority streets with and side street entrances, new seating. SUDs, planting
restricted access to vehicles and traes and cyels parking).

Cycle route improvement
Public realm improvement as part of planning

permission

New or improved public spaces
* New pedestrian route Existing zebra or controlied crossing

: Streets with existing filters to vehicles or time

New or improved crossing facility
restricted access.

Y NN I

Potential additional Legible London

Figure 6 - Old Bailey Neighbourhood Proposed Changes

15

Page 163



4.4, Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood

Walking and public spaces: Blackfriars Lane, Ludgate Broadway and
Pageantmaster Court provide walking links from Blackfriars Station but crossing
facilities on Queen Victoria Street and Ludgate Hill are limited and require
improvement. Carter Lane west of Burgon Street is a pedestrian zone and is closed
to vehicles between 9am and 6pm. Step free access between the neighbourhood
and New Bridge Street_is possible with a public lift on Pilgrim Street but is not well
sign posted.-. The lack of active frontages on Waithman Street and Pilgrim Street
may mean that these streets do not always feel safe paces to walk. Blackfriars Lane
south of Playhouse Yard provides a poor-quality environment for people walking and
does not encourage the use of this as a route from Queen Victoria Street.

Ludgate Broadway has temporary seating and planting installed as part of the City
Corporation’s Covid-19 response. The platform over the Thameslink railway lines
between the two fllghts of stairs at Apothecary Street &mtheeueﬁeemesteﬁthe

ﬂet—havmg—any—tetmat—seatmg—wnl be |mproved with seating and plantlnq as part of a

development in the area.

Cycling: Existing traffic restrictions make the neighbourhood comfortable for cycling
although the people walking and cycling may compete for space on narrow lanes.

Cycle and scooter hire and parking: Cycle parking is limited to locations on the
periphery of the area. There is one TfL cycle hire docking station, but no dockless
cycle and e-scooter hire parking.

Traffic Management: Existing traffic management and permanent traffic restrictions
restrict all vehicle movements in the neighbourhood to local access only.

4.4.1. Proposals to be explored
Within the Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood we will explore the potential to:

e Improve accessibility and give more priority to people walking by raising the
carriageway on streets with very narrow pavements and low traffic levels,
including Carter Lane, Pageantmaster Court, Pilgrim Street, Blackfriars Lane
and Ludgate Broadway. Where raising the carriageway is not possible or
appropriate junctions and crossing will be raised to pavement level.

« Improve the public realm and the experience of spending time on streets by
installing seating, S4BSSuD’s or in ground planting splanting-and trees where
space permits and-installing-feature-lighting;fer-example-on Ludgate
Broadway, Blackfriars Lane, St Andrew’s Hill and Playhouse Yard and
Waithman Street.

e Install a public realm art intervention on the wall on Blackfriars Lane petween [Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Queen Victoria Street and Playhouse Yard. [Formatted; Font: 12 pt

16

Page 164



e Improve signage to make it easier to find the pedestrian lift on Pilgrim Street., [Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

e Refresh the planting and seating in the churchyard of St Anne Blackfriars and
St Anne Blackfriars Ireland Yard.

e Additional cycle parking on Blackfriars Lane and, Ludgate Broadway and
cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire parking on the eastern
part of Carter Lane.

e Extend the timed traffic restrictions for motor vehicles on Carter Lane to cover
Ludgate Broadway.

e Introduce additional restricted turns on Addle Hill, St Andrew’s Hill and Dean’s
Court to reduce through traffic in the area.

e Review and formalise on-street loading to support proposals to provide more
space for people walking and public realm improvements.

Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 4 — Carter Lane and Ludgate
Neighbourhood proposals to be explored.

17

Page 165



99T abed

Figure 7 — Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Proposed Changes

CARTER LANE AND LUDGATE NEIGHBOURHOOD
=

o
COr-
SE\-;“E

N1 YRV 3AY

19 AdNgs ive

2

@ a
3 3sm 1390
m

=

P
[w)
(=)
—
m
T
— —
n —
x
i}
= A memietORIA VT ORI OR =S TR
&
¥ X
< Q
o O
=
T 0
o Ly
- a O
eighbourhood Area reets with existing filters to vehicles or Cycle route improvement
ey Neighbourhood A Streets with existing filters hicl v pi
time restricted access
Proposed pedestrian priority streets with New or improved public spaces
restricted access to vehicles m— Streets proposed for public realm

s Public realm improvement as part of planning (Including paver_nentwidemng, raised junctions,
ermission crossings and side street entrances, new
P seating, SUDs, planting and trees and cycle
parking)

New or improved crossing facility

Potential additional Legible London
New pedestrian route

I
improvements H Existing zebra or controlled crossing
[ J

Right turn only

-

18



4.5. Whitefriars Neighbourhood

Walking and public spaces: The neighbourhood’s grid of streets provides a range
of options for people walking through the area. There has been very little public
realm improvement in the area in recent years. However, the Salisbury Court
development will create new step free laneways between Whitefriars Streets and
Salisbury Court and improve the quality of the public ream on surrounding streets.

Generally, streets currently lack raised side-street entrances and junctions and
Bouverie Street and Whitefriars Street have narrow pavements in some places.
There is limited planting and few trees. St Brides Churchyard is the main public
space along with the recently created public space at the southern end of John
Carpenter Street.

Cycling: The neighbourhood is bordered by cycleways on Victoria Embankment and
New Bridge Street, with Tudor Street providing a connection between these routes.
Both Bouverie and Whitecross Street have cycle contraflows which are also well
used. There is a generally good environment for cycling due to low vehicle levels and
speeds.

Cycle and scooter hire and parking: Cycle parking in the area is well used. There
are two TfL cycle hire docking stations in the neighbourhood but few bays for
dockless cycle or e-scooter hire.

Traffic Management: While access is limited neighbourhood is permeable to
through traffic and currently need to remain so due to there being no right turn at the
junction of Fleet Street and New Bridge Street. There is no vehicular access into the
area from the Embankment but from 2024 vehicles exiting via Carmelite Street will
be able to head both east and west.

4.5.1. Proposals to be explored.

* Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at: 0.63 cm + Indent at: 1.27 cm

¢ Improve the quality and accessibility of the walking route between Blackfriars
Station and Fleet Street and Shoe Lane by raising junctions and crossings to
pavement level and installing trees, planting seating and additional Legible
London on Watergate, Kingscote Street, Tudor Street, Dorset Rise and
Salisbury Court. improvements. This improved route would link with a
potential new crossing on Fleet Street to connect with Shoe Lane.

e Improve the experience of walking and spending time on Tudor Street by
widening pavements, raising junctions, crossings and loading bay entrances
to pavement level and installing seating, SubDs or in ;ground -rew-planting
and trees. This would include reviewing the need for or change to the City of

19

Page 167



London Police check point to support improvements for people walking and
cycling.

Improve accessibility and give more priority to people walking by raising the
carriageway on Temples Lane, Lombard Lane and Pleydell Court and Bride
Lane.

Upgrade the paving and raise crossings, junctions and loading bay entrances
on Bouverie Street.

On Bridewell Place explore the opportunities to create a small public space
that includes seating, planting and trees.

Install seating, SuBsSuD’s or in ground ;-planting and trees on Temple
Avenue, Tallis Street, Carmelite Street, John Carpenter Street, and replant
refresh the planting and seating in St Brides Churchyard.

Provide additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays,
including on Tudor Street, Temple Avenue, John Carpenter Street, Carmelite
Street, Tallis Street and Dorset Rise.

Retain and improve existing cycle contraflows on Bouverie and Whitecross
Street and introduce cycle contraflow on Dorset Rise and Salisbury Court.
Review the amount and location of payment, disabled and motorcycle parking
to ensure appropriate provision and the potential for changes to support the
provision of more space for people walking and public realm improvements.
Continue to monitor and review motor traffic passing through the

neighbourhood.

Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 4 — Whitefriars Neighbourhood
proposals to be explored.

20

Page 168



69T abed

Figure 9 - Whitefriars Neighbourhood Proposed Changes

WHITEFRIARS NEIGHBOURHOOD

5 o
&
Sw\Eg R
pEE!
VICTORIA EMBANKMENT
Key Neighbourhood Area
Proposed pedestrian priority streets with
restricted access to vehicles
msssm  Public realm improvement as part of planning

permission

* New pedestrian route

an

il

3

BLACKFRIARS
UNDERPASS

Streets with existing filters to vehicles or
time restricted access

Streets proposed for public realm
impravements

(Including pavement widening, raised junctions,

crossings and side street entrances, new
seating, SUDs, planting and trees and cycle

parking)

%\é}s@

5 m
=
-
m
=
r
2
Woarery,
L
5
%\3"
& f?;gﬁ,
&
& LANE
3
3 >
B g
T KNIGHTR
=
CTORIA ST QUEEN VICTORIA STREET
x
S
o]
3
w
-
g
n—? L
‘§
) S
UPPER THAMES S e S

ooI»l

Cycle route improvement

New or improved public spaces
Existing zebra or controlled crossing
New or improved crossing facility

Potential additional Legible London

21



5. Streets between neighbourhoods

The streets between the various neighbourhoods are classified as London access
and City access in the City of London Transport Strategy. The extent of change
possible on these streets will be dependent on the need to accommodate vehicle
movement, including for buses. It is accepted that the need to improve the comfort
and safety of people walking and cycling and enhance the public realm may impact
on motor traffic.

5.1. Fleet Street and Ludgate Hill

Strategic policy: Fleet Street and Ludgate Hill are identified in the Transport
Strategy for walking improvements (2019-2030), proposed Phase 2 cycle network
improvements, and a potential bus priority corridor. The corridor forms part of the
Lord Mayor’'s Show processional route and has planning controls protecting views of
St Pauls Cathedral. The Fleet Street and Ludgate Key Area of Change also identifies
Fleet Street as a Principal Shopping Centre.

Walking and public spaces: Pedestrian comfort levels in some locations along the
corridor are below B+ and peak time overcrowding will increase when consented
developments in the area are completed. There is no planting, few places to sit, and
the bus stops do not have shelters. Pavement conditions are poor in places. There
are several formal crossing points at the main junctions. However, a well-used
crossing point between Salisbury Court and Shoe Lane has no facilities.

Cycling: There are no dedicated cycling facilities on Fleet Street and on Ludgate Hill
there are advisory cycle lanes. The junctions have advanced stop lines. In many
places the carriageway is in poor condition. Pavement widths preclude cycle parking
along the corridor.

Kerbside loading: Kerbside loading and servicing is time restricted. There are no
inset loading bays.

Police check points: There are Police check points at both ends of Fleet Street and
on Ludgate Hill, west of Limeburner Lane.

Collison locations: Collison ‘hotspots’ have been identified at the junctions of Fleet
Street with Bouverie Street and Chancery Lane, with New Bridge Street and the
junction of Ludgate Hill and Old Bailey.

5.1.1. Proposals to be explored.
On Fleet Street and Ludgate Hill, we will explore the potential to:

* Widen pavements to provide more space for people walking and to
achieve a minimum pedestrian comfort level of B+, based on current and
future demand.

¢ Install seating, SubsSuD’s or in ground -planting and trees (where they do

not impact on the processional route and views of St Pauls Cathedral) and

22

Page 170



reduce clutter by rationalising signage and removing any redundant
signage.

¢ Install new crossings on Fleet Street to link Salisbury Court and Shoe Lane
and on Ludgate Hill between Pageantmaster Court and Old Bailey.

e Improve the existing crossing at the junction of Fetter Lane and Fleet
Street.

¢ Improve the cycling experience and safety, recognising the ability to
provide dedicated space for people cycling may be limited by the need to
widen pavements and accommodate bus stops and loading.

e Retain and improve existing bus stops. Maximise opportunities for bus
priority and journey time improvements without the bus lanes which would
need to be removed to facilitate pavement widening.

¢ Review the City of London Police check point facilities on Fleet Street and
Ludgate Hill to support improvements for people walking and cycling.

¢ Review and address collision clusters and hotpots identified in the Vision
Zero Action Plan.

e Formalise loading arrangements with timed restrictions and loading bays
set into the pavement to maximise space for people walking when not in
use.

e Continue to work with TfL to improve the comfort and safety of people
crossing at Ludgate Circus.

5.2. New Fetter Lane and Fetter Lane

Strategic policy: The New Fetter Lane and Fetter Lane corridor is identified in the
Transport Strategy for proposed Phase 2 cycle network improvements by 2035.

Walking and public spaces: The pavements of New Fetter Lane and Fetter Lane
corridor are generally wide but there are few trees and places to rest. There is only
one formal crossing point but at peak times popular crossing points are between
Plough Place and Bartlett Court and between Bartlett Passage and Thavies Inn
House.

Cycling: People cycling have no protected space, and there are no bus routes on
this corridor. -There is advanced cycle stop lines at the junctions with Holborn Circus
and Fleet Street. There is limited dockless cycle parking at Rolls Building.

Kerbside loading: Kerbside loading and servicing is time restricted. Businesses at
the southern end of Fetter Lane have kerbside servicing during the day.

Police check points: There is a Police check points at the northern end of New
Fetter Lane.

Collison locations: Collison ‘hotspots’ have been identified at the junction of New
Fetter Lane and Bartlett Court.

5.2.1. Proposals to be explored

On New Fetter Lane and Fetter Lane we will explore the potential to:

23

Page 171



e Improve the walking experience and public realm by installing seating,
SubsSuD’s and-or in ground planting and trees where space permits and
removing redundant signage to reduce clutter.

¢ Raise all side streets and loading bay entrances to give more priority to
people walking and improve accessibility.

e Improve crossing points between Plough Place and Bartlett Court and
between Bartlett Passage and Thavies Inn House.

e Improve the cycling experience and safety including reviewing signal priorities
for cyclists at the junctions with Holborn Circus and Fleet Street.

e Review of the City of London Police check point facilities to support
improvements for people walking and cycling.

e Review and address collision clusters and hotspots identified in the Vision
Zero Action Plan.

5.3.Holborn, Holborn Viaduct

Strategic policy: Holborn is a shared boundary street with the LB Camden and
improvements will be identified and carried out in partnership with them. The Holborn
and Holborn Viaduct corridor has been identified in the Transport Strategy for Phase
12 cycle network improvements by 26302035.

Walking and public spaces: At the junction with New Fetter Lane high quality
public spaces have been created. The pavements on the rest of Holborn and
Holborn Viaduct lacks this quality with no trees and only bus stop shelters provide
the opportunity to rest. Not all the side roads have continuous pavement treatments.

Cycling: There is no dedicated or protected space for people cycling although they
can use bus lanes. On the south side of Holborn and Holborn Viaduct these
incorporate with an advisory cycle lane. All arms of Holborn Circus have advanced
cycle stop lines. Considerable cycle parking is available on the central island of
Holborn, but none is available for dockless cycles and e-scooter hire parking.

Kerbside loading: Kerbside loading and servicing is time restricted. There are no
inset loading bays.

Police check points: There is a Police check point on Holborn Viaduct.

Collison locations: Collison ‘hotspots’ have been identified at Holborn Circus and
New Gate Street with Warwick Lane.

5.3.1. Proposals to be explored.
On Holborn and Holborn Viaduct we will explore the potential to:

¢ Improve the walking experience and public realm by widening pavements,
installing seating, SubsSuD’s and-or in _ground planting and trees and
removing redundant signage to reduce clutter.
¢ Raise all side streets and loading bay entrances to give more priority to
people walking and improve accessibility.

24

Page 172



e Improve the cycling experience and safety by introducing protected space for
people cycling. Improve signal priorities for people cycling at the junctions with
Holborn Circus and Old Bailey and Giltspur Street and Warwick Lane.

¢ Provide additional short stay and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire parking.

¢ Review of the City of London Police check point facilities to support
improvements for people walking and cycling.

¢ Review and address collision clusters and hotpots identified in the Vision Zero
Action Plan.

e Formalising loading arrangements with timed restrictions and loading bays set
into the pavement to maximise space for people walking when not in use

e Retain and improve existing bus stops.

5.4.Queen Victoria Street

Strategic policy: Queen Victoria Street has been identified in the Transport Strategy
for Phase 1 cycle network improvements by 26362028.

Walking and public spaces: The pavements on both sides of Queen Victoria are
wide and generally have high quality paving. There are some street trees but no

places to rest-Altheuchthore e soveraliommalerossingselnis thereareho-femmal

Street. Not all the side roads have continuous pavement treatments.

Cycling: There are only short advisory cycling lanes at the west end of Queen
Victoria Street. There is a TfL cycle hire docking stations and some cycle parking.

Kerbside loading: Commercial uses fronting Queen Victoria do not appear to
require kerbside servicing.

Collison locations: A collision ‘hotspots’ have been identified at the junction of
Queen Victoria Street and New Bridge Street.

5.4.1. Proposals to be explored.
On Queen Victoria Street we will explore the potential to:

¢ Improve the walking experience and public realm by installing seating,
SubsSuD’s and-or in ground planting and trees where space permits and
removing redundant signage to reduce clutter.

¢ Raise all side streets and loading bay entrances to give more priority to
people walking and improve accessibility.

¢ Improve the safety and experience of people cycling by providing protected
space for people cycling. Install additional cycle parking and dockless cycle
and e-scooter hire parking.

¢ Review and address collision clusters and hotpots identified in the Vision Zero
Action Plan.

Details of all the proposals can be found in Table 6 —City Access Streets - proposals
to be explored.

25

Page 173



5.5. London Access Streets

New Bridge Street and Farringdon Street corridor and the Victoria Embankment
Street are part of the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) and are managed
by TfL. On these streets the Corporation will work in partnership with TfL to identify
opportunities for improvements, including addressing collision hotspots identified in
the Vision Zero Action Plan.

26

Page 174



Table 1 —Chancery Lane Neighbourhood - proposals to be explored.

Strieet Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management | Potential changes to Expected Dependencies
and access. loading and parking Implementation
CL[L -Chancery Widened pavement between Carey Street Timed restriction for motor traffic. Formalise loading By 2026 Chancery Lane
Lane and Southampton Buildings. Exemptions: local access, cycles, Experimental
New seating, SuDs or in ground planting emergency vehicles and taxis. Formalised Traffic Changes.
and trees. Removal of redundant street kerbside loading.
clutter. Continuous pavement treatment at
the junction with Southampton Buildings. Camera enforcement at Carey Street and
north of Southampton Buildings
Extend the cycle contraflow between The existing cycle contraflow will be
Holborn and Fleet Street. Additional short R
stay cycle and dockless parking and
Bv) parking for e-scooters.
CLR XQction of | Introduction-of a-timerestriction-for-motor (ii) Introduction of a time restriction for Review on street (i) By 2024
Breet@) vehicles-at the junction-of Fetter Lane and motor vehicles at the junction of Fetter Lane | parking.
Byl Id@ and e and Bream’s Buildings. Restrictions could (ii) By 2026
Feltejlane apply to:
(ngrth) | Continuous pavement crossing at the Fetter Lane (north of Bream’s Buildings),
ol junction of Fetter Lane, New Fetter Lane Breams-Buildings, Norwich Street, Tooks
and Breams Buildings Court, -Furnival Street and Cursitor Street.
Exemptions: local access, cycles,
emergency vehicles and taxis.
CLpB -Fetter Lane | New small public space including seating, Relocation of motorcycle | By 2025

(North section)

and planters at the northern end.

Localised pedestrian priority interventions
including raised junctions and crossing
points Continuous pavement treatment and
tactile paving over loading bay entrances.
and new paving where required. Removal
of redundant street clutter.

parking to create public
space.

27




Strieet Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management | Potential changes to Expected Dependencies
and access. loading and parking Implementation
Additional short stay cycle and dockless
parking and parking for e-scooters
CL|4 -Norwich Localised pedestrian priority interventions By 2026
Street including raised junctions and crossing
points Continuous pavement treatment and
tactile paving over loading bay entrances.
and new paving where required Removal of
redundant street clutter-
- Formatted: Space After: 8 pt, Line spacing: Multiple
CLE -Furnival Localised pedestrian priority interventions By 2024 108l
Street including raised junctions and crossing
points Continuous pavement treatment and
tactile paving over loading bay entrances.
and new paving where required Removal of
T redundant street clutter.
CL —;Eeam’s (i) New small public space including Possible small (i) By 2025
Bujlgdmys seating, and planters at the western end. relocation of disabled
() parking . (ii) By 2026
= (ii) Localised pedestrian priority
~ interventions including raised junctions and
o crossing points Continuous pavement
treatment and tactile paving over loading
bay entrances. and new paving where
required Removal of redundant street
clutter
CL[7 -Took’s New small public space including seating, Explore relocation of By 2025 The new publi| Formatted: Left
Coprt and planters. New-seating,-SudDs-orin motorcycle parking. space is
ground-planting-and-trees-to-create-a dependent on
pocketpark: relocating the
motorcycle
parking.
CLB - Possible additional By 2025 “« [Formatted: Left
Sopthampton Additional Legible London. motorcycle parking.
Buildings ‘

28



Table 2 - Fleet Street and the Lanes Neighbourhood - proposals to be explored.

~

Potential changes to
loading and parking

Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management

and access.

DEd

Expected

Implementation

Dependencie| Formatted Table

New seating, SubDs or in ground -planting None

and trees.

(i)Potential for timed restriction for motor
traffic at lunchtimes and weekends.

Changes-to-traffic- managementon-Fleet
Street-and

',

o
=0
o
(0]

LLT

(i) Traffic restriction between Shoe Lane

(i) By 2028 CA1 — Changes
to traffic
management on

(i) By 2026 Fleet Street and

New Fetter Lane

and Little New Street.-New-FetterLane-may

require additional restrictions on Shoe Lane
B

Andrew-Street.

may require [ Formatted: Underline

additional
restrictions on
Shoe Lane at the
junction with Little
New Street.
Completion of
major
developments in
the area and
reduction in
construction
traffic.

29




FSL2 -Little New | New seating, SutDs or in ground -planting By 2028 Completion of
Strieet and trees. major
developments in
the area and
reduction in
construction
traffic.
FSL3 -St Andrew | New seating, SudDs or in ground -planting By 2028 Completion of
Strieet and trees. major
developments in
the area and
reduction in
construction
traffic.
ESL4 -Wine New seating and Legible London| By 2028 Anticipated - | commented [0S2]: Which court was there a request for a
Office Court developments| |oading bay?
U the area will
QD include improving
Q this site.
FSL5un Additional planting. By 2028 Anticipated
Po Ndpr;Square developments in
~ the area will
o0 include improving
this site
FSL6 -East Additional Legible London By 2025
Harding Street
ESL7 -West Additional Legible London By 2025
Harding Street
FSL8 -Thavies Additional Legible London By 2025
Inn
ESL9 -Gough Additional pay and display parking By 2025
Sqlare

30



Table 3 - Old Bailey Neighbourhood - proposals to be explored.

StrTet

Potential public realm improvements

Potential changes to traffic management
and access.

Potential changes to
loading and parking

Expected
Implementation

w Formatted Table

OB -Old Bailey
(solith of
Limeburner Lane)

(i) Widened pavements or raised
carriageway and new paving. New seating,
SubDs, or in planting and trees. In ground
infrastructure for on street activisation.

Measures to reduce traffic south of
Limeburner Lane including filtering north
bound traffic to restrict it to local access

onlvessinsineshisloatedeanbosanoe anbe

(i) Feasibility and

OB2 and OB3 — if

design by 2025

alternative north

(i) Implementation

and south traffic
movements are

Retain and improve the cycle facility on the by 2027 feasible on
(ii) Additional on street short stay and southern part of Old Bailey. Limeburner Lane
dockless cycle and e-scooter parking. (i) By 2026 and Warwick
Lane.
OBP -Junction of Explore changes to permitted traffic turning (i) Feasibility and | OB1 and OB3 —
Wafwick Lane movements_and required junction design by 2025 changes to the
and Newgate improvements. junction only
Street-U () Implementation | required if OB1
Q by 2027 and OB2 are
~ implemented.
@L‘%ﬂeburner (i) Raised junction and crossing point. Explore changes to traffic priorities.Retain (i) Feasibility and | OB2 — Warwick
Lane Additional on street short stay and dockless | and improve the cycle contraflow on the design by 2025 Lane.
- cycle and e-scooter parking. southern part of and Limeburner Lane_or
~ possible change to the direction of the cycle (i) Implementation
© (i) Additional Legible London. contraflow subject to traffic management by 2027
options.
(i) By 2026
OB{ -Old Fleet (i) Additional Legible London. (i) By 2026
Lare - [ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.9 cm
(i) Continuous pavement treatment and (i) By 2027
tactile paving over entrance.
OBb -Old Seacoal | Raised carriageway and new surfacing By 2027
Lane
OB -Fleet Place | Additional Legible London. By 2026 « [ Formatted Table
OBYV-Farringdon Feature lighting under viaduct By 2026

Street / Holborn
Viafluct

31



Table 4 Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood - proposals to be explored.

|Ttreet| Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management | Potential changes to Expected Dependend commented [0S3]: 5278 100 NB Sttake out
and access. loading and parking Implementation
[ Formatted Table
%;Ll -Carter Lane | (i) Potential raised carriageway and new (i) By 2026
Between surfacing in keeping with Carter Lane east
Burgon Street of Burgon Street or localised pedestrian (i) By 2025
and Godliman priority intervention including raised
$treet) junctions or crossing points.
(i) New seating, SubDs or in ground 5
planting, and trees. Removal of redundant
street clutter. New short stay and dockless
g cycle parking and e-scooter parking.
CLRASt g . i (i) By 2024
Adf:w’s Hill create-a-pocketpark.
andPlayhouse New tree planting
CLg@\ddle Hill Left turn ban. Enforced by signage. (i) By 2024
and:8t Andrew’s
Hill.
CL4 -Dean’s (i) Raised carriageway and new surfacing. (i) No entry from St Paul’s Churchyard. (i) By 2026
Court Enforced by signage.
(i) By 2024
CL5 -Ludgate New public space including Raised-raised Potential for the Carter Lane timed By 2025
Broadway carriageway and new surfacing. New restriction for motor traffic extended to
seating, SuUDs or in ground, planting, and | include Ludgate Broadway. Exemptions:
trees. Removal of redundant street clutter. local access, cycles, emergency vehicles,
taxis, access for disabled drop-off/pick-up
and disabled parking.
Enforced by signage.
CL6 - (i) Raised carriageway and new surfacing (i) By 2025
Pageantmaster or a raised junction.
(i) By 2026

32



Potential public realm improvements

Potential changes to traffic management

Potential changes to

Expected

Depe‘”de”({ Commented [0S3]: 5278 100 NB Sttake out

[Ttreet\

and access.

loading and parking

Implementation

[ Formatted Table

Court and (ii) Additional signage to the Pilgrim Street
Pilgrim Street lift.
Waithman-Street N.ew_su.pfaepng_and_fea{ewew%_pde\# . i i .
j j j j O
Blar junctio “.t Black as}:a € -
| . Je."." selat g& slpet}e tattorereation-o
) eratway-at _ase_elpa csubject-to-development
;3{4199{7
CL7 -Blackfriars | (i) Widened-paving-orraised-carriagewayArt Explere-the-possible (i) By 2026
Lane installation on the wall adjoining the railway relocation-of payment
lines on Blackfriars Lane-between Queen and-blue-badge parking-
Victoria Street and Playhouse Yard-erfrom (i) By 2024
A
QO Lane. SuUDs and in ground planting if
(@] feasible. Rai j
@ Removal of redundant street clutter
= Additional Legible London.
oo ) .
= (ii) Continuous pavement treatment at the
southern end.
CL8 -St Anne Refresh planting and seating. By 2025 [Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Bold
Blackfriars and
$t Anne
Blackfriars
Ireland Yard.
CL9 -Underside Feature lighting to illuminate under the By 2026
of railway bridge | bridge.
Qver Queen
ictoria Street
C¢L10.- Refresh planting and seating. Close By 2026
Blackfriars underpass entrance and find alternative
Court use.

33



Table 5 -Whitefriars Neighbourhood - proposals to be explored.

Street Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management Potential changes to Expected Dependencies
and access. loading and parking Implementation

Embankmentat Neighbourhood

thejunetions

with-Temple

Avgnue and

Carmelite

e

W1 |Watergate Improvements including SuYDs; or in Explore the possible By 2026 Public realm

and Kingscote ground planting and trees at the junction of removal of payment improvements are
Watergate with New Bridge Street. Legible parking (1-2 spaces). dependent on
London. relocating

parking.

New crossing facility to link between Explore the possible Design Public realm

M;Tu-ﬁr Street
Q

Kingscote Street and Dorset Rise. .
Continuous paving, raised crossing

relocation of 6 payment
parking spaces and 3

optioneering and

improvements are

feasibility 2024

dependent on

D treatlments over_all side street |unctlons. taxi waiting spaces. _ reloqatlng
Review of the City of London Police check Implementation parking.
- point facilities. by 2026
oo
N Pavement widening to enable new seating,
SuUDs or in ground;-+ew planting and
street trees. New short stay and dockless
cycle parking and e-scooter parking.
W3 |[-Dorset Rise | Between Hutton Street and Tudor Street, a | North bound traffic restriction north of Hutton | Explore the relocation of | By 2026

and| Salisbury
Court

raised junction or crossing point -00r, a
raised carriageway and new surfacing
between Tudor Street and the raised
carriageway treatment for the Salisbury
Court development.

New seating, SubDs or;-new planting and
street trees. New short stay and dockless

Street. Cycle contraflow

motorcycle parking
opposite Dorset
Buildings and near the
junction with Tudor
Street.

On Salisbury Court
removal of doctors
parking bay and

34




Street

Potential public realm improvements

Potential changes to traffic management
and access.

Potential changes to
loading and parking

Expected
Implementation

Dependencies

cycle parking and e-scooter parking.
Legible London.

reallocation as a loading
bay.

[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

W4 |-Bouverie Pavement improvements, continuous Cycle contraflow retained and improvements By 2026
Street pavement treatments on side roads and investigated.
removal redundant of street clutter.
W5} Temple Potential new open space at the southern Explore the possible By 2025
Aveanue end with new seating, SudDs or in ground relocation of blue badge
ang-new-planting and trees. New short stay parking.
and dockless cycle parking and e-scooter
parking. new-short-stay-cyeling-and
Legible London.
W6 |-Bridewell New public space including nNew seating, By 2025
Plage SubDs or in ground; planting and trees-te
U .
QO
Mﬂ‘%s Street | (i) Continuous pavement treatment. Changes-to-traffic-direction-priefities: Explore the introduction | (i) By 2024
of further payment and
= (i) New seating, planting and trees, SudDs blue badge parking. (ii) By 2026
(0] or in ground planting. New short stay and
w dockless cycle parking and e-scooter
parking.
W8 |-Carmelite Continuous pavement treatment. New Pessible-changes-to-traffic-direction-prierities | Explore the introduction | By 2026
Street seating, planting and trees, SubDs or in and-introduction-ofa-eyele-contratiow of further payment and
ground planting. New short stay and betweenTalis-Streetand-FuderStreat blue badge parking.
dockless cycle parking and e-scooter
parking.; rew-short-and-docklesseycle
W9 John Continuous pavement treatment. New Explore the possible By 2026 Relocation of
Carpenter Street | seating, planting-and-trees-SubDs or in loss of payment parking. payment parking.
ground planting, trees, new short stay and
dockless cycling parking-and e-scooter

parking.

35



Street Potential public realm improvements Potential changes to traffic management Potential changes to Expected Dependencies
and access. loading and parking Implementation

W10 -Temple Raised carriageway and new surfacing. By 2027

Lanle and

Lombard Lane

W11 -Bride Lane

Raised carriageway and new surfacing.

Implementation

by 2026

W1% -St Brides Improved planting and seating. Implementation
Avégnue and by 2025
Churchyard
Whitefriars enforcement-cameras:
Strd L
erid Cyele contrafow reia ed‘g White a.s expiore-changing potce
Carfmelite Street bays-:
[ Waterdte and
R B

Q

@D

[ERY

oo

D

36




Table 6 —City Access Streets - proposals to be explored.

{Street Potential public realm Potential changes to traffic | Potential changes to Programme for Programme of Dependencies
improvements management and access. loading and parking Improvement Improvements
CA1 -Fleet Widened and improved Removal of east bound bus Formalising loading A new pedestrian [Feasibility and Removal of t| formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: (Default)
Street pavements, new seating, lane. arrangements with timed crossing between design 2024, Police check| arial, 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Pattern: Clear
SudD’s, or in ground restrictions and loading bays | Salisbury Court and points.
planting, planting-and trees. Protected space for people set into the pavement to Shoe Lane. Implementation < [FWmatted Table
Removal of redundant street | cycling. maximise space for people by 2026 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font; (Default)
clutter. Improved signal priorities for | walking when not in use. Safety improvements Arial, 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Pattern: Clear
cyclists at the junctions with at the junction of Fleet
Fetter Lane Whitefriars Changes to traffic priorities at | Street and Fetter Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: (Default)
Installation of additional short | Street. the junctions with Fetter Lane | Lane. Avrial, 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Pattern: Clear
stay cycle and dockless cycle and Ludgate Circus to benefit [Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single
parking Installation-of-additionalshert | bus performance. A review of collision . -
stay-cycle-and-docklesscycle locations identified in
=y parking. Review of the east and west | the Vision Zero Action
City of London Police check Plan.
g point facilities.
D
CAZY-Ludgate | Widened and improved Protected space for people Formalising loading A new pedestrian Feasibility and OB1 Old Bailey
HilPrimary pavements, new seating; cycling. arrangements with timed crossing facility design 2024 and OB3
Re€&fence s; : . restrictions and loading bays | between Limehouse
Nefddrk Removal of redundant street | iastallation-ef-additionalshert | set into the pavement to Pageantmaster Court Implementation Lane. The
Street). clutter. stay-eyele-and-dockless-eyele | maximise space for people and Old Bailey. by 2026 crossing
sodans, walking when not in use. between
Installation of additional short A review of collision Pageantmaster
stay cycle and dockless cycle Changes to traffic priorities at | locations identified in Court and Old
parking the junctions with Ludgate the Vision Zero Action Bailey may
Circus to benefit bus Plan. require fewer
performance. . turning
movements
Review of the City of London into Old Bailey.
Police check point facilities.
LCA3- New Improved pavements, new eemoedosnes o soonle Review of the City of London | New pedestrian Feasibility and [Formatted: Not Highlight
Fetter Lane seating, SUB’sSud’s, or in cyeling: Police check point facilities. crossing facilities design 2025
ground planting and trees. between Plough Place ‘

37



Btreet

Potential public realm

Potential changes to traffic

Potential changes to

Programme for

Programme of

Dependencies

improvements management and access. loading and parking Improvement Improvements
Removal of redundant street | Improved signal priorities for and Bartlett Court; and | Implementation
clutter. cyclists at the junctions with between Bartlett by 2030

Holborn Circus and Fleet
Street.

Installation of additional short
stay cycle and dockless cycle

Passage and Thavies
Inn House.

A review of collision
locations identified in
the Vision Zero Action

street clutter.

cyclists at the junctions with
New Bridge Street and
Puddleduck.

Installation of additional short
stay cycle and dockless cycle
parking.

A review of collision
locations identified in
the Vision Zero Action
Plan.

Implementation
by 2028

parking. Plan.
CA4 -Holborn | Improved pavements, new Protected space for people Review of the City of London | A review of collision Implementation CA1 -Fleet
Holborn seating, SubD’s, or in ground | cycling. Police check point facilities. locations identified in by 2035 Street.
Viaduct planting and trees. Removal | Improved signal priorities for the Vision Zero Action Changes to
of redundant street clutter. cyclists at the junctions with Plan. east bound
Holborn Circus and Old traffic
Bailey and Giltspur Street movements
and Warwick Lane. may increase
U traffic at
QO Installation of additional short Holborn
(@] stay cycle and dockless cycle Circus.
9] parking.
_:_A@Queen New seating, SuD’s or in Protected space for people New-pedestrian Feasibility and
Vicggia Street | ground ane-planting and cycling. crossing-facilities-at design 2026
o)) trees. Removal of redundant | Improved signal priorities for sloeldmneoas

38




Page 187



ucing the Healthy Streets Plan

ggt abed

Int
1-3
Consultation Methodology 4
Executive Summary 5
Headline Findings 6-9

Neighbourhood Findings:

Chancery Lane 10-22

Fleet Street 23-34
Old Bailey 35-44
Carter Lane & Ludgate 45-53

Whitefriars 54-70

Email Responses 71-72

Acknowledgements and
Next Steps 73

Appendix: Consultation
Participants 74-82




The Healthy Streets Plan

About the Project

The Healthy Streets Approach is a framework for embedding public health in transport, public realm, and planning. It is
based on indicators that capture the elements that are essential for making streets attractive and accessible places to
walk, cycle and spend time, and for supporting social and economic activity.

The Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan will apply this approach across the neighbourhoods adjoining Fleet Street and

Ludgate Hill and make the streets accessible, engaging and safe places for people to walk, cycle and spend time.

jb)
«Q

D
Tthleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan
©

The Healthy Streets Plan for the Fleet Street area sets out an integrated approach to improving the public realm and
managing traffic to support the delivery of many outcomes identified in:

* The City of London Transport Strategy.

» The City Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy and Destination City initiative.

* The Fleet Street & Ludgate Key Area of Change identified in the emerging Local Plan 2040.
* The Fleet Street Quarter BID’s aspirations for the enhancement of the area.



Where is the Healthy Streets Plan?

The plan divides the area into five neighbourhoods:

* Chancery Lane
* Fleet Street & Lanes
* Old Bailey
» Carter Lane & Ludgate
* @Whitefriars.
Q

«Q
@D

E has individual character and opportunities for improvement
ard each is bounded by streets that accommodate motor vehicles
that have a destination not in the immediate vicinity.

Within the five neighbourhoods the streets are primarily used for the
first or final part of a journey, providing access for motor vehicles to
properties.



What Does the Healthy Streets Plan Comprise?

The plan identifies in these five neighbourhoods’ opportunities to make walking and cycling easier, more comfortable and
safer, and to create pedestrian priority by redesigning streets and managing motor vehicle access. The plan also considers
the opportunities created by new spaces and walking routes negotiated by the Corporation as part of developments. These
changes and improvements will interlink and encourage people to explore the neighbourhoods and help discover existing
public spaces and businesses and encourage further activation and investment in these neighbourhoods.

Within the plan there are a series of proposals which include:

_e)

jab)
Q

D

—Pedestrian Priority Improvements
=Public Realm Improvements

* Cycle Improvements

* Loading and Servicing

Further details of these proposals can be found in each of the neighbourhood sections of this report.




Consultation Methodology

A six week consultation on the Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan ran from Tuesday 9t May 2023 to Tuesday 20t June
2023 (inclusive).

The consultation was open to anyone (group or individual) and whether a resident, business owner, worker or visitor, with
an interest in the area.

This consultation was designed to gain a detailed understanding of public opinion on the proposals, capturing valuable
feedback on the possible measures currently being considered. The consultation was not intended to be a referendum or

‘vage' of any kind, but rather a process for exploring perceptions.
Q

'F%)se interested could also use the Commonplace online platform, which invited people to view and comment on the five
sets of neighbourhood proposals. Participants could leave feedback and comments on as many neighbourhoods as they
wadhed, with the choice of providing feedback by responding to the questions asked, and/or leaving comments as
n&essary. They could alternatively, or additionally, ‘agree’ with comments already submitted and publicly visible. This
was done by simply liking a comment by clicking a ‘thumbs up’ icon.

Participants could also click on a particular neighbourhood within an interactive map, with the ability to drop a pin within
the project area and leave comments relating to this particular location.

This report presents the findings of the consultation.

Note: All percentages have been rounded and may therefore not total exactly 100%. 4



Executive Summary

The Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets proposals have been designed to make the streets within neighbourhoods adjoining Fleet Street
and Ludgate Hill more accessible, engaging and safer places for people to walk, cycle and spend time.

A six week consultation was hosted via the online Commonplace engagement platform, across May/June 2023, gathering over 800
comments and agreements from over 600 participants. These participants included a wide and diverse variety of workers,
business owners, visitors, residents and others - all of whom were interested in the area and the proposed improvements.

Overall views on the proposals were notably positive, with support eclipsing criticism by a ratio of more than 3:1. Across each of
the five neighbourhoods in focus, a majority of consultation participants gave positive/mostly positive feedback about the
prBposals. This positive feedback peaked in relation to the Carter Lane & Ludgate neighbourhood proposals (81% positive overall
f@dback). However, high levels of positivity (68%-72%) were also evident in relation to the proposals for each of the other four
n@ghbourhoods. This positivity is underpinned by a number of common themes, including views that the proposals will increase
pedestrian and cyclist priority, improve safety and the ambience of neighbourhoods, encourage active and sustainable travel
a@g improve air quality.

It’s important to note that some concerns were expressed. Some business owners in the Chancery Lane, Carter Lane & Ludgate,
and Whitefriars neighbourhoods have issues with proposed pedestrian priority improvements, parking and loading changes, changes to
kerbside parking, restrictions to through traffic, and public space potentially being prioritised over direct motor access. Note also,
that some taxi users disagree with the permanency of experimental/potential changes in the Chancery Lane and Fleet Street & Lanes
neighbourhoods. Further concerns question the need for changes, the potential impact on accessibility for businesses, workers
and those with health/mobility issues, and traffic displacement and congestion.

However, these are concerns set in the wider context of notable applause for the proposals.



Headline Findings

The consultation received a

total of more than 820

Commonplace comments comments

and agreements with
comments.

agreements

ArandditionaI 5 responses were received via email.

Qgerall Sentiment Across All 5 Neighbourhoods

v61 °

No. of responses: (411)

W Positive ® Mostly positive

Overall Sentiment Across All 5 Neighbourhoods

(133) (84) (49)  (111)

Neutral m Mostly negative mNegative

respondents

Proposals for the * Fleet Street & Lanes: 126 comments
Fleet Street & Lanes * Chancery Lane: 113 comments

the highest number of  Old Bailey: 86 comments
comments. » Carter Lane & Ludgate: 78 comments

For a detailed look at the demographic, area relationship and
travel profile of consultation participants, please click here.

Almost 70% of consultation participants expressed a
POSITIVE opinion on the proposed improvements and
changes to the 5 neighbourhoods.

In contrast, just 20% expressed a NEGATIVE opinion.

On the following page, we see how overall sentiment
varied across each of the five neighbourhoods.



Sentiment Across Each of the Five Neighbourhoods

Across each of the five neighbourhoods, a majority of consultation participants expressed a positive/mostly positive sentiment
about the Healthy Streets proposals. The most positive response was received in relation to the Carter Lane & Ludgate proposals,
with 81% expressing a positive/mostly positive sentiment, and just 8% expressing a negative/mostly negative sentiment.

High levels of positivity were also evident in relation to each of the other four proposals - including Old Bailey proposals (72%), the
Fleet Street & Lanes proposals (71%), the Chancery Lane proposals (69%) and the Whitefriars proposals (68%).

In sharp contrast, the interactive map survey recorded a much lower level of positive opinion (18%).

;? Overall Sentiment Across Each of the 5 Neighbourhoods
(o) (actual number of responses shown in brackets)

1)
Carter Lane & Ludgate
o

10% (12) 4% N6
g @ 4 NI
o 2mey swan  skaof NINTCHGHIN

Chancery Lane 14% (25) _

o1 Old Bailey

Fleet Street & Lanes

Whitefriars 10% 0 6% @ IINEEHESIN
Interactive Map Survey ) 245 ®) s 24 @
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

B Positive  mMostly positive Neutral = Mostly negative m Negative 7



Headline Findings Across Each of the Five Neighbourhoods

Strong levels of agreement with the proposed improvements for pedestrian priority (78% agree), public
realm (83% agree), cycling (78% agree) and permanency of experimental changes (82% agree). Slightly lower

Chancery Lane levels of agreement (though still a majority) in relation to the parking and loading changes (66% agree).
Some key pockets of disagreement - some business owners disagree with pedestrian priority improvements,
while half disagree with parking and loading changes. Disagreement and uncertainty from some taxi users is
evident in relation to the permanency of experimental changes.

T
Slarly strong levels of agreement with the proposed improvements for pedestrian priority (76% agree),

pullic realm (81% agree), cycling (73% agree) and potential changes (83% agree). Slightly lower levels of Fleet Street
agreement (though still a majority) in relation to the parking and loading changes (66% agree).

Jugh one key pocket of disagreement - some taxi users disagree with potential changes in this & Lanes
neighbourhood.

Again, strong levels of agreement with the proposed improvements for pedestrian priority
(78% agree), public realm (86% agree) and cycling (70% agree).

Old Bailey

No key pockets of disagreement.



Headline Findings Across Each of the Five Neighbourhoods

Notably strong levels of agreement with the proposed improvements for pedestrian priority (86% agree),
public realm (92% agree) and cycling (81% agree).

Carter Lane & _ ey _ - . :
Just one key pocket of disagreement - opinion among business owners split in relation to pedestrian
Ludgate priority improvements.

Strong levels of agreement with the proposed improvements for pedestrian priority (78% agree), public
re@ (84% agree), changes to kerbside parking (67%-73% agree) and cycling improvements (67% agree).

«Q
70®feel that there is currently sufficient motor vehicle access in the neighbourhood for businesses and
regidents. 60% would like to see restrictions to through traffic, with almost 80% requesting public space
ta@ priority over direct motor access.

Some key pockets of disagreement - some business owners disagree with, or express uncertainty about, Whitefriars
pedestrian priority improvements, and changes to kerbside parking (including restricting permitted traffic
movements on Tallis Street/Carmelite Street.

Some business owners also feel that motor vehicle access is definitely or possibly lacking for businesses and

residents, and have accompanying concerns about a potential restriction of through traffic, with a majority
preferring direct motor access over public space.

Read on for more detailed views on the proposals for each neighbourhood. 9



Page 198

10



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

We will improve the priority, comfort and safety of people walking in the neighbourhood. We will explore opportunities to:

» Raise the carriageway to pavement levels at junctions with side streets and at loading bay entrances.

» Restrict some motor vehicles during the morning, lunchtime and evening peak times to improve the priority of people
walking.

» Restrictions could be on streets accessed from the junction of Fetter Lane and Breams Buildings. This could include

Fetter Lane (north of Bream’s Buildings), Breams Buildings, Norwich Street, Tooks Court, Furnival Street and Cursitor
treet.

. prove where people cross on New Fetter Lane between Plough Place and Bartlett Court: and between Bartlett Passage

and Thavies Inn House.

H
©
© Chancery Lane Neighbourhood _ o _
Pedestrian Priority Improvements Almost 80% of consultation participants AGREED with
How do you feel about this proposal? the proposed pedestrian priority improvements for the
Chancery Lane neighbourhood.
7206 S 6% 5% 5% IS _ _ iy
No. of responses: 76) © 6 6 13 Note: _busmess owners were a little more critical of
these improvements, with just 40% who AGREED,
m Strongly agree ®mAgree ® Not sure mDisagree BStrongly disagree compared to 60% who DISAGREED.

11



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

00¢ abed

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic.

- Agree

Disagree

The Themes Underpinning Views

Creating a more accessible, pleasant, safer and
liveable/usable environment.

Creating an improved working environment.
Enhancing the area’s aesthetics via greenery.
Optimising the pedestrian experience, minimising
motor dominance.

Improving air quality.

Creating a less safe environment.

Impeding those with mobility issues reliant on
transport.

Displacing traffic to surrounding routes/roads.
Impeding workers, businesses and deliveries.
Neglecting the issue of dangerous cyclists.

12



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

We will improve the streets and spaces by making them more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend time in.
We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce more trees, planting, seating and Legible London signs and maps where possible; and improve paving.
* Introduce new or improved small public spaces at Tooks Court, the northern end of Fetter Lane and Breams Buildings.

Chancery Lane Neighbourhood
Public Realm Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

TOg abed

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the

0 proposed public realm improvements for the Chancery
No. of responses: (76) ® @)@ (11

m Strongly agree ®mAgree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

13



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Improving mental health and well-being via increased
greenery and spaces/seating to pause.

* Improving air quality.

+ Improving the area’s aesthetics.

* Increasing foot traffic to local businesses.

U + Improving safety.
g » Encouraging active travel.
®  Improving biodiversity.
N
(@)
N This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic.

» Making unnecessary changes.

* Impeding disabled access.

* Restricting courier access.

* Making changes at the expense of drivers - at the core
- Agree - Disagree Not sure of the city’s economy.

14



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

We will improve the comfort and safety of people cycling. We will explore opportunities to:

» Extend the existing cycle contraflow on Chancery Lane south to Fleet Street.

» Maximise the traffic signal priorities for cyclists on Fetter Lane and New Fetter Lane at the junctions with Fleet Street and
Holborn Circus.

* Introduce protected space for cyclists on Holborn.

+ Introduce additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

Chancery Lane Neighbourhood
Cycling Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

€0z abed

Again, there was a high level of support for these
proposed improvements, with almost 80% of

consultation participants who AGREED with the
0 0/ 4% . .
T N 0o o,cing improvements for the Chancery Lane
No. of responses: (75) (13) @ 6 (@18 neighbourhood.

m Strongly agree mAgree mNot sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

15



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

'- Increasing cycling safety and appeal.

* Promoting a people-friendly, liveable city.
» Improving access to local businesses.

* Protecting and segregating cyclist space.

* Promoting sustainable transport.

» Consider more cycling improvements.

0z abed

Neglecting the issue of irresponsible/unsafe cyclists.
_ . * Impeding essential motor vehicle business travel.
This chart shows the count of topics in free isplaci £fi iahb . ds/
text responses to this question, and if the ¢ DI?p acmg mOtO_r traffic to ne'_g ouring roaas r_outes.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. * Prioritising cycling to the detriment of non-cyclists.
* Introducing unnecessary/unjustifiable changes.

B Agree I Disagree 16



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Parking and Loading Changes

To enable greater pedestrian priority, wider pavements and more trees, planting and seating; the relocation of some kerbside
parking may be required. We will explore:

» Relocating motorcycle and blue badge parking on Fetter Lane (north of Bream’s Buildings), and Tooks Court.

Chancery Lane Neighbourhood
Parking & Loading Changes
How do you feel about this proposal? Around two-thirds (66%) of consultation participants
AGREED with these proposed changes.
Just 15% DISAGREED.

) ) Note: business owners were a little more divided in
11% 20% 4 their opinion. 5 business owners responded and 3

No. of responses: (56) (12) (20) @ (1) DISAGREED with the proposal.

G0z abed

m Strongly agree mAgree ® Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

17



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Parking and Loading Changes

The Themes Underpinning Views

» Creating people-oriented, pleasant streets.
* Reducing traffic.

* Reducing parking space.

* Promoting/prioritising walking and cycling.
* Retaining Blue Badge provision.

* Increasing pedestrian/cyclist safety.

* Improving air quality.

. * Reducing car parking space.
This chart shows the count of topics in free

i g FInees (1 (s G Es e, A 7 (T * Impeding local business/trade/deliveries.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. S Maklng unnecessary changes.
+ Displacing motor traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

90¢ abed

- Agree - Disagree Not sure 18



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Potential Changes

Chancery Lane has had experimental changes introduced. We are exploring opportunities to make permanent changes that
could include:

» Retaining the timed restriction for motor vehicles.
* Widening the pavement on the eastern side and installing more seating.
* Formalising kerbside loading arrangements.

Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Again, over 80% of consultation participants AGREED

Potential Changes with these proposed permanent changes.
How do you feel about this proposal?

/0¢ abed

Note: there was also majority agreement among all
three business owners who responded.

0, 0,
_ B 5 3%. In contrast, opinion among taxi users was more divided.

No. of responses: 63) (13) ” e O Of the 11 taxi users who responded, 6 AGREED with the

m Strongly agree mAgree ®Not sure mDisagree M Strongly disagree permanent changes, 4 DISAGREED and 1 was

19



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Potential Changes
The Themes Underpinning Views

Widening of pavements.

Increasing area hospitality/trade.

* Providing area seating.

* Enhancing cycling experience.

* Improving pedestrian priority.

» Preventing flood damage.

* Improving air quality.

» Reducing motor traffic and its dominance.
» Making the area more liveable/pleasant.

80¢ abed

. + Displacing traffic to nearby neighbourhoods/routes.

. . » Impedes taxis/loading vehicles.
This chart shows the count of topics in free . .
text responses to this question, and if the . Increagmg taxi journey Iengths/fares_ for' passengers.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. + Impeding local trade/commerce/deliveries.

B Agree I Disagree 20



60¢ abed

Selected Comments About Chancery Lane Neighbourhood Proposals

Supporting Comments

“Taking back motor dominance is always a
good thing”.

“The area will become safer, greener
and an altogether more liveable
neighbourhood”.

“As someone who walks through this
area regularly, | think this is a great
idea”.

“It’s great to see imaginative
improvements in the public realm and
new green spaces”.

“More active transport is a good thing!”.

“Let's reduce car usage to a minimum”.

“The closure of Chancery Lane
would be seriously damaging to the
road network”.

“Restricting motor vehicles from
relatively quiet roads creates more
congestion on the surrounding roads,
where people are more likely to walk,
shop and cycle”.

“There are now fewer cyclists on the
streets and prioritising traffic lights
for them will cause more congestion
for motor vehicles who need to go
about their working business”.

21



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood - Interactive Map Comments

0T abed

There were 6 comments made about
the Chancery Lane neighbourhood via
the interactive map.

These focused on the areas highlighted
with orange pins on this map.

Comments related to walking (3),
cycling (3) and traffic (2).

They included a mix of positive (1),
neutral (2) and negative (3) comments.

22



Page 211

23



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

We will explore introducing motor vehicle restrictions on Shoe Lane south of the junction with Little New Street at lunchtimes
and weekends to enable on street activities.

Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood
Pedestrian Priority Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

T¢ obed

5 Over three-quarters (76%) of consultation participants
’ AGREED with the proposed pedestrian priority
improvements for the Fleet Street & Lanes

No. of responses:  (77) (24) " 6 @8 neighbourhood.

m Strongly agree mAgree ®Not sure mDisagree M Strongly disagree

24



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements
The Themes Underpinning Views

Improving pedestrian space, safety and priority.
Increasing footfall for local businesses.

* Encouraging more street-life.

* Promoting active travel.

* Improving public health and well-being.

* Reducing motor traffic/dominance.

* Improving the visitor and worker experience.

* Improving air quality.

» Consider further improvements.

. * Generally impeding access.

* Increasing traffic congestion/air pollution.
This chart shows the count of topics in free * Impeding disabled accessibility.
text responses to this question, and if the . |mpeding local business/trade.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. .

+ Damaging to bus routes.

» Making unnecessary changes.

€T¢ abed

B Agree I isagree 25



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements
We will improve the streets and spaces by making them more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend time in. We will
explore opportunities to:

* Introduce more trees, planting, seating and Legible London signs and maps where possible; and improve paving.

Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood
Public Realm Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

v Tz abed

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the

Street & Lanes neighbourhood.
No. of responses: (84) (15) ™ @ @14

m Strongly agree mAgree ® Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

26



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements
The Themes Underpinning Views

Increasing greenery in the area.

Enhancing area aesthetics and enjoyment.

* Improving air quality.

» Widening pedestrian space.

» Encouraging footfall to local businesses.

» Addressing climate change issues.

» Creating a people, not car-dominated neighbourhood.
» Consider widening/increasing scope of improvements.

This chart shows the count of topics in free ‘ * Making unnecessary changes.

text responses to this question, and if the . Narrowing space for road users.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. . Increasing congestion and air pollution.
» Wasting public monies.
* Providing insufficient information on proposals.

GT¢ abed

- Agree - Disagree Not sure 27



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

We will improve the comfort and safety of people cycling. We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce dedicated space on Holborn Viaduct and Newgate Street for people cycling and maximise the traffic signal
priorities for cyclists at the junctions with Holborn Circus and Old Bailey and Giltspur Street and Warwick Lane.

 Introduce dedicated space, and maximise traffic signal priorities for people cycling on Fleet Street.

* Introduce additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood
Cycling Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

9T¢ abed

Almost three-quarters (73%) of consultation

) 0 participants AGREED with the proposed cycling

_ 1k s 4%- improvements for the Fleet Street & Lanes
neighbourhood.

No. of responses: 7 (23) ™ (©) (25)

m Strongly agree m Agree = Not sure mDisagree ®Strongly disagree



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Prioritising cycling.

* Providing a safer/easier/protected cycling experience.
* Encouraging more sustainable/active travel.

» Addressing climate change issues.

» Consider widening/increasing the scope of

BLY) improvements.

Q

(@)

D

N

=

) .

* Prioritising cycling to the detriment of other road
users.
This chart shows the count of topics in free + Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

text responses to this question, and if the

respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. * CongeStmg traffic.

* Neglecting the issue of dangerous cyclists.
» Making unnecessary changes.

- Agree - Disagree Not sure 29



Fleet Street Neighbourhood Potential Changes

We will make Fleet Street a more comfortable and attractive street for people walking and make changes that support the
local businesses. We will explore opportunities to:

« Maximise pavement space where possible and introduce new planting and seating.
* Introduce new on street loading facilities for businesses.
* Improve where people cross on Fleet Street between Salisbury Court and Shoe Lane.

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the
Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood potential changes for the Fleet Street & Lanes

Potential Changes neighbourhood.

How do you feel about this proposal?
Note: pedestrians were in STRONG AGREEMENT with

these potential changes, with the vast majority indicating

support.

AGREEMENT was also evident from business owners. 4 of
No. of responses: (81) (19) @) (1) (16) the 6 business owners who responded AGREED with the
potential changes.

8T¢ abed

m Strongly agree mAgree ®Not sure mDisagree M Strongly disagree o .
In contrast, there was more opposition from taxi users,

with 9 DISAGREEING with the potential changes,

compared to 5 who AGREED. 2 were el



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Potential Changes

The Themes Underpinning Views

Improving the pedestrian
experience/accessibility/safety.

» Advantages from pavement widening.

» Consider widening the scope of changes.
* Increasing air quality.

BLY) * Improving area aesthetics.
g + Increasing greenery.
) * Protecting vulnerable users of the neighbourhood.
N * Increasing footfall to local businesses.
H
O
* Unnecessary widening of pavements.
This chart shows the count of topics in free * Increasing congestion.
text responses to this question, and if the o |ncreasing air p0||ution_

respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. . Wasting public monies

* Neglecting to acknowledge that Fleet Street is a
thoroughfare not a destination.
» Making unnecessary changes.

B Agree I Disagree

31



0zz abed

Selected Comments About Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Proposals

Supporting Comments

“Let's promote active travel and
discourage the use of ever larger and
more dangerous private vehicles”.

“There are too many motor vehicles
in this area and too little
pedestrian priority”.

“Trees and greenery will make the area
much nicer to be in”.

“Why on earth would | not want a "more
attractive, comfortable and enjoyable"

public realm? | feel like it's a battleground with
the motor vehicle at the moment”.

“We have to respond to the climate
emergency and make our city more liveable at
the same time”.

“Public realm improvements NARROW
the space available for pedestrians.
This is not an improvement!

Narrow space available to vehicles,
don’t force pedestrians into conflict
with cyclists!”.

“I'm not in favour of prioritising cycling
to the detriment of other road users”.

“All these proposals will do is slow
traffic to a crawl. What is the point of
improving pedestrian space when the
environment will be so unpleasant
because of the permanent traffic jam.
Fleet Street is not a destination - it’s a
thoroughfare and should be

treated as such”.

32



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood - Interactive Map Comments

Tce abed

There were 14 comments made about
the Fleet Street & Lanes neighbourhood
via the interactive map.

These focused on the areas highlighted
with orange pins on this map.

Comments related to walking (7), cycling
(7), street trees and planting (5) footways
(4) and other areas (9, each of 2 or less).

They included a mix of positive (2),
neutral (4) and negative (8) comments.

33



Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood Experience Improvements

zee abed

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent expressed a positive or negative
opinion.

- Positive - Negative

34



Page 223

35



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

We will improve the priority, comfort and safety of people walking in the neighbourhood. We will explore opportunities to:

Restrict some motor vehicles on Old Bailey, south of the junction with Limeburner Lane during the morning, lunchtime
and evening peak times.

Access would be maintained for emergency vehicles, local access to the Central Criminal Court, the City of London
Coroners Court and local businesses, access for taxis drop-off/pick-up’s and bicycles.

Raise the carriageway to pavement level on Limeburner Lane at the junction with Fleet Place.

Improve where people cross on Ludgate Hill between Pageantmaster Court and Old Bailey.

Old Bailey Neighbourhood
Pedestrian Priority Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

yzz abed

Over three-quarters (78%) of consultation participants
- AGREED with the proposed pedestrian priority
IR 60 s improvements for the old Bailey neighbourhood.
No. of responses: (59) ™o @ @ Q2

m Strongly agree ®m Agree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

36



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Improving pedestrian space/safety.

» Giving pedestrians/cyclists priority.

* Making the area more vibrant/interesting.
» Promoting active travel.

* Increasing footfall for local businesses.

BLY) * Reducing motor traffic.
g » Consider widening the scope of improvements.
) * Returning the area to people.
N
N
ol
» Impeding local business/trade/collections/deliveries.
This chart shows the count of topics in free * Increasing CongeStion and air pOIIUtion-
text responses to this question, and if the o Making unnecessary changes.

respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. - Displacing traffic onto neighbouring roads/routes.

» Damaging bus routes.
* Impeding those with mobility issues/disabilities.

- Agree - Disagree Not sure 37



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

We will improve the streets and spaces by making them more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend time in.
We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce more trees, planting, seating and Legible London signs and maps where possible on Old Bailey.
» Reallocating carriageway to widened pavements where possible, on Ludgate Hill and on Old Bailey south of Limeburner

Lane.

Old Bailey Neighbourhood
Public Realm Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

9¢¢ abed

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the
proposed public realm improvements for the Old Bailey
neighbourhood.

No. of responses: (58) o O ©

m Strongly agree mAgree mNot sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

38



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Pubic Realm Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Increasing area greenery.

* Improving area aesthetics.

» Giving pedestrians priority.
* Widening of pavements.

* Reducing car dominance.

* Increasing area enjoyment.

/2¢ abed

This chart shows the count of topics in free = Narrowing the roads.
text responses to this question, and if the A Limiting road access for cars/taxis

respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. .
o Maklng unnecessary changes.

B Agree I Disagree

39



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

We will improve the comfort and safety of people cycling. We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce dedicated space for people cycling on Ludgate Hill.
* Improve the existing cycle facilities on Old Bailey and the cycle contraflow on Limeburner Lane.
* Introduce additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

Old Bailey Neighbourhood
Cycling Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

70% of consultation participants AGREED with the

neighbourhood.

8¢e¢ abed

No. of responses:  (48) 11 G @ (18)

m Strongly agree mAgree mNot sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

40



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Prioritising/protecting cyclist safety.
* Rebalancing car domination.

» Improving footfall to local businesses.
* Encouraging cycling.

6¢¢ abed

. + Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

This chart shows the count of topics in free ° Congegtlng bqs travel.
text responses to this question, and if the * Impeding business/trade/commerce.

respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. c Making unnecessary changes.
* Encouraging idling cars.
» |nsufficient information on proposals.

- Agree - Disagree
41



0gg abed

Selected Comments About Old Bailey Neighbourhood Proposals

Supporting Comments

“Reducing car dominance will make the
area safer to travel through and more
pleasant to visit”.

“The street is fairly drab at the moment.
More plants would help improve the look
and feel of the area”.

“Private cars should be kept out of the city
as much as possible. Space should be
dedicated to pedestrians, cyclists, buses
and finally black cabs, where necessary”.

“Improvements for pedestrian safety are
welcome”.

“Anything that reduces the weight of cars is
good.”

“Roads need to be kept open to cars
and taxis. There are schools nearby
and closing the roads will hamper
pick ups by grandparents who are
disabled”.

“When will anyone ever learn that
not everyone can cycle or walk or is
willing to. Trips to the airport or
home to South London are in a taxi,
not by walking or cycling”.

“Will shift traffic elsewhere,

pushing pollution onto other people”.

“Less space for traffic means idling
cars!!!”.

42



Old Bailey Neighbourhood - Interactive Map Comments

Tgz abed

There were 7 comments made about the
Old Bailey neighbourhood via the
interactive map.

These focused on the areas highlighted
with orange pins on this map.

Comments on a range of subjects were
recorded. These included walking (3),
traffic (2), personal safety (2) and cycling

(2).

They included a mix of positive (2),
neutral (1) and negative (4) comments.

43



Old Bailey Neighbourhood Experience Improvements

Zse abed

- Positive

Negative

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent expressed a positive or
negative opinion.

44



Page 233

45



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

We will improve the priority, comfort and safety of people walking in the neighbourhood. We will explore opportunities to:

Change permitted traffic movements on Addle Hill, St Andrew’s Hill and Deans Court.
Extend the existing Carter Lane timed motor vehicle traffic restriction to include Ludgate Broadway.
Raise the carriageway to pavement levels on Pilgrim Street and at the side street junctions with Carter Lane with and at

loading bay entrances.

Improve where people cross on Victoria Street at the junction with Blackfriars Lane.

Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood
Pedestrian Priority Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

No. of responses: (62) (6) " @@

yez abed

m Strongly agree mAgree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the
proposed pedestrian priority improvements for the
Carter Lane & Ludgate neighbourhood.

Note: Opinion among the 3 business owners who
responded was more evenly divided, with equal
proportions split between AGREEMENT,
DISAGREEMENT and

46



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Reducing motor traffic.

» Making the area more welcoming.

» Giving pedestrians/cyclists priority.
* Improving pedestrian safety.

Gee abed

. Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

Making unnecessary changes.
Impeding trade deliveries.
Impeding driver and taxi accessibility.

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic.

- Agree - Disagree

47



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

We will improve the streets and spaces by making them more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend time in. We will
explore opportunities to:

* Introduce more trees, planting, seating and Legible London signs and maps where possible; and improve paving.
* Introduce small public spaces on Ludgate Broadway, St Andrew’s Hill, Playhouse Yard and the platform over the railway at

Apothecary Street.

Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood
Public Realm Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

9¢¢ abed

Over 90% of consultation participants AGREED with the

_ 7% 4%1%I proposed public realm improvements for the Carter
Lane & Ludgate neighbourhood.

No. of responses: (62) G B0

m Strongly agree mAgree mNot sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

48



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Increasing greenery.

» Consider widening scope of proposals.

» Attracting increased area usage - encouraging a
‘destination’ rather than a ‘thoroughfare’ feel.

* Improving area enjoyment for residents, workers and

visitors.

* Improving mental well-being.

Improving air quality.

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. . Removing parking spaces.

* Impeding business.

» Potentially impeding emergency services access.

» Potentially impeding wheelchair users and those with
visual impairments.

/€¢ abed

. Agree . Disagree
49



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

We will improve the comfort and safety of people cycling. We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce dedicated space for people cycling on Queen Victoria Street and maximise the traffic signal priorities for cyclists
at the junctions with New Bridge Street and Puddleduck.
* Introduce additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood
Cycling Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

g8¢e abed

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the

_ 9% - proposed cycling improvements for the Carter Lane &
Ludgate neighbourhood.

No. of responses: (56) (11) @ (2 ®)

m Strongly agree ®mAgree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

50



Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

' » Creating and connecting a cycle super highway.

 Prioritising cyclist safety.
» Creating dedicated, protected spaces for cyclists.
» Encouraging/diversifying cycling.

6c¢ abed

This chart shows the count of topics in free . + Giving cyclists excessive priority to the detriment of
text responses to this question, and if the .
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. drivers.

* Unnecessary changes.

* Risking pedestrian safety with the potential
encouragement of more cyclists.

+ Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

- Agree - Disagree Not sure
ol



Ot’¢ abed

Supporting Comments

“The area has far more pedestrians than
motorists”.

“I’m sick of nearly being run over!”.

I’m a resident in Carter Lane with
young children. | strongly agree with
prioritising the comfort and safety of
pedestrians - a fantastic proposal!”.

“These improvements will be wonderful
for the enjoyment not only of residents,
but workers and visitors too. | can only
hope they are implemented ASAP!”.

“More active transport and less cars are
needed in London!”.

Selected Comments About Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood Proposals

“The proposals follow others
around the country, so many of
which have completely
destroyed the historic
character of the places in
which they’ve been imposed”.

“The proposals affect my job.
There is already less places to
load and unload as a courier. |
am also disabled and struggling
enough with walking long
distances”.

“Will just shift traffic
elsewhere...pushing pollution
onto other people”.

52



Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood - Interactive Map Comments

Tt abed

There was 1 comment made about the
Carter Lane & Ludgate neighbourhood via
the interactive map.

This focused on the area highlighted with
an orange pin on this map.

This comment related to local businesses,
shopping and retail (1), walking (1), street
trees and planting (1), seating and
benches (1) and air quality (1).

The sentiment of the comment was
neutral.

53



Page 242

54



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

We will improve the priority, comfort and safety of people walking in the neighbourhood. We will explore opportunities to:

» Raise the carriageway to pavement levels at junctions with side streets and at loading bay entrances.
* Improve where people cross on Tudor Street.

» Restrict motor vehicles travelling north on Dorset Rise and Salisbury Rise between the junctions with Hutton Street and
Fleet Street.

Whitefriars Neighbourhood
Pedestrian Priority Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the
proposed pedestrian priority improvements for the
Whitefriars neighbourhood.

Note: While a majority of residents AGREED with the
_ 13% 2% 5% - pedestrian priority improvement, opinion expressed by
the 9 business owners who responded was more
divided. 3 AGREED, 5 DISAGREED and 1 was

ci¢ abed

No. of responses: (63) (12 @6 A

m Strongly agree ®mAgree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

55



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Pedestrian Priority Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Rebalancing/reducing car dominance.
 Prioritising pedestrians.

* Improving pedestrian safety.

* Improving area ambience.

* Improving air quality.

* Increasing area footfall and trade.

* Promotes active travel.

. * Increasing congestion and standstill traffic.

This chart shows the count of topics in free . |ncrea3ing air pollution.
text responses to this question, and if the 3 - cpea -
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. ¢ Impe(_jln_g those with health/mOblllty ISSues.
* Restricting worker access.
* Making unnecessary changes.
* Wasting public monies.

vz abed

- Agree - Disagree Not sure 56



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

We will improve the streets and spaces by making them more attractive, comfortable and enjoyable to spend time in. We will
explore opportunities to:

» Widen the pavements on Tudor Street .
* Introduce more trees, planting, seating and Legible London signs and maps where possible; and improve paving.
* Introduce a small public space on Bridewell Place.

Whitefriars Neighbourhood
Public Realm Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

Girg abed

Over 80% of consultation participants AGREED with the
proposed public realm improvements for the

Whitefriars neighbourhood.

No. of responses: (65) W G @ 6 Not_e: A similarly high percentage (over YQ%) of
residents AGREED with the proposed public realm
m Strongly agree mAgree mNot sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree improvements.

57



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Public Realm Improvements

The Themes Underpinning Views

Increasing greenery.

» Enhancing area ambience.
* Improving air quality.

* Providing social areas.

* Improving air quality.

BLY) * Promoting active travel.
g « Addressing climate change issues.
) * Increasing pedestrian safety.
N
AN
o
This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the . . .
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. * Wasting public monies.

* Making unnecessary changes.
+ Displaying a lack of vision.

* Impeding worker access.

* Requiring more detail.

. Agree . Disagree Not sure

58



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Changes to Kerbside Parking

Changes to kerbside parking and some vehicle movements could allow greater pedestrian priority and public realm
improvements. We will explore:

* One directional motor traffic on Tallis Street and Carmelite Street between Tallis Street and Tudor Street to enable kerbside
parking to be relocated from other streets.

9-? Whitefriars Neighbourhood

% Changes to Kerbside Parking

no Do you support changes to permitted traffic

ﬁovements on Tallis Street and Carmelite Street? ) o

Two out of every three consultation participants (67%)
SUPPORTED changes to permitted traffic movements on Tallis
Street and Carmelite Street.

24 responses

11% . . .
12 responses 72 responses Note: Residents were more likely than business owners to

SUPPORT these changes. Among the 9 business owners who

responded, 3 SUPPORTED the changes, 4 OPPOSED the changes
and 2 were .

EmYes mUnsure mNo

59



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Changes to Kerbside Parking

The Themes Underpinning Views

Rebalancing car dominance and giving pedestrians
priority.

» Addressing climate change issues.

* Improving pedestrian/cyclist safety.

* Improving pedestrian/cyclist access/movement.

* Improving air quality.

» Encouraging cycling.

. * Reducing car parking space.

8¢ abed

UNEEE SIS T IHEEME RIS « Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.
text responses to this question, and if the .
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. » Making unnecessary changes.

* Increasing congestion.
* Impeding worker access.

B Agree I Disagree 60



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Changes to Kerbside Parking

Changes to kerbside parking and some vehicle movements could allow greater pedestrian priority and public realm
improvements. We will explore:

» Reducing kerbside parking in the area to enable greater pedestrian priority, wider pavements and more trees, planting and
seating to be introduced.

;? Whitefriars Neighbourhood

«Q Changes to Kerbside Parking

Mo you support reducing kerbside parking to

'Bnable greater pedestrian priority and other Just under three-quarters (73%) of consultation participants

© improvements? SUPPORTED the reduction of kerbside parking to enable greater

26 responses pedestrian priority and other improvements.
Note: A majority of residents were highly supportive of this

79 responses proposed kerbside parking reduction. Of the 9 business owners
who responded, 3 expressed SUPPORT for these changes, 5
OPPOSED the changes and 1 was .

3 responses

EYes mUnsure mNo 61



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

We will improve the comfort and safety of people cycling. We will explore opportunities to:

* Introduce a new cycle contraflow on Dorset Rise and Salisbury Court.
* Improve the existing cycle contraflows on Bouverie and Whitecross Street.
* Introduce additional cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter hire bays.

Whitefriars Neighbourhood
Cycling Improvements
How do you feel about this proposal?

0G¢ abed

Around two-thirds (67%) of consultation participants

10% - AGREED with the proposed cycling improvements for

the Whitefriars neighbourhood.
No. of responses:  (59) (12) 11) (5) (18)

m Strongly agree mAgree = Not sure mDisagree mStrongly disagree

62



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Cycling Improvements

Reasons Underpinning Views

Increasing cyclist safety.

* Increasing cycling movement/accessibility/protection.
 Prioritising cyclists.

» Encouraging cycling and active transport.

» Rebalancing car domination.

» Consider widening the scope of proposals.

. » Further eroding road space.
This chart shows the count of topics in free

text responses to this question, and if the ° |n_0reaS!ng congfestlon. . .
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. + Displacing traffic to neighbouring roads/routes.

* Wasting public monies.
* Neglecting to address the issue of dangerous cycling.
* Making unnecessary changes.

TG¢ abed

- Agree - Disagree 63



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Access

We are currently investigating access into the Whitefriars Neighbourhood for motor vehicles to make sure it is sufficient for
businesses and residents in the neighbourhood. To help inform our investigations do you consider:

» Access into the neighbourhood for motor vehicles is sufficient for businesses and residents in the area?

u Whitefriars Neighbourhood Access
access into the neighbourhood for motor
vehggles sufficient for businesses and residents in 70% of consultation participants currently felt that there was
cI\Jn the area? sufficient motor vehicle access into the neighbourhood for both
N 11 responses businesses and residents.

Note: The vast majority of residents felt that this access was

17 responses -
sufficient.

18%

64 responses

Of the 9 business owners who responded, 5 felt that this access
was sufficient, and 4 felt that it was not sufficient.

EYes mUnsure mNoO

64



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Access

We are currently investigating access into the Whitefriars Neighbourhood for motor vehicles to make sure it is sufficient for
businesses and residents in the neighbourhood. To help inform our investigations do you consider:

» That through traffic in the area is a problem and think restrictions should be introduced to reduce it?

Whitefriars Neighbourhood Access
Is fhrough traffic in the area a problem requiring

e introduction of restrictions to reduce it? A majority (60%) of consultation participants felt that through
(.Nn traffic in the area was a problem, requiring reduction via
13%) restrictions.

23 responses

Note: A majority of residents SUPPORTED through traffic

restrictions.
15%

14 responses 55 responses

Of the 9 business owners who responded, 2 SUPPORTED through
traffic restrictions and 7 OPPOSED them.

mYes mUnsure mNo

65



Whitefriars Neighbourhood Access

The Themes Underpinning Views

Reducing motor traffic and car dominance.
» Restricting through traffic to main roads.

» Very little traffic currently evident.

* Improving air quality.

yGz abed

This chart shows the count of topics in free . . .
text responses to this question, and if the o Creatlng congestion.
respondent agreed or disagreed with the topic. 5 Making unnecessary changes.

» Impeding essential thoroughfare traffic and parking.

- Agree - Disagree
66



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Potential Small Public Space

At the southern end of Temple Avenue, a small public space could be created. Temple Avenue, however, may be required to
enable direct vehicle access into the neighbourhood from the Victoria Embankment.

.-
o) o .

Q Whitefriars Neighbourhood Almost 80% of consultation participants felt that public
N Based on the above, what should be prioritised? space should take priority over direct motor access in
al this area.

o1

Note: this feeling was particularly strong among
78% 22% residents and workers.

No. of responses: (71) (20) B
Of the 8 business owners who responded, 3 felt that

public space should be prioritised, while 5 felt that

mPublic space W Direct motor access direct motor access should be prioritised.

67



9G¢ abed

Selected Comments About Whitefriars Neighbourhood Proposals

Supporting Comments

“The area is very busy and some roads attract

more vehicular traffic than others so
prioritising pedestrians here is important”.

“We have a climate emergency and a
need to get people out of cars and into
active travel options whether possible”.

“I support these changes as pedestrians
should be a priority - especially with the
need to increase active transport in
addition to the use of public transport”.

“More needs done to support safe cycling”.

“I think that street tree planting should be
maximised”.

“Cars and drivers have had it their way far
too long. Reclaim the streets”.

“We are losing too much road space.
London was built for the horse and
cart”.

“We have lost enough road space as
it is. Why don't you just ban all
motor vehicles altogether then see
all business leave London and people
losing jobs?”.

“Not everyone can walk or cycle.

By taking more road space it will
mean more standstill traffic -

not very wise for one of the financial
capitals of the world”.

68



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Interactive Map Comments

/G¢ abed

There were 5 comments made about the
Whitefriars neighbourhood via the
interactive map.

These focused on the areas highlighted
with orange pins on this map.

Comments related to walking (3), cycling
(3), traffic (2) and other subjects (3, each
just 1 comment).

They included 1 positive and 4 negative
comments.

69



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Experience Improvements

This chart shows the count of topics in free
text responses to this question, and if the

respondent expressed a positive or negative
opinion.

8G¢ abed

B Negative

70



Email Responses

In addition to the Commonplace survey feedback, a total of 5 emails were received.

These included:

2 responses from the London Cycling Campaign. These responses demonstrated general support for the proposals, particularly for dedicated
space for cycling on City Access Streets:

* The Chancery Lane Neighbourhood - support for proposals but concern about no protected space on Fetter Lane.

. ;?—Ieet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood - support for proposals but concern about no protective space on Fleet Street. If space is not available
(%a bus gate should be considered as an alternative.

* N®Id Bailey Neighbourhood - support for proposals but concern about traffic speeds on Limeburner Lane - require protected space for cyclists
%r changes to the carriageway to restrict vehicle speeds.

» Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood - support for proposals, particularly Queen Victoria Street.
» Whitefriars Neighbourhood - support for proposals.

1 response received from London Living Streets. They support the proposals but recommend:

» Investigating Old Bailey north of Limeburner Lane having traffic restrictions.
* Fleet Street having a bus gate to restrict through traffic.

71



Email Responses

2 email responses were also received from individuals:

#1

The project area should be extended to include St Paul’s cathedral, Blackfriars and their child’s school.
Blackfriars Station needs internal cycle storage.

Cycle improvements on Queen Victoria should be prioritised.

A pedestrian crossing on Upper Thames Street should be installed (outside project area).

#2

- Ghe Healthy Streets Plan should not be produced before the new Transport Strategy is published.
-gncreased walking and cycling will not improve people’s health.

« (QCyclists are more of a threat to pedestrians than motor vehicles.

* Nriorities of the plan should be street maintenance and carriageway and pavement space not be given temporary road closures for building

ork and street clutter.
Changes should be made at the junction of Temple Avenue and New Bridge Street.
Bouverie Street should have seating introduced for people queuing at the Polish Consulate. Cyclists should be made to use Temple Avenue.
Cycle lanes are not required, and cyclists should not have any priority over other forms of traffic.
Pavements should not be widened if they are going to accommodate trees, seating and cycle stands.

72



Acknowledgements and Next Steps

Grateful acknowledgments are extended to all those who took the time to participate in the consultation.

How the Consultation Findings Will Be Used

There will be additional engagement and consultation opportunities in the future, as the plan and individual projects are
developed.

T9¢ abed

73



Page 262

74



Overall: Gender

A majority of consultation participants (71%) described
themselves as a man.

abed

NOverall: Age Group
w

The age of consultation participants ranged from
16 to 75+, with a wide spread of ages
represented — typically aged 25-54.

How would you describe your gender?

71%

0

Man Woman Non-binary/other  Prefer not to say

Which of the following age groups do you fall within?

23% 20% 22%

16%
I l I =
= H

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84

75



Overall: Disability

24% of consultation participants indicated that they had
a long-term health problem or a disability which limited

their daily activities or travel.

abed

Querall: Ethnicity
N

66% of consultation participants described their ethnicity
as White British, with 35% of another, different ethnicity.

13 different other ethnicities were specified, giving the
consultation a rich diversity of participation.

Do you have long-term health problems or a
disability that limits daily activities or travel?

- 9% 8% 3% 4% 9%
*
s° & N AN & 2
<5 § & N
3 © N o) O
e (g\ @ QO
& & & &
S & Q¥
(9
A%

* Other included hearing/vision, learning disabilities and others unspecified.

Which of the following best describes your

ethnicity?
66% 15% 10%
0 2% 1% 1% 0 5%
| —_— - T
White Other Mixed: Mixed: Asian or Other Prefer not
British White White & White Asian  ethnicities* to say
Asian Black British:

Caribbean Indian

* Other included White Irish, Other Asian, Arab, Bangladeshi, Chinese, Pakistani, African, Other
Black and Other mixed ethnicity. 76



Overall: Area Relationship

Workers (35%), visitors (28%) and those travelling through the area (24%) were the three main relationship types to the
area.

What is your relationship to the Fleet Street area?
35%

28% 24%
9‘? Worker Visitor Travelling through  Resident Business owner Student Other
Q
D
O%"a”: Usual Travel How do you usually travel in, or through, this area?

Walking (40%) and cycling (29%) were the most

frequent travel modes in, or through, the area. 40%

29%
17%

[ 8% 3% 3%
- I I
Walk Cycle Bus Taxi  Private car Other*

* Other included powered two-wheeler, commercial vehicle, motorcycle, wheelchair, tube and
train.



Chancery Lane Neighbourhood - Consultation Participants

99¢ abed

78



Fleet Street and Lanes Neighbourhood - Consultation Participants

/9¢ abed

79



Old Bailey Consultation Neighbourhood - Participants

89¢ abed

80



Carter Lane & Ludgate Neighbourhood - Consultation Participants

69¢ abed

81



Whitefriars Neighbourhood - Consultation Participants

0/¢ abed

82



Page 271



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 272



CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS
HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

WHITEFRIARS ACCESS
AND PARKING ANALYSIS

WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

CITY OF LONDON

Page 273

29 JUNE 2023



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

CITY OF LONDON

QA RECORD:

DOCUMENT REF 10041TRO1 Rev 5.0

DRAFTED BY Chris Attwood Date 29 June 2023
CHECKED BY Chris Attwood Date 29 June 2023
APPROVED BY Chris Attwood Date 29 June 2023

ELECTRONIC LOCATION

This document has been produced by Norman Rourke Pryme for CITY OF LONDON for the

B:\Projects\10041 Whitefriars Traffic

Study\Deliverables\Reports\TNO1_Whitefriars Traffic Study_V5.Docx

provision of the WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS. This document is for the purpose
of the intended recipient only. No liability will be accepted for unauthorised distribution to any
third party without written agreement in advance.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 274



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

CONTENTS

1 Introduction

11 Brief

2 Traffic flows
2.1 Traffic survey
2.2 Analysis

2.3 Traffic flow comparison

3 Vehicle routes
3.1 Origin-Destination survey
3.2 OD results
3.3 Vehicle journey times

3.4 Tudor Street

3.5 Carmelite Street
3.6 Camera enforcement for through-routes
3.7 Access from Victoria Embankment

4 Kerbside activity
4.1 Kerbside survey
4.2 Results — marked bays
4.3 Results —yellow lines
4.4 Dwell times

4.5 Opportunities

5 Junction changes on Victoria Embankment
5.1 Background
5.2 Highway layout changes

53 Analysis

6 Summary
6.1 Conclusions

6.2 Recommendations

Figure 1-1: Whitefriars study area

11
11
12
15
17
19
19

20

22
22
24
25
26

27

31
31
35
37

39
39
40

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 275



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-1: Junction count locations

Figure 2-2: Cycles (AM peak, 08:15-09:15)

Figure 2-3: All motor vehicles (AM peak, 08:15-09:15)

Figure 2-4: Cycles (PM peak, 17:15-18:15)

Figure 2-5: All motor vehicles (PM peak, 17:15-18:15)

Figure 2-6: Appropriate protection from motor traffic on highways (Figure 4.1, LTN 1/20)
Figure 2-7: Whitefriars area flow comparison

Figure 2-8: Fleet Street flow comparison

Figure 3-1: Survey Origin-Destination (OD) points

Figure 3-2: OD summary for Wednesday

Figure 3-3: OD summary for Saturday

Figure 3-4: Vehicle routes from Fleet Street (Wednesday)
Figure 3-5: Vehicle routes from New Bridge Street (Wednesday)

Figure 3-6: Average journey time by vehicle type for each peak hour

Figure 3-7: Average journey times between entry and exit points by vehicle type (Wednesday)

Figure 3-8: Average journey times between entry and exit points by vehicle type (Thursday)
Figure 3-9: Average journey times between entry and exit points by vehicle type (Saturday)
Figure 3-10: Whitefriars area camera locations for prohibition of through routes

Figure 3-11: Vehicle routes from Victoria Embankment heading north (Wednesday)

Figure 4-1: Kerbside survey area

Figure 4-2: Existing kerbside provision

Figure 4-3: Kerbside summary for study area

Figure 4-4: Kerbside summary by restriction type

Figure 4-5: Yellow line summary for study area

Figure 4-6: Parking dwell time results

Figure 4-7: Existing bay locations (surveyed area)

Figure 4-8: Proposed bay relocation (surveyed area)

Figure 4-9: Existing bay locations (whole area)

Figure 4-10: Proposed bay locations (whole area)

Figure 5-1: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (pre-2005)

Figure 5-2: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2005-2016)

Figure 5-3: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2016)

Figure 5-4: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2016 to present)

10
12
13
13
14
15
15
16
16
17
20
21
22
23
24
25
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 276



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 5-5: TfL proposed layout
Figure 5-6: Option 3
Figure 5-7: Option 4

Figure 5-8: Routes to/from Whitefriars from the wider area

Appendix A: Traffic flows and routes analysis

Appendix B: Kerbside activity analysis

35

36

37

38

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 277



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Brief

1.1.1 NRP has been commissioned by City of London (Col) to undertake a traffic study of the Whitefriars area to

understand existing conditions and to identify opportunities for public realm improvements that would
support the City’s Healthy Street Strategy for the Fleet Street area.

1.1.2 The study area for the traffic analysis is shown in Figure 1-1.
Figure 1-1: Whitefriars study area
t Street i1
Flee udgqts,
w
2 2 g o
< = c
© 3. o o
- = 0t c -~
) o oS B [}
3 o = s 2
~
o 3 C o o
= o o = Z
[-% et )} % o
5 o f
&) ® w
() (i =
] z
= o % g o
o S - a w
3 5 @ 5 -+
o ] = E]
= — - - O o
L) o o o 3 L]
5 - u = o &
W a s o
& E 2 i =
N o o = o :
S Tudor-Street o
2 e
< &
Q (& [
= S @
g Ef 3 quee"®
3 0 Watergate 2
o =
=; o
Tallis'Street g g
° o )
o i a
> o
< -
o
3
c
° ©
victori@® gmbankment a
ment riars Underpass z
3
2
2
n
W
ol
Q.
«w
[}

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 278

Page 1 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

2

2.1
2.11

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

2.15

TRAFFIC FLOWS

Traffic survey

NDC were commissioned by NRP/ Col to undertake surveys to record traffic flows at a number of junctions
within the Whitefriars study area. The survey dates and times were as follows:

e Wednesday 22nd March, Thursday 23rd March and Saturday 25th March 2023
e (07:00-10:00, 12:00-14:00, 16:00-19:00

The surveys were required to ascertain the number of vehicles within the Whitefriars area, and derive the
volume of traffic using the streets as a through route, with no apparent purpose within the area.

Junction counts were undertaken at the following locations:
e Fleet Street/ Bride Lane

e New Bridge Street/ Bridewell Place

New Bridge Street/ Tudor Street

Carmelite Street/ Victoria Embankment

Carmelite Street/ Tallis Street

Temple Avenue/ Tallis Street
e Bouverie Street/ Temple Lane

Tudor Street/ Carmelite Street/ Whitefriars Street

Tudor Street/ John Carpenter Street

Tudor Street/ Bridewell Place/ Kingscote Street

e Temple Avenue/ Tudor Street/ Bouverie Street

The following junctions were previously surveyed in October 2022

e  Fleet Street/ Bouverie Street

e  Fleet Street/ Whitefriars Street

e Fleet Street/ Salisbury Court

e  Fleet Street/ Farringdon Street/ Ludgate Hill/ New Bridge Street

Figure 2-1 shows the locations of the junction counts.

NORMAN

ROURKE PRYME Page 279 Page 2 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-1: Junction count locations

Fleeﬁ'gﬁ;eet." e
[ .

a®

o £ S
*eds® ‘s’
< <
o %
2 =
o %
n A,
o [}
=
> [t
P (1)
-
4
o©
)
-

aup- ajdwal oo pmc\‘-‘m-‘

NIPM youag s,6un

@ Tallis Stre
victori® Em
ment mthc

anuaay a|d

;aa.auu [Jo}

199415 423uadip)d uyor

-n
Y
H -
Ln v
o g’
=
o
c
=
<
0
o
c
!
B3
v X
=¥ -
2 =
3 L]
3 -
0 o
o w
E L]

@Tudor Stre @

ent

kfriars Underpass

P

-
3 . Ly
H = dgqte A
"- »*
@
<
o
]
@
2
rf
m
z
]
<
w
=
(]
]
E @
£ 2
= 3
s ]
%} ~
T %
m <
@ m
=
, &
o & o
= N7 0
L & Quee“
Wate g
rgate o
L2
Q

O March 2023 survey

.w

£ s October 2022 survey

ML

2.1.6
hours for the following vehicle types:
e Light vehicles (car, taxi, LGV and motorcycle)
e Heavy vehicles (MGV, HGV, bus, coach)
e Cycles
e Taxis
e All motor vehicles
2.1.7
compared to January 2018.
2.1.8

The flow diagrams for all motor vehicles and for cycles are shown in Figure 2-2 to Figure 2-5.

Appendix A provides traffic flow diagrams for the AM peak (08:15-09:15) and the PM peak (17:15-18:15)

Appendix A also includes the change in cycles and all motor vehicles in March 2023 and October 2022

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 280

Page 3 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-2: Cycles (AM peak, 08:15-09:15)

March 2023 survey
data

October 2022 survey
data

[

_ Cycle movement
Motorised vehicle movement

2.1.9 In the morning peak hour the dominant cycle movement through the Whitefriars area is entering from
Victoria Embankment and then proceeding northbound on Temple Avenue, on to Bouverie Street, and then

turning left onto Fleet Street.

2.1.10 The other major cycle flow through the Whitefriars area is westbound on Tudor Street, the majority of which
turn left onto Temple Avenue to proceed southbound toward Victoria Embankment.

2.1.11 Both of these movements provide links to/from Cycleway 3 to the south and Cycleway 6 to the east.

Page 281 Page 4 of 40

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-3: All motor vehicles (AM peak, 08:15-09:15)

data

[ [

data

_ Cycle movement

March 2023 survey

October 2022 survey

Motorised vehicle movement

2.1.12

2.1.13
2.1.14

2.1.15

For motor vehicles, the major flows in the AM peak hour through the Whitefriars area are as follows:

Southbound on Bouverie Street, left onto Tudor Street eastbound, and leaving the area by turning right
onto New Bridge Street southbound.

Westbound on Tudor Street (entering from New Bridge Street via Bridewell Place), and then turning
right onto Whitefriars Street to exit by turning left onto Fleet Street.

The highest 2-way flow on Tudor Street is 176 motor vehicles in the AM peak hour.
Bouverie Street has a southbound flow of 141 motor vehicles.
Whitefriars Street has a northbound flow of 56 motor vehicles.

Bridewell Place has a 2-way flow of 59 motor vehicles.

No other streets within the Whitefriars area have a flow of more than 50 motor vehicles.

The number of heavy vehicles is highest on Bouverie Street and Tudor Street, with 35 recorded on Bouverie
Street and 43 on Tudor Street in the AM peak hour. It is likely that some of these are associated with the
development in the Salisbury Court area.

In the AM peak hour, on Bouverie Street and Tudor Street, 20-25% of motor vehicles are taxis.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 282 Page 5 of 40




WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-4: Cycles (PM peak, 17:15-18:15)

March 2023 survey
data

October 2022 survey
data

g

_ Cycle movement
== Motorised vehicle movement

2.1.16 In the evening peak hour the dominant cycle movement through the Whitefriars area is entering from Fleet
Street and then proceeding southbound on Bouverie Street, on to Temple Avenue, and then exiting onto

Victoria Embankment.

2.1.17 The other major cycle flow through the Whitefriars area is eastbound on Tudor Street, which turns onto
Cycleway 6 on New Bridge Street.

Page 283 Page 6 of 40

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-5: All motor vehicles (PM peak, 17:15-18:15)

March 2023 survey

I:I data
=

October 2022 survey
data

_ Cycle movement

= Moatorised vehicle movement

2.1.18 For motor vehicles, the major flows in the PM peak hour through the Whitefriars area are as follows:

Southbound on Bouverie Street, left onto Tudor Street eastbound, and leaving the area by turning right
onto New Bridge Street southbound.

The highest 2-way flow on Tudor Street is 201 motor vehicles in the PM peak hour.
Bouverie Street has a southbound flow of 138 motor vehicles.
Whitefriars Street has a northbound flow of 52 motor vehicles.

Bridewell Place has a 2-way flow of 65 motor vehicles.

2.1.19 No other streets within the Whitefriars area have a flow of more than 50 motor vehicles.

2.1.20 The number of heavy vehicles is very low, with 3 recorded on Tudor Street in the PM peak hour.

2.1.21 Inthe PM peak hour, on Bouverie Street and Tudor Street, 30-40% of motor vehicles are taxis.

2.2 Analysis

2.2.1 The traffic flows within the Whitefriars area are generally low. The DfT Cycle Infrastructure Design (LTN 1/20,
July 2020) sets out the appropriate level of protection for cyclists from motor vehicles on roads with varying
traffic conditions. This is recreated in Figure 2-6.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 284 Page 7 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 2-6: Appropriate protection from motor traffic on highways (Figure 4.1, LTN 1/20)

Figure 4.1: Appropriate protection from motor traffic on highways

Mixed Traffic

Cycle Lane
(mandatory/

Bt advisory)

Segregation

Speed Limit? Mator Traffic Protected Space for Cycling
L Fully Kerbed Stepped Cycle
(pay24 le Track Track
hour)? Cycle Trac rac
0
2000
20 mph?
4000
6000+

2000
30 mph

4000
6000+

40 mph Any

50+ mph Any
Notes:
l:l Provision suitable for most people 1. If the 85" percentile speed is more than 10% above the speed limit the next
highest speed limit should be applied
Provision not suitable for all people and will exclude some potential users 2. The recommended provision assumes that the peak hour motor traffic flow

and/or have safety concerns

Provision suitable for few people and will exclude most potential users
and/or have safety concerns

3.

is no more than 10% of the 24 hour flow

In rural areas achieving speeds of 20mph may be difficult, and so shared
routes with speeds of up to 30mph will be generally acceptable with motor
vehicle flows of up to 1,000 pcu per day

The streets within the Whitefriars area all have a speed limit of 20mph, with a maximum motor vehicle flow

of approximately 2,000 PCUs on Tudor Street, with lower flows on all other streets. TfL collision data for the
Whitefriars area shows that from 2017-2022 there have been 8 collisions resulting in casualties, with all of
these having severity of slight. The mode of travel for the casualties were car (x1), cycle (x3) motorbike (x1),

The low traffic flows, low number of heavy vehicles, low speeds and low number of collisions suggest that

mixing cycles and motor vehicles without segregation or cycle lanes is an appropriate approach.

The October 2022 and March 2023 survey data has been compared to the January 2018 survey data in order

to see how this has changed for motor vehicles and cycles. This comparison has been undertaken for vehicles

2.2.2
taxi (x2) and pedestrian (x1).
2.2.3
2.3 Traffic flow comparison
2.3.1
entering and exiting the Whitefriars area.
2.3.2

Fetter Lane.

A comparison has also been made for the eastbound and westbound flow on Fleet Street, to the west of

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 285

Page 8 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Whitefriars area

2.3.3 Motor vehicle flows entering the Whitefriars area in March 2023 have reduced by 29% in the AM peak hour
and by 19% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

234 Cycle flows entering the Whitefriars area in March 2023 have reduced by 28% in the AM peak hour and by
31% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

Figure 2-7: Whitefriars area flow comparison

WHITEFRIARS AREA MOTORISED VEHICLE ENTRY MOTOR VEHICLES

FLOW COMPARISON Mar-23 AM peak PM peak
Entry flow 185 167
Exit flow 162 210
&
2 Jan-18 AM peak PM peak
§ Entry flow 259 206
S Exit flow 194 238
: Change AM peak PM peak
% ' Entry flow -74 -39
2 Exit flow -32 228
AM peak PM peak % change  AM peak PM peak
PEAK HOUR Entry flow -29% -19%
Exit flow -16% “12%
WHITEFRIARS AREA CYCLE ENTRY FLOW
COMPARISON Mar-23 AM peak PM peak
Entry flow 293 159
: Exit flow 217 231
&
- Jan-18 AM peak PM peak
§ Entry flow 405 232
S Exit flow 325 239
g Change AM peak PM peak
% Entry flow -112 73
> Exit flow -108 -8
AM peak PM peak % change  AM peak PM peak
PEAK HOUR Entry flow -28% -31%
Exit flow -33% -3%

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 286 Page 9 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Fleet Street

2.3.5 Motor vehicle flows eastbound on Fleet Street in October 2022 have reduced by 40% in the AM peak hour
and by 47% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

2.3.6 2-way cycle flows on Fleet Street in October 2022 have increased by 24% in the AM peak hour and by 32% in
the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

Figure 2-8: Fleet Street flow comparison

MOTOR VEHICLES

FLEET STREET EASTBOUND MOTORISED VEHICLE FLEET STREET WESTBOUND MOTORISED VEHICLE
ENTRY FLOW COMPARISON ENTRY FLOW COMPARISON Oct22 AM peak PM peak
Eastbound 416 425
Westbound 330 328
" "
g 4
=] =} Jan-18 AM peak PM peak
& & Eastbound 637 620
= = Westbound 548 618
o -4
2 @ Change AM peak PM peak
% % Eastbound -221 -195
& = Westbound 218 -290
AM peak PM peak AM peak PM peak % change  AM peak PM peak
PEAK HOUR PEAK HOUR Eastbound -35% -31%
Westbound -40% -47%
FLEET STREET EASTBOUND CYCLE ENTRY FLOW FLEET STREET WESTBOUND CYCLE ENTRY FLOW CYCLES
COMPARISON COMPARISON Oct22 AM peak PM peak
Eastbound 234 231
Westbound 191 184
w v
] |
Oc =] Jan-18 AM peak PM peak
§ ; Eastbound 227 140
o w Westbound 116 174
o ]
o o
@ = Change AM peak PM peak
% % Eastbound 7 91
% = Westbound 75 10
AM peak PM peak AM peak PM peak % change AM peak PM peak
PEAK HOUR PEAK HOUR Eastbound 3% 65%
Westbound 65% 6%

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 287 Page 10 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

3 VEHICLE ROUTES

3.1
3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.15

Origin-Destination survey

Vehicle Origin-Destination (OD) routes were surveyed using Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR)
data collection to understand how vehicles move through the Whitefriars Area and how long they spend in it.

The survey dates and times were as follows:
e Wednesday 22nd March, Thursday 23rd March and Saturday 25th March 2023
e (07:00-10:00, 12:00-14:00, 16:00-19:00

The ANPR survey is only able to collect data for motor vehicles because it requires number plates to match
the vehicles at each OD point.

The surveyed Origin and Destination points are listed below and shown in Figure 3-1:
Carmelite Street (exit only to Victoria Embankment slip road)
Victoria Embankment slip road (eastbound only)
Watergate (exit only)

Tudor Street (exit only)

1.

2.

3

4

5. Bridewell Place (entry and exit)
6. New Bridge Street (2-way)

7. Whitefriars Street (exit only)

8. Bouverie Street (entry only)

9. Fleet Street (2-way)

10. Tallis Street (2-way)
Vehicle types surveyed were:

e  Car (including taxi)

e LGV
e 0OGV1
e 0GV2

NORMAN

ROURKE PRYME Page 288 Page 11 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 3-1: Survey Origin-Destination (OD) points

Flelit Street
9FI

/4
udsote A

S

1
5;0‘.“;31 i

00
19308 al,JB'I"a

44n0D AanasiiPS
Bride L""'e

aupjadwal o papawol
‘aa,\lg

os1y2952°°

JI1H @soJwiid
Bridewer Place

Tudor-Street I 4

APM youd s, Bun

quee®

2Bp1ag MaN
1@ MaN 3182418
199115 26p!

—
=g
o=
L
-
o
o
-
3192943G @11|2WJIDD
193435 423uadip)d uyor
s
Q
~+
]
3
«@
D

anuaAy ajdwa]

| 2
1
ogmbunkment

Blackfriars Underpass

ment Vic{or\

aBpiig saplapjop|g

3.2 ODresults
3.2.1

Figure 3-2 and Figure 3-3 provide a summary of the proportional split of vehicle movements between each
OD point for Wednesday and Saturday respectively.
3.2.2

The data reflects the junction count survey, with the dominant movements through the Whitefriars area
being between Fleet Street and New Bridge Street.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 289

Page 12 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 3-2: OD summary for Wednesday

Destination

Wednesday

Origin

Origin

3.2.3 Appendix A provides the detail for the main routes through the Whitefriars area for Wednesday, Thursday
and Saturday. Summary flow diagrams are provided in Figure 3-4 and Figure 3-5 that show how motor
vehicles move through the study area when entering from Fleet Street and New Bridge Street, which are the
only 2 entry points for motor vehicles (with Salisbury Court closed for development). The flow diagrams
represent the total of the 8 hours surveyed on Wednesday.

3.2.4  Thejunction count and OD data shows that the movement with the highest motor vehicle flow is from Fleet
Street to New Bridge Street. The main reason for this is likely to be because the right-turn from Fleet Street
eastbound to New Bridge Street southbound at Ludgate Circus is prohibited. Therefore, the route through
Whitefriars via Tudor Street is the most direct way of travelling from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street.

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 290 Page 13 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 3-4: Vehicle routes from Fleet Street (Wednesday)

2 %
Fle Udgote y
==
6
5
3
o
9‘ z
= o
S <
E 2
r 58
v
5 = %
= 2 -31 °
= o 3 o
3 - = -~
w
N . % T z
o = ]
: 4 v
£ &
Q s ®
= ) ® |
Q g - Quee“
- w (]
3 0 oterg e 2
o =
= °
o 3
) A -
3 -
= .
= ® Ke
> ~ Y
s - 2 _
F 1 200 vehicles
o
3 t 2
Giteraria EDD s B 100 vehicle
ment Blackfriars Underpass i
== 50 vehicles
=== )5 vehicles
10 vehicles

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 291

Page 14 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 3-5: Vehicle routes from New Bridge Street (Wednesday)

L
9i udgate y
w
£ o ———
" <
8% o o 6
- ;' E ;I
% [ 3= o
o o 2] =
o 1)
o ® S z
- p S .
E E
3 =4
o o
v 5w
3 N : I >
3 3 w & -~
= 3 E s s
e ) 3 2 E 2
(g g o 3 g
w 3 T o 2 %
N = o = 3 2
o
dor-Street
5. Tudor-Str a “__‘"
g &
< [ )
= ° ) |
9 g ; oueef\
3 o o o
o k] 3
T]g()iftreet = E
o
£ s 2 -
e
> e \
s =t ¥ 2
2 1 . 200 vehicles
o
< torid gmbankment - 100 vehicle
Vic i
ment Blackfriars Underpass
== 50 vehicles
=== )5 vehicles
—— 10 vehicles

3.3 Vehicle journey times
3.3.1

The ANPR survey provides the time taken for vehicles to move between each OD point. Figure 3-6 presents
the average journey time between the Whitefriars entry and exit points by vehicle type for each peak hour.

Figure 3-6: Average journey time by vehicle type for each peak hour

IAVERAGE VEHICLE JOURNEY TIME IAVERAGE VEHICLE JOURNEY TIME
\WEDNESDAY TOTAL [saTurDAY AM IP PM TOTAL
(Car 00:01:42 00:01:37 [|Car 00:01:14
LGV 00:01:37 | 00:01:35 ||LGV
0GV1 00:00:54 N/A N/ A
00:01:42 0OGV2 N/A /A N/A N/ A

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 292

Page 15 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

3.3.2 Figure 3-7, Figure 3-8 and Figure 3-9 show the average journey time between the Whitefriars entry and exit
points by vehicle type for each survey day.

Figure 3-7: Average journey times between entry and exit points by vehicle type
(Wednesday)

JOURNEY TIMES BY VEHICLE TYPE (WEDNESDAY)

Car
mLGV
m OGV1

NUMBER OF VEHICLES

mOGV2

0-2mins 2-4mins 4-6mins 6-8mins 8-10mins
JOURNEY TIME

Car
mLGV
m oGVl

vy
w
—_
8
s
—
>
—_
o
o
—
@
=
=)
=

B OGV2

0-2mins 2-4mins 4-6mins 6-8mins 8-10mins
JOURNEY TIME

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 293 Page 16 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 3-9: Average journey times between entry and exit points by vehicle type (Saturday)

JOURNEY TIMES BY VEHICLE TYPE (SATURDAY)

v
ek
= |
=
o
i
>
T
(@)
[+ 4
v}
[<*]
=
o)
=

=l

0-2mins 2-4mins 4-6mins 6-Bmins 8-10mins
JOURNEY TIME

3.3.3 The journey time results for all survey days (Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday), show that over 80% pass
through the area within 2 minutes. This suggests most vehicles move through the Whitefriars area without
having a purpose within the area. It also demonstrates a lack of congestion and delay within the area.

3.4  Tudor Street

3.4.1 The traffic survey data shows that Tudor Street carries the highest volumes of traffic in the Whitefriars area.
However, as described in paragraph 2.2.2, the traffic flows on Tudor Street are low enough for cyclists to mix
with motor traffic without any segregation. Measures to further reduce motor vehicle flow on Tudor Street
are presented in Table 3-1, as well as the benefits and impacts of those options.

3.4.2 Within Table 3-1, “permitted vehicles” are those that would not receive a Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) if
detected by the enforcement camera. Camera enforcement provides the option to have list of number plates
that would not get a ticket if detected by the camera. This could apply to residents and/or businesses in the
Whitefriars area, and allow them essential access to the area. This option gives flexibility in permitting “local”
vehicles through the area, which would mean little or no disbenefit to residents and/or businesses, whilst
being able to generate PCNs to those not on the list (i.e. non-local through traffic). Similar schemes are in
operation in other locations in, for example, Westminster.

3.4.3 Taking the OD data and the traffic count data, the flow reductions on Tudor Street as result of movement
restrictions are estimated to be as follows:

o 44% of vehicles travel directly from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street. Removing this route would result
in approximately 40 fewer motor vehicles on Tudor Street in both the AM and PM peak hour periods.

e 69% of vehicles enter Bridewell Place westbound from New Bridge Street and travel on Tudor Street
west of Bridewell Place. Removing this route would result in approximately 30 fewer motor vehicles on
Tudor Street in the AM peak hour and 20 motor vehicles in the PM peak hour period.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 294 Page 17 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Table 3-1: Tudor Street through movement restriction options

Benefits

Description

Impacts

e Increase in motor traffic exiting from Carmelite
Street and Whitefriars Street

e No through route on Tudor

Street for any motor traffic

Modal filter on Cyclists only would

; e Route from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street
Tudor Street be able to proceed ~ ®  Noenforcement required . &
between Dorset  eastbound on . removed for motor vehicles. Alternative route
Ri q Tudor Street east of * Access toall streets retained may use Arundel Street and Victoria
I5€ an Ulefolr SNIEE SRS @ for motor vehicles Embankment
Bridewell Place Dorset Rise
° O.ppor.tumty for footway e Restriction in access/egress for residents with
widening on Tudor Street motor vehicles and servicing motor vehicles
e Increase in motor traffic exiting from Carmelite
e No through route for non- o
: ) Street and Whitefriars Street
Enforcement Cyclists and local motor traffic
camera on permitted vehicles - Route from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street
No restriction on motor ) )
Tudor Street would be able to . removed for motor vehicles. Alternative route
vehicle movement for ) .
between Dorset  proceed eastbound . may use Arundel Street and Victoria
) residents
Rise and on Tudor Street Embankment

Bridewell Place

east of Dorset Rise

Access to all streets retained
for motor vehicles

Camera enforcement, maintenance and

permitted vehicle list required

Tudor Street ) N
one-way be able to use Enforcement required Street and Whitefriars Street
Tudor Street to )
westbound Westbound movement on Route from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street
proceed eastbound S . )
(except for . Tudor Street (which is removed for motor vehicles. Alternative route
. east of Dorset Rise. ) . .
cyclists) : currently low) permitted to may use Arundel Street and Victoria
All vehicles would o
between Dorset maintain local access Embankment
Rise and be able to travel

Bridewell Place

Cyclists only would

westbound on
Tudor Street

No through route for any
motor traffic from Fleet
Street to New Bridge Street

Access to all streets retained
for motor vehicles

Opportunity for footway
widening

Increase in motor traffic exiting from Carmelite

Restriction in egress for residents with motor

vehicles and servicing motor vehicles

Tudor Street

one-way I ‘ o
eastbound A2 Gl Enforcement require Smaller reduction in motor vehicle flow

east of Dorset Rise. . L
(except for Cycles only vehicles No reassignment required as compared with eastbound restriction
cyclists) would be able to the route from Fleet Street to Restriction in access for residents with motor
between Dorset travel westbound New Bridge Street is retained vehicles and servicing motor vehicles
Rise and

Bridewell Place

All vehicles would
be able to use
Tudor Street to

on Tudor Street
west of Bridewell
Place

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

No through route for any
motor traffic from New
Bridge Street to west of
Bridewell Place

Access to all streets retained
for motor vehicles

Opportunity for footway
widening

Page 295

Page 18 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

3.5 Carmelite Street

3.5.1 Carmelite Street provides access to Victoria Embankment (slip road), meaning it also acts as a route through
Whitefriars like Tudor Street. However, the use of Carmelite Street as a through route is lower than Tudor
Street. Part of the reason for this is that the egress from Carmelite Street only provides access to Victoria
Embankment (slip road) and not Victoria Embankment/ Blackfriars Underpass, or indeed Blackfriars Bridge
due to the restriction at the junction with New Bridge Street.

3.5.2 If motor vehicle egress from Carmelite Street was prohibited, and Tudor Street remained as it currently is,
there would be more traffic on Tudor Street, as this would be the only exit from Whitefriars (apart from
Whitefriars Street). This would equate to 20-30 additional motor vehicles in the AM and PM peak hours.

3.5.3 With motor vehicle egress removed, Carmelite Street would have a similar layout to that on John Carpenter
Street. Space would be required for vehicles to turn around at the southern end of Carmelite Street, whilst
allowing access and egress for cycles.

3.6 Camera enforcement for through-routes

3.6.1 Camera enforcement could be introduced to prohibit rat-running through the whole of the Whitefriars area,
without having to make any changes to the existing highway layout.

3.6.2 With the existing layout, 7 cameras would cover all entry and exit points. This assumes one camera could
cover entry and exit on Bridewell Place. The locations are shown in Figure 3-10 and listed below:

e  Bouverie Street (entry only)

e Salisbury Court (entry only)

e Bridewell Place (entry and exit)
e Tudor Street (exit only)

e Watergate (exit only)

e Carmelite Street (exit only)

e  Whitefriars Street (exit only)

3.6.3 The cameras would detect motor vehicles entering and exiting the Whitefriars area. If the time taken
between entry and exit was less than a pre-determined value, then a PCN would be issued.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 296 Page 19 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

3.7
3.7.1

3.7.2

3.7.3

3.7.4

Figure 3-10: Whitefriars area camera locations for prohibition of through routes

Fleet Street Lo
o Sate 4
I?' I?, > W &
= " 2 g 3
o o ) = %
3 [ : 3 o
o 3 ° ) T
a ; G o o
o o " € -
(8 - » c z
5 3 3
3 © =
) - 2
g &
o o ?, o o0
g B % a (’g
° = © £ .
ok = o 3 p
5 E o o 2 o
2 5 o w o &
* S L) T
) = T 5.4 z
N o = T z
w = & >
3 Tudor-Street i
5 Y
< [
5 %
= o
Q :37- -{; Ouee\'\
g 0 Watg o
o c A
= o
Tallis'Street g g
0 @ 3
. k'
=2 o ®
o - 3
> o
= -
3 (4
c
- bank t w
. q Embankmen 3
victori® 3 a
ment Blackfriars Underpass =
=
Q
=
n
W
=
Q
(7]
)

Access from Victoria Embankment

Vehicle movements from the Victoria Embankment eastbound slip road have been analysed to understand
the level of demand to access the Whitefriars area from the south, which is not currently possible.

For the 8 surveyed hours on Wednesday, 79% of vehicles heading north from Victoria Embankment go to the
Ludgate Circus junction. The remaining 21% enter the Whitefriars area at Bridewell Place. This equates to 46

vehicles going from Victoria Embankment to the Whitefriars area across the 8 hours surveyed for
Wednesday.

For the 8 surveyed hours on Thursday, 87% of vehicles heading north from Victoria Embankment go to the
Ludgate Circus junction. The remaining 13% enter the Whitefriars area at Bridewell Place. This equates to 25
vehicles going from Victoria Embankment to the Whitefriars area across the 8 hours surveyed for Thursday.

For the 8 surveyed hours on Saturday, 96% of vehicles heading north from Victoria Embankment go to the
Ludgate Circus junction. The remaining 4% enter the Whitefriars area at Bridewell Place. This equates to 4
vehicles going from Victoria Embankment to the Whitefriars area across the 8 hours surveyed for Saturday.

NORMAN

Page 297

Page 20 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

3.7.5 The full data summary can be found at Appendix A, with the vehicle routes for Wednesday shown in Figure
3-11.

3.7.6

The survey data suggests there is not significant demand to access Whitefriars from the south of the area.

Figure 3-11: Vehicle routes from Victoria Embankment heading north (Wednesday)

Oiclit Street Ludgute
g 2 |
== —’ % &
® -]
8:_ 7;@ g oy
o o - o
7] - < T
w 2. =
3 9 o @
o - <
p-4 @ p 8
®
)
-~

wo
aupn ajdwal oupn PAPA

&
v 2 s
e - a
3 1 =
2 > o 3
(g o 3 e
@ T o o
o = =
g = o
g Tudor-Street
5
3
2 g
A 9 g oueef\
e
3 0
o S
TI0igptreet E
9, a @
o 1 ° Ke
> e Y
3 —) §
2 1 \ . 200 vehicles
o
- t 3
Gitivori ETIDKIBOR B 100 vehicle
ment Blackfriars Underpass :
== 50 vehicles
=== )5 vehicles
—— 10 vehicles

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 298 Page 21 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

4 KERBSIDE ACTIVITY

4.1  Kerbside survey

41.1 NDC were commissioned by NRP/ ColL to record kerbside activity on specific streets within the Whitefriars
study area. The survey dates and times were as follows:
e Wednesday 22nd March, Thursday 23rd March and Saturday 25th March 2023
e (07:00-19:00 on each day
4.1.2 All results are presented as vehicle units. This assumes a vehicle unit has a length of 5m, where a car is 1 unit;
a motorcycle is 0.17 units, a coach 3 units, etc.
Figure 4-1: Kerbside survey area
o
Fleet Street Luds"’te;
9 e
< < z &
o e o g
c % 4 g %
E} [ 5 y: 3
8 3 S, o o
= o v E z
£ ! ®
L] o =L
] o
— o ?g 5 ‘?‘
g 3 2 o Ty
= 3 m = 3
o - - (7] o
" @ o a2 2 o
3 n 4 -
ab : : z
2 l Tudor Street o I ©
¥ ox -
s I-—- u b | &
= 1 o g:: | ‘:n
g g 3 N - auee®
: 3 e Watergate P -
. L T -
] Tallis'Street 7 ! e ———I
1| ¢ @ 7!
1| 3 : o
1l = a =1
l > :l
1 s “1
F 1
Ll ]
v i 2 o e o a
V\.—,tof‘u A
ment Blackfriars Underpass x
2
w
=== Kerbside survey area %
4.1.3

The streets surveyed for kerbside activity are as follows:

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 299

Page 22 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

e Tudor Street

e Watergate

e Kingscote Street

e John Carpenter Street
e  Tallis Street

e Carmelite Street

e Temple Avenue

414 The existing kerbside provision is shown in Figure 4-2.

Figure 4-2: Existing kerbside provision

|| :

)

|
e p—— et ettt
r--—----- - " t
I N ey ™ TUDOR STREET =B :
- \ 4
1 - o= \ | o H
o =
— e e o §E’ :
= (el
: I
2 I
2 3 I
= o ,ﬁ
= Bl i T IERGAT R ]
TALLIS STREET m
m

—ANIAY 31dW3L

o —

=== Kerbside survey area

e ———

X

~

KEY

i

Pay-by-phone parking
Tani bay

Disabled

Matorcycle bay
Loading bay

Shared loading/ disabled hay
Diplomatic parking
Police parking

Doctor parking

Bus stop

Single yellow line
Double yellow line

Double red line (TLRN)

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

Page 300

Page 23 of 40




WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

4.2  Results — marked bays

421 A summary of the results is presented in Figure 4-3. This shows kerbside restriction, capacity, maximum
occupancy and 90 percentile occupancy for each street.

4.2.2 Both the maximum occupancy and the 90th percentile values are the highest value of all days surveyed.

423 The 90th percentile occupancy refers to the level of occupancy that is higher than 90% of the observed
values in a given dataset. That is, if you rank all the occupancy values in a dataset from the lowest to the
highest, the 90th percentile occupancy is the value that is higher than 90% of the other values.

Figure 4-3: Kerbside summary for study area

Location Kerbside restriction Total capacity Maximum occupancy 90t percentile occupancy
Taxi rank ! 95% 0% |
Pay-by-phane 5] 100% 100% ﬁ
Tudor Street '
Disabled 3 100% 100% ‘
||
Motoreycles 2 (12 motorcycles) 100% 100% \
Watergate Pay-by-phone 2 288% 88% ]
Kingscate Street Disabled bay 2 100% 33% |
|
Taxirank 2 50% 0% |
John Carpenter Street
Pay-by-phaone 11 100% 91%
|
Disabled bay ;| 100% 0% |
Tallis Street f
Motoreycles 1 (6 motorcycles) 51% 51% |
Pay-by-phone 4 100% 100%
Disabled 1 100% 0% |
Carmelite Street ‘
Motorcycles 1 (6 motorcycles) 100% 51% !
Loading bay 2 100% 100%
Pay-by-phone 8 100% 100% ;
Temple Avenue Disabled 4 50% 25% !
Motorcycles 1 (& motorcycles) 85% 85% i

4.2.4 Figure 4-4 presents the capacity, maximum occupancy and 90" percentile occupancy for each kerbside
restriction.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 301 Page 24 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 4-4: Kerbside summary by restriction type

Kerbside restriction Total capacity Maximum occupancy 90t percentile occupancy
Taxi rank 5 57% 20%
Pay-by-phone 37 95% 89%
Disabled 12 100% 53%
Motorcycles 5 (29 motorcycles) 95% 75%
Loading bay 2 100% 100%

425 The taxi ranks have low occupancy, although this is broadly in line with other taxi ranks in, for example, Soho.

4.2.6 The pay-by-phone and loading bays have high levels of occupancy, suggesting there is no spare capacity for
these bay types. However, use of the pay-by-phone bays will also include loading/ servicing vehicles plus
vehicles associated with construction works in the area.

4.2.7 The disabled bays have a high maximum occupancy but a much lower 90th percentile occupancy. This
indicates the disabled bays are well used but only for short time periods. This is shown in the occupancy
graphs for disabled bays (see Appendix B).

4.2.8 Motorcycle bays are generally well used.

4.2.9 The use of the different kerbside restriction types is generally consistent across all of the streets surveyed.
For example, the pay by phone bays have high levels of occupancy on all streets.

4.2.10 The data shows that the existing marked kerbside bays are all well used with little spare capacity.

4.2.11 Appendix B presents occupancy graphs by time of day for each bay type and for each street.

4.3  Results —yellow lines

431 The City of London is a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ), meaning parking is controlled by hours and is only
permitted in designated parking bays during these times, with the rest of the kerbside space subject to
yellow line restrictions.

4.3.2 The CPZ hours are 7am-7pm Monday to Friday, and 7am-11am on Saturdays.

433 Parking is prohibited at all times on double yellow lines, and on single yellow lines during the CPZ controlled
hours.

434 Loading is permitted at any time on a double yellow line and during displayed times where there are single
kerb markings. Loading is not permitted at any time where there are double kerb markings.

435 The survey results for the single and double yellow lines within the study area are shown in Figure 4-5.

Figure 4-5: Yellow line summary for study area

Kerbside restriction Total capacity Maximum occupancy 90t percentile occupancy
Single yellow line 176 15% 10%
Double yellow line 22 17% 5%

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 302 Page 25 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

4.3.6 Both single and double yellow lines have low occupancy. This suggests generally good compliance with the
CPZ restrictions.

4.3.7 These results indicate that there is opportunity to reorganise kerbside provision to support changes that
would facilitate measures that are in line with the Healthy Streets strategy.

438 Appendix B presents occupancy graphs by time of day for single and double yellow lines.

4.4  Dwell times

441 The Origin-Destination survey found that the maximum journey time through the Whitefriars survey area
was 8 minutes, with the vast majority less than 4 minutes. These were the travel times captured for the AM,
Inter and PM peak hour periods.

4.4.2 The kerbside survey, which captured 7am-7pm, shows a range of parking times greater than the range of
journey times.

4473 52% of vehicles that parked (stopped) did so for less than 4 minutes. Of those vehicles that stop for less than
2 minutes 35% are cars and 27% are taxis.

4.4.4 There is a high level of kerbside activity that occurs on single yellow line and lasts for less than 2 minutes. Of
those vehicles stopping on a single yellow line for less than 2 minutes, 29% are cars and 29% are taxis. 24%
are LGVs.

445 The parking occupancy data (which shows high levels of occupancy of marked bays) and the dwell time data
illustrate the vehicles that have a purpose in the area, i.e. they use the marked bays provided.

4.4.6 Parking dwell time results for Wednesday is shown in Figure 4-6.

Figure 4-6: Parking dwell time results

PARKING DWELL TIME BY KERBSIDE RESTRICTION (WEDNESDAY)

* Disabled bay
¥ Double yellow
® Loading bay

»® Motorcycle

%)
i
=]
&
= =
w
>
s
o
o
w
=]
=
=)
=

* Pay-by-phone
* Single yellow

» Taxi bay

PARKING TIME

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 303 Page 26 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

4.5 Opportunities

451 The kerbside data shows that there are sections of single yellow line that could be used to relocate marked
bays away from streets where Healthy Streets interventions are proposed. For example, Tallis Street and
Carmelite Street could accommodate the pay by phone parking that is on Tudor Street.

4572 Figure 4-7 shows existing bay locations and Figure 4-8 shows how kerbside bays could be reallocated across
the study area (relocated bays shown with a red border). This is summarised as follows:

6 pay by phone bays on Tudor Street

e 3 pay by phone bays relocated to north side of Tallis Street (between Temple Avenue and Carmelite

Street). Tallis Street 2-way working retained.

e 2 pay by phone bays relocated to north side of Tallis Street (between Carmelite Street and John

Carpenter Street). Tallis Street 2-way working retained.

e 1 pay by phone bay relocated to east side of Carmelite Street (south of Tallis Street). Carmelite Street 2-

way working retained.
2 disabled bays on Tudor Street

e 2 disabled bays on south side of Tudor Street relocated to north side.

Figure 4-7: Existing bay locations (surveyed area)

1 \= —
J — = —— TUDOR STREET

= e l i ]
:
s
x
™
o =
m
x
2 2 “
= m =
> TALLIS STREET mﬁ
E ;
- ‘/
]

KINGSCOTE
= REET

WATERGATE ~ ~ |

—_—

J

KEY

Pay-by-phone parking
Taxi bay

Disabled

Motorcycle bay
Loading bay

Shared loading/ disabled bay
Diplomatic parking
Police parking
Doctar parking

Bus stop

Single yellow line

Double yellow line

Daouble red line (TLRN)

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 304

Page 27 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 4-8: Proposed bay relocation (surveyed area)

p—

= ”~

I

= TUDOR STREET

J

e e

KINGScoTE
STREET

—_—

WATERGATE ~ ~ |

KEY

133915 ¥3INId¥YO NHOT

s strEET

Pay-by-phone parking

Taxi bay

133415 ILNINEYD

Disabled

Motorcycle bay

Loading bay

Shared loading/ disabled bay

Diplomatic parking

S—ANTAY 31dN3L

Police parking

Doctor parking

Bus stop

—

Single yellow line

Double yellow line

Double red line (TLRN)

453

The proposed bay relocation means that the south side of Tudor Street would have no marked bays. This
provides an opportunity for public realm improvements in line with the Heathy Streets aspirations.

454 There would be no bays opposite each other on the northern and southern kerbs of Tudor Street under the
proposed layout. This could facilitate footway widening for sections on both sides of the street. Any
proposed layout would need to provide places for vehicles to pass each other, also well as no parking or

loading (double yellow double tick) where the street is narrowed.

455 One observation from site visits to the Whitefriars area is the number of dockless (Lime) bikes left on the
footways. It is suggested that areas of existing single yellow line should be used to provide marked bays for

drop-off and pick-up of dockless bikes and e-scooters, in conjunction with geofencing restrictions.

456 Kerbside activity data was collected for the southern area of Whitefriars. However, opportunities for parking
relocation in the northern area have also been considered. The existing layout is shown in Figure 4-9, with
the proposed layout in Figure 4-10 (proposed locations shown with a red glow, with a white line with red

glow being opportunity that is not defined).

4.5.7 This demonstrates that there is opportunity for bay relocation on the single yellow line on Bouverie Street.
This could be 20 metres, which could accommodate the existing motorcycle bays and one of the disabled
bays from Dorset Rise. Short sections of motorcycle parking bays could also be added to Carmelite Street on

the eastern kerbline (in addition to the pay by phone relocation shown in Figure 4-8).

45.8

Bridewell Place is currently double yellow line on the west side and double yellow line double tick on the east
side. There may be opportunity to relocate some parking bays here.

459

The repurposing of the doctor’s bay on Salisbury Court as a loading bay could be explored following
completion of the development at that location.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 28 of 40

Page 305



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 4-9: Existing bay locations (whole area)

-

3
133415 31I¥3AN09
T

—
[T

I
il

FEENTOETO T M
{

— — LT 4 =
_'—:-—| J — W | ; = s Pay-by-phone parking
) e — T — .
= i ' | © Taxibay
: ‘ { 1 # | s Disabled
'] I & B | | I |‘ =, = Matorcycle bay
I | L ’ _‘- | = Loading bay

77| wmm Shared loading/ disabled bay

== Diplomatic parking

wmm  Police parking

=== Doctar parking

=== Bus stop

~ Single yellow line

: | —- == Double yellow line

LT . P ;
, > / | = Double red line (TLRN)

N[>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 306 Page 29 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 4-10: Proposed bay locations (whole area)

I
l
»
3514 135900

I

|

I | : | |
==l £
1= | _l ek I— |EL. ——
{: I { El E'_ L s Disabled
'5 _ ! | "'—lﬁ_"l |l 7: -— torcycle bay
i - | [4— : t‘v pr— ding bay
: | — d loadin bay
[l ] | = I
= o I -
e L H =
Bj J_F_—;“‘:l?/"”’__‘él =

ORMAN KE PRYME Page 307 Page 30 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

5 JUNCTION CHANGES ON VICTORIA EMBANKMENT

5.1 Background
51.1 Col has requested a review of access and egress between the Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment.
Pre-2005

5.1.2 It is understood that before around 2005, the following movements were permitted between the Whitefriars
area and Victoria Embankment (also shown in Figure 5-1, which uses a Google Earth image from 2003):

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment to Temple Avenue

Southbound left-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment (slip road)

e  Southbound right-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment

e Southbound left-turn from Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road)

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment (slip road) to John Carpenter Street

e  Southbound left-turn from John Carpenter Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road)

Figure 5-1: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (pre-2005)

S8 .

EHEEE

b
3

I
»
-
©
K
o
®

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 308 Page 310f40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

2005-2016
5.1.3 In the mid-2000s, the following changes were made:

e Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment to Temple Avenue: prohibited for all vehicles except
cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment (slip road): still permitted
e Southbound right-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment: still permitted

e Southbound left-turn from Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all
vehicles

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment (slip road) to John Carpenter Street: prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from John Carpenter Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

514 Figure 5-2 shows the permitted movements from 2005-2016, with the dashed line denoting cyclists only.

Figure 5-2: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2005-2016)

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 309 Page 32 0f 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

5.15

5.1.6

2016

In 2016 TfL's East-West and North-South Cycle Superhighways had been constructed. This included the
movements listed below:

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment to Temple Avenue: prohibited for all vehicles except
cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all vehicles
except cyclists

e Southbound right-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment: prohibited for all vehicles except
cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): permitted for all
vehicles

e  Southbound right-turn from Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): permitted for all
vehicles

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment (slip road) to John Carpenter Street: prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from John Carpenter Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

Figure 5-3 shows the permitted movementsin 2016, with the dashed line denoting cyclists only. John
Carpenter Street is not shown but included in the list above.

Figure 5-3: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2016)

Carmelite Street

:
:

oria Embankment

MR

NORMAN

ROURKE PRYME Page 310 Page 33 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

2017 to present

5.1.7 Soon after the completion of the Cycle Superhighways, changes were made to the highway layout to
accommodate construction of the Thames Tideway on the north bank of the Thames. This resulted in the 2-
way cycle track being relocated from the north bank to Victoria Embankment slip road. The current
permitted movements are:

e  Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment to Temple Avenue: prohibited for all vehicles except
cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all vehicles
except cyclists

e  Southbound right-turn from Temple Avenue to Victoria Embankment: prohibited for all vehicles except
cyclists

e  Southbound left-turn from Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): permitted for all
vehicles

e Eastbound left-turn from Victoria Embankment (slip road) to John Carpenter Street: prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

e Southbound left-turn from John Carpenter Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road): prohibited for all
vehicles except cyclists

5.1.8 Figure 5-4 shows the permitted movements from 2016 to present day, with the dashed line denoting cyclists
only.

Figure 5-4: Access between Whitefriars area and Victoria Embankment (2016 to present)

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 311 Page 34 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

5.1.9 It is understood that the 2-way cycle track will be moved back to the north bank following completion of the
Thames Tideway, but there are no plans to change the existing movements between Whitefriars and Victoria
Embankment.

5.2  Highway layout changes

5.2.1 As part of a separate study undertaken in 2018/19, consultants were commissioned to develop options that
facilitated additional movements for motor vehicles to/from Temple Avenue, which is currently
access/egress by cycles only. These were also tested for the impact on traffic capacity using traffic modelling
software (LinSig). The options tested are set out as follows:

TfL proposed layout

5.2.2 The TfL proposed layout was on site in 2016 after TfL’s Cycle Superhighway was completed but before
changes due to Thames Tideway (see Figure 5-5).

Figure 5-5: TfL proposed layout

Temple Avenue

7Ian Embankment ;
Victaria Victoria Embankment —

T i e e

P = R el o e et
7 S P S Tl <A

523 This is the Baseline situation in terms of junction capacity that the other options are compared against.
Option 3

524 Option 3 (Figure 5-6) keeps the majority of the proposed TfL layout, but reinstates the access arrangement at
the southern end of Temple Avenue between 2005-2016. That is to say motor vehicles can turn left and right
out of Temple Avenue southbound, with cycles only permitted to enter Temple Avenue northbound.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 312 Page 35 0f 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 5-6: Option 3

Jrcgna Embankment

=

AT AT

/

5.2.5 Option 3 performs worse in terms of junction capacity than the TfL option. This is because an additional stage
is required in the method of control to allow motor vehicles to turn right from Temple Avenue to Victoria
Embankment. This reduces the signal green time that can be given to traffic. The modelling results show both
Victoria Embankment and Temple Avenue would operate over capacity, which would generate excess
queues and delay.

Option 4

5.2.6 Option 4 (Figure 5-7) is the same as Option 3 with one difference, which is that the southbound left-turn only
out of Temple Avenue is permitted for motor vehicles.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 313 Page 36 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

Figure 5-7: Option 4

-

] [

Victoria Embankment
ol ol e o 7

o
=
3
T
a
5

_—
e Victoria Embankment —_—
E e e e e B

5.2.7

53
53.1

5.3.2

533

534

Option 4 has a similar level of junction capacity as the TfL option. This is because the method of control is
unchanged, with minor changes required to permit motor vehicles to turn left onto Victoria Embankment.

Analysis

The traffic modelling shows that allowing the left and right-turn out of Temple Avenue for motor vehicles
would have a significant impact on network operation, with excessive queues and delays predicted by the
modelling undertaken.

Allowing just the left-turn out of Temple Avenue would provide direct access to Blackfriars Underpass, which
is not currently possible from the left-turn out of Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road). This
has minor impact on junction capacity, but it does require the removal of the footway buildout on the west
side of Temple Avenue at the junction with Victoria Embankment. It is likely it would also increase the
number of motor vehicles on Temple Avenue as it provides a direct route from Fleet Steet to Blackfriars
Underpass. To remove this through route, changes to the highway network would have to be made at
another location(s) within the Whitefriars area.

No design has been provided that seeks to permit motor vehicle access into Whitefriars from Victoria
Embankment. The traffic survey analysis shows that the demand for this movement is low. If motor vehicle
movement was permitted from Victoria Embankment (westbound) into Temple Avenue, an additional stage
would be required in the method of control that would cause the junction to operate with reduced capacity,
which is likely to result in excess queues and delay. If motor vehicle movement was permitted from Victoria
Embankment (eastbound) into Temple Avenue, the pedestrian crossing over Temple Avenue would run for a
shorter time, resulting in a reduction of pedestrian amenity.

If the left-turn or right-turn into Carmelite Street for motor vehicles was permitted, this would have the
following implications:

NORMAN

ROURKE PRYME Page 314 Page 37 of 40



e

WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

535

5.3.6

ot

e Tointroduce the left-turn or right-turn into Carmelite Street, and not make any changes to the existing
junction layout, the current egress would need to be prohibited. The existing layout only provides space
for vehicles to travel in one direction.

e [f the egress from Carmelite Street was prohibited there would be no egress from the Whitefriars area to
the south for motor vehicles. To maintain an egress, changes would need to be made to the junction of
Temple Avenue/ Victoria Embankment. The implications of this are discussed in paragraph 5.3.2.

e Tointroduce the left-turn or right-turn into Carmelite Street, and maintain egress, the footway buildout
on the eastern side of Carmelite Street would need to be removed. This footway buildout currently
accommodates cycle parking and a CCTV camera.

In addition to the impacts set out above, access from Victora Embankment (slip road) via either or both of
Temple Avenue and/or Carmelite Street is likely to increase the number of motor vehicles within the
Whitefriars area as it would provide a direct link from Victora Embankment (slip road) to Fleet Street and
New Bridge Street. Increasing vehicle flow within the Whitefriars area is not in line with the Healthy Streets
plan, or City of London Transport Policy.

The motor vehicle movements to and from the Whitefriars area to the wider highway network are shown in
Figure 5-8. This demonstrates that there are routes to and from Whitefriars to the wider network in all
directions. The route from Whitefriars to Victoria Embankment is dashed meaning it will be available after
the completion of the Thames Tideway.

Figure 5-8: Routes to/from Whitefriars from the wider area

% Route to Whitefriars g
% Route from Whitefriars

Route from Whitefriars after
completion of Thames Tideway

5.3.7  The TfL proposed layout that was tested does not reintroduce the southbound right-turn from Carmelite
Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road). If this was introduced, it would create a new route from Fleet
Street to Victoria Embankment. Vehicle progression would be westbound only as the left-turn from the
bottom of Victoria Embankment (slip road) to Blackfriars underpass is not permitted (or physically possible).

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 315 Page 38 0of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

6 SUMMARY

6.1  Conclusions

6.1.1 The key points from the analysis of the traffic survey data and the Victoria Embankment access proposals are
set out below.

Traffic flows

6.1.2 The highest 2-way flow on Tudor Street is 176 motor vehicles in the AM peak hour and 201 in the PM peak
hour.

6.1.3 Bouverie Street has a southbound flow of 141 motor vehicles in the AM peak hour and 138 in the PM peak
hour.

6.1.4 No other street has a motor vehicle flow of more than 70 vehicles. The streets to the south of Tudor Street
have very low motor vehicles flows, with less than 30 vehicles in the AM and PM peak hours.

6.1.5 Cycle flows are highest on Temple Avenue and Bouverie Street (over 100 cycles in both AM and PM peak
hours), with Tudor Street also having over 100 cyclists in the AM peak hour. The route to/from Cycleway 3 on
Victoria Embankment, via the cycle-only access at the southern end of Temple Avenue, is the most popular
route for cycles through the Whitefriars area.

6.1.6 Motor vehicle flows entering the Whitefriars area in March 2023 have reduced by 25% in the AM peak hour
and by 16% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

6.1.7 Cycle flows entering the Whitefriars area in March 2023 have reduced by 28% in the AM peak hour and by
31% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

6.1.8 Motor vehicle flows eastbound on Fleet Street in October 2022 have reduced by 40% in the AM peak hour
and by 47% in the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

6.1.9 2-way cycle flows on Fleet Street in October 2022 have increased by 24% in the AM peak hour and by 32% in
the PM peak hour compared to the January 2018 survey data.

Vehicle routes

6.1.10 The junction count and OD data shows that the movement with the highest motor vehicle flow is from Fleet
Street to New Bridge Street. The main reason for this is likely to be because the right-turn from Fleet Street
eastbound to New Bridge Street southbound at Ludgate Circus is prohibited. Therefore, the route through
Whitefriars via Tudor Street is the most direct way of travelling from Fleet Street to New Bridge Street.

6.1.11 The survey data suggests there is not significant demand to access Whitefriars from the south of the area,
with 46, 25 and 4 vehicles going from Victoria Embankment to the Whitefriars area across the 8 hours
surveyed for each of the Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday survey days, respectively.

6.1.12 The journey time results for all survey days (Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday), show that over 80% pass
through the area within 2 minutes. This suggests most vehicles move through the Whitefriars area without
having a purpose within the area.

Kerbside activity

6.1.13 The data shows that the existing marked kerbside bays are all well used with little spare capacity. However,
both single and double yellow lines have low occupancy, which suggests generally good compliance with the
CPZ restrictions.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 316 Page 39 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

6.1.14

6.1.15

6.1.16

6.2
6.2.1

Junction changes on Victoria Embankment

The traffic modelling shows that allowing the left and right-turn out of Temple Avenue would have a
significant impact on network operation, with excessive queues and delays predicted by the modelling
undertaken.

Allowing just the left-turn out of Temple Avenue would provide direct access to Blackfriars Underpass, which
is not currently possible from the left-turn out of Carmelite Street to Victoria Embankment (slip road). This
has minor impact on junction capacity, but it does require the removal of the footway buildout on the west
side of Temple Avenue at the junction with Victoria Embankment. It is likely this would also increase the
number of motor vehicles on Temple Avenue as it provides a direct route from Fleet Steet to Blackfriars
Underpass. To remove this route, changes to the highway network would have to be made at another
location(s) within the Whitefriars area.

No design has been provided that seeks to permit motor vehicle access into Whitefriars from Victoria
Embankment. The traffic survey analysis shows that the demand for this movement is low. If motor vehicle
movement was permitted from Victoria Embankment (eastbound or westbound) into Temple Avenue, an
additional stage would be required in the method of control that would cause the junction to operate with
reduced capacity, which is likely to result in excess queues and delay.

Recommendations

The traffic study of the Whitefriars area makes the following recommendations:
e Relocate pay by phone parking bays from Tudor Street to Tallis Street and Carmelite Street.

e Relocate disabled bays on Tudor Street to another location on Tudor so that there are no marked bays
adjacent to each other on opposite sides of the street.

e  Utilise single yellow line on Bouverie Street and double yellow line on Bridewell Place to relocate marked
bays to facilitate public realm opportunities.

e  Provide designated parking areas for dockless bikes and e-scooters on existing single yellow line
locations on Carmelite Street.

e Maintain existing access arrangements between Temple Avenue, Carmelite Street and John Carpenter
Street and Victoria Embankment.

e  Monitor traffic flows on Tudor Street. If they increase to greater than 2,000 motor vehicles per day,
review options presented to restrict traffic movement on Tudor Street.

NORMAN

ROURKE PRYME Page 317 Page 40 of 40



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

APPENDIX A: TRAFFIC FLOWS AND ROUTES ANALYSIS

Page 318



asaﬂ;E , . ST T OI68 £8€ LTUQ) ¥+ . o ~082/ ¥S3 L02(0) i+

=3

J o i WO PYCIUDIOTSHY, = OO P OIUQUOPUO]

: / > A LSISH Iorsig 440 T3S UOPUOT]
Yo, _8,_8: 32 , , e — .®DC®>< coﬁ_gu HideN 1881S USqgaM /S
£zt = uopuoT

OeA €202 oUnC
ARSI S 40 |

dWAdd FAENOE NWIWHON




sAanuns o1y4ell Y4dNV pue Junod
uonounl ayl Jo synsal ayl 1o s1as 14odad siy |

eaJe 9yl Ulyym

9sodJnd juaiedde ou yum ‘@3nos y3nouayj e se
S$199J1S 9Y3 3uUISh D14jeJ} JO SWN|OA Y3 dAIISP pue
‘eaJy SJelDUYAM 943 UIYIM SI|IIYaA JO Jaqwinu
9y} ulenase 03 palinbal aiam sAsAauns ay |

31 Ul puads

Asy1 8uo| moy pue eauy sieldJa1y 3yl ysnoayl

‘ 9A0W S3|IIYaA MOY pueIssapun 03 Uoilda||od
- elep YdNYv 8uisn _om>w>5mdm_m 9JOM S3INO0J J[I1YSA

Apnas oijel]

ea4y Siel91yM 24l uiyym suonounl jo ssquinu
B 18 SMO|} J1}jed) pJodaJd 01 SAaAINS yeapun

01 10D /dYN Aq pauoissiwwod ai1am HAN

UONONPOJIU

JWAdd IAHINOTY NVIWHON

S©IN0Y PUD SMO[ DUJDd|
APN1S 213404] DBIY SIDLIJDUYM AL W._/_




—— 00:6T-00:9T ‘00:¥T-00:¢T ‘00:0T-00:L0
NOOQNOT

€¢0¢

199415 98plug MaN /||1H 91e8pn /199415 uopSuliied /199415 199(4
Hnoj Angsijes /1991351994 «
192,15 SJBLYSUYM /3199435333 «
199J1S 9149ANOY /199415 199] <«
2202 1390120 ul paAanins a1am suoinounf 8uimol|os ayl
1991 d1I9ANOg /19915 Jopn] /anuaAy a|dwa]
199.1S 9100s3uly| /ade|d |[oMaplig /19241S Jopn ]

19915 J1uadie) uyor /193.43s Jopny

199415 SJBLIDUYM /199415 S} [dWIe) /193.3S Jopn ]
aueq a|dwa] /199415 S149ANOg

199415 Slj|e] /anuaAy a|dwa]

199J1S Sl||e /199415 S} |dWIe)

JusWBjUBqWIT BLIOIDIA /193415 91[aWIE)

19915 Jopn] /199415 98plig MaN

208|d [|]omaplig /199415 23plug MaN

aue7aplig /193415 1934

“ &N ™M < 1N O N 0 o

o -
-

suoljedlo| Aaning

b Aanins gzoz yo1en O

sawi} Aaning

Asnins zzoz 19903120 w..."

Bla

OucmLWuO\S
CUN_)O

9.431g
®3sBuy

w Bridge Street

New Bri e Street Ne :

920id.jlamap,u
Do‘—set Rise

S
Y07.0pjug

] RLN
Sibg
bbl\

L]
oY
L T4

an®

John Carpenter Street

Primrose Hill

sspdiapun S4p14420i8
- a ey p12032A

ple Avenue

-
o
o
-
@wuum SHIPL
[
£
—
o
(9]

gwbw Jopn

e
Lombard LA™ remple Lane

»
o
o
-
Y -
) ]
% [
o -
~ 0
“® [
z T
< o
w >
Qun
«* "o nw s
o — .
[ H =,
. 29%3s 1921d
0.-‘5 m&.w-‘

King's Bench Walk

juaw

Page 321

S91NOY PUD SMO|H D1JJOd]|
Apnig d14j0.4] DBJY SIDIIISUYM

WA IHANOH NVIWHON



(819Ad/wW
‘ADT ‘Ixel Jed)
S9|2IYaA Y31

(ST:60-ST:80)
yead NV

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

elep
Aanins zzoz 42903100

ejep
Adnuns €202 YoJeiN

[ ]
[ ]

Page 322

“ EOE
gt

133d1s BUTEELE] Al ANYTAHIINYHD

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

JeN



yoeod ‘sna

‘AOH ‘AOIN)
S9[J1YaA

AneaH
(ST:60-ST:80)
yead NV

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

elep
Aanins zzoz 42903100

ejep
Adnuns €202 YoJeiN

[ ]
[ ]

Page 323

13341s PUTEELE] : ANYTAHIINYHD

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

JeN



S9|2A)
(ST:60-ST:80)
yead NV

EAE3

i |

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

o
Aanuns zzoz 4290100 _H_3
ejep ()
AdAIns €207 Yoden _H_ w
o
—
Afp—

13341s BUTEELE] el ANV AN WHD

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

JeN



S92Ad jJo
Jagwinu |e10}
ujaguey)

(ST:60-ST:80)
yead NV

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

€¢0T 03 8TOC Wo4}
MOJ4 3[21YyaA Ul aSuey)

1]
Aanins zzoz ‘_mnMHM _H_
1]

ejep
Adnuns €202 YoJeiN

13341s Al 4 ANYTAHIINYHD

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

d



sixe|
(ST:60-ST:80)

yead NV

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

elep
Aanins zzoz 42903100

ejep
Adnuns €202 YoJeiN

[ ]
[ ]

Page 326

BUTEELE]

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

JeN



S3|DIYaA
pasiiolow ||V

(ST:60-ST:80)
yead NV

JUSWIAAOW B[DIYSA P3SII0I0A| !
juswaAowW 324D I

N
ejep

Aanuns zzoz 4290100 _H_3

ejep ()

AdAIns €207 Yoden _H_ w

o

——

A r—

13341s PUITEELE] 71t ELLA] WHD

dWAdMd IAENOY NVYWHON

JeN



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 328



133415 NOUOMIHYYS

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN

S9[2IYaA
paslI0}ow JO
Jagwnu |ejo}

u1asueyd
(ST:60-ST:80)
yead AV

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

€20C 01 8T0¢ woJ}
MOJ} 321y Ul a5ueyd

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle QQD



(810Ad/wi
‘AD1 ‘I1xe} Jed)
S92IYyaA Y31

(ST:8T-ST:LT)
¥ead N d

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle QO

133415 NOUDN ¥y Y4 Al EY ANYTAHIONYHD

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN



yoeod ‘snd

‘ADH ‘ADIN)
S9|2IYaA

AneBH
(ST:8T-ST:LT)
yead IAd

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

F’a&%Lel;ll

133415 NOUDN ¥y Y4 ANYTAHFONYHD

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN



S9IAD
(ST:8T-ST:LT)

xead A d

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

(V]
elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120 _H_M.“W
(O]
I
©
(a

133415 NOUDN ¥y Y4 M ANYTAHIONYHD

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN



s9)9Ad Jo
Jaquinu |ejo}
u1a8uey)d

(ST:8T-ST:LT)
¥ead N d

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

€20C 01 8T0¢ woJ}
MOJ} 321y Ul a5ueyd

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle QSD

(] e
=1
II

—fw
=
}

il EUEE] ANYTAHIONYHD

133415 NOUDN ¥y Y4

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN



133415 NOUDN HY Y4

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN

sixe]
(ST:8T-ST:LT)

xead A d

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle Q4

11
H

il —

Al EINEE] ANYTAHFINYHD



133415 NOUDN 4V

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN

S3|2IYan
pasiLiolow ||V

(ST:8T-ST:LT)
¥ead Nd

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle QS



S9[2IYaA
paslI0}ow JO
Jagwnu |ejo}

u1asueyd
(ST:8T-ST:LT)
yead N d

JUSWAOW B[2IYSA PSSII0I0N| !
JuBWaAOW 3A) I

€20C 01 8T0¢ woJ}
MOJ} 321y Ul a5ueyd

elep
ASAINS 7207 1990120

ejep
Asnuns €20z Yaue

Pagle QGD

-
==
}

k- F I EE] ANYTAHIONYHD

133415 NOUDN ¥y Y4

dWAdd IAHUNOH NVYIWHON

JeN



NOQNO1

e1ep Aaains gT0z Adenuer

9y3 01 paJedwod unoy yead |\ d 9yl ul %€ Aq
pue unoy ead |\ 9yl Ul %z Aq paseasoul aney
2707 19003120 Ul 193415 193|4 U0 sMmo[4 9|24 Aem-g

ejep Asnins 810z Adenuer ay3 03 pasedwod

Jnoyead |Ad ay3 ul %/t Aq pue unoy yead AV 9yl ul %0t Aq paonpau
9ABY ZZ0T 49003100 Ul 193J3S 193|4 UO PUNOQISEd SMO[} 3[21YdA JOION

193.41S 193|4 404 uosliedwod moj} e sapinoad ap1|s Suimo||o) ayL

199415 199[4

ejep Aaains 810z Adenuer ayy 03

pasedwod unoy dead |\d 9y ul %TE Aq pue unoy yead AV 9yl ul %87 Aq
pa3npaJ aneY £70Z Y2JBIA Ul BaJE SIBLIJSMYM Yl Suld21Ud SMO[4 3]9AD

ejep Aaains 810z Adenuer ayi o3 paJedwod

anoyead |Ad 9Y3 Ul %6T Aq pue unoy yead NV 9yl ul %6 Aq paonpau
9ABY £70T Y2JBIA Ul B3JE SIBLIJSIYM Y} SUlI9IUS SMO[4 3[21YDA JOIOIN

eaJe sieljoaym

due 191194 JO 1S9M 33 01 ‘19315 189|4 UO MO}
pUNOQISaM pue PUNOQ1SED SY3 104 Spew Uaag os|e sey uosiiedwod v

eaJe sielRUYM Y}
SuIlIXa pue SuLI91US S3|D1YIA 10} USNRLISPUN USSQ Sey uosiiedwod siyl

$3|2A2 pue $3|21yaA pasiiolow
J0o} pagueyd sey siy1 Moy 23s 01 J9pJo Ul elep ASAINS T Adenuer ayy
01 paJsedwod uaaq sey eiep ASAINS £Z0Z YdJeN pue zzoz 1990120 dYL

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

uosiiedwo)

%E- %EE- MO} 1IX3
%TE- %8~ MOJ} AIUT
Jead Ad  Jjesad AV as8ueyd %
3- 80T~ MO} 1X3
€/ T- Mojy AU
yead Nd  Jeed AV adueyd
6€C Gze MOJJ 3IX3
[£3%4 SOv MOJ} AIUT
yead Ad  Yead NV 8T-uer
T€C L1¢ MOJ4 3X3
6ST €6¢ MO|y Aug
yead Nd  yead AV €1

%CT- %9T- MO[} 1IX3
%6T- %6C- Moj} Aju3g
yead Nd  yead AV 28ueyd %
8¢ (45 MO[} 1IX3
6€- /- Mol Aju3
yead Nd - yed NV 98ueyd
8E¢C 76T MO[} 1IX3
90¢ 65¢ moly Aju3
xead Nd  dead AV gT-uer
0T¢ 97T MO[} 1IX3
L9T G8T MOl4 Aljug

EC-I1EN

S31DIHIAHOLON

HNOH Mv3id

yead |Ad yead NV

=
=
=
®
m
=
=]
=)
<
m
=
)
s
m
)

NOSIHVdINOD
MOTd AHLINT F70AD VIHVY SHVIH43LIHM

HNOH AV3d

sead Ad yead WY

EC-IBN
QT-Uel m

SIPIHIA 40 HIaVara

NOSIdVYdINNOD MOTd
AYLIN3 F1DIHIA A3ISIHOLON VIHY SUVIH4ILIHM

0310 SIDIUJSIUYAA — SSUWIN|OA DIJJ0d|

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN



PUNOQISaM
punogise3
B TEVEER

pUNOQgISaM
punogise3
98uey)

pUNOQISIM
punogise3
JEe9d ANV 8T-uer

T6T  PUNOGISa/
vEC punogises
YesdNd  Jead NV 70

%LY- %0v-
%LE- %S¢~

PUNOQISaAN
punogise3
a8ueyd %

pUNOQgISaM
punogise]
aguey)d

PUNOGISAM
punogise3
JE_A NV 81-uer

0SE  PUNOGISaM
9Tv punogise3
YeadiNd  ead NV 770

S31DIHIAHOLON

HNOH Mv3d
yead Ad jead AV

| ...l:lnl_
L

NOSIHVdINOD
MOT4d AHINI 3TIAD ANNOFLSIM 133HI1S 13314

HNOH Xv3id
yead Ald yead WY

NOSId4VdINOD MOT4 AHINT
F121H3IA A3SIH0L0ON ANNOFLSIM 133HLS 13314

SS1NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

SITOIHIA 40 HIFINNN

—
=
=
=
m
=
]
T
<
m
=
o
o=
m
»

HNOH Mv3id
jead Ad

NOSIHVdINOD
MOT4 AYLINT FT1OAD dANNOY1LSY3I 133H1S 133714

HNOH Mv3d
yead Ad yead Y

NOSIdVdINOD MOT4d AHLNI
ATD1HIA A3ISIHOLIOWN ONNOYLISYI 133HIS 13314

SITDIHIA 40 HIGNNN

alfaTal

SIDIHIA 40 ¥]




P 00:6T-00:9T ‘00:¥T-00:¢T ‘00:0T-00:£0  ®
NOQNOT

L1 Y404

sspdiapun s4p1dj20|g

[ ]
Blackfriars Bridge

juaw
0y2'A
jJuaunjuoqw3d o

T
[4\]e} « N/ I
IADO <«
ADT <«

(1xe38uipnpul) ey <«

Temple Avenue

yoa.1610TL

2185
:949m pakanuns sadArspiyap e e )

Carmelite Street

jui0d QO Ydea 1e S321YaA Y1 Yydlew 03 saje|d Jaquinu
sa4inbalJ 31 9SNe3q S3|21Y3A J0I0W 104 BIRP 303(|03 03 dqe AJuOo S| ASAINS YINV YL

John Carpenter Street

}aa43gJopny

(Aem-z) 19335 syjjel 0T
(Aem-7) 192115 1934

King's Bench Walk

\_ombord Lane Temple Lane
Page 339

(Ajuo Anyua) 1991315 allennog

Primrose Hill

220Id.1amapug
Do(set Rise

(Ajuo 31x3) 199135 SJELIBHYM
(Aem-g) 190435 23plig maN

" stree(
New Bridge Street New Bridge

(AJuo 11x3) 198415 J0pNn |

erie Street

0

el.lo~' aplg

(AJuo 11x3) 91849180\

et
xre
ref ciof® 2
ni
IN
BOI

salisbury Court

(Ajuo punogisea)luswjuequil elIOIA

6

8

L

9

(1x2 pue Aijud) aoe|d |omaplg 'S
14

€
7 122115 P16

T

(Juswyueqwil elIOIDIA 01 AJUO 1IX3) 193.11S B1I|DWIED

sjuilod (@O) uoneunsag-uiSlQ Aaning

HANY — Uoo2I}I0ads AsAing

mwﬁjog UCO m\</O_H_ U_H_.H_.OLI_I AWAEd ININOY NYWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W\_/_



w220
% |
[ wer | ewe | e |t
%C L
[ W L s |9
| % | %ST | %St | %s [(punogmem)s|
=]
%01 %0
(punoqgisam) g|(punoqisea) § Aepsaupam
uoneunsag
Aepiniyes
Joj e1ep SuImoys a|gel woioq ayl yum ‘(Aepsaupapn) Aepyoam e uoy si ajqel dol ay| ® 1905,
£k

uoleulsap paiydads ayl 03
u11i0 paydads ayy wouy Sul||aAe.l S3|21Y3A Jo uoniodoad 3yl MoOYs mo|aq sa|qel ayL

s} nsaJ Asewwns uonzeunsag-uisuo

S91N0J 3|DIYdA

sspdaapun sJp1420|g

Blackfriars Bridge

1032A
yuswjuoqw3 °!
o
L 2
| | o
N ﬁ >
o .
- -—
o ° [
A :
g W-.. 122.3910T L
€ 5 S
® = mgwoo\s o £
m c O
- = o
) o
® )
o
o
-
o P 19943540pNyL
s g - g
z a w_ M ]
- b = - &
o 3 o o o
o o -~ - -—
I 3 o £ o
o ) ok = £
o a A a i
29 o
T < b
L) c
o o o
* v % =
3 n - o
z S o) G 2
g S ° 5 2
Iy > > 0 €
o - ™) () o
- El - z iy
9 B o =L %8
—— @ 3 — or
i o
122235 P16

— s3Nsa.l

King's Bench Walk

juaw:

Page 340

S91NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJ0J]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

ASAING

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN



z.u%o._

S32IYan 0T
S3IYan 57
S3PIIYan 05
3J21yaA 00T
S3|IYan 007

%6L | %C8 | %S8 | NVl TLT €9 4% VL N90S<3¢0S]
%1 %C %0 %1 [4 T 0 T MB0S<NZOS<MS0S<IZOS
%1 %0 %0 %l [4 0 0 [4 NZOS<MS0S<3Z0S|
%0 %0 %C %0 T 0 T 0 350S<MS0S<3C0S
%0 %l %0 %0 T T 0 0 N90S<3I10S<MS0S<3C0S
%1 %0 %C %l [4 0 T T Ir0S<MS0S<3C0S
%0 %0 %0 %1 T 0 0 T N90S<SEOS<MS0S<ICOS
%0 %0 %C %0 T 0 T 0 MSOS<SEOS<MS0S<IZOS
%0 %C %0 %0 T T 0 0 3I0S<SEOS<MS0S<IZ0S)
%9 %S %C %8 4" € T 8 SE0S<MS0S<3C0S
%1 %L %C %1 € T T T STOS<MS0S<3Z0S
%6 %8 %9 %CT 0¢ S € 4’ MS0S<3Z0S|

1V10oL| WNd dl NV (1ViOoL| WNd dl NV ENNp[e}.

:SMO||O} se pasiiewwns S| ejep Aanuns oyl [

Aepsaupapn 104 paAanins sinoy g ay ssoJde eale
SJeIIJDIYM SY3 011UdWsUBqUIT BLIOIDIA WO SUl08 S3DIYaA 9 01 sa1enbasiyl e

30e|d ||]oM3pIIg 1€ BaJe SIelIHYM Y}

J33Ud %Tz Sululewsad ay ‘uonaun(snau) 91e8pnT syl 03 08 JUBWURGWT BLIOIDIA
w044 Yyrou Suipeay sajaIyan JO %6/ ‘AepPSaUPaAN UO SINOY paASAINS 8§ 3YL 104 e

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

jusaunjuequuiy elI0IA

cmw:O

«Q«OW
UJ#

S2PId.1amap g

el.lo~' aplg

sspdiapupn siolaPd0|g

Dofset Rise

0y2'A
juaunjuoqw3 o

T
—

Temple Avenue

yoa.1610TL

John Carpenter Street
Carmelite Street

322135 Jopny

Primrose Hill

e
\_omb'-‘)\'d Lan Temple Lane

3 greeet
h'\tef""ov
N~
BOIerie Street
00

Salisbury Court

120415 P16

IVEN V[ele[WVE

King's Bench Walk

DIIOIDIA — (ADPSBUPSAN) SOINO S|DIYSA

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

JWAdd IAEIN0OH NVIWAHO

N

JeN

juaw:

Page 341




z.u%o._

%1 %0 %9 %0 T 0 T 0 NZOS<30TS<MSOS
%€ % %9 %0 [4 T T 0 3I¥0S<30TS<MSOS
%0C | %SC | %L | %IC ST 9 [4 L M60S<NLOS<MSO0S
%1 %0 %0 %E T 0 0 T NZ0S<S80S<NZOS<MS0S
%1 %0 %9 %0 T 0 T 0 S80S<NZOS<MSOS|
%8C | %SC | %SE | %Ll T¢ 9 9 6 NZOS<MSO0S]
%V %8 %0 %E € [4 0 T 3S0S<MS0S
%€ %t %0 %E l T 0 T N90S<3IV0S<MSOS
%CT | %ET %0 %81 6 € 0 9 IV0S<MSOS
%b %ET %0 %0 € € 0 0 N90S<SEOS<MSOS
%1 %0 %0 %E T 0 0 T N90S<3¥70S<SEOS<MSOS|
%ST % %vC | %81 1T T v 9 SEOS<MSOS
%S %t %L1 %E 14 T [4 T STOS<MSQS
1V1OL | Wd dl NV |Tv1Ol| IAd dl NV 11N0Y

19915 SJBLIBIYAN 01 92e|d ||[oMapLig wody Sulod s3|d1yaA 9¢ 01 sarenba siyl

:SMO||O} se pasiiewwns S| ejep Aanuns oyl [

Aepsaupapn 10} paAaAINS sinoy g dyi ssoJde

199J1S sielJally | wodj 1ixs 01 >_Huw.:ﬁ _\_WDO.:_H 9AOW 2Je|d ||]omaplig

je eaJde sielyayiymn ayl Sunajud

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

%81 ‘AepPSauUpPaN UO SINOY paAdAINS 3YL 404 e

ade|d [[omapLg

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

S3]1YaA 0T
S3|IY3A ST
S3|21YaA 05
3j21yan 00T
S3]21YaA 00T

sspdiapupn siolaPd0|g

w220

«Q«OW
UJ#

uOuQ..>
juswyupquw3 °
o
T 5
e
Z | o
® 1
o
Asy = B °
n — o
A :
3 S i22.gE10TL
= ]
€ S E
c G
< 0
o
n

322135 Jopny

Primrose Hill

: Street
New Bridge Street NeW Bridge

e
\_omb'-‘)\'d Lan Temple Lane

Salisbury Court
erie Street

King's Bench Walk

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

juaw:

Page 342




%0

%0

%0

%1

%0

%0

%0

%1

M60S<30TS<3609

%0

%0

%0

%0

ST0S<30TS<3609

%C

%1

%C

%€

M60S<30TS<S80S<3609

%0

%0

%1

%0

%0

%0

%T

%0

NZ0S<30TS<S80S<3609

%0

%0

%T

%0

350S<30TS<S80S<3609

%0

%0

%0

%0

N90S<3¥0S<30TS<S80S<3609

%€

%T

%€

%9

370S<30TS<S80S<3609

ST0S<30TS<S80S<3609

%

%0

%

%L

%0

%0

%0

%1

30TS<S80S<3609

%9

%9

%S

%L

M60S<S80S<3609

M60S<NL0S<S80S<3609

%1

%1

%1

%0

S80S<N/0S<S80S<3609

%1

%T

%T

%0

%0

%0

%0

%0

NZ0S<S805<3609

%0

%0

%0

%1

M60S<NL0S<3505<580S<3609

%61

%1C

%ST

%61

N90S<3505<5805<3609

3505<5805<3609

%T

%€

%T

%

%6€

%l

%l

%6¢

N90S<3t05<S805<3609

%0

%0

%0

%

370S<580S<3609

%L

%L

%8

%L

S€0S<S80S<3609

ST0S<S80S<3609

%1

%1

%T

%L

%0

%0

%0

%0

M60S<NL0S<3609

%1

%0

%0

%L

370S<NL0S<3609

%1

%1

%1

%T

NZ0S<3609

%L

%0

%0

%L

350S<3609

%01

%1

%01

%L

N90S<3¥0S<3609

%L

%0

%0

%€

3¥0S<3609

%1

%0

%T

%1

S€0S<3609

1v.LlOL

Wd

dl

NV

ST0S<3609

3LNOY|

!SMO||0} SB pasieWIWNS S| e1ep ASAINS DY ®

Aepsaupapn 4oy paAanins

SINOY § 3Y3 SSO.DE ‘8| ||oMaplig 01 19315 1I9ANOG WOy Sul08 S3DIYaA
68 puUe ‘193J1S JopNn| 01 19341S 3149ANOg WOy U108 S3|IIYSA 6T 01 Sa1enbasiyl e

ade|d [[omapLg

W04 1IXD %6T '19341S JOpN1 WOJy 1X 01 Aj30a.1p Y3noJyl SAOW 19341S d149ANOY
1e B3Je SJRLDUYM Y3 SULISIUS % T ‘ABPSSUPSAA UO SInoY paAaAINs gayr o4 e

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

193415 1994

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

S9IIYaA QT —
SO[IIYDA GT s
S92IYdA 0S  mmm
span 00T [N

S921YyaA 00¢ -

LEN]
€

cmwao

*w~0m
UJ#

29

19941S 199|4 —~ (ADpPSsuUpPap\)

sspdiapun s4p1dj20|g

John Carpenter Street

Primrose Hill

0y2'A
yuswsupqw3d P

100 910T L

JWAdd IAANOH NV

JeN

emple Avenue

King's Bench Walk

S91N0J SDIYSA

Juaw:

Page 343




NOQNOT SOPIYIN 0T —
I mw_u__(_w> mN —
S3[2IY3A 05
M — sspdiapun s4p1APPO0|g A juaw
321ysA 00T l jJuawjupgqw3 o
T E]
$3J21YaA 00T - | e 2
P £
» & i
W 2 as2.1g10TL
%L | %0 | %0 M605<320S ran. £
%98 | %L8 | %I6 N90S<3zog| vwe*"° £ S »
% | %E | %C M60S<NZ0S<MS0S<IZ0S P 3
%T | %0 | %C NZ0S<MS0S<3Z0S] oo §
%T | %T | %0 N90S<I¥0S<MS0S<3Z09 & = J 2 4
%T | %T | %0 N90S<SE0S<MS0S<IZO0S| a B = 5w
%T | %T | %0 IP0S<MSOS<SE0S<MS0S<IZ0S £ @ s o 2
= (]
%E | %E | % SE0S<MS0S<3Z0S 3 s £ £ <
o o
% | % | %0 ST0S<MG05<3Z05 2 6 - s
%9 | %E | % MS0S<3Z0S 3 t o
WVIOL| Wd | dI | WV [IVIOL| Wd | dI | WV 3LNoY A 5 o 1= o))
5 ) ~ - a
!SMO||0} SB pasieWIWNS S| e1ep ASAINS DY ® wa S ) m mm o
z 3 2
Aepsiny] 10} paAaAins sanoy § ay3 ssooe eale m H 2y Tg
SJe1IJDIYM SYI 011UdWUBQUIT BLIOIDIA WO SUl08 S3DIYan GZ 01 sai1enbasiyl e — 7 3 — or
» o
908|d ||[omaplig 1e eaJle siell}aliym\ 9yl L w~ombz< 122435 3 6
J33Ud %E£T Sululewsad ay ‘uonaun(snau) 21e8pnT syl 03 08 JuBWURGWT BLIOIDIA
w44 yuou Suipeay sa|a1yan Jo %/8 ‘Aepsiny] Uo SInoy paAdAINS 8 ayr o4 e P

jusaunjuequuiy elI0IA

1US U UDQUIT

DIIOIDIA — (ADPSJINY ) S8IN0.J S|DIYSA

mejOW_ UCO m\</O_H_ U_H_.H_.OLI_I IWAHE 3AUNOE NYWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Al_ W._/_



20%0._

%1 %L %0 N90S<3170S<30TS<MSOS
%l %0 %€ I70S<30TS<MSOS
%1 %0 %€ STOS<30TS<MSOS|
%l %ET %0 JOTS<MSOS
%l %0 %€ MB0S<MSOS
%SC | %BLE | %0C | %L1 MB0S<NZOS<MSQOS
%L %0 %0 %9 S80S<NZOS<MSOS|
%CC | %LC | %0C | %61 NZOS<MSO0S
%1 %0 %0 %€ 3S0S<MSO0S
%l %0 %ET %€ N90S<370S<MSO0S
%IT | %0T | %0C %8 IV0S<MSOS
%1 %E %0 %0 NZ0S<SEO0S<MSOS
%t %L %0 %€ N9O0S<SEOS<MSOS]
%1 %0 %0 %E S80S<MSOS<SEOS<MSOS
%CT | %01 %l %L1 SE0S<MSOS
%6 %L %0 %1 STOS<MSQS
V1oL | WNd dl NV 3LNoY

:SMO||O} se pasiiewwns S| ejep Aanuns oyl [

Aepsiny] 1o paAdains sinoy g ay3 ssooe
199,15 SJB1ISBIYA 01 92e|d ||[2MapLig wody Sulod s3|d1yaA 8¢ 01 salenba siyl

19215 SJBLIAUYAN WY 1XS 01 Aj30341p YySnoJyl sAow ade|d |[omaplig

je eaJde sielyaliymn ayl EIPEIIE]

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

‘Aepsiny] uo sunoy paAdaINs g ayr o4 e

ade|d [[omapLg

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

S32IYan 0T
S3IYan 57
S3PIIYan 05
3J21yaA 00T
S3|IYan 007

cmwao

*w~0m
UJ#

—
|
sspdiapun s4p01420|g
juaunjuoqw3 ®*
1 o
- M
|
[4 < m
Ao 4 .
0 4 o
[ wu £
E i 2
o 220231071
b ©
g g :
- O
£ (8]
o
n

328115 40PNy

= o
I c
o
@ @ S
o ° o
- - 4
4 o
» E £
K a o
S e 4
L
c
)
3 3
o
5 s
@ o
- (v} s 2
a - 0 3
o A @ =]
- 3 e =
9 B 2 %8
| | ) |M
I

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN

King's Bench Walk

Juaw:

Page 345




%1

%1

%0

%C

%1

%0

%1

%1

MB60S<NL0S<I0TS<S80S<360S

%1

%1

%1

%1

NZ0S<30TS<S80S<3609

%0

%0

%1

%0

%€

%0

%Y

%9

%1

%1

%E

%0

%L

%L

%C

%CT

%0

%0

%0

%1

N90S<3¥70S<30TS<S80S<3I609

3¥0S<30TS<S80S<3I60S

STOS<3I0TS<S80S<3I60S

30TS<S80S<360S]

MB60S<NL0S<S80S<360S|

%C

%E

%0

%C

3IY0S<NLOS<S80S<3609

%0

%0

%0

%1

NZ0S<S80S<3609

%61

%EC

%0¢

%ET

N90S<350S<S805<360S]

S3[21Y3A 0T

%0

%0

%1

%0

%E

%L

%Y

%E

%S¢E

%0

%9¢

%ST

%0

%0

%1

%0

%0

%0

%0

%1

%0

%1

%1

%0

%6

%9

%L1

%1T

%1

%E

%0

%1

350S<S805<360S|

M60S<3¥0S<S80S<3609

N90S<310S<S80S<3609

370S<S80S<360S|
N90S<SE0S<S80S<3I609
3¥0S<SE0S<SB0S<360S
SE0S<S80S<360S]
ST0S<S80S<3609]

%1

%0

%1

%C

MB60S<NL0S<3609

%E

%C

%Y

%E

N£0S<360S]

%1

%1

%0

%€

350S<3609

%11

%1T

%8

%ET

N90S<310S<360S]

%1

%0

%C

%1

3¥0S<360S

1viol

INd

dl

1\4

STOS<360S

31N0Y

!SMO||0} SB pasieWIWNS S| e1ep ASAINS DY ®

Aepsiny] Joy paAanins
SJINOY g 91 SSOUJE ‘9Je|d ||aMaplig 01 13341 S149AN0g WoJ) Sul03 $9|21YaA

68 puUe ‘193J1S JopNn| 01 19341S 3149ANOg WOy U108 S3|IIYSA 6T 01 Sa1enbasiyl e

ade|d [[omapLg

W04 1IXD %6T '19341S JOpN1 WOJy 1X 01 Aj30a.1p Y3noJyl SAOW 19341S d149ANOY
1e eaJe SJeLSUYM Y1 SULISIUD % T ‘Aepsiny] uo sinoy paAaains gayr o4 e

S91N0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ|

193415 1994

SO|DIYOA Q7
SSPIYSA0S  mmm
sspdiapun s4p01420|g T
9°1ysA 00T l juawuogqw3 sk,
o
S3|21YaA 00T - T 3
[4 < m
A3y o 5
) Y
~ £
2 o
c
o 159361011
-
N 3
waio m .M
) 5 <
o n
o0
)
=
L 122115 Jopn K
: - s
z
4 © s
° o ®
2 £ B
] = E
o o .
2]
..m L
= »
- :
z o o
> 5
) o
% e
o o
r =)
|
19
Emuj

King's Bench Walk

198.1S 189|4 — (ADPSINY ) S9IN0J SDIYSA

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN

Juaw:

Page 346




zo%.u._

o TS ek

T

%96 | %C6 | %00T | %L6 N90S<3Z0S
%L | %t | %0 | %0 NZOS<MS0S<3Z0S|
%L | %0 | %0 | %E | T [N90S<30S<MS0S<3Z0S
% | %S | %0 | %0 MS0S<320S]
WIOL| Wd | dI | WY 31Noy
:SMO||O} se pasiiewwns S| ejep Asnuns ayy °
Aepunies 10} paAaAins sunoy g ayi ssoude ease
SJeLIUYM Y] 01uswduequi Lol wod) 3ulod sa|dIyaA {7 01 sarenba siy | °
928|d ||]oMaplig 1e eaJe sielaliym syl
J91Ud % Sututewads ay] ‘uonpun( snaai) 91e3pni ayl 03 03 Juswuequil LIORIA
woJ} yudou 3uipesay sa|dIyaA Jo %96 ‘Aepanies uo sinoy paAanins g ayi o4 °

jusaunjuequuiy elI0IA

S32IYan 0T
S3IYan 57
S3PIIYan 05
3J21yaA 00T
S3|IYan 007

cmwao

*Wuom,
Pny

—
.
sspdiapun s4p1dj20|g Juaw
juaunjuogqw3 ©*
o
T 3
c
| | o
- >
° <
A3y = - )
n 4 o
2l g :
o £ 192391071
o =
- O m
[} m;wuug O e
v c o
& S 3 x
) G
o
o 3
i <
2 c
o 19943540pNyL S
3 =
o L! = (] o N
z 3 T c "
Q S - o ™
- - - 0 - c
© 3 o o [} v
c - ° £ o
- =
o R < = £ ™~
s, a A : o <t
T L 3
- ) : ®
2 ) % S ()
z 5 ® ~ = ®
o] o - 2 o
~
) o ) - 2 o
aQ > = 0 3
5 T ! - o
r~ 2 2 = =
2 2 =L %8
0 3 i f—
A o
122235 P16

JUSUUDUIT

DIIOIDIA — (ADPJINIDS) S8INOJ BDIYSA

SS1NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



— s3dIya —
NOGNOT I214SA 01
in mw_u__(_m> Gl
S32IYaA
121y 0S mm sspdiapup S4D143320|8 T Jusw:
Iy 00T l juawjupqw3 s
o
sa|1yaA 007 - / L I 2
[4 x 3
Aay| o - ]
0 s £
$ o P
m. 2 122131011
5 3 £
we2"0 : £ S -
. 0 1Ou m
%< %S %0 %0 T T 0 0 3IV0S<3I0TS<MSOS m. 2
%C %0 %0 %8 T 0 0 T JOTS<MSOS Sl e e m
%C %S %0 %0 T T 0 0 MB0S<MSOS e & = o @ ,_
%EC | %LE | %LT %8 (0] L 4 T MB0S<NLOS<MSO0S 5 = H B m m
%TC | %ICT | %LT | %SC 6 v [4 € NZOS<MSO0S| - m M o 2 ¥
%S %0 %8 %38 [4 0 T T N90S<3V0S<MSOS ) ° % m E %
%6T | %9T | %cv %0 8 € S 0 IP0S<MSO0S m, S m e = (<o)
%61 | %IT | %LT | %EE 8 4 [4 v SE0S<MSOS e m feb)
%L %S %0 %L1 € T 0 C STOS<MSOS 3 v o = (@)
4 o o
V1oL | Wd dl WV |(1vVlOoL| Wd dl AV ilLnoy 1 @ w o g %
5 4 b €
!SMO||0} Se pasiewwins stelep Asnunsayy e m 3 o 3
9 ) 2 %8
Aepunies 1oy paAanins sinoy g ay1 ssoaoe I > 3 or
199J1S SJBLIFSUYM 01 32e|d [|omaplig wody SuloS sa|d1yan 6T 01s3ienbasiyl e 19158 = =
Bny 122115 16
199.1S SJBLIUYAMN WOU) 1XD 01 A[103.1p YySnouyl sanow ade|d |[|omaplig
1€ eaJe SIBLDHYAM 3Y3 SulIdIuUd % ‘Aepanies uo sinoy paAsAInNs g aylio4 e

ade|d [[omapLg

292D|d |[eMmaplg — (ADPINIDS) S81INO0J B|DIUSA

IHENOY NVWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W\_/_

SOINOY PUD SMO| DIJJ0J|



20%0._ SOPIIYSA 0T —
SOIIYOA GT
SIPIYSA 05
apyarooT [
S312IY2A 00T -
%0 | %L | %0 | %0 NZ0S<30TS<S80S<360S
%L | %0 | %0 | %8 | € | ST0S<30TS<S80S<I60S Aoy
% | %T | %t | %0 30TS<S805<3609
% | %0 | %0 | %€ T M60S<S80S<360S
%E | %v | %E | %€ T | M60S<N/0S<S80S<360S| . €
% | % | %t | %E S € T T N/0S<S80S<3609 o ¢
%ET | %eT | %ST | %ET S 3505<5805<3609 _ ®
% | %t | %0 | %€ T | N90S<310S<S805<360S| g
%Ev | %vv | %9v | %SE 3r0S<S805<3609 s v
% | %0 | %0 | %€ SE0S<5805<360S| :
%6 | %S | %8 | %EC ST0S<S805<360S) 1
%T | %t | %C | %t M60S<NZ05<3605 s
% | %L | %C | %0 3505<3609 @
%ET | %8 | %1z | %8 | SS 6€ €T € 3¥0S<3609 TS
WloL| Wd | dI | WY [1VIOL] Wd | dI | WV 31noy w
:SMOJ||0J Se pasiiewwns s| exep Asauns sy ° z
Aepsiny] Joy paAanins
SJnoYy g 9y1 SsoJde ‘@de|d |[omaplig 01 199.1S d11I9ANOg WwoJ) Sulo3 S3|21YdA 9
68 pue 193.1S Jopn] 01199415 al4aAN0g woJy 3ul03 s3dIYaA 16T 01 sa1enba siy| ° —
22e|d ||]omaplig : ,:omui

WOJJ XD %6T

19315 Jopn| wWoJ} 1Xd 01 A|12241p Y8noayl aA0W 193115 S149ANOY
1e eaJe SIRLDUYAM 31 SulId1ud %TY

‘Aepsiny] uo sunoy paAdaINs g ayr o4 e

193415 1994

sspdiapun s4p1dj20|g

Temple Avenue

:Ovu:/
jusunjuoqw3 °!
T
|

>
o
-

-
]
Iz o
5 E:
m )
o S 10031011
m. =
S £
C -
c ]
< (8]
o
n

Primrose Hill

erie Street

e
Lombard Lan®  remple Lane

King's Bench Walk

Juaw:

Page 349

SS1NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

JWAdd

ED.R-Naiok.|



JNILL ASNHNOI

SUWQT-B SUlWg-9 SUIWg-§ 4 suIwz-g

il

(Avaynivs) 3dAL 3121H3A A€ STINIL AINYNOS

V/N V/N ZAD0 CV'T0'00 | ¥€:10:00
¥5:00:00 TADQO C€:10:00
ADT SE:T0:00 | LE:TO:00 C1:10:00

SF1DIHIA 40 HIBWNN

ADT

¥T:10:00 Je)) LET0:00 C¥:T0:00 Je))
AVQUNLYS| TvioL ANV AvasiNgIm
JNIL AINYNOT ITDIHIA IDVHIAY JIL AINYNOC IDIHIA IDVHIAY]

Jnoy yead yoes oy 9dA19)21yaAa Aq swil Asuunol a8euane ayl moys so|gel ayL °
Aep Asnuns yoes Joy adA1 9)a1yan Aq sawin Asuunol sayz moys sydeus sy °

eaJe Y1 ulym asodand e Suiney INOYUM eaJe SJelija1YyM Syl YSnoayl sarow S|dIYan
150w $15933NS SIY] "Sa1NUIW g ulylim eale ay3 y3nouyi ssed 9408 J19A0 1LY} MOYS
‘(Aepanies pue Aepsuny] ‘Aepsaupapn) sAep Asauns [|e Joy s1nsaJ awil Asuinol ay | °

synsaJ Alewwins awil Asuinor

JNILL AINYNOT
SUIWG-p

SIDIHIA J0 d3aNNN

(AvasynH1l) 3dAL 31D1H3IA A8 STWIL AINYNOT

JNILL AINYNOI
SulWQT-8 Sujwg-9 SUIWg-p SUWL-7

SIDIHIAH0 8GN

(AYQSINGIM) 3dAL I1DIHIA A8 STWIL AIN¥NOT

saudll Asulnol spIysA — S1Nsad AsAING

SS1NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN



2319 ‘Buipeoj ‘Supjaed oy papinoad sAeq sy asn Asya
'9°'1 ‘eaJe sy ul 9sodund e aney 1eyl S3|21YdA 3yl Moys
el1ep awi} [|]omMp ay3 pue (sAeq payJew jo Aouednado jo

s[an3| y8iy smoys yoiym) eyep Aouednaoo Supyjied ay

SADT 348 %
"SIXE} 9JB %67 PUE SIBD DB %67 ‘S9INUIW Z UBYY SSI|
404 aul| moj||9A 9]3uls e uo Suiddols s9|d1ysA 3soy3 JO

S3INUIW Z UBY) SSI| 404 S3Se| pue dul| mo||3A 9|3uls
UO $J4NJ20 1ey3 ALIAIIOE 3pISqJD)| JO |9A3] Yy e S| aJayL

SIXe) 3Je 9/ 7 PUB SJeD dJe %GE
S9INUIW 7 UeY3 Ss3| Joy do3s 38yl S3|I1Y3A 3S0Y3 JO

SaINUIW { ueyy
$$9| 404 0S pIp (paddois) payaed 18yl S9|21Y9A JO %75

sawi} |9Aed)
40 938ues ay1 ueyl Ja1ea.s sawiy Sunjied Jo adueu e
sSMmoys ‘wd/-wey/ painided yarym ‘Asains apisguay ayl

spouad unoy yead |\d pue Jaiu| ‘A 9yl 404
paJnided sawil [9ALI] 9Y1 9J49M 9S3Y] "S9INUIW { ueyl
ss9] Aluolew 15eA Y1 yum ‘sarnuiw g sem eale AsAauns

sJelyauyM 3yl ysnoayl swil Asuunol wnwixew
91 1eY1 punoy Asauns uoneunsag-uiSuo syl

s)nsaJ awiy |[amp Supjied

SS1NO0Y PUD SMO|H DIJJoJ]|
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

JNILL ONIIHYd

Aeq ixe] «
Mo||2A 3|3ulS .
auoyd-Ag-Aed
3|pA21010\ =
Aeq Buipeo] &

mo||2A a|gnoQg

310 HaWINN

Aeq pajqesiq «

(Avasinaim) nNoi 1S34 3A1S943IX A9 JNIL 113MA ONIYYd

SoUUN ||SMP DUBIDd — S)Nsad AsAdng

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

JeN



WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS / WHITEFRIARS TRAFFIC STUDY

APPENDIX B: KERBSIDE ACTIVITY ANALYSIS

Page 352



ﬁﬁmmmwmmzﬁbVV+ = 082/ 59 £02(0) 7+
g - - oo PHdIu®UOPUO

Y. 2 wanmm ,,._Emcm 440 T3S “Uopuo]
.%cm>< UOIS[OT) b7 icfedN 198415 J8qaaM /S
£58 : uopuo

OTA €c0c =UnC

.,_..B_jmww_ >®$a_.ﬂw.®w_m€®v_

dJWAdd FAENOEH NWIWHON




NOQNOC1

Aanins AyiAinoe apisquay)|
3Y31 JO S3|nsaJ ay3 Ino S$13s 1odau siy|

A391e11§ s19a.431S AyljesH s,A11D ays jo Jed

se suolldo uolled0jaJ pue |eAowsal |elaualod
wiojul djay 03 AllIA130e 9piISqJay JO |9AI]

93Ul pueisiapun 03 palinbas a19m SASAINS YL

Apnis d1yjed] ealy SIelOHUM

oyl Ulylim slao94lS JO Jaqunu e uo

AliAIOR 9pISquay p4023J 03 SASAINS ejsapun
03 710D /d¥N Ag pauoissiwwod aiam HAN

UOIONPOJU

31INSayY ASAING BpISqUIS
APMIS G401 Doy SIDLIHIM JeN




o
=y Z ©34e ASAINS BPISYIDY = mm
zﬂmcﬂuo._ 219 ‘S}IUN € YoeOI B :
sl ‘suun /£1°0 SI 912Ad1010W B }iun T SIJed e aiaym
A ; = ‘ Hc sspdiapun S4D14)20|9 . usw
wg JO Yi3ua| e sey Hun I1YDA B SSWNSSe syl : e %lomihell_
{ 'S31UN 3J21Yyan se pajuasaid synsal ||y e I 2 |
i al
sindinQ 15 % s 1
TR sl
-~ 1o 2 asasnssuieL
€20C YdJeN S Aepanies pue ) “3& lllllllm c “
. . o quog ut
YaJeA p.£7 Aepsinyl ‘Yaue o,z Aepssupap uo 00:6T-00:L0 @ ue9n0 a “ o £ g “ ¥
o | g D s
.ﬂ. — N n —ll-.- W
sawi} AdAung T ) e 15
. RW — ® 389435 J0pny L m
m Illllnuu.'lllﬂllllw M w N
o & o m =
anuany i dwal e - : & . ol ¢
: SRR g —uw
n v % i
19241 S} pwIe) e o a A a 2 %
o e %
199.1S Sljjel. e o U § %J
o X o = o°
192415 Jawuadie)y uyor e i m 3 5 ¢ : m.a
: : S
199415 2100S3Uly e = 2 z 3 =
g 2 3\ 3
a1esiole o @
1 1eM\ ([ J TﬁcmPJ 1oau1s 39014
j92J1S Jopnl e

suonelo| Aanu ng

S1NSaY ASAING 2PISTUSY

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W\_/_



20%0._

(NY1L) aul| pas sjgnog
aul| mo||2A 9jgnoq
aul| moj||oA 9j3uls

dois sng

upped uoy0Q
Supyaed 921104

Supyaed onewojdiq
Aeq pajqesip /Suipeo) pateys
Aeq Suipeon

Aeq apAdioloN
paiqesia

Aeq 1xe)

Supjaed suoyd-Ag-Aed

FJWAdd IAHNOH NVWHON

AN

/

P
S m.h<0¢m._.<\5

—

JOHN CARPENTER STREET

|

13341S yoant
==

ey,
——d T 133 HJ.?
3102soNy

\

CARMELITE STREET

13341S SITVL

=

©94e ASAINS BPISCIDY  mmmmmm

TEMPLE AVENUE

—x1 i

Page 356



zc%.u._

- B
fra

%98-9L
%SL>
A

sanjea
13410 33 JO %06 ueyl Jaysiy
si eyl anjea ay1 st Aouednado
9|1nua24ad Y106 ay3 1saysiy
9Y1 01159MO| 3y} WOJ4 19se1ep
e ul sanjea Aouedndoo ay}
[|e jues NOA §i ‘St 1ey] "19selep
U3AIS e Ul SaN|BA PaAIISQO
3140 %06 uey3Jaysiy sieyy
Aduednd20 Jo [9A3] 9Y3 03 S84
Aduednaoo aj13uadlad yioe ayl °

paAanuns sAep € ayi jo 1soysiy
aya sl anjea ajiusdsad ,06 °

paAanins
sAep ||e jJo anjea1saysiy
ay3 st Aouednddo wnwixe|p °

S910N

%58 %S8 (s910A21010W 9) T $3[2A2J010\
%S¢ %0S % pajgesiq anuaAy ajdwa|
%00T %00T 3 auoyd-Ag-Aeq
%00T %00T 4 Aeq 8uipeoT

%TS %00T (so10Ad1010W 9) T $9|9A2J010|N

%0 %00T T pajgesia 1995 SHPHIED
%00T %00T ¥ auoyd-Ag-Aeq

%TS %TS (so10Ad1010W 9) T $9]9A2J010|N

%0 %00T T Aeq pajgesig 199s SIEL

e o : uouc e 193J1S Ja1uadue) uyor

%0 %09 z yuels Ixe | W
%EE %00T € Aeq pajgesiq 19241S 9100s8UlY| nm_w
%88 %883 g suoyd-Ag-Aed 51081918 w
%00T %00T (so10Adu030W 7T) T $9]9A2J010|N =
%001 %001 € pajgesia
%00T %00T 9 auoyd-Ag-Aeq 1oes fopnL

%0 %S6 € yuel Ixe]

Aouedndoos|nuaoiad 4,06

S1NSaY ASAING 2PISTUSY

Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

Adouednado wnwixe

UOIID1I1S3J SPISQUD)Y

uonedoT

19915 AQ DaUp ApN1S — S)NSSY

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

Je




zc%.u._

- B
i,

sanjea
13410 33 JO %06 ueyl Jaysiy

si eyl anjea ay1 st Aouednado
9|1nua24ad Y106 ay3 1saysiy

9Y1 01159MO| 9y} WoJj 13selep e
ul sanjeA Aouednd20 ay3 |je yuel
NOA }I ‘SpJOM JBY10 U] "1ase1ep
U3AIS e Ul SaN|BA PaAIISQO

192415
yoea Jo4 pue adAy Aeq yoes uo4 Aep jo swin Aq sydes3 Aduednddo juasaud sapi|s Suimo||os ayl

pasn ||om Ajjesauasd ale sAeq 3|0A21010|N

sapl|s Suimo||o4 ay3 uo sAeq pajqesip 404 sydesd Aduednddo ayjy ur umoys st siyl
‘'Spordad sawiy 1oys 104 Ajuo Ing pasn ||om ale sAeq pajqesip ayi s1sad3ns siyl ‘Aduednddo
3|luadJad ;06 49Mo| yonw e 1ng Aduednddo wnwixew ysiy e aaey sAeq pajqesip ayL

eaJe 9Y1 Ul SYJOM UOI1INJISUOD YHM PaleId0SSe S3|DIYaA snjd s9|a1yan 3udiAIas /3ulpeo
apn|oul osje ||im sAeq auoyd-Ag-Aed ayy Jo asn UanamoH ‘sadA) Aeq asayy oy Ayoeded aueds
ou s| 349y} 3unsadans ‘Aduednado jo s|aAl| y3iy aney sAeq Suipeo| pue sauoyd-Ag-Aed sy

oyos ‘s)dwexa 40}
‘Ul syuUeJ IXel J9Ylo Yyim aul| ul Ajpeouq si siyl ysnoyije ‘Aduednado moj aney syued 1xel ay|

eaJe Apnis Joj >._mEE=%w

Page 3

31 J0 %06 ueyl Jaysiy si eyl
Aduednd20 Jo [9A3] 9Y3 03 S84
Aouednooo ajnusdiad y1osayL e %00T %007 [4 Aeq 3uipeo
paAanuns sAep € ayi jo 1soysiy o %SL %S6 (soppAdu010W 67) § S9|0A21010N
aya sl anjea ajiusdsad ,06 ° %G8<
%ES %00T 4" paigesia
paAanins %G8-S/
sAep ||e Jo anjeA1saysiy %63 %S6 As auoyd-Ag-Aeq
3y stAouednddo wnwixely e %G/>
%0¢ %LS S JUel Ixel
s910N A

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

Aouedndoo sjnuadiad ;06

Aouedndoo wnwixey Aoeded je1o| UO110141S3J BpISqU)

odA1 ADg AQ DaUD APNIS — S NSSY

FJWAdd IAEN0OH NVIWHON

JeN




zc%.u._

o

At &
%Qe %Q.e %.a.z &5

%.o.,u. %Q.s

A

%a.» &

o

" e o T A R (VR T T T T
& ¢ R

ot

%8 %L8 T€ [43 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T
%TL %C8 9 o€ 006T-0090 £207/€0/€C 2
%68 %56 €€ S€ 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT o
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]11% Y106 | Aouednao xen 7
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg A
€2/€0/€T - A2undn220 apien
LE Ayoede)

%u&.%ﬂﬁ.@o..hrwwom.nﬂaaf%.a&f%o.ﬁ%aszawanv%o.a»%o.mz%aﬁ%o.)f&wouf awat %0& %.o.k %o.ms Q»..n.r o@ma %&.c %.o.? %.e;. %aa .a&.%a?e %emr awaoe%o_% nm.v.o.m.,r .a(z %aw{ %wo% &wOAz %o..&. &wo.«z &wo.?z %an.( %Qs ma.na ao.a.,. %@a ao..m.» aawwa %G@ mo.n.r nﬂof %aa

(9)]

s (®)

™
(@)

(A

~f 0z

(13

SE

ov

£2/€0/SZ - A2updnd20 PPy £2/£0/2T - A2updnao0

ov

(suoyd-Ag-And) oo Apnlg - S3 NSy

wp_jwmm >®>ij @U_mQva_ JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM & W._/_



gy

. G BT - - L T B ol R T S e e R T
. %.5 %.0 & %ﬂ %.Q %D %& %U %.9 %_u %.O %ﬂ %.ﬁ & %Q %ﬁ %ﬂ %D. %ﬂ Qu@ %U %.ﬂ %my %0.
Znun.,_ez_ﬂ.— _ _ e
ALID
—, Bt

%8 %L1 T C 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T :
%S¢C %6¢€ € S 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T .
%ES %T0T 9 (4 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T

911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]11% Y106 | Aouednao xen i
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg

nwan
£Z/€0/€T - ASundna2Q
[ zz [ Awedes ]
g T T ST S e T By e S e e RO W MR L ol £ BT e T e e S -V | R S S
FFFF g T Ty e T T FFs Ty P g e P S
Tlrer (4] o
) | _ O
| | ©
(
, ; _ >
9 POy R e, | B — |—H..
3

oF

o

43

£2/£0/52 - A2undno20

£T/€0/TT - Asundna2Q

(Po|gpsIQ) PaJo APNIS — s}NsaY

WP__JW@Q >®>ij @U_mﬂva_ AWAEd ININOY NYWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W._/_



zc%.u._
ALD

- B
i,

2

%%.%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

&N Q

&

i

4

&

ea.

PO

R .
nmuﬂ nmwv %0.

|

£2/€0/5T - Asundno20

%0 %0¢ 0 T 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T
%0¢ %LS T € 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T i
%0¢ %01 T [4 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen ‘
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg .
€2/£0/€T - A2undn220
_ S _ Aoede)
LTSS F L EEFEESE Pl i P e
i
(o)
P (3]
L
e e — l'®)
(C
(A

£Z/0/TT - A2updnaa0D

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



K

B o B T SO A C Y S S
zﬂ.-.__ﬁ_cz_n.-_ %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%a
ALID
o e S L5
%0T %0€ T C 006T-0090 €202/€0/S¢
%89 %TL € 14 006T-0090 €207/€0/€2 :
%SL %56 14 S 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]11% Y106 | Aouednao xen ,
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg .
€2/£0/€T - Asundna20
S _ Aoede)
F S LT F S EFFTFES g e A S A
N
©
i AJO
)
— 58| @)
(©
| e 0
Lol 1 ;
9 _ 9
£2/€0/ST - Asundna20 Fnlill £Z/£0/2Z - A2undna20

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



L N S

NOQNOT oy
AL 7

. PO

e

2 q o ades el I S Ve St
P T T T T AT G

%00T %00T 9 9 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T
%98 %8CT S 8 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T i
%001 %SYT 9 6 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT — 3
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen i
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg >
£2/£0/€Z - Aoundna20
9 Apede)
%uwe%oneaw@re%a%@amf%aﬁ%aﬁ %a%%ab%o.ﬁ %o.m., %..o,u..,. %af.. %aa,. ...wn.w %ua %.o% %o.s %.ay o@oz %ai %oe %o,. %aa e ¥ e T e e )
%@s %o.e & %n._u ) %n.,k %wu_ no.n..s %n..a %D.e %.n.,e - %w_v %&a %o.@ %.Qe n%s oa.u.v %az a@a.e %o. %a Am.w
. (@)
AD)
. D
(@]
@
£2/£0/5Z - A2undnd20 s £2/£0/2Z - A2undna20 P

(suoyd-Ag-Aond) 192413 Jopn| — S} NSay

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

S1INSoY ASAING BPISAISY
ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM & W._/_



zca.;.zo-— %.au. .%.o.._nr _.%,oze %Qa.. mw.o.f} %vvv %uQ .%.o.ov %.omz m_-,.n,haa mm.o.ﬁ._ & .,.v_.aa. %.o.vi %@s mwn& .%ur %a.p %a.a. %oﬁ %a.r mm.n.e _oov,/ %Qoa
ALID
< -h.d.._..m L o
¥
%0 %EE 0 T 006T-0090 €202/€0/ST :
%0 %56 0 € 006T-0090 £20Z/€0/€T "
%0 %9 0 4 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen g
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg s¢
€2/€0/€T - A2undn220
€ Apede)
S U e P O FE LT LTS LS LS LSS
: T o
50 A
¢
(O
= jat
£2/£0/52 - A2undnd20 Jinkd £Z/€0/2Z - A2undnasg

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



A

ZD@O.— & .%.o.,w & .aa.o.f,, & %.o.w m%rz q,u._z, ST S Lo m%( o .%4 & m%.e m%,» %w

- L §

%EE %L9 T C 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T :
%L9 %LST C S 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T ve

%EET %E0E 14 6 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT "
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen A,

uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg s
€2/€0/€T - Asundna230

€ Apede)

FE LTS L L LT EEE S AP R g o

, Il9]

50 ‘b

0 5]

7 : ')
%u

5T -UI

£2/£0/52 - A2undnd20 Jimid £Z/£0/2Z - A2upndna20

(02IqPSIQ) 19941S JopN| — SHNSSY

mp_jwmm >®>ij @U_mQva_ JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W._/_



K
&8
&

G e

r ¥ g I O S I o, R R SR O U e e e A K D
& & & & R A S T A A T S S S S
_ D

zc%.u._

- B
i,

%9 %9L T 4 006T-0090 £202/€0/S¢ st
%¢C0T %ITT 4 4 006T-0090 €£202/€0/€C
%E6 %eEVT 4 € 006T-0090 €207/€0/7C z
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg =
£2/€0/£T - Aoundna2Q i
4 Apede)
.orr%o"ne.mwaze@uaar%o.m.nmp&r%.o.b %03!%%( nmwaa.f m.uo.mz %..a.a.v %Qz.,. mwaa.,. nw.ua.a nwv& saar %ag uu.o.y o@oa &ua.u %Q.r %.o;. nﬁaa ﬂ@a._&. %au...\r %om. %our %o_v qm.uo,a.,,. %.am( %u,w.( nvo«.u.r %OAz %o..v. nw.mo»k &wo.rz %an.r %Qs an.h«.a ao.a., %oa aa..mr aawwg %&: po.n..f ao._af %.ao

o

o~

o\

Page 366-

S

SE

_ €T/E0/TT - A2updna20 o,

£2/£0/5¢ - Aundno20

S)NsSay ASAING SPISqJUSH o
Apnig 213404) DBUY SIDLSHYM Q W\_/_



I F G L P
o e e
NOAQNOT ao P S A
#0

o E - R SO v
PO R

e PO am

Pt

%8 %8 6 6 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST
%9L %58 8 6 006T-0090 £20Z/€0/€T i
%16 %601 (08 [4) 006T-0090 €202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen 4
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg i
€2/€0/€T - A2undn220
11 Ayoede)
FE LT L FELEESFEESE Pl i o P
N~
O
z ¢
SEl S
i Al
la Ars -
£2/£0/52 - A2updnd20 ol £Z/€0/2T - A2updn2230 Fomi

(auoyd-Ag-Ang) 1S Jajuadiod) Uyop — sinsay

S1NSaY ASAING 2PISTUSY

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM & W._/_




e b < N T NP e T R S
%.D %ﬂ %ﬂ %.0 %Q %.ﬂ. nwu.ﬂ %Q %0 %@ %D nmuﬂ %9 %0.
: sy i : i

o R R .

3 ; & 3 S
T

£y L 2
@ & & & &

zc%.u._

- B
i,

%0 %0 0 0 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST g
%0 %09 0 T 006T-0090 £20Z/€0/€T
%0 %085 0 T 006T-0090 €202/€0/TT ¢
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg =
£2/£0/€Z - Asupdnasp
4 Apede)
LR E LT E L EEEFEES Pl e e
0]
(o)
—T 50 = e |A..ﬁ..~
L
&
, [l
S 5t
£2/£0/ST - ASundno20 i | €T/£0/2T - ASundna20 S

S)NsSay ASAING SPISqJUSH o
Apnig 213404) DBUY SIDLSHYM Q W‘_/_



&

O
&

NOQNO1 F&EE s

Vo T - T CEI R e S

%_u( %OJ o

P Sl TR N . (S e S S S
o %_u %.O %ﬁ %.ﬁ %.5 %Q %.ﬂ. %U %Q %wu %@ %D nmuﬂ. %9 %0.
s [

. PO

e

%80T %80T 14 14 006T-0090 £202/€0/S¢ X
%SCT %0ST S 9 006T-0090 €£202/€0/€C .
%38TT %SCT q q 006T-0090 €207/€0/2¢
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen ; 3
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg 5
£2/£0/£T - Aoupdnas0
v Apede)
.a,w..r .o.&. .@ze o,af o..n. .aa.r o.,o. .o._sz .om,,_ .o.ﬁa .o.m.. .a.a..,. o.ra o s & P g D Foatl & o.ut P _ .a._&. .a.&. oﬁ. .Qoﬁ omr .o,nw, .Q,v .a,w.( ,oeu,r .OAz .o,.b. .0»2 .o?z .am,. & i &Y & P & & &P
%%%%%%%%@%%%%%%%%%%ooaa%%%a%o7 T T S el R R T R i
(9))
50 | Ab
i3 ™
D
ST !g
y (©
o
ST £
ok |
5 9
£2/£0/5¢ - A2undna30 £2/£0/22 - A2undna3g

(suoyd-Ag-Aod) 192413 S}BUIIDD — S NSSY

wp_jwmg >®>ij @U_mQLmv_ JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM & W._/_



zcazo-— & mb _.% & mw. .%% .‘. %‘.‘_, mw & .%. %‘ mw .%

- B
i,

%0 %001 0 T 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST
%0 %00T 0 T 006T-0090 £207/€0/€C i
%0 %00¢ 0 4 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen :
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg ot
£2/€0/£T - Aoundnas0
T Apede)
L LSS L FESFEESE P i i o
T O
N~
Lo | |A..ﬁ..w
L
i | =
| pr— o
Lo e —
80 _
£Z/£0/5Z - Aoundna20 S £Z/£0/2Z - Aoundna20

(PBI0PSIQ) 198.1S S}HISUIDD) — S}NSSY

S1NSay ASAINS BpISOUSY
ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W\_/_




A ol R ol S P A R
Z_D_m_cz_ﬂ_._ %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%@%%%%D
>|h.m|U
%0 %0 0 0 006T-0090 €202/€0/S¢
%1S %TS T T 006T-0090 €207/€0/€2 2
%19 %00T T T 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen :
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg ot
€2/€0/€T - Asundna0
T Apede)

.owr ,oﬂ... .af.r ,aor ow_.r aa._r o.,n, o._sz .ofz .a.a.f .o.mz .o.a..,. .o.ra. .a@. A .v.r & P .a._c». .a.&. oﬁ. .a,or omf ow,. .a(z .aw.( ,o&. .OAz .a,wuf .omz .0?1 .au.,. S R ..mr & st g & =0

& & F S T F T TS FF F T T F T FFFFFFF T &

—

N~

FZ0 | Aé

)
B S )

(©

pti— 0

90 I - 0]

£2Z/€0/ST - Aoundn220 £Z/£0/2Z - A2updnaag

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



zc%.u._

- B
i,

%09 %05 T T 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T
%0ST %00¢ € 14 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T
%00¢ %0S¢ 14 S 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg

4 Apede)
(A Y O TR DT R S T T S B T T TS MY U G TR K
i) %0 @.va %0 %ﬂ %0 nﬁﬂ Qmﬂ %.D &vo G.uo %0. nﬁo. ﬁv.«o .mwa. nﬂ? qmunm h,@D n@.D 0@0. ﬂﬂa %Q nﬂo nﬁv
0
—F o0
13
ST |
(4
£Z/20/8Z - Aoundna20

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

A AV g

R - S

T G S L0 8 B A g b s & KA LS
F e FF T FFFFFdFdaadddd &
S0

1

St

T

5t

SE

3

i 4

nan
£2/£0/ET - Adoupdna20

PRy e BT R Y o\ 0T i T R~ i < T LR SO SR W S YT e e
S T S T T T T ST & &
o

N

N~

(30]

Z

.

5

2

£Z/£0/2T - A2updn23Qp -l




o e Bl o T T T D O T R R
zﬂ.-.__n.,_cz_n.-— %.oa%.oomv,%%%%%%%%%%mﬂ.%%%aa%%%%a
ALID
— -h.l..._..m = o
v
%0 %EE 0 T 006T-0090 £207/€0/5¢ s
%EE %EE T T 006T-0090 €£202/€0/€C =
%eE %00T T € 006T-0090 €207/€0/2¢
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen g
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg s¢
£2/£0/£Z - Asupndnad0
€ Apede)

m..«owu. ,ou.... am.a&. awaur nmAo.m_. nﬁpa._r %o.,rr %asr %.afz %o...u. nﬂa.mz%o.a..r .o.renn.ow. oma.t nwo& %o.k %o.j %.D.y o@o.a %a.u %Q.r %.o;. ya.aa %v..&. %a”...\r %oﬁ. %aur %o_v %o%. %a,v %u,w{ %oam. %OAz %a,..u. nw.mo»k &wo?z %uu.r %Qs aa.n..,& ao.a., %oa aa..mr aawwa %&: po.n._r %.az %.ao

™

: I

—F 50 Ai

(©

=ohaE : = Qs

SE SE

£2/€0/5T - Aundno20 iRy £T/£0/2T - A2upndna2Q il

WP__JW@Q >®>ij @U_mﬂva_ AWAEd ININOY NYWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W\_/_



T i i S R
e g b E P
NOQNOT
#0

Pl R I TR TN e e Y T - I
T A
: o N

. S

T

%88 %88 L L 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T
%S¢C %8¢ 4 € 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T i
%838 %88 L L 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT 3
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen ¥
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg 5
€2/€0/€T - Asundna20
8 Apede)
; ,&.%a&.mw@ze%aoe@amf%a.a.r%o.,,.v%@%%a,b%aﬁ%owz%auv%arf %aaz&was nwv.e %ﬁr %.o.s %.Qy 4 @va %a; %ae %e,. %aa ﬁ%&. %.a.&. %em. %aur %o_o» %.o.m.ur %a,v %a,.sz %.o% &woAz %.a.&. %o.»r &wo?z %.au.,. %as no.ne ao.a.( %ow oo.a._r aawwa %&m 50.&». %ﬁf %.ao
)
™M
)
€ )
(O
b 0
§ 5
L &L
2 |
6 (1
£2/£0/5Z - A2undnd20 fond ! £2/£0/2Z - A2undna20 S

(euoyd-Ag-ADd) 8100I910AN — S1NSSY

JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

S1INSoY ASAING BPISAISY
ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM & W._/_



zc%.u._

- B
i,

%0 %001 0 T 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST
%0 %00T 0 T 006T-0090 £207/€0/€C i
%0 %001 0 1 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen :
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg ot
£2/€0/£T - Aoundnao0
_ T _ Aoede)
LT E LTS F L EEFEESE Pl i o e
_ 10
N~
FZ0 | Aé
L
)
e 0
30 e — a0
80 _ 70
£2/€0/52 - A2undna20 £Z/£0/2Z - A2undna20

(po|gosIq) 199.43S S|IP). — SHNSSY

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

JeN

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



O - i o - R R T T R SR
_ %.ﬁ %.0 %D & %.O %D %_u %.0 %.9 %ﬂn %.Q %ﬂ %.ﬂ %.0 %Q %.ﬂ. %.9 %ﬂm nwuﬁ nmuww %O nmuﬂ %@ %0.
NOANOT Al L
40
ALID

- B
i,

%0 %0 0 0 006T-0090 £202/€0/S¢
%YE %1S 0 T 006T-0090 €£202/€0/€C A
%TS %TS T T 006T-0090 €207/€0/2¢
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen :
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg ot
£Z/£0/£T - Asundnad0p
T Apede)
.orr ,oﬂ... .af.r ,aor ow_.r am..r o.,n. o._sr .ofz .o.a.f .o.mz .o.b. .o.ra. .a@. &° B S .v.r o g Q‘r S .a._c». .a.&r oﬁ. .o,or o_v o,au. .o(z .gw.( ,o&. .OAz .a,wuf .omz .o.rz .au.,. o & & P ..m.._ et rod & &R
& Tl T T g FF AT g SR FeF eSS sy & & F TS S
(@)
N~
FZ0 | Aé
D
“Hog S o)
©
(n
£2/€0/ST - Asundno20 ek £2/£0/2T - A2updna0

(8]2ADJ010|N)) 1981S SI|ID] — SYNSSY

JWAdd IAENOH NV

JeN

WHON

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



zc%.u._

. PO

e

S E N R

T A

Sl TR SO e
F AT AR

£Z/e0/eZ - AoundnaoQ

%00T %00T 8 8 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T s
%ETT %ETT 6 6 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T ‘
%001 %ETT 8 6 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T [
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen =
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg %

ETRTITET
8 Apede)

o ST T S~ S~ ~ T i o s LR R R AR MR e ey T R A e L Ve~ R S S
il i T T T S S PP FFFFFFFFsedd S
o o
I~

—=b
™
i )
; S
v n
5
9

,
3

L
2
8 &
6 ot
£2/£0/5Z - Aoundna20 il £2/£0/2T - Aoupndna20 ik

(dUoyd-Ag-And) snUsAY a|duds| — S}NSSY

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

JeN

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



gy

Eo G A B I B v O S ™ O ol = IR < R T SO e [ S N T -
— P T T T R AT S S
ZGM_QZ_G_.— S ; ; : o N
ALID
i PR e 50
= ,\.___

St
L]

%0 %0 0 0 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST

%SC %08 T z 006T-0090 £207/€0/€C IF
%0 %085 0 4 006T-0090 €202/€0/TT <

911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen ¥
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg sv
€2/€0/€T - A2undn220

v Apede)

i P O R P i i A

(00)

™

)
—— 7 | = |g

O

t —P..

5t S

SE 5E

£2/£0/SZ - A2updn320 ik £2/£0/2T - Aupdndo0

(P2I|gPSI) SNUBAY a|duis| — S1Nsay

WP__JW@Q >®>ij @U_mﬂLmv_ AWAEd ININOY NYWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W._/_



z.u%o._

TS

o

o )
& & & 8

o

TR - T S S
o S

AN
& &

&

oo b
&5

& &
& ¢

& &

90

%0 %0 0 0 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST
%19 %1S T T 006T-0090 £20Z/€0/€T i
%58 %58 T T 006T-0090 €202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen :
uoneunies Jo saJdsQg x
£2/€0/£T - Aoundn250
T Apede)
Pl LTSS LSS S LSS FFESE Pl P o
O
N~
FZo | Aé
L
L N =)
©
e (i
20 P a0

£Z/20/SZ - A2undna20

€Z/E0/TZ - A2upndnaap

S1NSaY ASAING oPISTIDY
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM



zc%.u._

- B
i,

A89jeu1s
5193415 AyyjeaH yum aulj ui uoisinosd apisq4ay asiuedioas 0} Ajlunyuoddo 3s933ns synsay e

SU0I12111S3J 7dD 3yl Yum asueljdwod

sanjeA

13410 3Y3 40 %06 Uey: Jaysiy poo3 Ajjesauad s1s933ns siy| ‘Aduedndado moj aney sauil moj|9A s|jgnop pue 3|3uls yyog e
S 3ey3y anjea ays st Aouednaoo

3|nu3d4ad 306 A 1s3y31Y ease Apnis Joy Alewwing

93 031 1S9MO| 9y} wouJj 1aselep e

ul sanjeA Aouednd20 ay3 |je yuel

NOA }I ‘SpJOM JBY10 U] "1ase1ep
UBAIS e Ul SBN|eA PaAISSUO

o. : _ m_u q sbupyibw qiay 3jgnop aip 313yl a4aym awil Aup 1o pazywiad

94140 %06 Ueyl Jaysly st 1eyl 10U S1 BuIp O] "SbulyIbW 43y 3|BUIS 31D 313Y] 31aYM Sawl paAp|dsip burinp pup aul| moj|aA 3|gnop b uo awiil Aub 1o panw.ad si buippo]

Aduednd20 Jo [9A3] 9Y3 03 S84

A K A
Aouedna20 ajusaiad Y106 dYL o SINoY PajjoJuod 742 ayl Buninp saul| mojjaA ajbuis uo pup ‘saulj MojjaA 3|gnop uo sawil Jip 10 paxqiyosd s buryiod

Pagé 380

sAbp4n3oS Uo WDTT-Wo/ pub “Abpli4 01 ADPUO Wd/-WD/ 34D SINOY 74D YL
paAanuns sAep € ayi jo 1soysiy

a1 s1 anjeA aj1uad.ad w06 ° HvaWA SU0112143534 3ul] Moj|aA 03 123lgns aopds \mu.aﬁm« ay1 Jo 1534 ay1 yum ‘sawiiy asayl burinp sAoq
buryind paipubisap ui pajnwaad Ajuo si pup sinoy Aq pajjosiuod si buryiod buiubaw ‘(z4D) auoz buiyind pajjoi1uo) o si uopuoi Jo A1) ayL .
paAanins %G8-S/
shep ||e jo anjealsaysiy %S %LT 144 aul| moj|9A 3|qnog
3y stAouednddo wnwixely e %G/>
%0T %ST 9T aul| moj|3A 3|3uIS
S3I10N A Aouednaoo ajpuaniad 06 fouednaoo wnwixe Aoedes je1o) UOIIDLI1S2. DPISQUDY

odA]1 aull mojIeA Ag nalp ApN1g — s Nsay

JWAdd IAENOT NVIWHON

S1INSoY ASAING BPISAISY
ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W._/_



N D@Ol—. %..@&. %.o.._nr _%,oze %u_ue %.o.mf %vvv %.QQ o %.orz %_u,“aa oa.o.nz au_u,_aa. %uxz oo.Q.oz &° oaﬂa %@r %a.p %ﬂ.r oao;a “%o.f mw.n? mmvv,z %Qoa
%9 %L T €T 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/5T e
%6 %11 ST 0¢ 006T-0090 €20Z/€0/€T o1
%0T %S1T LT 9C 006T-0090 €20T/€0/2T oo

911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen L
uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg oz
€2/€0/€T - Asundnao0
[ 91 [ Awedes ]
S EEE ST EFE LA E LS EEE
B = P LR Y T T O D~ Y ST, b\ T TR e, e TR S, e T, T
i- ' S T T T TS F L |
oz [lll[ii )
ov 5
N )
= (@]
£ ©
- i
oot
£2/£0/SZ - A2undna20 ek £2/€0/22 - A2undna30

(SUl] MOJ|2A B|DUIS) DB APNIS — S1NSaY

mp_jwmm >®>ij @U_mQLmv_ JWAdd IAEANOH NVIWHON

ApN1S 2144041 D3Iy SJIOLIFSUYM Q W._/_




zc%.u._
ALD

- B
i,

o eze & i & z.v,ae‘.ﬁée)v.vz‘s ST
%% %oo G %%%%%%%% & & &

R
%U %.ﬂ %@

&

T _,_3 B =1, T _ _,_

a

%0 %6 0 C 006T-0090 £20T/€0/ST

%6 %8T 4 14 006T-0090 £20Z/€0/€T

%CT %TC € S 006T-0090 £202/€0/TT
911% Y106 AduednaoQ xe|A |9]19% Y106 | Aouednao xen

uoljeanies Jo 92.489Qg

Apede)

ww |

.—.‘rer)f.rzzzza.fl.r

%%%&u%%%%%%%%%%mﬂ%%%%

%a%%%

o

or

£1]

114

£2/£0/52 - Asundna30

31INSay ASAING apIsqla
Apni1S d1}j04] DBUY SIDISUYM

£Z/£0/€Z - AoundnaaQ

P & o
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%H%%%%%%%%

S e

PPN

sI

(114

£Z/e0/2Z - Adundnson

5¢
Hun
APEA




London Exeter Bristol
57 Webber Street 25 ford Barton The Picture House T ize Business Centre,
London, SE1 ORF 3usiness Park ro, TR4 8PN

X8 7BT

= london@nrpltd.com om S DEPIRT.CO
28( (C 2 26688 87 8910 R, +44 (0)1872 562054

438 ;
E ) Partnerships Network

Street, London, SE1ORF [ J = Knowledge Partners Regulated by RICS

P 77 CIHT (13 rics




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 384



Agenda Item 9

Committees: Dates:
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee- (for | 07 November 2023
information)

' . 04 December 2023
Projects and procurement Sub Committee (for

information)

Subject: Gateway 5

Bank Junction Improvements: All Change at Bank Complex
Unique Project Identifier: Progress Report
11401

Report of: For Information

Interim Executive Director Environment

Report Author:
Gillian Howard

PUBLIC

1. Status update Project Description: To improve the safety, air quality and

pedestrian experience of the area around the Bank junction to
reflect the historic and iconic surroundings with the appropriate
sense of place.

RAG Status: Amber (Amber at last report to Committee)
Risk Status: Medium (Medium at last report to Committee)

Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): £6.67M -
£7.3M (max figure includes utilisation of unspent costed risk to
deliver public realm enhancements if available, and inclusion of
the Cool Streets funding and the recent inclusion of the £500k
for the traffic mix and timing review)

Spend to Date: £3,476,194 (latest staff costs still to run —
20/10/23 and includes expenditure to date on the traffic and
timing review).

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: £423,502 (of which £0 has
been drawn down since the last report to Committee);

2. Key points to note Next Gateway: Gateway 6

Key Points:

e Work has progressed well and to programme.

v.April 2019 Page 385



e Works will cease for a few weeks whilst preparation for
the Lord Mayor's Show 2023 is undertaken and will
restart towards the end of November.

e Queen Victoria Street & Threadneedle Street are closed
to motor vehicles.

¢ A substantial part of the programme has been completed
which was the most disruptive, and there have only been
a limited number of issues.

3. Reporting period

September 2022 to October 2023

4. Progress to date

1.

Construction of the All Change at Bank project commenced
in earnest in November 2022 following the Lord Mayor’s
Show. The focus of work has been on the areas that are
required to be completed for this year’s Show, enabling
substantial areas to be made available for viewing the
event.

The plan in Appendix 2 highlights the areas that have been
completed.

It was agreed in the Gateway 5 report in December 2021
that as the risk decreases and the risk provision is released,
the money will be diverted towards the further delivery of
the enhancements of the scheme. In September 2022,
those enhancements were prioritised and agreed by
Members as set out in Table 1.

The approval of the Costed Risk release was delegated to
the Chief Officer (now Executive Director)

Table 1

Rank |Public Realm priorities

1 Yorkstone crossing outside BoE on Threadneedle
St

2 IAccessible ramp outside the Royal Exchange

3 Seating on Threadneedle Street

4 Seating on Queen Victoria Street

5 Two planting pots near to Wellington Statue (Royal
Exchange)

6 Two planting pots outside Mansion House

7 Granite setts on the remainder of Threadneedle St
cycle lane

8 Removal of planter wall outside the Royal Exchange
to open up space

9 Two planting pots outside BoE

10 Three further pots outside Royal Exchange

v.April 2019

Page 386




11

|Granite setts on Queen Victoria Street |

We are now approaching a period where a significant
proportion of the work has been undertaken and that some
of the Costed Risk provision can be released. This is due to
some of the risks closing, or about to close, and no longer
able to become an issue for the project. The updated risk
register to date is in Appendix 4.

It is anticipated that this release will be sufficient to commit
to the material of choice of Yorkstone for the raised
crossing outside of the Bank of England (Priority 1 above),
and granite setts on the remainder of Threadneedle Street
(Priority 7). Whilst the granite setts are lower down the
priority order, this is an item that cannot be revisited at the
end of the construction and needs to be undertaken as part
of the next phase of works. If things continue as they have
done to date, we would anticipate that we should be able to
deliver items 1-7 in the above table. Items 2-6 are all
elements that can be done after the main works have
completed.

The item at number 11 — Granite setts on Queen Victoria
Street (on the raised table) will not be taken forward as the
programme of works required this decision to be taken well
in advance of the ability to release funding from the costed
risk budget. As it was low down on the priority list it was
decided to continue with this table in black top/tarmac as
had previously been agreed.

Of the work that has completed to date, the project remains
on programme which is in part to do with the excellent
partnership working with TfL (Transport for London) to
coordinate work, road closures, bus service changes and
traffic signal changes both temporary and long term and
working over and near the underground structure and entry
and exits. Without the ongoing collaboration it would have
been difficult to complete such a large and complex area of
work in the time available.

There have been small delays and issues have arisen
during the year, but the overall programme has been
maintained. In addition, FM Conway have maintained a
high standard of workmanship throughout the work
delivered to date, particularly on the quality of the laying of
the Yorkstone.

Mansion House Street

v.April 2019

Page 387




10. The most significant pavement widening can be seen
outside Mansion House and is illustrated in the photos in
appendix 5.

11.Three new granite benches have been installed in this area
alongside new heritage light columns and lanterns.

12.The old CCTV column that was in the island of Mansion
House Street has been relocated to its new home allowing
for the carriageway to be narrowed to two lanes from its
previous four (reduced to three in 2020 with temporary
pavement widening).

13.The pavement widening has allowed the opportunity for the
restaurant at 1 Lombard Street to have a few tables and
Chairs licensed outside. Ongoing monitoring of how the
new pavement space is utilised as works complete will take
place to ensure that the balance between the need for
people movement and the desire to activate space is
maintained.

Queen Victoria Street

14.Queen Victoria Street with its junction to Mansion House
Street at Poultry has been altered and motor vehicles can
no longer enter or exit here. This has meant that the bus
services using Queen Victoria Street are now permanently
rerouted and use Poultry to enter and exit Bank. This
change permanently took place in July 2023

15.The carriageway has been raised to incorporate Walbrook
to improve the crossing experience for people walking in
this area.

Poultry
16.Work on Poultry was limited and focused on the revised

crossing points to narrow the carriageway and tie in with the
revised vehicle and people movements.

17.
In addition to the work the project is delivering, a new taxi
rank is also due to be installed (subject to statutory
consultation results) on Poultry outside of the hotel
entrance. This is privately funded and does not form part of
the project.

18. At this stage taxis will still be required to u turn during the
restricted hours, and any future changes to this rely on the
traffic mix and timing review that is taking place (subject of
a separate report to the Planning and Transportation
Committee in November and Court of Common Council in
December).

v.April 2019

Page 388




Threadneedle Street

19. At Threadneedle Street the entry to the main junction has
been completed, which included the extension of the area
of pavement further into the junction from the steps that
lead to the Duke of Wellington statue, providing greater
circulation space for people walking or waiting at the
crossing point.

20.Threadneedle Street has changed between Bartholomew
Lane and the junction, and no longer allows for motor
vehicles at any time along this stretch of street (outside of
the Bank of England). This happened in July and bus
services that previously used Threadneedle Street have
been permanently diverted to use Cornhill. The exception to
this is route 133 which now uses King William Street and
Poultry following a separate and more recent bus
consultation by TfL whereby the route was changed and no
longer serves Liverpool Street station. This came into effect
in April 2023.

Princes Street

21.The entry exit to the junction has been reduced to one lane
on Princes Street. This remains two-way via traffic light
control, for buses and cycles. Other vehicles requiring
access to Cornhill can use Prices Street southbound and
turn left into Cornbhill.

22.Prior to any work in 2019, Princes Street had three lanes for
traffic, 2 southbound and one northbound. This change is a
significant improvement for people walking and using the
entrances to Bank station on this corner.

Cornhill

23.Work to narrow the carriageway and widen the pavements
into the junction has taken place with an area of raised
carriageway for improved crossing. Carriage way work only
extends as far as the James Henry Greathead statue.

King Willim Street/Lombard Street

24.Work on this section was one of the first sections to be
delivered but has been limited to footway widening and
carriageway resurfacing. It includes a large increase of
pavement by Mansion House Place to tie in with the new
kerb outside Mansion House.

25.Proposals under the Pedestrian Priority Programme to
reconstruct King William Street will see a vast improvement
to the whole of this street, which will link into the overall
upgrade of the movement through the junction at Bank.

v.April 2019

Page 389




Funding for the King William Street proposals has only
recently been agreed and was in its infancy when the
construction work at Bank was due to start. There will be a
need for the King William Street work to adjust some of the
work undertaken at the junction to align the levels for
drainage appropriately, but this will be kept to a minimum.

26.Overall work has been successful and there are some
photos of work undertaken to date in Appendix 5.

5. Next steps

27.Firstly, the formal commissioning of the new traffic signals
will take place following the Lord Mayors Show. This should
see the full operation of how the junction is due to work with
the correct signal cycle times. The temporary lights are not
as effective as the permanent traffic signals in terms of their
capability and have therefore been running on a longer
signal cycle time. There will be some further tweaks to the
signal timing as work progresses and completes on
Threadneedle Street and Queen Victoria Street.

28.From the week commencing 27 November the full impact of
the permanent traffic order will be in operation on Princes
Street whereby the southbound compulsory left turn for all
traffic, except buses and cycles, will be operational at all
times (i.e., 24 hours a day and 7 days a week).

29.This will include the changing of enforcement signs at the
north end of Princes Street to “No Motor vehicles except
buses and for access” followed by the ‘compulsory left turn’
sign on the approach to the traffic lights as you travel
southbound. Vehicles can still access Grocers Hall
Courtyard or turn around in Princes Street to drop off and
exit Princes Street northbound.

30. The northbound restriction to ‘buses and cycles only’ will
also be effective at all times. The signage will be updated to
‘no entry, except buses and cycles’

31.In terms of physical construction work, work will be focused
on Queen Victoria Street and Threadneedle Street and will
begin towards the end of November.

32.Work on Queen Victoria Street will be by the Magistrates
Court, across the junction with Bucklersbury and stretching
further along towards the Bloomberg building. This will
include the introduction of the rain gardens, tree planting,
improved cycle parking facilities and the relocation of the
taxi rank nearer to Bloomberg. Pavement widening along
this section on both sides of the road revising the crossing

v.April 2019

Page 390




between Bucklersbury and Number 1 Poultry, so that the
carriageway is much narrower with no need for an island,
making it much easier for people walking informally to cross
at this location.

33.0n Threadneedle Street the widening of the rest of street

from the junction to Bartholomew Lane will take place. This
will include the raised area linking the Bank of England
entrance to the Royal Exchange space, which will be done
using Yorkstone. The tree pits will also be established. The
slightly revised layout for the junction of Bartholomew Lane
and Threadneedle Street will also be completed.

34.Planting season is usually November to March, so it is quite

likely that some of the planting programme will need to be
extended into next autumn 2024 to ensure the greatest
chance for success. However, we will look to maximise the
opportunity for this planting season.

35. As the physical carriageway and pavement work draws to

an end in the spring, and the risks are closed on the costed
risk register, more of the items in table 1 will be able to be
programmed and delivered.

36. A further progress report will be presented towards the end

of the main construction in the Spring of 2024 to update on
what else from the prioritised enhancements either have
already been delivered or what else is affordable within the
budget.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Coversheet
Appendix 2 Plan showing areas of completed work
Appendix 3 Plan showing areas of work left to complete
Appendix 4 Risk Register
Appendix 5 Before and After Photos

Contact

Report Author

Gillian Howard

Email Address

Gillian.howard@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone Number

020 7332 3139

v.April 2019

Page 391




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 392



Appendix 1

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

UPI: 11401

Core Project Name: Bank Junction Improvements: All Change at Bank
Programme Affiliation (if applicable): Bank on Safety

Project Manager: Gillian Howard

Definition of need: The junction was identified in the Bank area strategy in 2013,
as a space that did not work well for anyone. It was seen as dangerous and polluted
with a high collision rate. This project was initiated to investigate solutions to these
issues, to simplify the movement at the junction to create less conflict, to reallocate
space to assist with the growth of pedestrian numbers and to ensure that the ‘Place’
function for the centre of the Bank conservation area is enhanced

Key measures of success:

1) Reduction in total casualties — specific interest in reducing Killed and Seriously Injured.
2) Reduced NO; emission levels

3) Improved Pedestrian comfort levels

4) Improved perception of Place (as a place to spend time in, and not just pass through)

Expected timeframe for the project delivery: 3-4 years (following restarting it in
January 2019)
Key Milestones:

4) Construction substantially complete by end 2022. (updated to Summer 2023)
(subsequently updated to Spring 2024)

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? N

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?

With its close relationship with the Bank on Safety scheme — the longer-term project has
had media interest which has been manged by the media team. The public are currently
aware that more change is forthcoming at Bank.

[2] Finance and Costed Risk

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes: Update relevant section post
report approval. Add multiple entries to relevant box if issues reports are approved. Note
this section is to tell the 'project story' of how we reached the current position outlined in the
main report.

‘Project Proposal’ G1/G2 report (as approved by PSC 05/12/2013):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 4-6 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £532,000
e Spend to date: £434,000

V14 July 2019

Page 393




Appendix 1

Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A

CRP Requested: N/A

CRP Drawn Down:

Estimated Programme Dates: G3 anticipated June 2015 - scheme
completion estimated 2019/2020

Scope/Design Change and Impact: some slippage on timeframe for G3 with
delays with consultant. Subsequently a fatality at the junction in June 2015
changed the approach to the project

‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G3 report (as approved by PSC 01/12/2015):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 4-18 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £1,179,000
e Spend to date: £886,791
Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A
CRP Requested: N/A
CRP Drawn Down: N/A
Estimated Programme Dates: G4 mid 2017; construction start late 2018
complete in 2020

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

The introduction of what became the Bank on Safety Scheme was initiated at the
Gateway 3 stage of this project (in the same report). Intention to continue to work
on both projects.

This project was formally put on hold in February 2018 in an issues report

An issues report in January 2019 sought to restart the project with changes to the
project approach. Members agreed a strategic option to pursue rather than
continuing with looking at 4 rigid options following the experience and lessons of
delivering the Bank on Safety scheme.

Both Planning and Transportation and Streets and Walkways Sub Committee changed
the recommendation in the January 2019 Issues report to read:

“Proceed with feasibility design of Strategic Option 2 (semi pedestrian
priority with some vehicle movement) to a Gateway 4 report, on the
basis that the proposed timescales for the project be tightened, and that
Strategic Option 1 be retained as the Corporation’s longer-term
aspiration for the junction. The next phase of work will investigate
different options for highways alignment, design of public realm and
vehicle mix to inform the Gateway 4 report;”

The April 2019 issues report sought approval to the proposed project approach to
achieve the strategic aim agreed in the January 2019 report with a request for
further funds.

Due to the introduction of the organisations fundamental review the funding
element of the April report was not confirmed until June 2019 following changes
being made to the source of funding to be S106 and not OSPR.

V14 July 2019

Page 394




Appendix 1

A further Capital Funding Bid as part of the new annual process was submitted
and £4m has been allocated from this process in addition to the existing £1.5m of
S106 and TFL funding already secured.

A second Gateway 3 was submitted:

‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G3 report (as approved by PSC 27/05/2020):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £1,583,457

Spend to date: £1,190,861

Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A

CRP Requested: N/A

CRP Drawn Down: N/A

Estimated Programme Dates: G4 Sept/Oct 2020; construction start late

2021 complete in 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact
3 options out of 20 were agreed to proceed for further design.

‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G4 report: (as approved by Projects Sub
23/10/20)
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): 541,935
Spend to date: 1,381,474
Costed Risk Against the Project: 95,000
CRP Requested: 95,000
CRP Drawn Down: 0
Estimated Programme Dates: G4c December 2020/January 2021

1 option chosen for detailed design to continue

Options Appraisal and Design’ G4b report: (as approved by Court of
Common Council 3/12/20)
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): 541,935
Spend to date: 1,381,474
Costed Risk Against the Project: 95,000
CRP Requested: 95,000
CRP Drawn Down: O
Estimated Programme Dates: G4c December 2020/January 2021

Detailed Design G4c report: (as approved by Projects Sub 23/02/2021)
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million
Resources to reach next Gateway (G5) (excluding risk): 541,935
Spend to date: 1,475,110
Costed Risk Against the Project: 95,000
CRP Requested: 95,000
CRP Drawn Down: 0
Estimated Programme Dates: Progress report on consultation findings —
June/July 2021 followed by G5 October 2021.

V14 July 2019

Page 395




Appendix 1

Agreement of the design option to be proceed to Public consultation.

Issues report: (as approved by Projects Sub 23/07/21).
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (G5) (excluding risk): 693,258
Spend to date: 1,613,003
Costed Risk Against the Project: £253,500
CRP Requested: 93,000
CRP Drawn Down: 0
Estimated Programme Dates: Progress report on consultation findings —
September 2021 followed by G5 October 2021.

Scope/Design Change and Impact: the change to programme following more time
needed to fully analyse the consultation results means that we will no longer be
able to substantially complete the work by the end of 2022 as planned. It is still
possible to complete a large area before the LM show 2022 but a substantial area
will need to be completed after LM show

Issues report —public consultation findings report (As approved by Projects
sub 15/09/21)
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): 5-5.6 million
e Resources to reach next Gateway (G5) (excluding risk): 693,258
Spend to date: 1,689,517
Costed Risk Against the Project: £253,500
CRP Requested: 93,000
CRP Drawn Down: O
Estimated Programme Dates: G5 October 2021.

‘Authority to start Work’ G5 report (as approved by Projects sub 15/012/22):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £6.7 million (costed risk to be utilised

on delivery when no longer needed for Risk — descoping options included

in the report)

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): 3,513,197 (+297k to 997k risk)

Spend to date: £1,945,799

Costed Risk Against the Project: £1,175,000

CRP Requested: 390,000 (confirmed funding) to 1,090,000 (awaiting

confirmation of capital bid)

e CRP Drawn Down: O

e Estimated Programme Dates: construction completion summer 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact

Due to increasing contract costs, labour and materials, the original project budget
of £5.6m was no longer going to deliver the basic functional change as designed.
The report discussed how delivery could happen with no extra funding, which
would be to not undertake the physical change in Queen Victoria Street or deliver
any of the public realm enhancements that had been consulted upon.

A capital top up bid of £700k based on a anticipated 20% uplift in the prices used
to estimate for the Gateway 5 had been applied for, but the final decisions on the
funding was not going to be taken until the Court of Common Council in March

V14 July 2019
Page 396




Appendix 1

2023. If the 700k was granted, the full base design would be achievable, and
there would be scope to deliver some of the public realm enhancements by
utilising costed risk provision that had not been required during the substantive
build.

Issues Report September 2022: update on progress and Public realm
priorities.

e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £6.7 million to max £6.8million
utilising unspent costed risk
Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): 3,513,197 (+297k to 997k risk)
Spend to date: £2,342,000
Costed Risk Against the Project: £1,175,000
CRP Requested: £666,498 (remaining)
CRP Drawn Down: £423,502
Estimated Programme Dates: construction completion Spring 2024

Scope/Design Change and Impact

Following the successful bid for funding to cover the increased inflationary costs
and contract rises which ensured that the basic functional change of the project
could be delivered, this report focused on the enhancements that needed to be
prioritised as and when/or if funding became available to deliver them. The
principle of using any unspent costed risk provision on the enhancements was
approved at gateway 5. This report agreed a priority to which funding would be
directed

A series of reports relating to the traffic mix and timing review have also been
received by committee (S&W) May 2022, February 2023, May 2023.

An Urgency report was considered in August 2023 regarding an additional £500k
(Plus £150k CRP) to the budget specifically for progressing the traffic mix and
timing review

e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £6.7 million to max £7.3 million
utilising unspent costed risk
Spend to date: £3,495,398
Costed Risk Against the Project: £1,240,000
CRP Requested: £816,498 (remaining)
CRP Drawn Down: £423,502
Estimated Programme Dates: construction completion Spring 2024

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Value to TBC once the
level of greening, seating and enhancement is confirmed following the prioritisation of the
enhancements should there be funding to deliver these. The maintenance value is including
in the cost estimates of the project and is not a further resource to acquire.

Estimate for rain gardens and trees is approx. £82k

There is a likely change to cleansing and maintenance costs of the area with additional
greenery and seating.

Programme Affiliation [£]: with Bank on Safety Scheme up to £9.08 million

V14 July 2019

Page 397




Appendix 1

V14 July 2019

Page 398




(

Boank

Appendix 2

Bank

/;/”

Works planned to be completed for Lord
Mayors Show (11/11/23)

Footway works completed
Carriageway works completed

N

\ ’, Bank of England

Bank



AutoCAD SHX Text
Church of St Stephen

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Walbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Magistrates Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Mansion House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Guild Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
of St Mary

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Woolnoth

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Royal Exchange Buildings

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Grocers' Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Bank of England

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
8 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
68 to 70

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
73 to 77

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
15 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
23 to 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
28 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
27 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
6 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
27 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
62 to 63

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Royal

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Probation

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
36 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
ENTRY PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
ENTRY PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
1x100,1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
2x100,1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
DP020

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
d=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
d=0.32m

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
d=0.38m

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
CELL. ENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
12.512

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
12.515

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
12.492

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
12.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
12.604

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
12.605

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
12.613

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
12.601

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
12.604

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
12.213

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
12.217

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
12.054

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
12.054

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
12.456

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
12.444

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
12.453

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
column

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
column

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
11.755

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
11.760

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
1x150 steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
d=0.08m

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
h=3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
d=0.08m

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
d=0.10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
h=5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
12.630

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
12.625


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 400



 Appendix3

Bank

/;/

Works to be completed after Lord Mayors
Show (11/11/23)

Footway works to be completed
Carriageway works to be completed

N

\ ’, Bank of England

Bank



AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Church of St Stephen

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Walbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Magistrates Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Mansion House

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Guild Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
of St Mary

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Woolnoth

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Royal Exchange Buildings

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Grocers' Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Bank of England

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
8 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
68 to 70

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
73 to 77

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
15 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
23 to 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
28 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
27 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
6 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
27 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
62 to 63

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Royal

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Probation

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
36 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ENTRY PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
ENTRY PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
1x100,1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
2x100,1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
1x100

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1x50

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
ENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
DP020

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
d=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
d=0.32m

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
d=0.38m

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
h=20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
CELL. ENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
12.512

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
12.515

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
12.492

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
12.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
12.604

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
12.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
12.605

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
12.613

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
12.601

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
12.604

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
12.213

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
12.217

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
12.054

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
12.054

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
12.456

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
12.444

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
12.453

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
column

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
column

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
11.755

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
11.760

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
1x150 steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
d=0.08m

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
h=3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
d=0.08m

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
d=0.10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
h=5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
12.630

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
12.625


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 402



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

Project name:

All Change at Bank

Unique project identifier: 11401

Total est cost (exc risk) £6677930

Corporate Risk Matrix score table

PM's overall risk rating Medium
Avg risk pre-mitigation 8.8 4 8
Avg risk post-mitigation 5.8 3 6 12
Red risks (open) 0 2 4 8
Amber risks (open) 6 1 2 4 8
Green risks (open) 2
Costed risks identified (All) £1,195,000.00 18% |Costed risk as % of total estimated cost of project
Costed risk pre-mitigation (open) £1,121,500.00 17% |" "
Costed risk post-mitigation (open) £1,060,000.00 0% "
Costed Risk Provision requested £1,240,000.00 0% |CRP as % of total estimated cost of project
(1) Service Delivery/ Performance 2 7.0 £55,000.00 0 2 0
(1) Compliance/Regulatory 3 8.0 £157,000.00 1 1 0
(2) Financial 4 55 £120,500.00 0 2 2
(3) Reputation 1 6.0 £8,000.00 0 1 0
(4) Contractual/Partnership 1 12.0 £700,000.00 0 1 0
(4) Legal/ Statutory 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(5) H&S/Wellbeing 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(6) Safeguarding 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(7) Innovation 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(8) Technology 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(9) Environmental 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(10) Physical 3 5.0 £81,000.00 0 2 1
Issues (open) 1 Open Issues 1 0 0 0
All Issues 1 All Issues 1 0 0 0
Costtoresolve all issues £432,502.00 Total CRP used to date £432,502.00
(on completion) T T

Page 403




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 404



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

PM's overall Open Risks
risk rating:

Total estimated cost
(exec risk):

Average
unmitigated risk
Average mitigated
risk score

CRP requested £
this gateway
Total CRP used to £
date

Mitigation actions
Mitigating actions

Project Name: Medium 1,240,000

All Change at Bank

Closed Risks

Unique project identifier:{ 11401 £ 6,677,930 432,502

Ownership & Action
Date Named Risk owner
raised Departmental (Named
Risk Manager/ Officer or
Coordinator  External Party)

General risk classification

Risk Gateway Category Description of the Risk Risk Impact Description Likelihood Impact

ID Classificatio Classificatio
n pre- n pre-

mitigation

CRP used Use of CRP
to date

Date Closed OR/ Comment(s)
Realised &
moved to Issues

Mitigation
cost (£)

Likelihood Impact Costed
Classificati Classificati impact post-
on post- onpost- mitigation (£)
mitigation mitigation

Costed Risk Provision Confidence in the
requested estimation
Y/N

Costed impact pre-
mitigation (£)

Post-
Mitiga

mitigation

Risk
score

tion
risk
score

If an estimate is found at a
later date to be inaccurate
or incomplete, more funding
and/or time resource would
Inaccurate or Incomplete be needed to rectify the issue * Undertake regular cost . .
project estimates, including  |or fund/ underwrite the Y - for costed impact reviews via the highways reduced impact rating now that
R1 5 (2) Financial B I o Likely Serious 8 £7,000.00 PO B — Fairly Confident £0.00(Likely Serious £6,000.00 8 £0.00 staff time 14/09/2020  |Leah Coburn Ben Bishop we are have a significant portion
baxters/ inflationary issues shortfall. More specifically, post-mitigation team. "
. N . of the build complete.
leads to budget increases inflationary amounts
predetermined earlier in a
project may be found to be
insufficient and require extra
funding to cover any shorffall.|
* Ensure early engagement
" with TfL buses in the design
-U (4) Contractual/Part TfL buses engagement and f:sr;ﬁggmmeaaldenerigj i phases so they can consult Costs to cover TfL staff
R2 N their requirements on a Y d Unlikely Serious £4,500.00] B — Fairly Confident internally £0.00|Unlikely Minor £0.00| time and/or costs of |14/09/2020 [Leah Coburn Neil West 22/11/2021
nership . planned engagement work . . N
project. . o Design the measures to their consultants
with TfL didn't go as planned. AT
Q help minimise impacts on
m the bus network
* Ensure early engagement
(4) Confractual/Part |LUL engagement and their Further time and therefore with LUL in the design phase Costs to cover LUL staff
R3 5 ¥ >ngag N resource may be Unlikely Minor £3,000.00} A - Very Confident to ascertain their £0.00|Rare Minor £0.00| time and/or costs of ]14/09/2020 |Leah Coburn Neil West 22/11/2021
nership requirements on a project. . . . . . .
requiredduring construction requirements for working their consultants
near their infrastructure.
Further time and therefore As restrictions ease make
resource may be required if contact with busiensses that|
R4 |4 (4) Legal Statutory | '$US(s) with external planned engagement work 1o ) Serious £7,000.00 A~ Very Confident have not been engaging £0.00|Rare Minor £0.00|Costs to cover staff fime|14/09/2020  |Leah Cobum  |Gillian Howard  [22/11/2021 )
engagement and buy-in with local external these last few months to TO this stage engagement has been
stakeholders didn't go as ensure theyunderstnad the contained within the estiamted
planned proposals budget.




Funding constraint/

Further resources may be
required to identify additional

Y - for costed impact

* Track and locate other
possible additional funding
streams

* In co-operation with City

RS 5 (2) Financial e . o funding or make alternative  |Unlikely Serious £3,500.00 IO B — Fairly Confident . . £0.00|Unlikely Serious £2,000.00 £0.00|Costs to cover staff time|14/09/2020  |Leah Coburn Gillian Howard
conditions implications ) N post-mitigation Highways staff, strive to
arrangements if constraints/ L N
Y make efficiency savings
conditions change. " .
where possible during
detailed desian phase
Further changes to the * On-going didlogue with
Accessibility and/ or security - |project's design if necessary Y - for costed impact the agcesgs;ibi\ii /%ecumy Costs to cover staff
R6 5 (2) Financial concerns lead to project may impact on accessibility/ [Unlikely Serious £20,000.00 ted Imp B — Fairly Confident Y £0.00|Rare Minor £15,000.00 £0.00) 14/09/2020 |Leah Coburn Neil West
N y post-mitigation workstreams and/ or fees
change security concerns leading to
further changes. nothing overand above anticpated le
\derﬂ\f\cqﬂon of any . * Work closely with the
engineering or technical highways team to help
R7 s (1) Service Delivery/ | Unforeseen fechnical and/ or fissues that disrupt delivery 1, o Maijor £35000.00| Y- foreostedimpact g i confident identify any unforeseen £0.00|Unlikely Serious £22,000.00 5000|COsts fo coverstaff 4000000 |Leah Cobumn  |BSN Bishop/ Neil
Performance engineering issues identified |could result in further costs post-mitigation . . . and/ or fees West
. technical or engineering
whether they be time, .
. issues at an early stage.
fundina or resources.
reworded to extend into
Licise closely with design construction given the risk around
Delays could oocur which engineers to work out an cost inflation and possible need to
Trial holes/ utility result in unplanned costs if approach to cover utiliy make alterations.
. investigations lead to further |utility companies don't " . Y - for costed impact . . delays or site discoveries. " . Ben/ Bishop/ Neil
R9 5 (10) Physical . N . . Possible Serious £8,000.00 I B — Fairly Confident N £0.00|Rare Minor £5,000.00 £0.00(staff time 14/09/2020 |Leah Coburn
information being required engage as expected or post-mitigation Trial holes fo be undertsken West
and an increase and time. additioanl utility surveys are once security measures
required. have been developed
further.
Itis possible fhat we lose Liaise closely with design
. support for the proposed N L
Expectation of the look and . " N engineers fo maximise L
feel of the scheme is higher changes whilst still having a Y - for costed impact public realm opportunites Ben/ Bishop/ Neil reduced risk impacts now that
R10 5 (3) Reputation h need to make functional Possible Serious £8,000.00] IV B - Fairly Confident . £0.00|Unlikely Serious £7,000.00) £0.00|cost to cover staff time [14/09/2020 [Leah Coburn we are a significant way into the
than what can be achieved post-mitigation that can be included, West . .
. N change to support the . . build and look and finish.
with the budget available. . . subject to site and budget
growth in pedestrian constraints
numbers ;
Additional investigations or Laiase with infernal/
(1) Service Delivery/ |surveys may be rs Uired b Delays could occur to the Y - for costed impact external parties at an early Costs to cover staff time|
R11 5 VS 4 Y quIre Y programme if validation of Unlikely Serious £20,000.00 ted Imp B — Fairly Confident stage to agree the scope of| £0.00|Rare Minor £11,000.00 £0.00|and/ or consultants 14/09/2020 |Leah Coburn Neil West Nearing the end of the risk life.
Performance internal/ external parties to P post-mitigation . N
I ! . the design is delayed. any additional time/fee
urther validate the design. h P
investigations/ surveys.
We may need fo cover more Delays could occur fo fhe Ongoing dialouge with
(1) Service Delivery/ |of the cyosis for TfL/ programme if funding isn't Eosigem gClusrer Tiom to Costs fo cover TiL staff Gillian Howard/ closed ouf by year end by ECC
R12 4 v avaialble to cover costs Possible Serious £40,000.00 N B — Fairly Confident £0.00|Rare Minor £30,000.00 £0.00|time and/or costs of 14/09/2020 |Leah Coburn . 29/07/022 team. release 30k to works
Performance consultants fees for the . X understand budget N Neil West f X
y associated with the Eastern . their consultants budget innext adjustment
Eastern Cluster project. N constraints.
Cluster project.
—U Some of the temporary
schemes implemented as . Ongoing monitoring and
g) part of the City :ve\{r]r:(gc?ross/mr:ezfsm:s further sensitivity testing will
r13 (O (1) Service Delivery/ | Transportafion's and TfL's permanent could impact on |Possible Serious £15,000.00 B - Fairly Confident be undertaken fo help £0.00[Rare Minor 50,00 COsts fo coverstaffime|, /o 0500 |Leah Cobum | CMlian Howard/ 15111 10020 release 30k to works budget
Performance response to COVID-19 may o " identify which temporary and/ or fees Neil West
the viability of proceeding
CD be made permanent and . . schemes could be made
. with the project.
could impact on the permanent.
.b proposals at Bank Junction.
D
o7 A—
significant staff cost and ensure a transparent
(1) Compliance/Re legal challenge regarding legal fees in defending any Y - for costed impact considered scheme, linked Staff costs, counsel
R14 5 P 9|the decsion to proceed with |legal challenge as well as no [Unlikely Major £150,000.00) ted imp B - Fairly Confident to policy andthat all £0.00|Unlikely Major £140,000.00) £0.00| 4 01/02/2021 Leah Coburn GillianHoward Nearing the end of the risk life.
ulatory post-mitigation costs, fees
an agreed scheme longer able to meet the pocesses are followed
project timeframe accordingly
delay to programme - cannot continue working with TfL to
i i Delay to the TfL statutory bus | gyarentee progression of the ensure they have all the illi
RIS |4 Lgrfgr:q'gicr‘):“ve'y/ cogsg\fgﬂon, dealys the G5 |, heme without the bus Possible Serious £4,000.00 N C - Uncomfortable information they need to £0.00|Unlikely  [serious £0.00|Costs fo cover staff fime Leah Coburn ﬁg‘lcv';eifwo’d/
submission reroutings being approved by progress the consutaltion in
TfL. good time 24/05/2021 15/11/2021




City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Issues Log

Project Name:

Unique project identifier: | PV12345

Risk ID
(where

previously
identified)

My project

General issue classification

Category

(4) Confractual/Pa
rinership

Description of
the Issue

New Confract rate
and inflationy cost
of suppliers have
been ideniified
and costed.

Issue Impact
Description

anicipated
Increased costs
have been
realised and
funding is
requested fobe
drawn down from
the risk Register fo
cover this cost
increase fo build
the scheme

Impact Control actions Date raised

Classification

Funding had been
requested at G5
to cover an
anticipated 20%
increase in
cocnstruction cost
due fo new
confract rafes,
inflation and and
material and
labour increases.
In preperation for
cosnfruction
starfing, the costs
have beenrerun
with the new
confract rates,
other supplier
costs etc and this
is now what we
anficipate the
build fo cost if
work progresses
swiftly. this sits
within the figure
identified and
provides for furhter,
CRP if there should
be further
increases during
the build, or for
materials that

Exireme 29-Jul-22]

Named
Departmental
Issue
Manager/
Coordinator

Issue owner
(Named
Officer or
External Party)

Gilian Howard

Ownership & Action
Dependencies Status

in progress

Cost to resolve Date Closed
[£] on
completion

£ 432,502.00

Comment(s)

7 abed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 408



Appendix 5

Aerial view looking west at Bank Junction

September 2014, October 2023
Photo by MattFromLondon




/ rf

v
tq::.: AVAAANY
{ { t.
- i '
| 1

— =
2 "
! R 4 A e - ‘!‘,.,rlﬁ

January 2020
October 2023

Bank Junction: looking west towards

Mansion House)



Princes Street (looking South towards
Bank)

January 2020

RS

".'
‘.\’!
J
N !
i =
n-Fri ||
pm

\

and acess iun
Cornhill ONLY
October 2023 - 3

—~

- B &
& £

L=
iv .. & -
i —— —— AU

‘RRO W g(’j
DO NOT (2l
YWERTAKE B8




Bank Junction: looking east towards
Royal Exchange) 2

January 2020

\

] v"‘
N
>
N
4
.

7

October 2023




et =i 3

S .@ll.l\rmw.,

. - |
VI o e

|
i

i

| .
;u‘lul

LR T
Ly

W\ et
AN\ "

1’\Niaw

..A‘ \\
N\

looking east towards

September 2020
July 2023

Bank Junction:
Royal Exchange)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 414



G abed

Date Action Officer To be Notes/Progress to date

responsibl completed/

e progressed

to next
stage

15 October 2020 | Dockless Vehicles Executive April 2021 Meetings have been arranged for Chairman
1 December To keep the Sub Committee Director, Sep 2021 of S&W with dockless operators; and
2021 informed of activities to manage Environmen Dec 2021 additionally a full briefing for all members of
18 February the use of dockless cycles and e- t Eeb 2022 P&T in November.
2021 scooters in the Square Mile and Sites for additional contained parking are
08 July 2021 any related issues. Sep 2022 being identified for better parking for all
10 Sep 2021 Nov 2022 dockless. We are providing comment to TfL
15 Feb 2022 Mar 2023 on activity of e scooter activity beyond the
03 May 2022 May 2023 trial.
31 May 2022 July 2023 We expect to come to committees for
05 July 2022 26 approval on trial extension in the new year
08 Nov 2022 September (currently allowed to May 20
17 Jan 2023 24).
7 March 2023 2023
23 May 2023
4 July 2023

26 September
2023

7 November
2023

0T Wal| epusaby



Date Action Officer To be Notes/Progress to date
responsibl completed/
e progressed
to next
stage
31 May 2022 Bank Junction Traffic & Timings Executive Sep 2022 Following the decision of the Court of
17 Jan 2023 Review Director, Nov 2022 Common Council in July, work is progressing
7 March 2023 Environmen | Jan 2023 on the next phase of the review, with a
23 May 2023 t March 2023 request for a progress report to be received
4 July 2023 May 2023 by the Court in December 2023.
26 Sept 2023 June 2023
7 November July 2023 A report to P&T will be submitted for the 21
2023 Sept 2023 November committee.

9T abed




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 City Public Realm Guidance - Public Realm Design Toolkit - Adoption
	231026 CITY PR TOOLKIT-FINAL DRAFT (markup)

	5 Climate Action Strategy, Cool Streets and Greening Programme - Phase 4, SuDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage) for Climate Resilience
	CSG Ph4 Project Coversheet
	Appendix 2 Risk Register Cool Streets & Greening
	Appendix 3 Cool Streets and Greening Plan and Sketches

	6 Dauntsey House, Fredericks Place - Public Realm Improvements (S278)
	Appendix 1_Dauntsey House_FredericksPlce_GW1-2_v2
	Appendix 2_Dauntsey House_FredericksPlce (002)

	7 Enhancing Cheapside Programme
	Appendix 1 _Enhancing Cheapside_Project Briefing
	Appendix 2 Cheapside Area Enhancement Location Plan

	8 Fleet Street Area Healthy Streets Plan
	Appendix 1 Project Coversheet v3
	Appendix 2 Financial Tables
	Appendix 3 Overall consultation response summary
	Appendix 4 Revised Final Fleet Track Changes
	Appendix 5 FS HSP Consultation Report
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Contents (and quick hyperlinks)
	Slide 3: The Healthy Streets Plan
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Consultation Methodology
	Slide 7: Executive Summary
	Slide 8: Headline Findings
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: Chancery Lane Neighbourhood
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25: Fleet Street & Lanes Neighbourhood
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37: Old Bailey Neighbourhood
	Slide 38
	Slide 39
	Slide 40
	Slide 41
	Slide 42
	Slide 43
	Slide 44
	Slide 45
	Slide 46
	Slide 47: Carter Lane and Ludgate Neighbourhood
	Slide 48
	Slide 49
	Slide 50
	Slide 51
	Slide 52
	Slide 53
	Slide 54
	Slide 55
	Slide 56: Whitefriars Neighbourhood
	Slide 57
	Slide 58
	Slide 59
	Slide 60
	Slide 61
	Slide 62
	Slide 63
	Slide 64
	Slide 65
	Slide 66
	Slide 67
	Slide 68
	Slide 69
	Slide 70
	Slide 71
	Slide 72
	Slide 73
	Slide 74
	Slide 75
	Slide 76: Appendix: Consultation Participants
	Slide 77: Overall: Age Group
	Slide 78
	Slide 79: Overall: Usual Travel
	Slide 80
	Slide 81
	Slide 82
	Slide 83
	Slide 84
	Slide 85

	Appendix 6 - WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS pages 1-55
	Appendix 6 - WHITEFRIARS ACCESS AND PARKING ANALYSIS pages 56-110

	9 Bank Junction Improvements: All Change at Bank *
	Appendix 1 - project cover sheet
	Appendix 2- Works complete
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Appendix 3 - Areas of work remaining
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Appendix 4 Costed risk register a
	Appendix 4 Costed risk register b
	Appendix 4 Costed risk register c
	Appendix 5 - before and after
	Slide 1: Appendix 5
	Slide 2: Bank Junction: looking west towards Mansion House)
	Slide 3: Princes Street (looking South towards Bank)
	Slide 4: Bank Junction: looking east towards Royal Exchange) 2
	Slide 5: Bank Junction: looking east towards Royal Exchange)


	10 Outstanding References*



